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5,510,000
0.53
2,920,300.00
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()

28,630 1,038,487,914 9.44

334 6,445,502,653 58.57

10,288 703,737,008 6.39

1,418 2,816,673,415 25.60

40,670 11,004, 400,990 100.00

67 A3)(C)
11,063,076,940
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(G
)
55100 5,336,641,099 48.45
205
33
C )
HSBC 50100 413,328,725 3.75
No
50450 369,470,200 3.35
165
8
SSO-DOC MY
048543 270,524,927 2.46
No. 06-01
048543 224,314,344 2.04
No. 06-01
210,500,000 1.91
50400
201-A
23 PNB
048543 203,356,233 1.85
No. 06-01
048543 189,190,672 1.72
No. 06-01
59000 142,138,041 1.29
SA
No.1
10 55100 119,058,456 1.08
179
88
B3
)
6.04
@
) (
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2024 21 YTL

2024 21

(www._ytl_com)

2024 21
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col
col col
(__ABC )
ABC
2020 1 2009 MACC 17 A
ABC www . ytl.com
ABC 2020 20
YTL MACC 17 A (5
ABC
ABC
ABC
(integrity pledge)
ABC
( ESG ) ESG
YTL ESG
YTL
2024 www.ytl.com/sustainability
YTL YTL
YTL GSC YTL GSC ESG
ESG YTL ESG
YTL GSC 1
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YTL YTL

www_ytl.com/sustainability

YTL GSC
ESG ESG
Nominating Committee Statement
ESG
- 2023 10 11
- 2023 11 30
- 2023 11 30
- 2024 22
12
33.3
2024 30
50.09
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AGM
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YTL

RC
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(circular)

21

2023 12 40

30

2023 12 40

30

https://www.ytl.com/meetings
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Tricor Investor & Issuing

House Services Sdn Bhd THH (https://tiih.com.my)
41
CG 2024 21
@
( )
33.3
1954 23 70 1984
1988 2018
(Executive Chairman) 29
2004
2014
1988
YTL
YTL REIT
YTL YTL
L&D 2018 29
YTL
YTL
SGX-ST
YTL
REIT YTL
YTL REIT
YTL
YTL
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2005 2012
2012 2022 10
2016
16
25
2002 2010 CNBC
2006 (CBE)
2019 (KBE)
2008
2010
Primus Inter Pares Honouree
2015
2016
2017
2017 Asian Power Awards
2018
2022 PropertyGuru Real Estate Personality of the Year
for Malaysia
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1957 17 67 1984 24
(Managing Director) 2018 29
1981 ( ) 2017
1984
(UK)
YTL
YTL L&D 2018 29
YTL
YTL L&D
YTL REIT
YTL YTL
YTL
SGX-ST
YTL
REIT
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1956 13 68 1984 24
(Executive Director) ( )

1990 12

YTL YTL

2022 12 13
YTL REIT

1IN YTL
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1959 22 65 1985 19
(Executive Director) 1982 (
)
YTL
CloB 2010
YTL
YTL
46 2021
56
YTL YTL L&D YTL
YTL
YTL
YTL
YTL
1960 10 20 64 1985 19
1983
(Executive Director)
YTL
YTL YTL L&D

YTL YTL
YTL

2021 10 14 2023

GCCA 2020 22 2021
10 22 The World Cement
Association
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1963 10 61 1996 16
(Executive Director)
1992
2012
YTL
YTL
ASEAN AFCM
YTL

2023
WSF
WOSM WSF

1965 14 59 1995 22

LLB
(Executive Director) 1988 ( )
2014
1989 YTL
YTL
UK PT
YTL
YTL REIT
YTL L&D YTL
YTL
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1954 14 70 1999 10 20

1977 (
(Executive Director) ) ( )

1984 1994

1994 11 1996

MIDF

YTL
YTL

1958 12 13 65 2019

2023 11 30 MARA

(Independent Non-Executive Institute of Technology Twinning Programme

Director)
2008

(ICLIF)

30
2018 12 2015 2018
CImMB 2007
2015 CIMB Investment Bank Berhad( CIMB IB )
GAM
CimMB CIMB GAM
CIMBMapletree

CIvMB JP Morgan

JP Morgan

10

As-Salihin Trustee Berhad Ncell Axiata Limited

MASCOT
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1953 18 71 2023 18
2023 5 18 2023 11
30 2023 11 30
(Independent Non-Executive
Director)
1984
UMMC
38 2014
2007 12 0CBC 0CBC (
) 0CBC
0CBC
0CBC
14
(™
(
)
1999 -
AICB Associate Fellowship 2023
AICB
2016 HSBC
2018 2023
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1955 11 68 2023 10 11
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(Independent Non-Executive
Director)
1983 1984
1986
1989
2008
2013
2014
2019
28
2013 11 2023 ECO
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1962 12 61 2024 22
(Independent Non-Executive
Director) 1985
Lembaga Tabung

Haji

2002

CEO

ETF
ETF
2018 RHB
RHB
RHB RHB
RHB RHB
RHB
INED
2020 10 2023 8
BMB BMB
INED
2024 3 27 BMB  INED
(LPPSA) INED
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2024 20
(D)
PSM,
KBE 147,344,946 1.34
61,508,722 0.56
58,386,499 0.53
39,973,305 0.36
60,000,065 0.54
23,232,200 0.21
9,911,955 0.09
2024 82,979,000
1,263,000
ESOS
(
)
( ) ( )
1,788 877
51,062 1,269
22,981 639
* 96 60
7,791 229
524 180
84,242 3,254
*S0CSO
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2024 30 HLB
HLB 256 2,953
HLB 17 65
HLB 6 562

23 627
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ACCA

41
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HLB PLT
( )
256,000 16,000 256,000 17,000
11,215,000 1,100,000 13,621,000 583,000
11,471,000 1,116,000 13,877,000 600,000
*
@ (@)
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59

33.81
UFJ

330

2024

2023

331

) 328

30

100

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
) 2024 2023 30
( 38
329
2024 2023 30
( 23 103 )
193
« D
2024 12

2.9580
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€Y) (2024 30 )
2024 2023

4 30,490,671 1,030,889,587 29,616,085 1,001,319,834

5 (21,357,143) (722,085,005) (23,163,010) (783,141,368)

9,133,528 308,804,582 6,453,075 218,178,466

881,686 29,809,804 638,365 21,583,121

(755,757) (25,552,144) (681,843) (23,053,112)

(1,480,173) (50,044 ,649) (1,318,225) (44,569,187)

(736,581) (24,903,804) (465,561) (15,740,617)

6 (2,620,490) (88,598,767) (2,316,743) (78,329,081)

410,756 13,887,660 420,045 14,201,721

7 4,832,969 163,402,682 2,729,113 92,271,311

8 (948,238) (32,059,927) (606,769) (20,514,860)

3,884,731 131,342,755 2,122,344 71,756,451

2,140,539 72,371,624 1,095,699 37,045,583

1,744,192 58,971,132 1,026,645 34,710,867

3,884,731 131,342,755 2,122,344 71,756,451
9 19.51 7 9.99 3
9 19.14 6 9.94 3
10 4.00 1 3.00 1
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30 ) IGED
2024 2023

521,453 17,630,326 386,317 13,061,378
521,453 17,630,326 386,317 13,061,378

31,293 1,058,016 24,663 833,856
(191,750) (6,483,068) (140,119) (4,737,423)
(219,423) (7.418,692) (184,151) (6,226,145)
141,573 4,786,583 86,710 2,931,665
(20,237) (684,213) (10,972) (370,963)
121,336 4,102,370 75,738 2,560,702
121,336 4,102,370 75,738 2,560,702
121,336 4,102,370 75,738 2,560,702
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30 )
2024 2023

3,884,731 131,342,755 2,122,344 71,756,451
(28,343) (958,277) (249, 825) (8,446,583)
(17,502) (591,743) (61,314) (2,073,026)
4,774 161,409 — _
239,838 8,108,923 (513,435) (17,359, 237)
83,272 2,815,426 1,718,038 58,086,865
282,039 9,535,739 893,464 30,208,018
4,166,770 140,878,494 3,015,808 101,964,468
2,291,786 77,485,285 1,690,628 57,160,133
1,874,984 63,393,209 1,325,180 44,804,336
4,166,770 140,878,494 3,015,808 101,964,468
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OooooOodd
(2024 30 Y )
2024 2023
121,336 4,102,370 75,738 2,560,702
)
_ — (200) (6,762)
( — — (200) (6,762)
121,336 4,102,370 75,538 2,553,940
121,336 4,102,370 75,538 2,553,940
121,336 4,102,370 75,538 2,553,940
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ooooOoog
(©)) (2024 30 )
2024 2023

11 37,816,881 1,278,588,747 35,330,655 1,194,529,446
12 2,135,525 72,202,100 1,524,877 51,556,091
13 2,233,455 75,513,114 1,966,666 66,492,977
28 881,894 29,816,836 — —
14 796,145 26,917,662 786,093 26,577,804
15 — — — —
16 4,260,027 144,031,513 3,863,791 130,634,774
17 467,391 15,802,490 377,500 12,763,275
18 525,493 17,766,918 518,987 17,546,950
19 9,934,119 335,872,563 9,428,412 318,774,610
20 404,484 13,675,604 — —
21 54,097 1,829,020 9,206 311,255
22 3,200,952 108,224,187 3,011,400 101,815,434
36 338,369 11,440,256 353,268 11,943,991
37 31,124 1,052,302 64,314 2,174,456
23 16,353 552,895 2,879 97,339
63,096,309 2,133,286,207 57,238,048 1,935,218,403

24 1,301,207 43,993,809 1,219,606 41,234,879
25 692,508 23,413,695 443,555 14,996,595
22 6,126,896 207,150,354 5,509,845 186,287,859
20 234,730 7,936,221 — —
21 750,069 25,359,833 422,689 14,291,115
23 122,256 4,133,475 18,824 636,439
140,511 4,750,677 108,352 3,663,381

26 83,564 2,825,299 73,223 2,475,670
18 1,983,383 67,058,179 2,000,574 67,639,407
27 12,836,846 434,013,763 11,195,322 378,513,837
27 1,422,355 48,089,823 3,230,331 109,217,491
25,694,325 868,725,128 24,222,321 818,956,673

88,790,634 3,002,011,336 81,460,369 2,754,175,076
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(€)) (2024 30 )( )

2024 2023
29 3,491,793 118,057,521 3,467,555 117,238,035
30 1,970,015 66,606,207 1,761,203 59,546,273
11,010,763 372,273,897 9,291,387 314,141,794
29(a) (54,452) (1,841,022) (54,452) (1,841,022)
16,418,119 555,096,603 14,465,693 489,085,080
7,741,967 261,755,904 5,647,540 190,943,327
24,160,086 816,852,508 20,113,233 680,028,408
31 2,301,051 77,798,534 1,817,479 61,448,965
21 47,304 1,599,348 35,095 1,186,562
32 28,477,538 962,825,560 23,318,657 788,403,793
33 12,151,098 410,828,623 15,336,292 518,520,033
34 1,233,511 41,705,007 1,094,322 36,999,027
28 559,198 18,906,484 — —
35 721,874 24,406,560 699,025 23,634,035
36 3,763,739 127,252,016 3,773,208 127,572,162
37 90,484 3,059,264 38,426 1,299,183
38 34,527 1,167,358 22,483 760,150
23 1,198 40,504 9,654 326,402
49,381,522 1,669,589,259 46,144,641 1,560,150,312
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(€)) (2024 30 )( )
2024 2023

39 6,378,120 215,644,237 5,631,023 190,384,888
21 862,521 29,161,835 798,709 27,004,351
23 20,016 676,741 110,828 3,747,095
26 12,733 430,503 37,970 1,283,766
32 1,193,407 40,349,091 1,594,466 53,908,895
33 4,799,853 162,283,030 6,204,777 209,783,510
34 739,506 25,002,698 260,388 8,803,718
28 385,172 13,022,665 — —
38 110,621 3,740,096 117,586 3,975,583
37 21,354 721,979 6,837 231,159
725,723 24,536,695 439,911 14,873,391

15,249,026 515,569,569 15,202,495 513,996,356

64,630,548 2,185,158,828 61,347,136 2,074,146,668

88,790,634 3,002,011,336 81,460,369 2,754,175,076
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?) (2024 30 ) (
2024 2023

11 38,784 1,311,287 39,246 1,326,907
12 15,660 529,465 2,226 75,261
13 — — _ _
28 — — — —
14 — — — —
15 8,096,597 273,745,945 8,242,229 278,669,762
16 564,021 19,069,550 564,021 19,069,550
17 — — — —
18 9,398 317,746 9,398 317,746
19 — — — —
20 — — — —
21 — — — —
22 — — — —
36 — — — —
37 — — — —
23 — — — —
8,724,460 294,973,993 8,857,120 299,459,227

24 — — — —
25 — — — —
22 8,064 272,644 8,461 286,066
20 — — — —
21 — — — —
23 — — — —
3,282 110,964 6,775 229,063

26 1,018,946 34,450,564 1,102,319 37,269,405
18 651,643 22,032,050 544,663 18,415,056
27 239,500 8,097,495 26,742 904,147
27 3,196 108,057 3,406 115,157
1,924,631 65,071,774 1,692,366 57,218,894

10,649,091 360,045,767 10,549,486 356,678,122
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©) (2024 30 )
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29 3,491,793 118,057,521 3,467,555 117,238,035
30 30,364 1,026,607 17,648 596,679

2,202,073 74,452,088 2,519,312 85,177,939

29(a) (54,452) (1,841,022) (54,452) (1,841,022)

5,669,778 191,695,194 5,950,063 201,171,630

5,669,778 191,695,194 5,950,063 201,171,630
31 — — — —
21 — — — —
32 3,825,000 129,323,250 3,200,000 108,192,000
33 125,167 4,231,896 — —
34 9,205 311,221 — —
28 — — — —
35 — — — —
36 113 3,821 113 3,821
37 — — — —
38 — — — —
23 — — — —

3,959,485 133,870,188 3,200,113 108,195,821
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®3) (2024 30 )(
2024 2023
39 38,134 1,289,311 33,889 1,145,787
21 — — — —
23 — — — —
26 7,783 263,143 5,846 197,653
32 — — 240,000 8,114,400
33 966,945 32,692,410 1,116,910 37,762,727
34 6,632 224,228 2,339 79,082
28 — — — —
38 — — — —
37 334 11,293 326 11,022
1,019,828 34,480,385 1,399,310 47,310,671
4,979,313 168,350,573 4,599,423 155,506,492
10,649,001 360,045,767 10,549,486 356,678,122
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) (2024 30 )
( 29 30) (206
2024

2023 3,467,555 1,761,203 9,291,387 (54,452) 14,465,693 5,647,540 20,113,233
— — 2,140,539 — 2,140,539 1,744,192 3,884,731
() — 166,818 (15,571) — 151,247 130,792 282,039
— 166,818 2,124,968 — 2,291,786 1,874,984 4,166,770
— (7,406) 21,738 — 14,332 716,708 731,040

— — (438,575) — (438,575) (508,675) (947,250)
24,238 (16,547) 11,016 — 18,707 (7.609) 11,098
— 65,947 229 — 66,176 19,019 85,195
2024 30 3,491,793 1,970,015 11,010,763 (54,452) 16,418,119 7,741,967 24,160,086
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4) (024 30 )
C gy ( 29G)
2024

2023 117,238,035 59,546,273 314,141,794 (1,841,022) 489,085,080 190,943,327 680,028,408
— — 72,371,624 — 72,371,624 58,971,132 131,342,755
( ) — 5,640,117 (526,456) — 5,113,661 4,422,078 9,535,739
— 5,640,117 71,845,168 — 77,485,285 63,393,209 140,878,494
— (250,397) 734,962 — 484,565 24,231,897 24,716,462

— — (14,828,221) — (14,828,221)  (17,198,302)  (32,026,523)
819,487 (559,454) 372,451 — 632,484 (257,260) 375,223
— 2,229,668 7,742 — 2,237,411 643,032 2,880,443
2024 30 118,057,521 66,606,207 372,273,897 (1,841,022) 555,096,603 261,755,904 816,852,508
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oooooog
4 (2024 30 )( )
C 2 g (206
2023
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146/615



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

©) (2024 )
( 29 30) (29
2024

2023 3,467,555 17,648 2,519,312 (54,452) 5,950,063

— — 121,336 — 121,336
_ — (438,575) — (438,575)

24,238 (4,059) — — 20,179

— 16,775 — — 16,775

2024 30 3,491,793 30,364 2,202,073 (54,452) 5,669,778

147/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooooodo
©) (2024 30 )( )
( 29 30) (29
2024
2023 117,238,035 596,679 85,177,939 (1,841,022) 201,171,630
— — 4,102,370 — 4,102,370
— — (14,828,221) — (14,828,221)
819,487 (137,235) — — 682,252
— 567,163 — — 567,163
2024 30 118,057,521 1,026,607 74,452,088 (1,841,022) 191,695,194

148/615



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

) (2024 30 )( )
(  29) 30) (  29(a))
2023
2022 3,467,555 7,234 2,772,420 (54,452) 6,192,757
— — 75,738 — 75,738
— (200) — — (200)
¢ — (200) 75,738 — 75,538
— — (328,923) — (328,923)
— 10,691 — — 10,691
— an 77 — —
2023 30 3,467,555 17,648 2,519,312 (54,452) 5,950,063

149/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Oooooooo
) (2024 30 )( )
(  29) 30) (  29(a))
2023
2022 117,238,035 244,582 93,735,520 (1,841,022) 209,377,114
— — 2,560,702 — 2,560,702
— (6,762) — — (6,762)
¢ — (6,762) 2,560,702 — 2,553,940
— — (11,120,887) — (11,120,887)
— 361,463 — — 361,463
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208,339 7,043,942 205,744 6,956,205
(21,107) (713,628) (3,786) (128,005)
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28 947 — —
(290,019) (9,805,542) (90, 387) (3,055,984)
(9,930) (335,733) — —
(4,513) (152,585) (6,089) (205,869)
(8,827) (298,441) — _
(9,027) (305,203) (6,514) (220,238)
4,320 146,059 1,843 62,312
— — (501) (16,939)
(4,609) (155,830) (1,926) (65,118)
365,437 12,355,425 127,589 4,313,784
2,620,490 88,598,767 2,316,743 78,329,081
(941,354) (31,827,179) (567,466) (19,186,025)
20,211 683,334 111 3,753
732 24,749 17,424 589,105
16,897 571,288 14,403 486,965
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37,868 1,280,317 34,193 1,156,065
4,684 158,366 7,467 252,459
85,195 2,880,443 28,713 970,787
(410,756) (13,887,660) (420,045) (14,201,721)
(22,242) (752,002) (156,701) (5,298,061)
8,131,590 274,929,058 5,962,742 201,600,307
(196,508) (6,643,935) (3,273) (110, 660)
(10,327) (349,156) (58,849) (1,989,685)
(199,612) (6,748,882) (1,425,933) (48,210,795)
(297,380) (10,054,418) (416,459) (14,080,479)
118,851 4,018,352 1,766,803 59,735,609
16,331 552,151 (19,247) (650,741)
7,562,945 255,703,170 5,805,784 196,293,557
559,256 18,908,445 529,324 17,896,444
(1,957,376) (66,178,883) (1,714,386) (57,963,391)
937,131 31,684,399 554,311 18,741,255
(45,764) (1,547,281) — —
(38,007) (1,285,017) (237,583) (8,032,681)
(650,847) (22,005,137) (266,736) (9,018,344)
5,587 188,896 233 7,878
6,372,925 215,468,594 4,670,947 157,924,718
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(286,922) (9,700,833) (74,550) (2,520,536)
(21,197) (716,671) (10,653) (360,178)
37,430 1,265,508 31,051 1,049,834
— — (167,300) (5,656,413)
9,259 313,047 9,694 327,754
177,842 6,012,838 194,682 6,562,198
21,237 718,023 66,666 2,253,977
9,132 308,753 — —
1,852,732 62,640,869 75,471 2,551,675
3,316 112,114 2,741 92,673
(68,709) (2,323,051) (66,960) (2,263,918)
(142,847) (4,829,657) (4,596) (155,391)
(3,699,722)  (125,087,601) (2,078,728) (70,281,794)
(1,514,357) (51,200,410) (681,585) (23,044,389)
(43,747) (1,479,086) (3,669) (124,049)
(4,214,653)  (142,497,418) (2,707,736) (91,548,554)
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(508,675) (17,198,302) (387,296) (13,094,478)
— — @172) (5,815)
— — @ (€1
75,996 2,569,425 (20,467) (691,989)
2,501,100 84,562,191 3,008,971 104,776,210
6,495,703 219,619,718 5,539,829 187,301,618
24,238 819,487 — —
105,267 3,559,077 1,887 63,799
(1,144,591) (38,698,622) (2,280,000) (77,086,800)
(9,386,087)  (317,343,601) (4,853,316)  (164,090,614)
(260,609) (8,811,190) (297,580) (10,061,180)
(7,322) (247,557) (26,025) (879,905)
(2,544,103) (86,016,122) 436,887 14,771,149
) (385,831) (13,044,946) 2,400,098 81,147,313
57,538 1,945,360 697,605 23,586,025
14,293,802 483,273,446 11,196,099 378,540,107
27 13,965,509 472,173,859 14,293,802 483,273,446
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1,478 49,971 574 19,407
115,883 3,918,004 53,861 1,821,040
30,182 1,020,453 23,894 807,856
— — 906 30,632
(75,669) (2,558,369) 22,144 748,689
1,633 55,212 — —
3,773,229 127,572,872 2,180,107 73,709,418
219 7,404 — —
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46,454,192  1,570,616,232 42,256,182  1,428,681,513
2,501,100 84,562,191 3,008,971 104,776,210
6,495,703 219,619,718 5,539,829 187,301,618
(7,322) (247,557) (26,025) (879,905)
(1,144,591) (38,698,622) (2,280,000) (77,086, 800)
(9,386,087)  (317,343,601) (4,853,316)  (164,090,614)
924,368 31,252,882 — —
527,276 17,827,202 458,090 15,488,023
63,765 2,155,895 (92,946) (3,142,504)
279 9,433 574 19,407
1,837 62,109 — —
191,376 6,470,423 2,352,833 79,549,284
46,621,896  1,576,286,304 46,454,192  1,570,616,232

156/615

oOoOooodn



©)

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

30

OooooOodd
(2024 30 Y )
2024 2023

1,354,710 45,802,745 1,416,617 47,895,821
(260,609) (8.811,190) (297,580) (10,061,180)
121,890 4,121,101 77,587 2,623,216
32,742 1,107,007 — —
86,024 2,908,471 82,196 2,779,047
678,511 22,940,457 91,572 3,096,049
(18,942) (640,429) (28,018) (947,289)
(67) (2.265) (5.252) (177,570)
(21,242) (718,192) 17,588 594,650
1,973,017 66,707,705 1,354,710 45,802,745

157/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
(6) (2024 30 ) ( )

2024 2023
141,573 4,786,583 86,710 2,931,665
_ — 4 135
4,246 143,557 5,088 172,025
6,700 226,527 6,677 225,749
(502,217) (16,979,957) (377,177) (12,752,354)
(10,777) (364,370) (4,089) (138,249)
(4,513) (152,585) (2,546) (86,080)
85,207 2,880,849 61,974 2,095,341
219,423 7,418,692 184,151 6,226,145
(19,076) (644,960) (8,980) (303,614)
— — 34 1,150
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8,017 271,055 5,094 172,228
(71,417) (2,414,609) (43,060) (1,455,859)
397 13,423 (476) (16,094)

194 6,559 5,972 201,913
155,776 5,266,787 (216,328) (7,314,050)
84,950 2,872,160 (253,892) (8,584,089)
502,217 16,979,957 377,177 12,752,354
(218,985) (7,403,883) (183,921) (6,218,369)
17,941 606,585 8,546 288,940
(16,744) (566,115) (9,770) (330,324)
369,379 12,488,704 (61,860) (2,091,487)
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(148) (5,004) an (2,603)
(438,575) (14,828,221) (328,923) (11,120,887)
« ) o o o o
625,000 21,131,250 1,200,000 40,572,000
150,000 5,071,500 300,000 10,143,000
24,238 819,487 — _
(240,000) (8.114,400) (1,000,000) (33,810,000)
(175,077) (5.919,353) (250,053) (8.454,292)
(7,074) (239,172) (7,074) (239,172)
( ) (61,636) (2,083,913) (86,127) (2,911,954)
) 212,548 7,186,248 (166,551) (5,631,089)
30,148 1,019,304 196,699 6,650,393
27 242,696 8,205,552 30,148 1,019,304
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279 9,433 — —
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4,556,910 154,069,127 4,306,963 145,618,419
625,000 21,131,250 1,200,000 40,572,000
150,000 5,071,500 300,000 10,143,000
(240,000) (8,114,400) (1,000, 000) (33,810, 000)
(175,077) (5,919,353) (250,053) (8,454,292)
« ) - - - —
279 9,433 — _
30 4,917,112 166,247,557 4,556,910 154,069,127
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
29,647,045 29,073,797 160 160
843,626 542,288 521,293 386,157
30,490,671 29,616,085 521,453 386,317

2024 2023 2024 2023
14,646,969 15,842,008 — —
5,213,360 4,265,768 — —
288,743 244,787 — —_
734,325 592,678 — —
299,909 129,375 — —
21,183,306 21,074,616 — —
5,369,653 4,797,251 — —
16,560 23,703 — —
5,386,213 4,820,954 — —_
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
786,965 1,203,486 — —
1,572,470 1,272,897 — —_
22,100 19,585 — —
1,594,570 1,292,482 — —
— 98,317 — —_
86,998 35,199 — —
81,976 145,329 — _
74,453 2,900 — —
19,429 19,464 — —
262,856 301,209 — —
192,693 200,199 — —
14,026 15,982 — —
78,929 72,793 — —
19,748 17,872 — —
127,739 74,204 160 160
433,135 381,050 160 160
29,647,045 29,073,797 160 160
118,714 111,125 — —
720,104 427,881 19,076 8,980
4,808 3,282 502,217 377,177
843,626 542,288 521,293 386,157
30,490,671 29,616,085 521,453 386,317

198/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

(b)

2024 2023 2024 2023
6,216,081 5,736,877 — —
23,430,964 23,336,920 160 160
29,647,045 29,073,797 160 160

2024 2023

3,451,496 3,242,358
789,789 1,125,646
12,392,716 14,318,315
125,636 142,543
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
1,444,536 1,169,062 171,371 146,237

1,209,947 1,130,180 47,614 37,684

(4,134) (10,834) — —

86,024 82,196 438 230

2,736,373 2,370,604 219,423 184,151

11 (115,883) (53,861) — —
2,620,490 2,316,743 219,423 184,151

200/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
( ) (

21 1,966 1,021 — —

19 68,322 64,577 — —

28 33,938 — _ _

13,832 11,464 256 256

45 7 — _

600 1,116 17 16

2,645 1,530 — 4

14(a) 123 2,413 — —

11 1,615,120 1,620,651 4,246 5,088

12 208,339 205,744 6,700 6,677

84,562 61,794 2,197 1,645

4,805 1,910 877 898

280 561 180 140

28 — — —

40(d) 391 150 — _

21 5,284 2,622 — _

19 109,316 159 — —

40(d) 115,458 147,974 — —

16,091 141 — —

— — 85,265 73,776

302 270 — _

11 118,595 — _ _
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
114,779 115,415 — —
20,211 111 — —
117,769 93,097 78 199
1,224 1,719 — _
15,526 32,372 7,179 1,504
21,559 40,567 — —
25 732 17,424 — _
11 16,897 14,403 — 34
38 4,684 7,467 — —
132,167 142,203 — —
29 85,195 28,713 8,017 5,094
13 (30,943) 68,559 — —
(6,406) (5.632) — —
35 (23,443) (17,951) — —
(4,518) (2,354) — _
(81,707) (31,912) — —
(9.,930) — — _
4,320 1,843 — _
(4,513) (6,089) (4,513) (2,546)
(9,027) (6,514) — —
(8,827) — _ _

202/615
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2024 2023 2024 2023

(45,241) (40,515) (8,707) (13,877)
(43,801) (197,268) — —
(4,609) (1,926) — _
— (501) — —
(16,299) (504) — _
(30,874) (25,153) — —
(198,890) (132,995) — —
(22,099) (6,157) — —
(261) (433) — _
(77,096) (94,728) — —
(212,923) 4,341 (10,777) (4,089)
(688) 371 — _
(21,395) (15,366) (627) (642)
_ _ (58) (11,802)
— (23,727) — —

203/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024 30 2023 30
*
2024

¢ 370 14,811 6,593 1,863 2 191 23,830

PSM  KBE ’ ’ ’ ’
235 7,243 3,195 1,174 4 89 11,940
— 5,465 2,612 935 1 38 9,051
— 5,968 2,794 1,001 1 26 9,790
— 6,519 2,673 987 2 43 10,224
— 5,051 2,546 911 2 45 8,555
— 5,357 2,488 891 3 24 8,763
— 648 80 29 1 68 826
298 — — — 18 — 316
192 — — — 18 — 210
226 — — — 16 — 242
)( 230 — — — 17 — 247
166 — — — 10 — 176
71 — — — 1 — 72
1,788 51,062 22,981 7,791 96 524 84,242

204/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024

PSM  KBE - - - - - 147 147
— 1,269 639 229 1 18 2,156

— — — — — 15 15

88 — — — 6 — 9%

96 — — — 9 — 105

226 — — — 16 — 242

)( 230 — — — 17 — 247
166 — — — 10 — 176

71 — — — 1 — 72

877 1,269 639 229 60 180 3,254

205/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023

- 350 14,352 1,651 1,387 2 174 17,916
222 6,941 931 866 3 9% 9,059

— 5,370 829 696 1 44 6,940

— 5,718 887 745 1 52 7,403

— 5,878 848 723 2 44 7,495

— 4,848 808 679 207 45 6,587

— 5,132 789 663 3 32 6,619

— 648 80 29 1 74 832

, 210 — — — 13 — 223

420 — — — 20 — 440

460 — — — 31 — 491

220 — — — 9 — 229

)( 28 — — — 3 — 31
1,910 48,887 6,823 5,788 296 561 64,265

206/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023
PSM  KBE - - - - - 92 92
— 1,218 203 171 1 34 1,627
— — — — — 14 14
) 210 — — — 13 — 223
210 — — — 11 — 221
230 — — — 16 — 246
220 — — — 9 — 229
( _ _ _ _
) 28 3 31
898 1,218 203 171 53 140 2,683
socso¢ )
2024 2023 2024 2023
( )
1,548,182 1,357,982 21,687 20,241
182,273 150,369 2,312 2,225
37,868 34,193 — _
163,068 141,289 554 766
1,931,391 1,683,833 24,553 23,232

207/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023

303,610 154,494 20,237 10,972
678,567 390,085 — —
36 (33,939) 62,190 — —
948,238 606,769 20,237 10,972
996,821 590,162 18,470 9,702
D) (14,644) (45,583) 1,767 1,270
(33,939) 62,190 — —
948,238 606,769 20,237 10,972

(OECD)

15
2025
( ) 2024
2023

MFRS 112

208/615
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@

24

(2023

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
4,832,969 2,729,113 141,573 86,710
1,159,913 654,987 33,978 20,810

497,894 517,564 96,013 63,288
(356,188) (205,909) (108,298) (71,385)
(288,724) (205,642) (3,223) (3,011)
(1,215) (822) — _
(14,644) (45,583) 1,767 1,270
(98,581) (100,811) — —
49,783 (7,015) — _
948,238 606,769 20,237 10,972
2024 2023

) 2,140,539 1,095,699

10,972,527 10,964,086

19.51 9.99

209/615




EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
()
2024 2023
( ) 2,140,539 1,095,699
« ) 10,972,527 10,964,086
ESOS «C ) 208,871 60,956
«C ) 11,181,398 11,025,042
« ) 19.14 9.94
10
2024 2023
( ) ( )
2023 30
2023 11 29
4.0 4.0 438,575 — —
2022 30
2022 11 29
3.0 — — 3.0 328,923
4.0 438,575 3.0 328,923
2024 21 2024 30 4.5
2024 11 13 11 29
2025 30
2024 30

210/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoooooO
11
.
2024
2023 12,614,794 11,355,234 26,717,879 2,350,823 1,032,322 3,442,576 1,826,767 59,340,395
— 14,269 172,220 61,260 3,281 — 73,099 324,129
73,808 123,511 50,003 32,853 45,201 13,983 3,433,870 3,773,229
(9,935) 141,368 126,401 11,910 4,910 — 28,044 302,698
(33,396) — (32,055) (3,370)  (49,537) — (792)  (119,150)
18,402 — — — — — — 18,402
348,127 316,737 964,795 143,030 109,880 9,429 (1,891,998) —
. (20,457) — — — — — — (20,457)
. 4,024 — — — — — — 4,024
13 (68,994) — — — — — — (68,994)
19 — — — — — — &77) &77)
12 (4,288) — — — — — — (4,288)
14 10,192 — — — — — — 10,192
(22,416) (1,201)  (161,137)  (11,380) (1,104)  (46,283) (445)  (243,966)
2024 30 12,909,861 11,949,918 27,838,106 2,585,126 1,144,953 3,419,705 3,467,968 63,315,637
2023 3,696,986 1,123,664 15,538,118 1,410,544 741,439 1,498,987 — 24,009,738
265,904 86,698 932,918 142,528 67,385 125,002 — 1,620,435
296 11,481 35,298 5,592 37,662 — — 90,329
(31,114) — (28,523) (3,197)  (44,106) — —  (106,940)
) ( — — 128,179 (136) — — 8,954 136,997
. (20,457) — — — — — — (20,457)
12 4,277) — — — — — — 4,277)
(10,317) (30)  (154,398)  (15,202) (1,090)  (46,032) —  (227,069)
2024 30 3,897,021 1,221,813 16,451,592 1,540,129 801,290 1,577,957 8,954 25,498,756
2024 30 9,012,840 10,728,105 11,386,514 1,044,997 343,663 1,841,748 3,459,014 37,816,881

211/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023
2022 12,226,609 9,692,115 26,060,668 2,153,486 973,026 3,419,007 1,560,120 56,086,831
20,949 21,405 35,147 29,478 32,517 3,020 2,036,601 2,180,107

684,822 1,068,500 1,729,276 128,171 39,818 — w772 3,797,368

(624,983)  (15,525) (1,717,865)  (12,776)  (52,451) (146) (551) (2,424,297)

23,820 — — — — — — 23,820

290,308 589,780 904,441 68,920 38,946 20,177 (1,912,572) —

¢ ) 19 (5,138) — 13,330 (5,939) — — (3,069) (816)
(1,53)  (1,051) (307,119)  (10,517) 434 (1,282) (624)  (322,620)

2023 30 12,614,794 11,355,233 26,717,878 2,350,823 1,032,322 3,442,576 1,826,767 59,340,393
2022 3,847,385 944,819 15,650,500 1,229,428 701,776 1,371,887 — 23,745,795
251,447 89,250 955,323 140,794 62,384 127,950 — 1,627,117

212,502 105,218 899,015 67,637 24,633 — — 1,309,095

(607,247)  (15,525) (1,682,080)  (12,667)  (46,540) (86) —  (2,364,145)

( ) (40) — — 133 — — — 93
2 — 345 %) (340) — — —

¢ (6,060) — 10,679 (4,619) — — — —
(1,003) (107)  (295,664)  (10,155) (434) (764) —  (308,217)

2023 30 3,606,086 1,123,664 15,538,118 1,410,544 741,439 1,498,987 — 24,009,738
2023 30 8,917,808 10,231,569 11,179,760 940,279 290,883 1,943,589 1,826,767 35,330,655

212/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024
2023 1,594,704 8,654,487 1,570,693 726,584
33,602 22,901 16,906 120
(2,002) 4,929 (18,131) 880
(116) (614) (32,666) —
— 18,402 — —

10,677 331,116 (71,367) (1,434)
— (22,148) — —
2024 30 1,636,865 9,009,073 1,465,435 726,150
2023 — 2,523,122 759,468 372,880
— 207,994 37,335 18,555
— 6,794 (12,544) 409
— (39) (31,075) —
— (164) (20,293) —
— (10,115) — —
2024 30 — 2,727,592 732,891 391,844
2024 30 1,636,865 6,281,481 732,544 334,306

213/615



2023
2024 30
2023
2024 30
2024 30

68,326 12,614,794
279 73,808
4,389 (9,935)
— (33,396)
— 18,402
(388) 268,604
(268) (22,416)
72,338 12,909,861
41,516 3,696,986
2,020 265,904
5,637 296
— (31,114)
(4,277) (24,734)
(202) (10,317)
44,694 3,897,021
27,644 9,012,840

214/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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2023
2022 1,551,592 8,376,095 1,570,548 708,510
3,409 7,940 4,471 930
48,119 576,309 36,600 20,313
(9,276) (615,001) (706) —
— 23,820 — —

860 286,917 (40,220) (3,169)
— (1,593) — —
2023 30 1,594,704 8,654,487 1,570,693 726,584
2022 40 2,759,054 728,546 351,125
— 193,043 37,477 18,969
— 179,353 22,475 7,290
— (607,235) 12) —
(40) — — —

_ — (29,018) (4,504)
— (1,093) — —
2023 30 — 2,523,122 759,468 372,880
2023 30 1,594,704 6,131,365 811,225 353,704

215/615



2023 ()
2022

2023 30

2022

2023 30

2023 30

19,864 12,226,609
4,199 20,949
3,481 684,822

— (624,983)

— 23,820
40,782 285,170

— (1,593)

68,326 12,614,794
8,620 3,847,385
1,958 251,447
3,474 212,592

— (607,247)

— (40)
27,464 (6,058)

— (1,093)
41,516 3,696,986
26,810 8,917,808

216/615
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2023

2024

2023

2024

2024

2022

2023

2022

2023

2023

2024

2023

30

30

30

30

30

30

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

43,230 10,264 53,494
204 3,583 3,787
() — ()
43,430 13,847 57,277
8,597 5,651 14,248
3,894 352 4,246
@ — @
12,490 6,003 18,493
30,940 7,844 38,784
7,985 9,152 17,137
39,245 1,112 40,357
(4,000) — (4,000)
43,230 10,264 53,494
7,475 5,651 13,126
5,088 — 5,088
(3,966) — (3,966)
8,597 5,651 14,248
34,633 4,613 39,246

217/615
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©

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024
1,615,120 1,620,651 4,246 5,088
21(c) 5,315 6,466 — —
1,620,435 1,627,117 4,246 5,088
2024 2023 2024
22,499 — — —
8,005 7,476 314 170
30,504 7,476 314 170
2024 2023
413,730 408,240
1,870,113 1,856,854
2,283,843 2,265,094
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12

(D
115.883 (2023
( PPE )
@
( cou )
( FVLCD )
PPE
( EBITDA )
FVLCD
11 (2023
2024 30 cou 23
el
(2023 )
)
(2023 74
(2023 )
)
()

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

219/615

OooooOodd
53.861 )
PPE
FVLCD
2024 2023
8.2 9.2
45.1 49.4
18.0 26.7
PPE
) 2.1 (2023 2.5 )
(2023 23 )
188 (2023 68
(2023 ) 128
) EBITDA
13 (2023 21

137.1



12
2024
2023
15
13
11
2024 30
2024 30

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

423,573 3,756 2,853 614,596 329 1,524,877
33,048 — 7,442 43,747 288 166,389

20,522 6,349 — 13,249 230 40,350

(59,558) (2,722) (479)  (24,040) (72)  (215,656)

2,005 11 93 (1,066) 1 877

_ — — (305) — (305)

(705) — 209 — — (14,332)

11,453 — — 600,152 — 678,410

_ _ — 795 — 795

— — — (45,069) — (45,891)

_ — — 11 — 11

430,338 7,394 10,118 1,202,070 776 2,135,525

592,516 12,878 17,377 1,537,954 954 3,796,089

(93,740) (1,055,841)  (162,178) (5,484) (7,259)  (335,884) (178) (1,660,564)
430,338 7,394 10,118 1,202,070 776 2,135,525
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

89,715 481,596 1,439 1,574 617,189 200 1,548,315
6,701 11,241 3,721 1,920 3,669 120 78,377
(18,513) (42,936) (1,688) 911)  (21,495) (67)  (213,476)
49,707 (22,970) 329 270 15,233 81 42,650
— (3,358) 45) — — — (19,510)
578 — — — — ®) 88,521
128,188 423,573 3,756 2,853 614,596 329 1,524,877
204,119 553,345 6,472 10,558 962,575 435 3,071,004
(75,931) (129,772) (2,716) (7,705)  (347,979) (106) (1,546,127)
128,188 423,573 3,756 2,853 614,596 329 1,524,877

221/615



30

30

99

« 1
502.916

(2023

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023
2,226 8,903
20,134 —
(6,700) (6,677)
15,660 2,226
20,134 20,031
(4,474) (17,805)
15,660 2,226
97 )
12
(2023 546.284 )
2024 2023 2024 2023
208,339 205,744 6,700 6,677
7,317 7,732 — _
215,656 213,476 6,700 6,677

222/615



13

2024

2023

482

15

11

12

32

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
1,453,959 512,707 — 1,966,666
1,547 — — 1,547
51,634 66,326 24,887 142,847
52,179 (21,456) — 30,723
184 36 — 220
(184) (36) — (220)
6,303 (36) (1,685) 4,582
4,780 64,214 — 68,994
(27,795) — — (27,795)
— 45,891 — 45,891
1,542,607 667,646 23,202 2,233,455
1,427,458 549,137 — 1,976,595
3,941 655 — 4,596
(33,183) (37,085) — (70,268)
870 839 — 1,709
(870) (839) — (1,709)
55,812 — — 55,812
(69) — — (69)
1,453,959 512,707 — 1,966,666

33 499 (2023

223/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2024
— — 513,961 513,961
— — 763,496 763,496
— 126,448 806,348 932,796
— 126,448 2,083,805 2,210,253
2023
— — 556,074 556,074
— — 688,500 688,500
— 47,620 674,472 722,092
— 47,620 1,919,046 1,966,666
102.662 (2023
97.214 )
7.297 (2023 8.549 ) 28.497

(2023 22.408 )
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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@
41(b)
(b)
© (
()
7.00 (2023
7.00 8.50 )
(@)
4.25 13.50
(2023 6.25
7.00 )
4.75 7.50
(2023 6.50
7.50 )
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoOoOoOoOodno
)
C )
(2024 8.9
C )
1.5
) ) ()
(2024 4.4
0.8 )
C )
202
(2024 ) ()
18 250 (2023
18 28 ) C )
C )
(2024 2023 « D
)
« )
( C
)
1.0 (2023 1.0 ) 26.0 (2023
11.4 )
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2024
®@

©)

11

EDINETOOOO
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349,020 174,464 260,034 783,518
— — 8,856 8,856
— — (123) (123)
349,020 174,464 268,767 792,251
— — 2,575 2,575
— — 12,341 12,341
— — (551) (551)
— — (10,192) (10,192)
— — 279) (279)
— — 3,894 3,894
349,020 174,464 272,661 796,145
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OooooOodd

349,020 196,237 258,556 803,813
— — 10,621 10,621

— (12,133) (3,209) (15,342)

25 — (7,227) (5,934) (13,161)

— (2,413) — (2,413)
349,020 174,464 260,034 783,518
_ — 2,540 2,540
— — 32 32
— — 3 3
— — 2,575 2,575
349,020 174,464 262,609 786,093

33 162.290 (2023
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2024

2023

7.4

21

YTL
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2024 2023
3,470,028 3,470,028
4,871,484 4,931,851
(244,915) (159, 650)
8,096,597 8,242,229
20,301,787 6,060,237
( YTL )
(
400
25.0
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)
2024

21.0

)
2024

SIPP

31.42

29

405.2

28

O)

50

YTL
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
60
)
500,000 ( 1.00 ) 2024
10.5
9.9
) 6.2
( )
( YTL
SIPP (
(
( )
)(
2,025,890
( 405,178,390
)
0.995 )
2.90 34.32
21.77 53.19
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174,922

405,178

580,100

203,462

783,562
378,809

(902,767)

259,604

580,100

(63,208)

516,892
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324,112
1,547
396,740
40,350
247,337
26,554
639,281
915,832
834,367
137,610
17,210
63,208
158,774
(45,118)
(924,368)
(32,742)
(1,948)
(67,168)
(2,484)
(985,719)
(569,078)

(271,530)

902,767
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(b)
0.548
©
( YTL
) YTL ESOS 55.57
54.94 45.5
( MCB )
MCB  ESOS 77.04 70.86
70.8
@
( NCI )
REIT
2024
ner 45.06 43.06 29.14
NCI 5,375,480 689,130 1,263,736 413,621 7,741,967
NCI 1,698,736 60,023 116,457 (232) 1,874,984
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50,475,669 5,174,296 8,580,637
16,281,099 272,182 2,109,435
(37,874,165) (1,122,407) (2,982,516)
(8,969,374) (1,347,423) (1,395,650)
19,913,229 2,976,648 6,311,906
22,284,344 554,908 4,446,430
3,408,634 178,007 428,988
3,757,071 210,132 429,001
4,539,170 306,256 809,578
(2,997,978) (245,569) (146,363)
(1,598,465) (10,275) (751,305)
(57,273) 50,412 (88,090)
258,482 61,970 31,541
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REIT
2023
ner 44.43 43.04 22.96
NCI 3,594,197 691,077 963,303 398,963 5,647,540
NCI 1,193,394 61,103 34,937 35,746 1,325,180
2023 30
44,076,406 4,903,626 8,789,809
15,055,600 223,652 2,181,429
(33,703,139)  (1,892,963)  (3,247,529)
(9,027,996) (326,912)  (1,769,194)
16,400,871 2,907,403 5,954,515
2023 30
21,890,459 486,830 3,757,046
2,032,587 141,221 159,200
2,629,046 261,518 166,529
3,424,962 289,000 418,348
(2,498,047) (14,513) (66,014)
) ( 463,201 (176,569) (88,318)
1,390,116 97,918 264,016
NCI 179,979 37,111 —
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2024 2023 2024 2023
2,187,902 2,176,538 358,780 358,780
1,692,225 1,162,772 205,241 205,241
456,258 599,593 — —
(76,358) (75,112) — —
4,260,027 3,863,791 564,021 564,021
47
2023 12 YTL (Minister of Finance (Incorporated))(
MoF ) ( DNB ) DNB
100,000 233,233,333 (
SSA ) SSA 2024 28 233,233,333
YTL DNB DNB
YTL
YTL DNB 16.28
233,333,333
2024 28 YTL MoF DNB
5 5
( )MoF MoF
450,000,000.00 DNB
( )DNB 5 DNB
DNB DNB
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®
2023 13 Y
30
9.259 4.320
©
P.T.
( )
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

4,149,403 4,385,332 998,708 9,636,002 9,622,786

1,277,455 1,432,204 179,593 225,052 250,082
(693,791) (676,942) (247,516) (3,043,569) (3,694,045)
(281,668) (534,978) (313,406) (844,678) (141,369)

4,451,399 4,605,616 617,379 5,972,807 6,037,454
— — — (346,115) (343,854)

4,451,399 4,605,616 617,379 5,626,692 5,693,600

« ) 929,778 921,344 (501) 231,546 105,431

« ) — — (250) (7.300) 324,223
929,778 921,344 (751) 224,246 429,654

2,525,282 2,523,144 14,941 660,610 618,222

392,916 385,646 — 111,702 106,901
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P.T.
( )
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
) 4,605,616 4,513,295 — — 5,693,600 5,531,591 10,299,216 10,044,886
* — — 618,260 — — — 618,260 —
— — — — 10,757 10,521 10,757 10,521
— — — — 6,906 17,711 6,906 17,711
) ( 929,778 921,344 (501) — 231,546 105,431 1,160,823 1,026,775
) — — (250) — (7,300) 324,223 (7,550) 324,223
38,623 272,824 (130) — — 594 38,493 273,418
(1,122,618) (1,101,847) — — (308,820)  (296,471) (1,431,438) (1,398,318)
0 ) 4,451,399 4,605,616 617,379 — 5,626,689 5,693,600 10,695,467 10,299,216
35.00 35.00 40.00 — 37.29 37.18
1,557,990 1,611,966 246,952 — 2,098,192 2,116,880 3,903,134 3,728,846
5@ )
22.133 (2023 17.089 )
356.893 (2023 134.945
) 14.442
(2023 12.505 )
123.297 (2023 96.921
98.512 (2023 221.809
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2024 2023
367,027 364,761
109,923 22,298

(9,559) (9,559)
467,391 377,500
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@
AP
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
11,592,538 12,039,897 11,333 28,320 902,049 881,650
1,617,674 884,227 559,842 467,102 56,775 51,550
(11,649,385) (11,202,925) — — (603,853) (592,444)
(1,651,341) (1,438,944) (254,609) (354,176) (18,065) (18,086)
« ) (90,514) 282,255 316,566 141,246 336,906 322,670
« ) (328,632) (140,291) 172,983 101,270 12,134 28,000
« ) (44,179) 138,472 — _ _ B
« ) (372,811) (1,819) 172,983 101,270 12,134 28,000
2,692,782 1,247,632 864,952 535,243 83,681 77,635
404,685 47,934 2,632 6,040 23,069 20,041
(5,938,224) (5,374,304) — — (146,379) (137,175)
(5.521,103) (5,735,212) — — (457,474) (455, 269)

131,665

174,617
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Ooooooog
®
AP
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
) 282,255 267,539 141,246 33,747 322,670 269,004 746,171 570,290
(S (328,632)  (140,291) 172,983 101,270 12,134 28,000 (143,515) (11,021)
) ( (44,179) 138,472 — — — — (44,179) 138,472
42 16,535 2,337 6,229 2,102 25,666 4,481 48,430
( ( 20 )) (90,514) 282,255 316,566 141,246 336,906 322,670 562,958 746,171
45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0 50.0 50.0
(40,731) 127,015 142,455 63,561 168,453 161,335 270,177 351,911
— (127,015) — — — — — (127,015)
40,731 — — — — — 40,731 —
— — 142,455 63,561 168,453 161,335 310,908 224,896
156.5 (2023 152.6
) 57.0 (2023 54.1
) 37.1 (2023
116.5 )
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2024 2023 2024 2023

18(a) 334,155 315,284 — —
18(b) 191,338 203,703 9,398 9,398
525,493 518,987 9,398 9,398

18(2) 1,983,383 2,000,574 651,643 544,663
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@

2024 2023 2024 2023
*
104,864 418,660 — —
851,144 817,539 — —
8,075 5,467 8,075 5,467
9,147 8,715 9,133 8,715
84,141 65,284 — —
250,000 250,000 — —
*
1,010,167 750,193 634,435 530,481
2,317,538 2,315,858 651,643 544,663
212,923 (4,341) 10,777 4,089

( ) *%

Ak

243/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

(b)

2024 2023 2024 2023
7,700 7,492 4 4
6,067 9,654 — —
157,594 154,958 — —
11,637 20,865 9,394 9,394
8,340 10,734 _ _
191,338 203,703 9,398 9,398

(17,502) (61,314) — (200)
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15
11
7
2024 30
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ooooood
177,226 9,182,828 734,221 — 78,907 10,173,182
257 — 43,500 — 24,952 68,709
— 259,604 15,084 381,606 50 656,344
1,485 44,369 6,712 — 118 52,684
— (13,224) (44,669) — — (57,893)
— (88,996) — — — (88,996)
_ — 577 — — 577
178,968 9,384,581 755,425 381,606 104,027 10,804,607
(154,656) (118,855) (421,441) — (49,818) (744,770)
(2,469) — (59,090) — (6,763) (68,322)
(1,354) (438) (4,125) — (56) (5,973)
— 13,224 44,669 — — 57,893
— (84,501) (24,815) — — (109,316)
(158,479) (190,570) (464,802) — (56,637) (870,488)
20,489 9,194,011 290,623 381,606 47,390 9,934,119
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oooooog
2023

165,827 8,402,634 638,334 71,464 9,278,259

163 — 60,532 6,265 66,960

11,236 780,194 34,539 1,178 827,147

11 — — 816 — 816

177,226 9,182,828 734,221 78,907 10,173,182
(142,455) (111,741) (359,296) (43,857) (657,349)
(2,432) — (56,619) (5,526) (64,577)
7 — (15) (144) — (159)

(9,769) (7,099) (5,382) (435) (22,685)

(154,656) (118,855) (421,441) (49,818) (744,770)

2023 20 22,570 9,063,973 312,780 29,089 9,428,412
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FVLCD
2024 30

CGU
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
( el )
2024 2023
5,548,103 5,492,362
818,770 818,770
259,604 —
1,559,241 1,648,237
208,516 223,457
192,635 222,912
) 288,082 336,637
319,060 321,598
9,194,011 9,063,973
( FVLCD )
ceu
el
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OooooOodd
2024
A B C D E F
6.80 4.45 7.90 8.30 8.30 7.70
2.00 6.74 2.00 2.40 0.10 —
3.80 11.01 2.50 3.00 (5.36) 1.78
2023
A B C D E F
6.53 2.96 7.20 8.50 7.20 6.90
2.00 3.29 1.90 2.50 1.00 5.65
3.37 4.39 13.60 3.20 0.37 1.38
cou
cou
cou
OFWAT (2023
cou
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CGU D E F
10 10
CGU
®
CGU
2024
A B c D E F
( ) 14.80 16.97 33.90 17.80 8.44 7.70
(12.60) 6.74 (107.40) (17.90) 0.17) —
0.50 (66.44) (4.90) (3.70) (5.60) 1.78
2023
A B c D E F
( ) 12.60 17.40 16.94 21.07 6.43 7.42
(8.10) 3.35 (16.70) (31.13) 2.18 0.94
0.80 (46.60) 7.89 (38.35) 1.74 1.18
CGU 84.501
(2023 0.015
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Transfer)(BOT)
Operate Transfer)(ROT)
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28

2024 2023

404,484 —

234,730 —

639,214 —

2024 2023

15 639,281 —
4,089 —

5,267 —

(9,678) —

255 —

639,214 —

(Build Operate
(Build Operate Own)(BOO) (Rehabilitate
20 30
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2024 2023
51,996 8,263
2,101 943
(47,304) (35,095)
714,644 385,266
35,425 37,423
(862,521) (798,709)
766,640 393,529
(909, 825) (833,804)
(143,185) (440,275)
37,526 38,366
(65,081) (321,122)
41,035 14,788
(55.886) (68,308)
(53,482) (57.396)
(9,489) (8,631)
(282) 394
(143,185) (440,275)
37,495 38,330
31 36
37,526 38,366
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2024 2023
243,864 156,472
(89,365) (4,325)
233,469 —
190, 654 94,339

(5,284) (2,622)
573,338 243,864
564,986 433,996

8,921 —
(541,422) (431,198)
600,733 515,120
5,201 47,068
638,419 564,986
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(

)

)

2024

30

MFRS 15

(2023

1,451.5
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2024 2023
38,330 24,676
35,059 41,411
(1,966) (1,021)

(34,258) (30,139)
330 3,403
37,495 38,330
2024 2023
562 188
36,933 38,142
37,495 38,330
)
(2023 )

oOoOooodn

1,809.1
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(2023

103.914
)
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2024 2023
14,788 (85,766)
165,542 141,102
(140, 354) (32,905)
— (234)
1,059 36
— (7,445)
41,035 14,788
45,220 24,531
(4,185) (9,743)
41,035 14,788
57.750
)



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

©

OooooOodd
2024 2023
(68,308) (327,394)
786,965 1,203,486
41,022 13,437
(815,565) (957,837)
(55,886) (68,308)
5.315
(2023 6.466 )
67.696 (2023  67.696 )
( KTMB )
105.616
( SRSB )  SRSB
KTMB 1993 12 (2000 12 21 KTMB )
KTMB
10.1
(2023  27.5 ) (2023
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2024 2023
53,482 57,396

2024 2023
57,396 35,436
233,899 123,672

2024 2023
9,489 8,631
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(2023

FVTPL

358.3

8.59 (2023
)

34(a)

8.90 )
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2024 2023
398 386
— 6,973
286,926 376,101
(330) (331)
286,596 375,770
2,740,152 2,481,828
(36,556) (33,919)
2,703,596 2,447,909
82,380 8,276
24,999 20,325
2,465 4,837
100,518 146,924
3,200,952 3,011,400
182.8
2027
15.00 (2023  15.00 )




34(a)

ECL

2024 2023 2024 2023
3,656,189 3,106,948 — —
25,391 10,313 — —
3,681,580 3,117,261 — —
(667,513) (581,294) — —
3,014,067 2,535,967 — —
918,092 670,538 8,39 8,085
(91,944) (127,175) (1,765) (1,765)
826,148 543,363 6,631 6,320
1,659,290 1,961,246 — —
(10, 155) (6,686) — —
1,649,135 1,954,560 — —
486,487 353,881 396 566
2,460 3,381 — —
148,599 118,693 1,037 1,575
6,126,896 5,509,845 8,064 8,461
) 40(d)
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2024
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2,311,984 111,491 17,116
2,291,586 27,118 1,585
104,784 — 2,513
138,609 21,214

16,353 1,198

122,256 20,016

138,609 21,214

1,961,405 9,920 95,488
2,271,320 11,783 24,994
247 — *
21,703 120,482

2,879 9,654

18,824 110,828

21,703 120,482
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)
2023
— — 8,850 (8,850)  1,934.0 o4
991,576 20,183 37,217 (37,217) 380.0 2024
2028
2024
1,320,408 74,192 235,081 (235,081) 363.2 2.
4.6 2024
2,291,586 25,533 40,398 (40,398)
2028
1.00
2023
54,668 1,715 (305,288) 305,288 1,829.7 o s
454,081 (17,048) (25,111) 25,111 352.1 2023
: ; . . : 2023 11
1,452,656  (70,235) (153,551) 153,551 345.7 2023
452, , , . : 2025 11
4.4 2023
2,271,320 (13,211) (58,793) 58,793
2026
1.00
2022
— — 1,245 (1,245)  451.1 ey 12
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2024 2023

54,892 51,665
235,036 242,513
48,220 49,884
66,108 92,268
305,221 251,136
462,566 408,259
129,164 123,881
1,301,207 1,219,606
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83,403 95,332 504,118 682,853
— 5 370,394 370,399

— (36) (16,733) (16,769)

— — (732) (732)
795 — 6,571 7,366
84,198 95,301 863,618 1,043,117
(239,298)

(125,636)

(2,444)

16,769

(350, 609)

692,508
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2023

75,476 88,105 219,930 383,511
— — 260,339 * 260,339
14(a) — 7,227 5,934 13,161
— — (17,424) (17,424)
7,927 — 35,339 43,266
83,403 95,332 504,118 682,853
(79,685)
(142,543)
(17,070)
(239,298)
443,555

46.0
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26
2024 2023 2024 2023
@
28 114 — _
— — 1,012,582 1,096,810
13,435 9,054 6,318 5,462
35,133 30,923 46 a7
34,968 33,132 — —
83,564 73,223 1,018,946 1,102,319
®)
329 329 — —
— — 7,709 5,771
2,699 4,308 74 75
9,705 854 — —
— 32,479 — —
12,733 37,970 7,783 5,846
©
4.86 (2023 4.84 ) 45.6
(023  12.7 )
() 42
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27

2024 2023 2024 2023
12,836,846 11,195,322 239,500 26,742
1,422,355 3,230,331 3,196 3,406
14,259,201 14,425,653 242,696 30,148
33 (89,881) (10,818) — —
(203,811) (121,033) — —
13,965,509 14,293,802 242,696 30,148

1966 ( ) 7A 16.779
(2023 16.985 )

2024 2023 2024 2023

0.25 5.50 0.25 5.39 2.55 5.30 2.90 3.10
365 (2023 365 )
33
RAM P1
PL P2
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@

2024 30

2006 ( WSIA
PAAB )
( SAJ] )
SAJ PAAB
PETRA )
Perkhidmatan Air Negara)( SPAN
SAJ  WSIA( 655 )
PETRA

SAJ 2024 2026 12 31

SAJ

15

PAAB

4(1)(b)
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2024 2023
915,832 —
915,832 —
(33,938) —
(33,938) —
881,894 —
(Pengurusan Aset Air Berhad)(
SAJ
SAJ
(
(Suruhanjaya
PETRA
SAJ
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SPAN SAJ

SAJ
SAJ  SPAN KP1)
SAJ 30
SAJ

SAJ SPAN

SAJ

SAJ

SAJ
2019 10 SPAN

SAJ SPAN
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(b)

2024 2023

559,198 —
385,172 —

944,370 —

414,794 —

575,916 —

990,710 —

(46, 340) —

944,370 —

385,172 —

559,198 —

944,370 —

12 (385,172) —

12 559,198 —
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2024 2023

15 985,719 —
(45,764) —

4,415 —

944,370 —

PAAB PAAB
2024 30 4.04
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29
2024 2023 2024 2023
11,022,762 11,022,762 3,467,555 3,467,555
ESOS 40,315 — 24,238 —
11,063,077 11,022,762 3,491,793 3,467,555
39,614,600 700,000 0.50
0.53
11,063,076,940 (2023  11,022,762,340 ) 58,675,950
(2023 58,675,950 ) 2024 30
( ) 11,004,400,990 (2023  10,964,086,390 )
( )
@
2023 12
2024 30
2024 30 11,063,076,940 (2023  11,022,762,340 )

58,675,950 (2023 58,675,950 )
54,451,886 (2023 54,451,886 )
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(b) 2021
2021

( ) 2021

)

b)

d)
)

)

10

( 2021 ESOS )
2020 12
2021 ESOS
)
2021 ESOS
ESOS
(
)
( )
(
18
)
13
) 10

13

11
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10 2021 ESOS
2021 ESOS
) 15
(
) 2021 ESOS
(
2021 ESOS
(
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() 12.2
2021 ESOS
() 2024 (2022
() (2022 )
)
80 2024 12 31 20
60 2025 12 31 20 2025
40 2026 12 31 20 2026
20 2027 12 31 20 2027
0 20 2028
2023 2024
30
2022 27 2031 0.50 310,227 (39,615) (3,470) 267,142
2022 23 2031 0.53 6,280 (700) (70) 5,510
316,507 (40, 315) (3,540) 272,652
2022 2023
30
2022 27 2031 0.50 315,757 — (5,530) 310,227
2022 23 2031 0.53 8,790 — (2,510) 6,280
324,547 — (8,040) 316,507
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MFRS

2021 ESOS
28.94
4.99
) 3.1
2024
2024 2023 2024 2023
16,775 10,691 16,775 10,691
68,420 18,022 — _
— — (8,758) (5,597)
85,195 28,713 8,017 5,094
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30
1
2024
96,741 1,871,345 28,400 22,244 (240,464) (17,063) — 1,761,203
— — — — (25,644) 120,042 4,774 99,172
— 67,646 — — — — — 67,646
¢ — 67,646 — — (25,644) 120,042 4,774 166,818
— (1,214) (6,076) — (116) — — (7,406)
— — (16,547) — — — — (16,547)
— — 65,947 — — — — 65,947
(43) 155 — 195 (58) (249) — —
96,698 1,937,932 71,724 22,439 (266,282) 102,730 4,774 1,970,015
1
1
2023
97,035 801,595 5,825 20,288 (186,957) 258,346 996,132
— — — — (59,470)  (286,355)  (345,825)
— 1,079,574 — — — — 1,079,574
« ) — 1,079,574 — — (59,470)  (286,355) 733,749
— — — 604 — 1,956 2,560
— — — — 6,187 — 6,187
— — 22,652 — — — 22,652
— — an — — — an
(294) (9,824) — 1,352 (224) 8,990 —
96,741 1,871,345 28,400 22,244 (240,464) (17,063) 1,761,203
1
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2024

2023
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14,984 2,664 17,648

(4,059) — (4,059)

16,775 — 16,775

27,700 2,664 30,364

4,370 2,864 7,234

— (200) (200)

10,691 — 10,691

an — an

14,984 2,664 17,648
2024 2023

1,722,531 1,561,960

69,638 59,759

387,120 72,738

118,372 120,854

3,390 2,168

2,301,051 1,817,479
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5.375
1.75

1.369 1.374

1.489 1.495 1.499

2.186

5.125

6.5

32(a)

32(b)

32(a)
32(c)
32(d)
32(e)
32(F)
32(9)
32(h)
32(i)
32(1)
32(k)

32(1)
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2024 2023 2024 2023
1,193,407 1,059,993 — 240,000
— 534,473 — —
1,193,407 1,594,466 — 240,000
13,493,189 10,155,105 3,825,000 3,200,000
2,070,334 2,049,479 — —
1,188,380 1,176,284 — —
1,691,246 1,521,643 — —
1,691,246 1,521,643 — —
1,611,945 1,417,449 — —
533,972 507,021 — —
1,481,356 1,465,791 — —
1,763,346 1,744,732 — —
1,770,813 1,759,510 — —
1,181,711 — — _
28,477,538 23,318,657 3,825,000 3,200,000
29,670,945 24,913,123 3,825,000 3,440,000

277/615
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2024 2023 2024 2023
1,193,407 1,594,466 — 240,000
8,125,788 7,171,390 1,200,000 985,000
20,351,750 16,147,267 2,625,000 2,215,000
29,670,945 24,913,123 3,825,000 3,440,000
2024 2023 2024 2023
(MTN) 4.79 4.75 4.60 4.45
5.95 5.89 — —
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5.375
1.75

1.369 1.374

1.489 1.495 1.499

2.186

5.125

6.5

@
)
@)

CP
2024 30
MTN
2026

10

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
2024 2023 2024 2023
14,310,631 11,398,887 3,988,353 3,473,901
— 295,966 — —
2,092,955 2,028,964 — —
1,177,699 1,142,522 — —
1,354,524 1,870,211 — —
1,966,965 1,954,705 — —
1,966,965 1,946,925 — —
283,282 277,970 — —
1,227,923 1,183,084 — —
1,119,972 1,049,294 — —
1,732,074 1,674,673 — —
1,257,108 — — —
797,398 — — —
29,287,496 24,823,201 3,988,353 3,473,901
( MTN )
MTN
( CP ) MTN (2019 17
5,000 500
) MTN
2,825 (2023 2,440 )
MTN 3.65 4.97 (2023  3.65 4.97 )
2035 27 (2023 2023 2034 23 )
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(b) 2013 26 2,000
MTN 2024
30 1,000 (2023 1,000 ) MTN
MTN 4.63 5.15 (2023  4.63 5.15 ) 2026 11
11 2036 11 11 (2023 2026 11 11 2036 11 11 )
) (
YTLPI ) MTN
(@) YILPI MTN 2011 11 5,000
2024 30
1,525 (2023 2,025 ) MIN
MTN 4.62 5.05 (2023  4.62 5.05 ) 2024 10
11 2028 24 (2023 2023 24 2028 24 )
(b) YTLPI 2017 20
( ) ( ) ( )
2,500
2024 30 2,496.7 (2023 2,495.7
)
5.05 (2023 5.05 ) 2027
(c) YTLPI ( IMTN ) 2023 13
7,500
2024 30 4,115 (2023 1,715 )
IMTN IMTN 4.18 4.99 (2023  4.45 4.99 )
2026 24 2038 24
(d) 2018 26 SAJ ( SAJC )
( ) 650
( 650
) 2024 30 417.1
6.76

2025 24 2030 25
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650
() ( RCSB )
SAJ ( SAJ )
( ) RCSB SAJ RCSB
( ) RCSB SAJ
RCSB SAJ
RCSB SAJ
( ) SAJC ( )
(D)
()
(e) 2022 11 29 ( RSV
) ( ) 310
( 310
) 145
2024 30 142.3
6.61 2025 11 28 2042 11 28
310
() ( RS ) RS
(RS RS
RS RS
)
() RS (
)
() ( RS )
RS
RS
( )RS ( )
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(F) 2011 17
(
250.929
2025 30
360
350
mMTN
( )RSE
)
)
)
RSE
JLA

2029

RSE
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OooooOodd
( RSE )
) ( ) 710
( MTN ) 2024 30
mMTN MTN 6.3
15
10
11 4.1 5.7
12 18 5.15 5.70
(
(SESB)
RSE
( )
)
(
)
)

RS
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() REIT ( YTL REIT ) MTN
YTL REIT MTN 2016 11
1,650 MTN
1,060 (2023 815
)
2017 11 2024 11 385,000
2022 23 2027 21 80,000
2002 11 23 2007 11 23 265,000
W
2023 28 2028 28 85,000
2023 10 31 2008 10 31 140,000
2023 11 2026 11 25.000 AC
2023 12 2028 12 25,000 AC
2024 2029 55,000 ( )
1,060,000
MTN MTN
MTN 4.78 5.64 (2023  3.42 5.46 )
) ( YTL )
MTN
2016 YTL ( KCSB
) ( ) 500
(
KCSB
KCSB
2017 13
2022
180 4.60 ()
2023 13
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@) 120
(b) 100
12 11
©) 100
10
YTL
) 2022 10 18
( )
( ICP )
)
IMNTN
ICP
2022 10 31  MCB
ICP ICP
855
IMNTN
(a) 2022 10 31
INTN INTN
(b) 2023 13
INTN INTN
(c) 2023 26
IMTN INTN
(d) 2023 10 12
IMTN INTN
(e) 2023 12 11
IMTN INTN

MCB

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
4.55 2023
4.40 2023
4.25 2023
( MCB
)
5,000
( IMTN )
(
IMTN (2022 10 31 ) 30
IcP (2022 10 31 )
3.15 2022 11 30
(2023 405 )
2025 10 31 100
5.42
2026 13 85
5.25
2028 26 220
5.05
2028 10 12 350
4.99
2029 12 11 100
5.07
() IMTN IMTN
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(b) 3.52

3.52

() 5.75
2003 10 15
(

2,070.334
[347.122

(d) 5.375
2005 10

1,188.380
[199.228

(e) 1.75
2006 3

1.75 1LGU

1.75 ILGU
30

( RPIG )
7.27 (2023 7.27 ) 2023
( 5.75 GU )
)
350 5.75 GU
[347.342
D( )
5.75
( 5.375 GU )
)
200 5.375 GU
[199.376
D( )
5.375
( 1.75 1LGU
)
75 1.75 1LGU
1,691.246
[257.722 D(
1.75
3.41 (2023  3.24 )

31
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OooooOodd
50.0 RPIG
2024 30
30
2024 30 5.75 GU
1(2023  2,049.479
2033 10 14
2024 30 5.375 GU
12023  1,176.284
2028 10
)
2024 30
[283.742 1(2023  1,521.643
)
2024
2051 31
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(F) 1.369 1.374 ( 1.369 ILGU 1.374 ILGU
)
2007 31
( )
75 1.369 ILGU 75 1.374 1LGU
2024 30 1.369 ILGU 1.374 1LGU 1,691.246
[283.742 1(2023  1,521.643 [257.722 1)1¢
)
1.369 ILGU 1.374 1LGU 1.369 1.374
2024 30 2.67 (2023  2.54 )
2057 31
(g) 1.489  1.495 1.499 ( 1.489 1LGU 1.495 1LGU
1.499 1LGU
2007 28
( )
50 1.489 1LGU 50 1.495 1LGU
50 1.499 ILGU 2024 30 1.489 ILGU 1.495
ILGU 1.499 ILGU 1,611.945 [270.438 1(2023
1,417.449 [240.075 D( )
1.489 1LGU 1.495 1LGU 1.499 1LGU 1.489  1.495 1.499
2024 30
2.80 (2023  2.69 ) 2058 11 29
(h) 2.186 ( 2.186 ILGU )
2009
( )
50 2.186 ILGU 2024 30 2.186 ILGU
533.972 [89.585 1(2023  507.021
[85.875 D(
2.186 ILGU 2.186
2024 30 3.92 (2023 3.76 ) 2039
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(i) 1.5 ( 1.5 GU )
2019 17
( )
250 1.5 GU
50 1.5 GU
1,481.356 [248.529
[248.262 ( )
1.5
G) 1.25 ( 1.25 GU )
2021 12
( )
300 1.25 GU
1,763.346 [295.839
[295.507 D( )
1.25
(k) 5.125 ( 5.125 GUS
2023 24
( )
300 5.125 GUS
1,770.813 [297.091
[298.010 (

5.125

287/615
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OooooOodd
(50 ) 2020 15
2024 30 1.5 GU
1(2023  1,465.791
2029 17
2024 30 1.25 GU
12023  1,744.732
2036 12
)
2024 30 5.125 GUS
1(2023  1,759.510
)
2032 10 31
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

) 6.5 ( 6.5 GU )

6.5 GU 2023 5,000

2023 11 15
( )
6.5 GU 200
2024 30 6.5 GU 1,181.711 [198.257
)

6.5 2033 11 15
2035 11 15 35 2038 11 16 65 2043 11 15
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2024 2023 2024 2023
33(a) 89,881 10,818 — —
33(b) 2,293 2,294 90 55
33(c) 2,309,121 3,044,192 966,855 1,116,855
33(d) 2,370,944 3,144,988 — —
33(e) 27,614 2,485 — —
4,799,853 6,204,777 966,945 1,116,910

33(b) 3,354 4,093 167 —
33(c) 2,954,507 2,678,146 125,000 —
33(d) 9,186,260 12,654,053 — —
33(F) 6,977 — — —
12,151,098 15,336,292 125,167 —

33(a) 89,881 10,818 — —
33(b) 5,647 6,387 257 55
33(c) 5,263,628 5,722,338 1,091,855 1,116,855
33(d) 11,557,204 15,799,041 — —
33(e) 27,614 2,485 — —
33(F) 6,977 — — —
16,950,951 21,541,069 1,092,112 1,116,910
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2024 30
89,881 — — 89,881
2,293 3,354 — 5,647
2,309,121 2,954,507 — 5,263,628
2,370,944 7,826,689 1,359,571 11,557,204
27,614 — — 27,614
( CULS ) — 6,977 — 6,977
4,799,853 10,791,527 1,359,571 16,950,951
2023 30
10,818 — — 10,818
2,294 4,093 — 6,387
3,044,192 2,678,146 — 5,722,338
3,144,988 10,599,775 2,054,278 15,799,041
2,485 — — 2,485
6,204,777 13,282,014 2,054,278 21,541,069
2024 30
90 167 — 257
966,855 125,000 — 1,091,855
966,945 125,167 — 1,092,112
2023 30
55 — — 55
1,116,855 — — 1,116,855
1,116,910 — — 1,116,910

290/615



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
6.74 2.13 — —
5.46 4.72 4.25 .29
5.12 4.78 — —
4.36 3.90 — —
cuLs 12.50 — — —
@
(b)
1.70 4.38 (2023  1.49 4.38 )
2.15 2.26 (2023 2.15 )
2024 2023 2024 2023
2,436 2,462 99 56
3,581 4,288 174 _
6,017 6,818 273 56
(370) (431) (16) Q@
5,647 6,387 257 55
©
647.6 (2023 654.5
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(d
()
(a) 298.0 [50 1(2023  1,180.8
[200 D
50
2015 30 2024 30
2.36 (2023  2.36 ) 50 2015
2024 11 6.00 6.18 (2023
1.60 5.19 ) 50 2015
2024 2.19 (2023  2.19 )
50 2016 25 6.41
6.50 (2023  2.19 5.69 ) 2025 25
(b) 858.3 [144 1(2023  1,180.8
[200 D
852.2 [143.0 1(2023  940.0
[159.2 1)1¢ ) 2024 30
6.21 6.52 (2023  2.20 5.16 )
2026 31 60 40 2021 31
(c) 447.0 [75 1(2023 4428 [75
D 2022 21
447.0 [75
1(2023  439.2 [74.4 D( )
2024 30 5.94 6.42 (2023  2.20
5.16 ) 2029 31 60 40 2026 31
(d) 894.1 [150 1(2023  885.6
[150 D 2022 10 14
891.4
[150 1(2023  882.7 [149.5 1)1¢
) 2024 30 6.14 6.44 (2023
4.55 5.54 ) 2032 11 30
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(e) 74.5 [12.5 1(2023  73.8
[12.5 D
6.27 6.36 (2023  4.90 6.03 )
2024 11 29
)
(a) 707.9 [150 1(2023  935.8 [200
D
2020 11 25 702.6 [148.9
1(2023  934.6 [199.8 1)1¢ ) 2024
30 YTLPI
6.93 6.97 (2023  3.02 6.97 ) 2026 11 21
)
3,007.7
(2023  3,442.5 )
)
(a) 6,391.4 [1,995.0 1(2023  6,886.1
[1,995.0 D
2017 14 2,156.1
(620.6 )(2023  4,234.4
[1,266.8 D( ) 2024 30
2022 2027
2,886.2 (2023 2,292.8 )

5.11 5.48 (2023 3.51 5.48 )
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() 799.1
[230.0
2022
[75.1
D(
1,207.1
5.11 5.48 (2023
)
1,551.3
(vi)
306.1
®
6] ( CULS
6.977
CULS

CULS

3.51
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

[230.0
D

1(2023  512.2
) 2024 30

(2023 1,255.6

5.48 )

(2023

1,526.7

(2023 336.2

CULS 2025 30

CULS
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260.8

793.9

2027

[148.4

CULS
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34

@
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2024 2023 2024 2023
1,233,511 1,094,322 9,205 —
739,506 260,388 6,632 2,339
1,973,017 1,354,710 15,837 2,339
40(e)
2024 2023
8,218 7,632
— 66
261 433
(3,316) (2,741)
(238) 2,828
4,925 8,218
2,465 4,837
2,460 3,381
4,925 8,218

295/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023
2,609 3,650
1,434 2,721

808 1,504

236 724

77 113

15 —

5,179 8,712

(254) (494)

4,925 8,218
2024 2023

699,025 620,655

8,862 65,270

(23,443) (17,951)

37,430 31,051

721,874 699,025
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

36
2024 2023 2024 2023

(338,369) (353,268) — —

3,763,739 3,773,208 113 113

3,425,370 3,419,940 113 113
3,419,940 3,129,917 113 113
) ( (33,939) 62,190 — —
276,830 106,660 — —
(3,506) (4,405) — —
1,798 4,250 — _
917 (55,937) — _
(7,542) (1,116) — —
28,292 18,753 — —
(339,762) (24,818) — —

12,276 —

(4,582) 3,374 — —
1,340 15,429 — —
30,208 311,067 — _
15 18,564 — _ _
- (9,403) (83,234) — _
3,425,370 3,419,940 113 113
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oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
(90,568) (118,690) — —
9,779) (8,736) — —
(716,658) (382,272) — —
(45,049) (36,876) — —
(2,362) (5,031) — —
(61,095) (10,869) — —
(925,511) (562,474) — _
4,193,528 3,822,173 113 113
40,719 72,654 — —
58,911 87,587 — _
48,931 — — _
8,792 — _ _
4,350,881 3,982,414 113 113
3,425,370 3,419,940 113 113

298/615
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10

2018

299/615

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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2024 2023
2,012,764 1,760,458
1,690,043 1,575,517

599,427 294,284
4,302,234 3,630,259
2018

2021



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
37 ( )
2024 2023 2024 2023
37(a) 7,473 6,837 334 326
37(b) 13,881 — — _
37(b) 73,225 21,169 — —
37(c) (31,124) (64,314) — —
37(d) 15,392 17,257 — —
1,867 — — —
59,360 (25,888) — _
@
()
()
22
21.7 1.5
()
()
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OooooOodd
2024 2023
3.9 3.9
5.0 5.0
) 0.80 0.84
(2023 0.80 0.84
SAJ
2023
2022 12 31 2025 12 31
2024 2023
5.0 —
6.0 _
2011 2015 —
1.0 —
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4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

(5.0
(6.0
(5.0

(6.0

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

« )

2,491 65,444 67,935 —
(3,580) — — 65,444 61,864
(2,210) — — 65,444 63,234

3,907 65,444 69,351 —

2024 2023
87,106 21,169
2024 2023
21,169 21,734
65,307 —
(688) (1,512)
250 73
1,068 874
87,106 21,169

302/615
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)

cl8

)

2025

14
14

(cl0
(210.4
30 18.4

2022
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
2024 2023
250 73
1,068 874
1,318 947
2022 30
30
2024 30
62
(c18 c19 ) (c17
cll )
2022 30
)
(108.6 )
15.5



(

30

)
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(
)
2024 2023
(64,314) (174,802)
30,539 20,117
(34,842) (233,955)
(302) (7.724)
37,795 332,050
(31,124) (64,314)
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2024 2023
3,393,993 3,289,483
(3,425,117) (3,353,797)

(31,124) (64,314)

2024 2023

3,289,483 3,207,024
32,042 315,847
167,126 122,420
28,767 31,492
(1,181) (6,500)
(169,488) (151,670)
(15,355) 66,627
9,449 (516,221)
53,150 220,464
3,393,993 3,289,483
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023
3,353,797 3,381,826
32,344 323,571
171,260 133,254
34,842 233,955
(169,488) (151,670)
(7,087) (5,959)
9,449 (561,180)
3,425,117 3,353,797
2024 2023
(4,134) (10,834)
28,767 31,492
(1,181) (6,500)
7,087 5,959
30,539 20,117
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023
27,586 24,992
7,087 5,959
(4,134) (10,834)
30,539 20,117
2024 2023
5.10 5.20
2.00 2.90 2.10 3.00
1.90 1.90
RPI 3.10 3.20
cPI 2.60 2.70
2024 2024 2023 2023
60 25.4 28.2 25.6 28.3
40 46.6 49.4 46.8 49.4

CM12022
1.0

S3P(M/F)A 105
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MFRS 119
0.1 6.1
5.0 )
0.1 (CPI
2.6 2.7 RPI
3.1 3.2 )

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

(
43,512 3,393,993 3,437,505 (31,124) 12,388
41,127 3,393,993 3,435,120 (31,124) 10,003
111,461 3,393,993 3,505,454 (31,124) 80,337
2024 2023
947,720 27.7 934,044 27.9
2,231,611 65.2 2,073,555 61.8
203,253 5.9 195,429 5.8
42,533 1.2 150,769 4.5
3,425,117 100.0 3,353,797 100.0
2024 2023
180,709 (427,926)
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2024 2023
12,987 14,346
2,405 2,911
15,392 17,257

14
2024 30

2024 2023

12,987 14,346
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EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023
14,346 12,254
(1,055) 699
786 858
900 832
(1,985) (1,306)
(426) 533
421 476
12,987 14,346
2024 2023
900 832
786 858
1,686 1,690
(
2024 2023
2,405 2,911

310/615
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2024

30
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oOoOooodn

2024 2023
2,911 2,971
(205) 145
191 605
(492) (810)
2,405 2,911
2024 2023
191 605
2024 2023
7.0 6.0
8.5 8.5

4.98 (2023 5.52 )
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2024 2023
(684) 750 (819) 901
1,026 (955) 1,260 (1,169)
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
38
38(a) 38(b) 38(c) 38(d)
2024
5,219 207 32,861 101,782 140,069
_ — 1,852 — 1,852
— — 1,305 — 1,305
15 — — 1,948 — 1,948
— 2 98 (1,336) (1,236)
( ) 7 2,622 (209) 2,116 155 4,684
(732) — — (317) (1,049)
_ — (2,425) — (2,425)
7,109 — 37,755 100,284 145,148
7,109 — 27,418 — 34,527
— — 10,337 100,284 110,621
7,109 — 37,755 100,284 145,148

313/615
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(b)

©

(D

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

38(a) 38(b) 38(c) 38(d)
2023

22,343 190 40,604 99,480 162,617

_ —_ 854 — 854

— 17 929 3,419 4,365

7 300 — 6,704 463 7,467
(17,424) — — — (17,424)
— — (16,230) (1,580) (17,810)

5,219 207 32,861 101,782 140,069

_ — 22,483 — 22,483

5,219 207 10,378 101,782 117,586

5,219 207 32,861 101,782 140,069

314/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
39
2024 2023 2024 2023
3,143,641 3,001,331 — —
934,186 654,821 504 1,614
245,862 211,227 — —
* 2,054,431 1,763,644 37,630 32,275
6,378,120 5,631,023 38,134 33,889
*
30 180 (2023 30 180 )
40
@

315/615



(b)

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

1,102.537
[352.541 1(2023 862.022
[278 D 159.552
[5.,442.500 1(2023  174.563 [5,401.250 D
11.10(2023 :1.01) 11.09(2023 :0.87)
2024 2023 2024 2023
(28,610,945) (24,183,123) (3,825,000) (3,440,000)
13,847,013 15,175,845 891,143 571,405
(18,010,951) (22,271,069) (1,092,112) (1,116,910)

316/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
50
90.0
5.5 (2023 : 111.4
5.5 )
10
13.8 0.9 (2023 : 15.2
0.6 )
©
( FVTOCI ) ( FVTPL )
AA
FVTPL
(023 : )
19.7 (2023 :19.9
) 6.3 (2023 : 5.3 )
986.997 (2023 : 1,267.527 )

17.208 (2023 : 14.182 )

317/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024
120,639 10 12,064
866,358 10 86,636
2023
431,619 10 43,162
835,908 10 83,591
2024
8,079 10 808
9,133 10 913
2023
5,471 10 547
8,715 10 872
(CST180 )

318/615
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(D

ECL MFRS ECL

( GDP
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
90 91 120 120
2024
2,293,268 294,378 33,464 1,060,470 3,681,580
1,659,290 — — — 1,659,290
774,835 — — — 774,835
4,727,393 294,378 33,464 1,060,470 6,115,705
(98,492) (15,295) (7.292) (546,434) (667,513)
(10,155) — — — (10,155)
(8.,194) — @ — (8,195)
(116,841) (15,295) (7,293) (546,434) (685,863)
4,610,552 279,083 26,171 514,036 5,429,842

320/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
90 91 120 120
2023
1,984,367 215,297 30,352 887,245 3,117,261
1,961,246 — — — 1,961,246
396,212 19 7 202 396,440
4,341,825 215,316 30,359 887,447 5,474,947
(63,955) (12,050) (5,464) (499,825) (581,294)
(6,686) — — — (6,686)
(2,911) — — — (2,911)
(73,552) (12,050) (5,464) (499,825) (590,891)
4,268,273 203,266 24,895 387,622 4,884,056

MFRS

321/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
ECL
ECL
ECL
12 ECL
90 ECL
365 ECL
12 ECL ECL PDx LGDx EAD
PD( )
LGD(
EAD(
PO LGD
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2024
2023
2024 30
2023
2022
2023 30
2024
2023
2024 30
2023
2022
2023 30

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

581,294 6,686 2,911 45 161,425 752,361
154,833 3,374 5,284 391 — 163,882
(11,449) — — — (31,300) (42,749)
(61,471) — — — — (61,471)
4,306 95 — — (1,295) 3,106
667,513 10,155 8,195 436 128,830 815,129
538,098 7,997 289 963 117,667 665,014
117,712 — 2,622 150 38,472 158,956
(6,156) (1,974) — — (80) (8,210)
(99,576) — — (1,068) — (100,644)
31,216 663 — — 5,366 37,245
581,294 6,686 2,911 45 161,425 752,361
29,807 1,765 31,572
(58) — (58)
29,749 1,765 31,514
41,609 1,765 43,374
(11,802) — (11,802)
29,807 1,765 31,572

323/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

©)

2024

6,378,120 508,882 — 6,887,002
8,017,035 23,653,153 34,484,504 66,154,692
414,794 575,916 — 990,710
879,811 694,524 916,397 2,490,732
12,733 — — 12,733
15,702,493 25,432,475 35,400,901 76,535,869
15,992 1,124 — 17,116
4,024 74 — 4,098
20,016 1,198 — 21,214
2024
38,134 — — 38,134
1,142,725 1,930,282 3,172,448 6,245,455
7,074 9,432 — 16,506
7,783 — — 7,783
1,195,716 1,939,714 3,172,448 6,307,878

324/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023

5,631,023 195,760 — 5,826,783
9,208,380 26,111,950 30,982,723 66,303,053
275,231 933,402 778,735 1,987,368
37,970 — — 37,970
15,152,604 27,241,112 31,761,458 74,155,174
88,643 6,845 — 95,488
22,185 2,809 — 24,994
110,828 9,654 — 120,482
2023
33,889 — — 33,889
1,508,141 1,522,399 2,689,474 5,720,014
2,358 — — 2,358
5,846 — — 5,846
1,550,234 1,522,399 2,689,474 5,762,107

325/615
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@

2024

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

18

22

23

20

18

23

22

26

27

27

20

— 334,155 — 191,338 525,493
3,075,435 100,518 — — 3,175,953
— — 16,353 — 16,353

404,484 — — — 404,484

— 1,983,383 — — 1,983,383

— — 122,256 — 122,256
5,640,409 — — — 5,640,409
83,564 — — — 83,564
12,836,846 — — — 12,836,846
1,422,355 — — — 1,422,355
234,730 — — — 234,730
23,697,823 2,418,056 138,609 191,338 26,445,826

326/615
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024

31 — — 508,882 508,882
32 — — 28,477,538 28,477,538
33 — — 12,151,098 12,151,098
34 — — 1,233,511 1,233,511
23 — 1,198 — 1,198
39 — — 6,378,120 6,378,120
23 2,513 17,503 — 20,016
26 — — 12,733 12,733
32 — — 1,193,407 1,193,407
33 — — 4,799,853 4,799,853
34 — — 739,506 739,506

2,513 18,701 55,494,648 55,515,862

327/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2024
18 — — 9,398 9,398
22 7,668 — — 7,668
26 1,018,946 — — 1,018,946
18 — 651,643 — 651,643
27 239,500 — — 239,500
27 3,196 — — 3,196
1,269,310 651,643 9,398 1,930,351
2024
32 3,825,000 3,825,000
33 125,167 125,167
34 9,205 9,205
39 38,134 38,134
26 7,783 7,783
33 966,945 966,945
34 6,632 6,632
4,978,866 4,978,866

328/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023

18 — 315,284 — 203,703 518,987
22 2,844,151 146,924 — — 2,991,075
23 — — 2,879 — 2,879
18 — 2,000,574 — — 2,000,574
23 — — 18,824 — 18,824
22 5,155,964 — — — 5,155,964
26 73,223 — — — 73,223
27 11,195,322 — — — 11,195,322
27 3,230,331 — — — 3,230,331

22,498,991 2,462,782 21,703 203,703 25,187,179

329/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023

31 — 195,760 195,760
32 — 23,318,657 23,318,657
33 — 15,336,292 15,336,292
23 9,654 — 9,654
34 — 1,094,322 1,094,322
39 — 5,631,023 5,631,023
23 110,828 — 110,828
26 — 37,970 37,970
32 — 1,594,466 1,594,466
33 — 6,204,777 6,204,777
34 — 260,388 260,388

120,482 53,673,655 53,794,137

330/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023
18 — — 9,398 9,398
22 7,895 — — 7,895
26 1,102,319 — — 1,102,319
18 — 544,663 — 544,663
27 26,742 — — 26,742
27 3,406 — — 3,406
1,140,362 544,663 9,398 1,694,423
2023
32 3,200,000 3,200,000
39 33,889 33,889
26 5,846 5,846
32 240,000 240,000
33 1,116,910 1,116,910
34 2,339 2,339
4,598,984 4,598,984

331/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn
(b)
) ( )
) ( ) (
)
) ( )
2024
— 1,966,175 — 1,966,175
— — 250,000 250,000
17,222 84,141 — 101,363
— — 100,518 100,518
— 138,609 — 138,609
13,767 8,340 169,231 191,338
30,989 2,197,265 519,749 2,748,003
— 2,513 — 2,513
— 18,701 — 18,701
— 21,214 — 21,214

332/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2023

— 1,986,392 — 1,986,392
— — 250,000 250,000
14,182 65,284 — 79,466
— — 146,924 146,924
— 21,703 — 21,703
17,146 10,734 175,823 203,703
31,328 2,084,113 572,747 2,688,188
— 120,482 — 120,482
— 120,482 — 120,482
2024
17,208 634,435 — 651,643
4 — 9,394 9,398
17,212 634,435 9,394 661,041
2023
14,182 530,481 — 544,663
4 — 9,394 9,398
14,186 530,481 9,394 554,061

333/615
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2024 2023 2024 2023
_ _ 474,148 350,003
_ — 27,383 26,454
263,993 222,695 — —_
21,538 24,044 — —
148,217 133,238 — —
31,640 35,710 — —
7,607 7,255 — —
94,599 95,055 — —
78,246 71,777 — —
62,267 93,144 — _
73,251 66,658 — —
_ — 7,520 7,496
87,000 76,605 — —
5,847 10,826 — _
— 17,029 — —

335/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn
(b)
2024 2023
7,515 7,140
— 1,175
©
( )
2024 2023 2024 2023
90,258 71,884 2,845 2,372
7,832 5,823 229 171
756 770 180 140
98,846 78,477 3,254 2,683

336/615
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooOoooOoo
43
@
2024 2023 2024 2023
6,069,128 1,733,369 — 2,688
2024 2023
20,918 67,245
®
)
2024 2023
366,910 241,259
178,181 154,278
131,226 132,838
80,225 105,224
76,002 65,477
5,643 6,932
838,187 706,008
34(a)
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©
©)
O]
®
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2024

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

1,486,374 1,618,646 5,444,726 1,378,661
(699,409) (15,299) (57,713) (238,395)
786,965 1,603,347 5,387,013 1,140,266
17,095 3,430 67,614 78,048

(7,594) (29,118) (228,763) (837,563)
— 14,735 40,009 270,326
15,261 286,725 783,463 352,718
— 37,703 86,144 2,239,542
1,004,857 2,497,647 10,381,407 18,555,670
357,026 698,111 3,370,520 17,389,730
867,745 512,151 1,526,628 2,008,476
3,395 37,419 226,350 535,884
— 1,797 191,376 18,052
12,103 65,204 341,866 28,006
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603,283 21,195,096 31,726,786
(206, 309) (18,990) (1,236,115)
396,974 21,176,106 30,490,671

13,439 41,624 221,250
(208,357) (1,309,095) (2,620,490)
89,251 (3,565) 410,756
83,065 3,311,737 4,832,969
2,117,076 246,953 4,727,418
7,371,029 44,252,606 84,063,216
3,010,982 21,795,527 46,621,896
1,199,171 11,894,481 18,008, 652
135,511 2,998,714 3,937,273
(16,813) 171,025 365,437
174,274 1,282,960 1,904,413
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1,419,247 1,326,254 4,882,369 1,101,738
(215,761) (12,434) (61,162) (298,703)
1,203,486 1,313,820 4,821,207 803,035
6,421 1,174 50,890 48,945
— (25,506) (232,670) (768,473)
— 12,097 36,393 334,269
9,984 160,183 383,235 114,856
— 55,052 79,123 1,927,756
834,978 2,513,391 10,891,952 15,789,638
350,283 819,205 4,497,692 15,093,773
626,269 478,176 1,567,116 1,519,691
2,618 11,431 151,972 519,044
— 135 7,887 8,787
21,449 65,538 356,790 24,001
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2023

584,487 21,083,329 30,397,424
(177,366) (15,913) (781,339)

407,121 21,067,416 29,616,085

6,516 25,639 139,585

(184,757) (1,105,337) (2,316,743)

34,553 2,733 420,045

«C ) (71,843) 2,132,698 2,729,113
2,132,627 46,733 4,241,291

7,010,867 40,178,252 77,219,078

2,907,434 22,785,805 46,454,192

1,245,010 9,456,682 14,892,944

56,704 1,453,587 2,195,356

(22,492) 133,272 127,589

150,656 1,286,736 1,905,170
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2024 2023 2024 2023
6,891,325 6,205,801 13,891,902 11,600,913
5,441,313 4,623,496 25,548,482 23,354,594

15,857,001 16,925,544 10,772,052 10,354,262
2,301,032 1,861,244 3,585,583 3,726,934

30,490,671 29,616,085 53,798,019 49,036,703
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2024 2023
37,816,881 35,330,655
2,135,525 1,524,877
2,233,455 1,966,666
881,894 —
796,145 786,093
9,934,119 9,428,412
53,798,019 49,036,703

(b)
10
2024 2023
7,064,703 9,242,263
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32

33

27
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(
2024 2023 2024 2023
29,670,945 24,913,123 3,825,000 3,440,000
16,950,951 21,541,069 1,092,112 1,116,910
(14,259, 201) (14,425,653) (242,696) (30,148)
32,362,695 32,028,539 4,674,416 4,526,762
24,160,086 20,113,233 5,669,778 5,950,063
56,522,781 52,141,772 10,344,194 10,476,825

57 61 45 43
32
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2024 2023
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
98.03  98.04
100.00  100.00
(UK) 100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
( ) 1
100.00  100.00
( ) ¥
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00
REIT 56.94  56.96
100.00  100.00
SARLE
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
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2024 2023
93.20  93.19
54.94  55.57
*
100.00  100.00
*
sV 90.00  90.00
2024 2023
51.00  51.00
( )
—  51.00
( )
N
2024 2023
( ) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
51.00  51.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
2024 2023
scl 100.00  100.00
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2024 2023

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

93.80 93.80

) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

» 100.00  100.00
100.00 70.00

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

93.80 93.80

( ) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

o) ( i i 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

99.21 99.22
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2024 2023

100.00  100.00

REIT 100.00  100.00
t
REIT 100.00  100.00
+
74.89  74.89
( ) *
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
t
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
REIT
*
100.00  100.00
REIT *
REIT
2024 2023
70.86  77.04
98.03  98.04
(Sg. ) 98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
*
49.02  49.02
68.62  68.63
*
70.86  77.04
98.03  98.04
70.86  77.04
& 98.03  98.04
70.86  77.04
chL 98.03  98.04
CHCM 70.86  77.04

98.03 98.04
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2024 2023

98.03  98.04
*
1 98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
68.62  68.63
*
68.62  68.63
*
68.62  68.63
70.86  77.04
70.86  77.04
98.03  98.04
H ( ) 70.86  77.04
98.03  98.04
*
98.03  98.04
t
98.03  98.04
70.86  77.04
* 98.03  98.04
70.86  77.04
70.86  77.04
70.86  77.04
98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
LA ( ) 70.86  77.04
LA ( ) 70.86  77.04
LA 70.86  77.04
LCS 70.86  77.04
*

LCS * 70.86  77.04
LCS * 70.86  77.04
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2024 2023

LMCB 70.86 77.04

98.03 98.04
70.86 77.04
M 70.86 77.04
70.86 77.04

98.03 98.04

98.03 98.04

98.03 98.04

98.03 98.04

98.03 98.04

98.03 —

35.00 35.00

98.03 —

70.86 77.04

70.86 77.04

98.03 98.04

PHS 70.86 77.04

PMCWS 70.86 77.04
*

P.T. 98.03 98.04

70.86 77.04
RC 98.03 98.04
70.86 77.04
98.03 98.04

70.86 77.04

( ) 70.86  77.04

SMC 70.86 77.04
49.99 50.00

70.86 77.04

70.86 77.04
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2024 2023
66.09  71.85
66.09  71.85
) 98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
) 98.03  98.04
70.86  77.04
98.03  98.04
) 98.03  98.04
) 98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
) 98.03  98.04
70.86  77.04
98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
) 98.03  98.04
©) 98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
98.03  98.04
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2024 2023
80.00 80.00
80.00 80.00
2024 2023
56.00 56.00
70.00 70.00
MSC 60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00

( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00

REIT
2024 2023

( X 56.94  56.96

X REIT( 56.94  56.96
REIT( 56.94  56.96

REIT( 56.94  56.96

REIT( ) 56.94  56.96

REIT( 56.94  56.96

( ) 56.94  56.96

( ) 56.94  56.96
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REIT
)
2024 2023
( 56.94  56.96
*
( 56.94  56.96
*
REIT( 56.94  56.96
*
REIT G.K.* 56.94  56.96
REIT MTN 56.94  56.96
2024 2023
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
>
* 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
64.00  64.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
*
1 100.00  100.00
) 100.00  100.00

oOoOooodn
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¢ 2024 2023
100.00  100.00
P.T. 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
RI 100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
i 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
) 73.99 —
) 73.99 —
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
1CHM 70.00  70.00
100.00  100.00
) 100.00  100.00
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2024 2023

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2024 2023

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2024 2023
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
65.24 65.23
93.20 93.19

*
— 93.19
N
93.20 93.19
( )
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
PYP 93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
*
93.20 93.19
( )

93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
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0000000
« )
2024 2023
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
SR 93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
93.20 93.19
M H)
65.26 93.19
*
2024 2023
23.51 —
*
45.52  46.04
*
t 54.94  55.57
45.52  46.04
*
32.96  33.34
*
54.94  55.57
1
1 54.94  55.57
54.94  55.57
—  33.34
N
54.94  55.57
* 42.52  42.52
42.52  42.52
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2024 2023
42.52  42.52
©) 54.94  55.57
*
1 54.94  55.57
( ) 1 54.94  55.57
38.46  38.90
( 54.94  55.57
) 1
IS * 32.96  33.34
IS * 16.81  17.00
KJS * 23.07  23.34
32.96  33.34
*
KWg ) 11.99 —
§
MLFF ( 16.81  17.00
*
10T( )
)
54.94  55.57
t
32.96 —
(
»n
. 54.94  55.57
3.00 —
*
P.T * 16.45 —
P.T. 54.91  55.54
t
P.T. 54.38  55.01
*
P.T. 52.19  52.79
t
P.T. 43.95  44.46
*
23.51 —
N (EPCM)
(EPCC)
(PNC)
23.51 —
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2024 2023

23.51 —
23.51 —
23.51 —

23.51 —

14.10 —

)*
18.81 —

)*
14.10 —

0&M 14.10 —

08M )*
0&M 18.81 —

08&M )*
SAJ * 18.81 —

23.51 —

23.51 —

23.51 —

)*
23.51 —

( 23.51 —

( 11.52 —
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2024 2023

23.51 —
*
11.99 —
*
SAJ ( ) 23.51 —
* ( )
)
650,000,000
(
)
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
*
SC GmbH* 54.94 55.57
SC GmbH* 54.94 55.57
SC 54.94 55.57
*
SIPP 38.46 38.90
SIS 54.94 —
SIS 54.94 —
SM 23.51 —
§
38.46 38.90
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
*
* 38.46 38.90
— 55.57
I

— 55.57

54.94 55.57
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C )

2024 2023

54.94 55.57
1
* 54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
t
16.15 16.34
*
Al 32.96 —
"
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
*
32.96 33.34
32.96 33.34
t
32.96 33.34
32.96 33.34
® *
54.94 55.57
(UK) 1
54.94 55.57
*
DC 54.94 55.57
DC No.1 54.94 55.57
*

DC 54.94 55.57
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C )
2024 2023
54.94 55.57
(U] *
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
32.96 33.34
54.94 55.57
(UK) 1
54.94 55.57
—  55.57
o0
54.94 55.57
t
( 54.94 55.57
) *
32.96 33.34
i
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
*
31.39 31.75
*
54.94 55.57
*
31.39 31.75
*
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
UK ¥
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
t
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C )
2024 2023
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
*
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
*
( ) 54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
(CL9) *
RE 54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
*
SA1 * 54.94 —
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
SIPP 38.46 38.90
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
T
54.94 55.57
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
t
54.94 55.57
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2024 2023
54.94  55.57
54.94  55.57
54.94  55.57
54.94  55.57
S
) ©
54.94  55.57
o *
54.94  55.57
(UK) *
2024 2023
100.00  100.00
( ) ¥
100.00  100.00
( )SARL*
100.00  100.00
® *
2024 2023
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
*
(o)
¥
B
§
t 2025 30

364/615
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47
2024 2023
45.00 45.00
50.00 50.00
50.00  50.00
(
34.40 —
49.00  49.00
49.90 49.90
37.29 37.18
49.01  49.02
49.01 49.02
20.59  20.59
—  30.00
49.00  49.00
50.00  50.00
% 49.00 —
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2024 2023
16.48  16.67
8.94 —
P.T. + 10.99  11.11
21.99  22.24
€ (
)
27.41  27.73
6.28 —
( ) 9.40 —
7.05 —
( ) 7.05 —
+  P.T. 35.0
€ 2023 28
40.02 40,020,000 40,020,000
2022 10
100, 000, 000 100,000, 000
§
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2024 2023
35.43  38.52
50.00  50.00
46.60  46.60
AP 27.47  27.79
24.72  25.01
24.72  25.01
24.72  25.01
27.47  27.79
4.02 —
V)
—  16.67
(
)

11.75 —

I
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2024
) NSL
(
98
50

YTL

0.75

2024

NSL )
792.3
NSL
2001
(2.61
26

303.5

81.24
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 30 |une 2024

Group Company
Naote 2024 2023 2024 2023
RMOOD RM OO0 RMOOD RM OO0
Revetue 4 30,490,671 £A616.085 521453 JERILY
Cost ol sales 5 |21.357,143) (23163003 - -
Gross profit 9,133,528 G475 521453 wmE1T
{her pperating Income BHEL.E06 638,365 31,203 24663
Seling and dstribution costs [755.757) [(BELB4T) - .
AdmirmIration e [L4BD173) [LATA225) (191,750) [h4n15)
iher operating evpenses {736.581) (AB5.501) - -
Finange costs B (2,620,490) (2316743 [219,423) [184,151)
Share of results of associates and
joint venbures net of tax 410,756 420,043 = =
Profit before tax 7 4,832,960 2729113 141.573 66,710
IncomE tax expense B (948.238) (B06, 765) {20,237) 972}
Profit for the year 3884771 AlA2344 121,336 75,738
Attributable to:-
wmaers Ol this pudont £140,539 1095699 121336 T5, 7368
han-cantoling interests 1744192 LO26645 - -
3,884,731 1tz 344 121336 5,738
Earnings per share
Barsic. {sen) 9 19,51 299
- [uixted {sen) 9 18,14 a5
Dividand per ordinary share (sen) 10 4.00 00

The accomparrying notes form an integral par af the mancial staterents

ANMUAL REFDAET 2024 107
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the financial year ended 20 june 2024

Graup Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'BO0 RM'000 RMOO0 RM'000
Profit tor the year 3.884.731 EAFEETE] 1£1.336 75,130

other comprehensive incomef{loss)-

ams that will not be reclassified
sulsequently 10 INCHME Statement:-
= e-meamurament of post-employment
benefil chigations [28,343) [E43E2S) - -
charges in the Toir vaiue of equity
Imepstments at fair value through other
comprehanive incame (FYOCT) {17.502) {B1,314) - {200}
= revaluation of Land snd buildings 4,774 . .

Mems that may be roclassified
wibsequently Tn income statement.-

- fair value changes on cash How hedges 239,838 (513.435) - -
= Toregn Currency trarmlation, met of dmvesiment
hediges ol fomign operations 83,272 1718038 -
Other comprehensive incomes(loss)
for the year. net of tax 282,039 93,464 - {20o)
Tatal comprahensive income for the year 4,166,770 3015808 121.336 75,538
Total comprohensive income attrbutable to:-
Owners ot the paremt 2,291,786 1.680,620 121.336 75530
Mon-tantrafing nterests 1,874,984 1,225,180 = -
4,166,770 1015808 121.336 73538

Thee accompanying nates form an integeal pat of the finarclal statements

108 YTLCORPORATION BERHAD
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 30 June 2024

Group Company
Hoto 2024 2023 2024 2023
RMD00 RMOD0 RMOOO RMOO0
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant snd equigment n 37.816.881 35,330,655 348,784 30,245
Rght-of-use assets 12 2.135.525 1524877 15.660 220
Imastmant phopertiod | E] 2,233,455 1,966,665 -
Sarvice concession asets 8 B81.894 - =
DNevelopmant expenditures 14 796,145 TRENGT - -
Irnstment in subsidiaries 15 - - B.096,597 [l R ]
Irvestment in associates 16 4,260,027 3,863,151 SE64, 021 SE4.021
IrEstment In joint veniwes W 467,391 377,500 - .
Imsstmaents e 525,493 SlR.o87 0.398 o398
Intangitie assots 19 9,934,119 9428412 - -
Operating financial assets 20 AD4, 484 - - -
Contract assety 21 L4097 a.206 - -
Trade and other receivables 22 3,200,952 JOLA00 - -
Deferred 1ax FspTL 7] 338,369 53768 - -
Post-employment benefit assets En 31,124 B4,314 - -
Derivatve fnandal instuments 23 16,353 2879 -
63,006.308 Lr.238.048 B.724.460 BE57.120
Current assats
I nanies 24 1,301,207 L219,606 - .
Properly deweloginent oosts 25 692,508 443555 - .
Trade and other recaivables 22 6,126,896 55009045 8,064 8461
Operating financil assets 20 234,730 -
Contract assets 2l 750,069 AZ22.6E9 -
et wattve finandal instrumants 23 122,256 16824 - -
Incomie T st 140.511 108,352 3,282 B.775
Amounts due from siated parties 20 83,564 13223 1,018,946 L1031
e stnents 18 1.983.383 £000574 651,643 4,563
Fload depaosits. 27 12,836,846 11195322 230,500 26742
Cash and bank balances 27 1.422.355 323,331 3196 3406
25,684,325 24,282381 1,924,691 L692.366
TOTAL ASSETS BE.790.634 H.460.369 10.649,091 10549466

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financal StaEmoens.
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 june 2024

Graup Company
Hota 2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'O00 RM'OO0 RM'O00 RM'OO0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 9 3491793 FAB7 555 3491753 3467555
Othar resarves 0 1970015 1761203 30,364 17548
Rataincd camings 11,010,763 9,291.387 2,202,073 2319312
Treasury shares, at Cost 293 |54, 452) (54.452) {54.452) (54.452)
16,418,119 14,4605, 55% 5.669.778 5950063
Hon-controfing nterestsy 7,741,967 SE47540 - -
Total Equity 24,160,086 0113233 5,950,063
Mon-current liabilities
Lang-term payablas i £.301.051 LE1TATY - -
Contract hakties Fi | 47,304 H.095 - -
Bares iz 28,477,538 23318657 3,825,000 3,200,000
Barowings 33 12,151,088 15336292 125,167 -
Lease [ablites a4 1,233,511 LO94,322 9,205 -
tenvice concession ohligations 28 559,198 -
Grants and contributicns 35 TZLATA &99,005 - -
Dafermed tax labilities 36 3,763,739 773,208 13 1z
Post-amployment benefit obligatons 37 90,484 38,426 - -
Provision for Babilrios and charges EL 34,527 £2.483 - s
Datrivativie Financial irsrumeits 23 1158 9,652 - E
49,381,522 dE 144641 3,959,485 3200113
Current llabilities
Trade and othed pagables a9 6,378,120 LR E ] 38,134 EEE: ]
Contract habdities Fi | B62, 521 FoE 0 - -
Dt Minandial nstiruments 23 20,016 110,828 - -
Ameunts due ta related parties el 2,733 I7E70 783 5846
Bards 2 1.193,407 L5094 466 - 240,000
Barmowings EE ] 4,795,853 E204,777 566,945 1116910
Lease llabilities 34 730,506 260,388 6632 £339
Serde rmncesson shiigations /B 35172 - - -
Prowtsion for Bsbiltes and changes 38 110621 117,586 - E
Post-employment benefit obiigatons 37 21.354 6837 334 26
Ircomar b Babilites T25. 723 439,911 - -
15,249,026 15,202,495 1,019.628 L9310
Total Liabllities 64,630,548 BL347136 4,979,313 A509.423
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 88,790,634 B1.460,369 10,645,061 10545486

Thie acompanying nates foem an integral pan of the financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEHENTS

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

far tha financial year ended 30 June 2024

e Ariribartable to Owners of the Parent ——————-- »
4+ Non-distributable -+ < Distributabla E
Sharg Other Treasury M-
capital TESRIVES Retained shares ceatraling Tatal

Wy Pl s WSO W ey
RMDOQ RMO00 RM'000 RMO00 RMDOO AMO0Q RH000

Group - 2024
At July 2023 3467555 L7GL203 429037 (54,452) 14465653 G750 20113233
Profit for the year : = 140,539 - 140539 L7192 3884731
Onher comprehensae incormations) for the year - 166,618 (15.571) - 151247 130,742 282,039
Teotal enmpehinin infnme o this yeo - IBG.EIE 2174968 . 22091786 LET4. 984  41GETTD
Transactions with owners
Chasges, in companiton of the Cioup . [7.A0G) ZL738 . 14332 T1E 708 T3040
o i i ; - [438.575) © (43575 (G0BETE) (947,250
s of share cacetal pursuant 10 S options

ot 24,238 {16, 547) 1LE . 18707 (7,60 1098
Shape nption FEpEmes - 65,047 2 - B&1TE 19,019 65,195
At 30 june 2024 1431793 1970015 1L0M0,763 {54,452} 16,418,119 TTAL3ET 24,160,085
o - 2023
At july 2022 1467555 55G1%  SBELTOR G445 BOSM 4TRSS IT9RM
Peodl for the year - - LOGETT - 1095673 LO#6 645 1723
Ot pormgrohoriivg St oemalos) for the yoar . TIATAS (133.820) . S99 28515 BO3 464
Tiotal omgiehenss infome for the yes . TiLTan FRAT . LESOSZE L3580 L5 E0E
Transactions with owness
Changes b comparstion of the Croup . 2560 {18.357) L 15738 58 (L5E74)
Reciassilicanon upen dsposal of Imvestment:

designated 3¢ PO Lal=n) El37 RLE7
Dividends pad - . (378.323) L {3m%e) [387.2096) [Trh.E15)
e optien experias - 2652 . . 22652 8545 197
Share optien Lxred - {77 w . . .
At 30 june 2023 3467555 LP6L03 5.5 387 (54452 14465633  SE47RD  E00LA23

Thee accoempanying notes foem an imiegral gact of the finanoal swasements.
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FINANCIAL STATEHENTS

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the financial year ended 20 June 2024

i Attribastable to Owners of the Parent --—-——————-»
" FPp— - Nan-distributable - i s wenee Distributablg oo ¥
Shara Other Treasury
capital TESEIVES Retained shares
[Mote 29) {Mate 30) eamings (Mote 29a}) Tanal
RM'ODO RM'O0O RiTODO RMO00 RHODO
Company - 2024
At 1 july 2023 3,467,555 17,648 2,519,312 {54,452) 5,950,063
Profit for the year, represanting total
comprefensive income fer Ehe year - - 121,336 - 121,336
Transactions with ewners
fividends pakd - - [43B.575) * [43B.575)
Ismuie of share capital pursuant 1o share
olions enertied 24,228 [4,053) - ] 20,173
Share opltion expenses - 16,775 . - 16,775
At 30 June 2024 3,401,793 30,364 2.202,073 |54.452) 5,669,778
Company - 2023
At 1 July 2022 J4RTELE T34 2T7244 [54,452) B182.757
Profit for the year - - FEXE - 15738
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (200) - - 200y |
Total comprehensive (less)income
lor the year * [P et 5738 - 75,538
Transactions with ewners
Dnvirienct: paid 3 : [LrA927) . [ZR93)
Share option expenses - 10681 - - 10641
Shar oplion lapsed - 77 7 - -
At 30 June 2023 JAGTGEE 17,648 Salaxe [T4.452) 0550003

Thie accampanying nates fomm an integral part of the financal statsments,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMOO0 RM'000 RM'0O0 RM'0O0
CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES
Puafit before Tax 4,832,969 Z72a013 141,573 BETI0
Adustments for-
Adustment on fair valee of nvestment properties (30,943} BRSS9 - -
Amartisation of Lantiact codts 1966 L0221 - -
Amortisation of defered noome (6. 406) {5638 - -
Amartisation of grants and contributions. (23.443) {17.5951) - -
Amortisation of intangibie assets BH.322 G457 - -
Amarisaion of service condession assers 33,938 = - =
Bad debits reconered {4,518} [2.354) - -
Bad debits written of f Z2.645 L5300 - 4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,615,120 LB620ES51 4,246 5,088
Despre<iation of right-af-uie sisets 208,338 205744 G700 &BEFT
Dividand income (21,107) {3.786) [502,217) Err A ]
Development expenditun witten down 123 2413 - -
Far valug changes ol derivatives 28 - = -
Far valug changes ol financial assels (290,019) (90,387 10,777} (4,089)
Cain on a bargain purchase [9.930) - - -
Gain on dsposal of imvestments (4.513) (B,0B9) [4.513) (E.546)
Gain an deposal of ight-of-use assats (B.827) - - -
Gain on aspasal of propey, pant and equipment [9.027) [&514) - -
Loss on disposal of assoclates - net 4,320 1,843 - -
Gain on lease modificatkin and reassessment - [501) - -
Gain on lease temmination [4.605) [1.5285) - -
Impairment lodses - net 365,437 127589 85,207 Glo74
Interest expense 2,620,490 2316743 219,423 184,151
Interest incomsa {941,354) |567.466) (19.076) {8,983
Imaniories writtan down - nat 20,211 111 - =
Property developmert costs wriien down 73z 17,424 - -
Praparty, plant and equipment written ofi 16,897 18403 - 34
Pravisaon for post-employment hanafits I7.868 34,153 - -
Pravision for habiitees and chames 4.684 TAET - .
Ehane oplion expenses 85,155 U E 8,017 5,054
Shafe af resuls of assockares and pinT venmures (AL0,756) (HR0.045) = -
Unreaised gain on foreign eachange - net (22.242) {156, 701) - -
Operating profit/({loss) before changes
in working capital 8,131,590 5962, 742 [71.417) [(#3,060)

Thae accomparnying notes fonm an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the financial year ended 20 |une 2024

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'000 FM'000 RM'000 FeM'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
ICONTINUED)
Changes in working capital:-
vEntones (196,508) [3.273) - -
Proporty dovelapment os0s (10,327) (5B,849) - -
Rocovablin {189,612) {1A425,973) 07 [47E}
Contract assets and labilitles (297,380) (416.459) - -
Payahiet 118,851 1.6 803 194 59r2
Ralated parties balances 16,331 [19.247) 155,776 [Z16.326)
Cash flow generated from/(used in) operations 7.562,945 L0057 84,950 (252,532)
Dividends recoived 558,256 520,324 s02.217 ERFA R
terest pakd (1,957,376} [1.714,38E) (218,985) [(183,821)
rtenest recaived 937,131 554,311 17,941 B.546
Paymant for service concession obiligations (45, 764) - - -
Payment 10 post-empkiyment bensdit cbiigations [38,007) {237.583) - -
Income: tax podd {G50,847) |G, 7 3E) {16, 744) {9,770
fncome tax refunded 5.587 213 - -
Hat cash flow fromd{used in) oparating activities 6,372,925 ABT0S47 369,379 {BLBEO)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Azeuesition of fiw fubidiadies (ol of cash acquinad) {548,100) E - :
Additianal Irvestment In Fssodates and jeint venture [286.922) (74.,550) - -
Drvisapment experiiunes. incurnsd (21.157) [10&53) - -
Grants recalved in respect of Infrastructute Fssets 37,430 31,051 ] 4
Increase i recefvables from joint veniures - (167,300) - -
Nt drpasal al associates {net ol cash and cash
equivalents) 9.259 5,692 - E
Rapaymants for participation imvestment 177,842 194,682 -
Proceeds from disposal af prapery, plant and equipment 21,237 (FEREEE 3
Proceads from disposal of right-of-use assets 9,132 - - -
Procoeds Trom disposab{rsiemption] of imvestments - et 1,852,732 75471 [91,690) L7
Proceads from linance ese redahalie 3,316 241 -
Puithase of intangllle assets (68, 709) (66,960) -
Purhase of imstment prepaies (142,847) 4,590) = -
Puichiase of proparty, plant and equipment (3.699,722) [2.078.728) (3.508) {40,357
Purchase of imestments {1.514,357) (eH1.585) -
Purchasn of right-of -Lse Jesety (43,747} {3.669) E
Mot cash flow used in Investing activivies {4,214,653) {2,707, 736) [95,195) {1B.564)

Thie accempanying nates loem an integral part of thie finarcial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEHENTS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the financial year ended 30 |june 2024

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM OO0 RMDOH RM'DOD RM DO
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of additional shanes In exdsting susadiaries (548) (L0020 {148) (77}
Divicends pakl (438,575) [EF- k- ] [438,575) [Erthe ]
Divicoends pald to non-controlling interosts by
sutmidiarios {508,675) (387.296) -
Capital topryment by a subsidiany = ar =
Reairthase of subrsidiaries” shares by sulbsidiaries - ny -
Nat decrease/{incraasa) in readricted cash and cash
equvalents 75,996 (PO 46T - -
Proceeds from bonds 2,501,100 3,096,971 625,000 1,200,060
Froceeds from barmeeings 6,455,703 L539829 150,000 300,000
Proceads from issue of shares 24,238 - 24,238 -
Proceeds from issue of snares in subsidiares by
ren-Contnoling inlerests 105,267 18T - -
Recayment of bonds {L144.591) [2.280,000) (240,000) [1.000,000)
Repayment of bomowings (9.386.087) (4,653.316) [175,077) (2S0053)
Repayment af lease labtios (260,603 (297.580) {7.074) (7.074)
Uplrant Tees on barowings [7.322) {26025 - -
Not cash flow (used in)/from financing activities [2.544,103) 436887 (B1,63E) [BE127)
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (385,831) 2400058 212,548 (1eE.551)
Effects of exchange rate changes 57,538 E97,605 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of year 14,283.802 11196095 30,148 196,699
Cash and cash equivalents at and of year (Nota 27) 13,065,500 14.253.802 242,606 0048
The principal non-cash transactions of property.
plant and equipment are disclosed as bobow:-
Cash 3,699,722 0728 3,508 40,357
Findnce lease armargement 1478 574 279 -
Interest expeme paidpayabie 115.883 53861 -
Teambar ol avsels [rom cusiemens 30,182 23,804 -
Trangfer from prepaymernts - 206 - -
Payadles (75.669) 22144 =
Prowision for labdities amd charges 1633 = -
3,773,229 2160107 3,787 40,357
The principal non-cash transactions of right-of-use
assets are disclosed as balow:-
IPrenvtsaan For liabdities and charges a9 - -

The: accomparnying notes form an ntegral part of the {nancal STaements
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the financial year ended 20 |une 2024

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:-
1. Bonds and borrowings

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

RM'000 RM'000 RMO0O0 RM'000
AL fuly 46,454,192 42,256,182 4,556,910 & 306,563
Changes from financing cash flows
Procoods from bonds 2,501,100 2,088,971 625,000 1200000
Progoeds [ rom borrowdngs 6,495,703 5539529 150,000 300,000
Upfront fees on bormawings (7.322) {26.,085) - -
Repayment of bands [L.144,591) [2.280,000) (240,000) (L 6 D)
Repument of borrosings {9.386,087) (4.853.316) {175,077) [AS0.053)
Oiher charges in bands and borrwings
Acguisitian of & sulsidiany 924,368 - - -
Amortisation of issuance cost/uvsnnding af premium 527,276 456,090 - -
Increased{decraase) in bank overdrafts 63,765 [82,940) - -
Hire punchase creditor Py 574 278 .
Fenance costs copitalised in imesiment properties 1.837 .
Forpign exchange movement 191,376 2352833 - -
At 30 june 46,621, 806 4B A5 102 4,917,112 4 556010

2. Lease liabilities
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

RM'OO0 RM"000 R OO0 RMO00
A1 uly 1,354,710 1416612 2,339 f=h il E
Changis lrom financing cash Mows
Repayment of lease labiities [260,609) [£97,560) [7.074) (7.074)
Other changes in lease llabilities
Additions 121,890 71587 20,134 -
Acquisition af a sulsidiany 32,742 ' - .
Wteriral exgusisies BE,024 Bz196 AT 230
Macsication 678,511 F1572 - -
Expiry/Termination (18,94 2) (26.018) -
Trarsfer o payables (67} (5252) -
Fareagn exchange mowsment {21.242) 17588 -
At 30 June 1.973,017 1,354,710 15,837 2339

Thie accampanying nates foam an integral par of the financlal statements,
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FINANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 30 June 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company ara those of an investment holiding and management company. The princgal actiities af the
sulridiarios ag 52t oul in Nate 46 to the financlal statemonts,

Thie Trarpany i & pubdic lmited Kahility compamy, incoeporated and domiciliod In Makaysia and #sted on the Main Market of Bursa
Makxysia Seourities Berhad ard the Prirse Foreign Stocks Segmant of the Tokyo Stock Exthange

The addriess of the registensd ollioe and pincgal place of busingss of the Comparny i as follows-

F3rd Floor, Menara ¥TL
205 Jalan Buigt Bintang
BA100 Kuala Lumpur

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
{a) Basis of preparation
The financlal statements of the Group and The Compary hawe been prepaned under the historical cost tameention urless stated

athenyise] and in accordance with Malaysion Financial Reporting Standards [MFRS™L International Financial Reporting
Standards (TFRS™ and the requiremants of the Companies Act 2005 in Malaysia,

The preparation of financial statements in cordormity with MFRS requires the use of certain critical acoounting estimates and
assumpoons that aflect he reponed amouns of asse1s and Rabdites and disCosure of contingent asswels and llabiites a1 the
data of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expertses during the reported period. It aso eguines
the Cirecions to exencise thelr [udgements in the process of applying the Croup's accounting policles. Alhough these estimates
and pdgements ane bosed on Dieciors’ best indwdedge of current eyents and actions, potual resuits may differ,

The areas imvodving a highor degree of judgoment or complescty, of aeas whirne assumptions and esumates are sigrificant to
he tnancal statsments ane dscioted in Nota 3 to the foant il statemsenis.

The linandial slaleiments are presenbid - Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and of vahes aie owncisd bo e mearest thousam] [000)
except @5 othensdse indcated

{b) Changes In accaunting polickes
The aceounibng polices adopted ate eonsistent with those af the previoas financial year seept 2% Tollows. -
On 1 jusy 2023, the Group and the Company have adopted the folleedng MFRS, IC nterpretations and amendments which are
mancatony for anmial findncial periods bognning an or after | July 2023
MFRS and IC Interpretations (including The Consequential Amendments)

MFAS 17, Insarence Contracts

Amendmants to MPRS 17, Insurance Contracts - Initidl Apphoalson of MFRS 17 and MERS O - [omjlaralse Ftoimation

Amandmants to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements - Distlosure of Accourting Pollcles

Amendisens 1o MFRS 108, Acccunting Policies, Clanges in Accounting Estimales and Ermors - Delinition ol Avcounting
Estimates

Amandirents (o MFAS 112, Income Taxes - Defemed Tax related 1o Assets and Liabdities arising from a Single Transaction

Amondmants (o MFRS 112, Incoms Taxes - International Tax Reformn - Pike Two Model Rules

The adoption ot the abave new standarcs IC imterpratations and amendments to published standards hawe nat guen rise to
Ay matenal imaact an the irancial statements of the Group and af th Company.
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FINANCIAL STATEHMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 June 2024

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{c) Standards issued but not yet effective

The standants and imerpretations that are Bsued bt not yet effective up to the date of Bsuarce of the Group’s and the
Company's financia statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these standards, if applicatde,
whien they begome #flnctive,

MFRS and IC intorpratations (Including The Consequaential Amandmants) Effoctive date

Amendments to MFHS 1b, Lease - Leste liability in 2 Sale and Leasaheck 1 jsnuary 224

Amendments to MRS 100, Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabdities as 1 january 2024
Cusrent or Kon-cuirrent

Amendmets to MFRS 10], Presentation of Financial Statements - Non-cument Liabiites with 1 penuary 2024
Covenants

Amerndments o MFRS 107, Statement of Cash Flows dnid MFRS 7, Finasdal ketroments: D losuies 1 january 2024
- Supplier Finance Arrzngements

Amendmends to MFES 121, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - Lack of 1 January 2005
Furtuanicynahility

Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Inttruments and MERS 7. Financial iInstruments: Disclesures. 1 january 2026
- Classification and messurement of Finandal Imstruments

MFRS 18 - Presentation and Disdosure n Foancal Statemens 1 January 2027

MERS 19, Sulsiiares without Pulsic Accountatality: Disglosiibes 1 |arnsary 2027

Amendmenits to MFRS 10, Consalidsted Finandal Statements and MFRS 128, ivestrents in Ta be anncunced by
Ausodatns and |mint Yentures - Sale or Coniribution of Assets between an Investor and s he MASE Boaid

Mesociote or jaind Vonure

{d} Revenue recognition

Reverue B recognived 1o the extent that it s probable that the economic benefits will Mo 1o the Group and the revenue can
b reliably meadured Thee specific necagnition critea lor reverue ane a5 folows-

{I} Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue which represents income arsing in the course of the Group’s erdnary activites (s reoognised by reference to each
distinct performance obligation promised in the contract with customes, Remnoe from contracts with customars b mesduned
at its transacton price, being the amount of consideration which the Croup expacts to be entithed in exchange for transfering
pronised goods of senioes o @ customer, net of goods and service tax, retums, tebates and discounts. Transartion prce s
allpcaied 1o sach performands obligation an the basis of the relative stand-glone selling prices of each disting good or
sarvices promisad in the contract. Depending on the substances of the respective contract with the oustomer, revenue |s
reoognised when the perfomance obiigation s satisfied which may be at a point in Hime or over tme,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
{d} Rewenue recognition (continued)
(i} Rewvenue from contracts with customers (continued)
fa)  Soke of electricily

The Group's eectrcity is generated and sold into natlond elecincity company of market in the respective countries
ir which the Group oporates.

Revenue from the sale of electricity (s recognised ower time as customers Smultaneously recelve and consume the
benefits provided by tha Group's peformance when dactricity is deliverad basad on contractusl tems stipuiated in
respective agreements with custome s,

Revenue & presented, net af goods and service fa, penalties. mebates and discauns. Collection of the contract
conseration from customers is considensd probable. Mo elenent of financing s daamed present as the Croup has
adopted the practical expodsnt avadable in MFRS 15 where the interval beteeen transter of the promised goods or
sondces and payment by the tustomer |s expectod 1o b less than 12 monthi.

Eactricily revenie Intludes an estimated value of the electridty corsumed by customer from the date of the lest
meter reading available and reparting period end, Accrued unbilled reveree is recagnimed a5 receivablies and is
reversed n the following month when actual bilings occour.

{b)  Supply of cloan wator orid troatment end drpesal of wirste wotor

Thir Group, under the license granted by T United Kingdom [UK"] Govemment, has the might 1o supply water and
REWOTa)E warvites to customens, togathar with an obligation 16 maintain and devalap the nabwark and ensun its
continued avallabiity,

The nature of the water industry in the UK is such that revermie recogretion 5 sutject 1o 2 degree of estimation, The
assessmant of water sakes to oustomers is based on intemal data where final settlemant data s ot yet avallable. At
the end of cach ponod. amounts of water delvered 10 Customans afo colimated and tho cormesponding bifed and
unbilied revenge is assessod and recorded in revenas. For the purpose of the judgement, variaus factors arm
conskemnd such as soasonality, historic biling profiles, leakage data and general econemic coniditions.

For motered customers, revende is determined by the meter reading For unmatered cusiomers. the amount to which
the Group has a ight to receve is detenmened by the passage of time durng which the customer oicuples a property
within the Group's licenced region. Revenus represents intame recelvable in the ardinary course of butness,
excluhng Yalue Added Tax, for services provided, Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
economic benafits will flow 10 the Group.

Developer services related to the abigation under statute to alow property developer to establish an authorised
CONMBCEion to the water and/of sewerage netwik. In abtaining the connectian, the developar may require the Group
fo urdertake one or mare of the following-

Iy Comnections ard meter installation in exchange for payment
1) Regusitions af water mains in exchangs (ar payment; and
iy Adoptiors of water and waste water mains.
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{d} Revenue recognition (continued)
{i}] Revenue from contracts with customers [continued)
(B} Supply of cloan waler and troalment aod dispasal of wasle waler (tentinued)
The developer B ako required to pay infrastnueure chamges bang a contribution 10 network renforcement

These activities ame not separable nor distinet and instead form @ bundle of activities necessary to astabilish an
Authorsed connecoion from which the network access can be obtalned. Aka, the Group has an additional obkgathon
udes statube 1o keeg thi connection n place Tor ol cument s Tuture ooupeers and Taciitate ongalng socess to
thar petwork for o long 4y the property eouines senice provision. Comsequently. rewime lrom developer seivices
will be defered over the shorer of sxpected perlod of service provesion of the need bo replace the asets at the end
of their usefal ife (typscally in the range B0 to 125 years). No ekment of Tinancing is desined piesent a5 the Group
s atiopted (e prex tical expedient available in MFRS 15 whese the infervl between ansder ol the prom b goods
or services and payment by the custors: & expected 1o be less than 12 montis.

fe}.  Sole of cement ond relelad products

Rewenue from sale of Cement and relaled poducts 5 ecogrised a1 e point in time whien contol of the goods is
raridemad 10 The cusioiner,

In desberminmg the transaction price for the sale of cement and relatsd prodiscts, the Group considers the ef fects of
variable consideration.

If tha consideration in a contract InCludas a vadable amount, the Group astimates the amount of conudesatian to
which it will be antithed in emchange for transfarring the goods 1o the oustomer. The varlable considerstion is
estimated at contract inception and corstraned wntil it is highly probable that a significant revenue versal in thie
amairt af ewnulative favenue retognised will net accur whien the ssociated uncanainly with the varialle
consideration is subsequently resobved, Some contracts for the sale of cement and related products provide
customess with sarly payments rebates, prompt paynent rebates and volume rebates. The early payment rebates.
peamat payment rebates and valume rebatas gve fise 1o varabile conmideration.

fc) Mol operatis
feverue from room rentals is aconeed over time for customen-ootupled rooms. Revenue from food and beverage
zales b5 recognised upon oustomer consumption and when payment ks due. Fevenue from functions and bancuets ks
recogrised when 1he space i provided and the pedanmance obligaton i5 satisfied.

f#)  Consturmian rondres

Umithe such cuntiac te, the Groug b engagesd o construct buildliogs and related nlrastiociuie amd inoerain imndanes
b supply ecaipments. These contiacts may include multiple promises 1o the customens @ therefore acoounied Mo
a5 separate perfarmarce clligations. in this cas, the wansaction price will be dllocaied based on redatve stand-alons
sellig e of thie comideration of each of it Seperate pedormanto obligations. Whed thise s ol directly
observable, they @e estimated based on espected cost plas margin.

Comtructian comradt revenue |5 meossuned at the fiked ransaction pice agreed under the agreement. The Group
recognised constructicn revenie over time, 25 the projects have no altemathes use and the Group has an enforcesble
righit 1o payment for completed performance. This Stage of comphtion is determined wsing the input method, based
o Ehi 1ot actudl construction cost motred 10 date o compared 1o the total budgeted costs for thi respective
cormstruction projects.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
[{d} Rewenue recegnition (continued)
(i} Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
i Teleoomamunicrioms

Thie Crowp porerates teyende from providing 1eleommurecation Senioes, such as 3C0ess 10 tha netwodk, Smime
usage. messaging. and imtesnet services as well as from sales of products, Products and services may be sald
separalely or in bundled packages. The typlcal length of a3 contract for bundled packages ks 12 months to 35 manths,

Far bundied packages. the Croup sccounts for indhvidual products snd senices soparately if thoy are distinct., Lo, IF a
product or servioe is separately dentifiable from other items in the bandled package and If a costomer can bonefit
from it. Th: consideration |s aflocatod bobwoen separate prodicts and services in 3 bundia based on their Relatae
Stand alone Soling Prices (RSP Tha RSSP are determined based on the I8 priges ot which the Group salls the
poducts and telecommunication senices. RSSP are based on chservabla sales prices; however, whare RSSP ate not
directly chservanle, estimates will be made maximising the use of obsenable inpus.

iy Telecommuncabion senioes.

Telotammurication revenmie from postpaid and propaid services provided by the Group = recognisod aver tima,
irs the benefits of fchecommunization serioes are simuttanecusly recehved and consumed by the custome

Revenuo from propaid services & recognied when senvioes are endered, Starter packs with o sim card and
reload vowcher is atcounted far as a single pedormarce abligation as the sm cand can anly be used togothor
with the serdces provided by the Croup Prepaid credns ane recegnised as contract Hobding in the Staement of
Financial Position. Revonue 5 rocognised whan the crodits are utibsed or wup to the peint of cuestomor chuen or
upan expiry, whichever |s earler.

Postpaid serdices are provided in pestpaid packages which consist of wariows services (ie. call minutes, ntemat
data, sms and etr), As the senvices are separately identifiable and the custamers can benefit from each of the
services on its own, each senice i acoounted for 35 4 weparate perormance obligatan

Pesipaid packages are either sold separately or bundled together with the sale of desice to a customer, As
postpaid packages and device are capable of beng disting and separately identilialfe, there are two

performande obilgations within a hundled fransaction. Adcordingly, thie Group alotates the transaction price
based on the B55° of the posipald packages and devices.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
[d} Revenue recognition {continued)
{i) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
{fl Telecommurscations continued)
{ii) Sae of doviees

Devices may be soid separately or in bundiad packages. The Group recognises revenus when contral of the
denwite has transferred to the customer upon defisery and acceptance of the desce at the point of sale.

For devices soki separately. the consideration s receved in full at the pomt of sale. The amount of revenue
recognised is measured 31 the consideration specified in the contract. For devices sold in bundiad packages, the
customens Wsually offerad to pay at 4 dscountad price on the device. Tha amount of revanue recognised fof
dewices soid in bundied packages i measured at the alocated comideration based on the RSSP as sqplained
previouly,

Devices that the Group promises to transfer as part of & bundied package with network sendce plars are
conslitered distinet and thus accounted for 2= & separate pedomance obigaton. Devioes that are tansfored
as part of a fixed ling tolecommunication services bundied package which can only be wsod tegethor with the
senvices provided by the Group, are conshdened as a single performance oblfigation In telecommunications senice
POVERILE.

A contract assat s recogrised when the Group delivers the devices before the payment & due. If the payment
hrappens bedare the deivery of device, then 2 comract liobility (5 recogised. Conmract assets and cantract
Eahilites ate presented in the Stvoments of Financial Position

The Cioup generates revenee from telecommunication infrastruciwe. Telecommunization infrastruciure revernes s
generated from the leasing of space on the Group's tefefomimunication towers, whemne the omstomens imstall and
maintain their individua’ communicatson netwerk equipmant and from construction of telecommmication
infrastructure. The leasng revenus is fecoghised on a straight-line basis over the Tiked and non-canceilable tedm of
the lease agreament, imespective of when payments are due. For the canatruction of telecommunication
infrastructure. see accounting policy Note 2dii)ie] o the finandal statements on consirudtion contracts.

(g} Fropeity deveitpment prees

Redenus from propery cevelopment 5 recognised as and when the contiol of the asset is rarsfered 1o the
customes and [t is probable that the Group will collect the consideration to which it wil be entitled in exchange for
the asset that wil be transferred to the tustomer. Depending on the temms of the contract and the kaws that apply
to the cantract, contrel of the assel méy trammfer over time or at a point in time. Contral of the et is ramsfemed
over tme i the Group's performance does not create an aset with an altemative use to the Croup and the Group
has an erfarceabile night to payment far performanc e complated 1o date.

It the contral of thee asset tramifers over time, revenue is netognised aver the peried of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satsfaction of that performance oblgation Othenwise, reverwe s recognsed at a
it in time when the customer abtasns control of the asset.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
{d} Rewenue recognition (continued)
(i} Rewvenue from contracts with customers (continued)
f)  Progoy develagment profocts (Contiued)
The Geoup rerognised revenue ovar fime using the input msthod, which = based on the actual cost incuered 1o date
an the property development projects as compared to the lotal budgeted cost Tor nespective development projects.

The Group recognised sales &t a paint in time {or the sale of completed properties, when the control of the properties
has bean transfarred 1o the pischasers, baing when the properties. have been completed and delivered to the
custamers wnd i i probablo et the Croup will colledt the considerations 10 wisch It will be entitied 1o in exthangs
far the assets solil

fhl Sole af chasm

Revenue from szle of steam is recognised over time as the Group's customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benafits ansing from he Goup pemarmance of w5 obbiganons based on e Terms o T CoNIracts with thi

CirtDmers.
() Othars
Ciither revenue earned by the Group i iecogibed as Tollows:-
(i} Sabeal fusl ol
Resarmie from sale aof fuel oil s recognissd when the performancs alxigation i watrfied by tramdening control
ol fuel ol to the customer upan delkeary (2. 3t a point in time).
(il Sala of natural gas

Revenue from sxie of natural gas is recognised over time as and when the Group’s customers simuttaneously
recitve and Corsume e bamnafics arisng from the Group performanc e whien natural gas is supplied.

[1] Management. opsration and manienanoe lees
Management, cperaticn and mantenante fees ane mcognised cwer thie poriad in which the senices are ondensd,

[} Tank leasing fees
Tank leming foes fram operaling oased am recoghisad on a straight End bask ovar the lease torm,

fvj Resanue from saes of land

Reserie From sales ol lnd is eoognned when contral of the riaets B ireisiemad 10 the customads and the
collectability of the related recelvabiies ts reasorahly assuned

ivi)  Colwarinn sandces and refaten services

Rewenue (fom codocaton sarvices is recognsed over the term of the contract as the ustomes simultaneomsly
recEmes arl Lomsuines the benslis,

[vil] Arillary seivices
Reverue from ancilary services (s recogresed ot 2 pont in time whon the sendces ane performed,
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{d} Revenue recognition (continued)
{ii} Revenue from other sources
Specific revenue recogrition ot ria far other revenue ond incoms eamad by thi Group and the Companry are o6 Tallaws:
o} Inforest iwome
Intarest income |s recognisad as the interest income accrues. tadng into account the effective wiedd on the asset.

b} Dévicdend income
Dividend incnme s recognsed when the shaehnlder's dght 1o recehe the payment & estabished

{t}  Rental incoms
Raental income hom opsring keases (01 of doy mcentves geeen 10 the lassees) s recognised on the sIraight -ling
hasts aver the lease term.
{e] Employes banafits
(i} Post-employment benefits
The Crous Nas various porsT-emgileymment benefin Soremes in ac onkanoe with local conditions and practices n the industries
I wiiEh T ooarates.

These Benedit plans are either defined contribution or defined benefit plans,

ol Definad confribution plan

A defined conirtiuban pien S o persion pan undes which the Group and the Comparmy pay Tied contrbutions nto
separate entity (a fund) and will bave no legal or constructive obligations 1o pay further contributions o the fund does
noat hokd sufticienT 556Ts 1o pay all omployees bEnefits (eating 10 eMEkiyes Service in e (LTeat and pror pericds

Thi Crous’s and the Company's. contrifutions to a defined contribution plan are charged 19 the income Statement inthe
pevind to which they relate.

bl Dafined borsfit plon

A defined bonedit plan 5 a pension plan that defines an amourt of pensian bonafit 1o be predded, usaly as &
hunction of anig or mome Factors such as age, year of senvice of compemation

T hiability in respect of a defined benefit plan is the present vaiua of the definec beneli obligation at the reporting
date e the far value of lan asuets,

Tha defined benafit otdigation is calculatad annually by indepersiant actuaries using the profacted it oredit
methad. The present vale of the detined benetin obigation s derermined by discownting the estimated Tuture cash
ouIflenaes, Liing interes rates of high-uality orparate bonds 1hat ane dencmminated in the cumancy in which ihe
hersafits will be pald, and that have tams O maturity approsimationg to the terms of the miated perdion obligaton

Re-maasuriment gairs and ksses of post-employment benedin obiigations ane recogrised (7 Other Camprhenshe
Incema
Past-serdice costs are recogrised immediately in the income Statement.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
{2} Employee benefits (continued)
(i} Share-based compensation

Thir Corrpany and cortain subsidianes operate equity setthed, shame-based compenmation plan Tor the empleyees of the Group,
Thee fair valkee of the empleyee sorvices meeived in eschange Tor the grant of the sham options & recognised a5 an cxpense in
the Inceame StMsment oved the vesting periods of the grant with a comesponding increase in equty.

The total amount to be expersed over the vesting penod s determined by reference to the far value of the share opbom.
granted ard the rumber ol shars opthons 1o be vested by vesting date, At each reporting date, the Group revees its estimates
al the numbes of share options that ane copctod to wesd. It recognises the impact of the mison of onginal estimates, if any,

in the income Staterent, with 8 comesponding adistment 1o equity, For aptiors granted by the Company o its subsidiaries’
employess, the expanse will be recogised in the subsidianes’ financial statements ower the vesting periods of the grant

Thie procesds recsived nat of any directly attributable tramaction costs ane credited to shane captal when the optons are
[Zoc i

it} Borrawing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost af a qualifying asset if they amo dinctly attributable 1o the acquisition,
comtruction or production of that asset. Borrowing costs e capitalised urtil the assats are substantially completed for their
Infended usa ar saie,

Al other borrowing costs are recognesed In the Income Statement in the pedod they are Inowmed. Bormowing costs consist of
intedest and other costs that the Group and the Comparty incurmed in connecticn with the bomwing of funds.

{9} Property, plant and equipment. and depreciation

Froperty, plant and equipment are stoted at coat bess accumulated depreciation ard accurmsated impairmant losses. Cost
Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acguisstion of the fems. Cost also indladas bormowirg costs inourred for
property, plant and squipment under corstuction This cost of cemain property, plant and eguipment include the cases of
dismaniling. reroval and restocation, the obigaticn of which was incumed a% a consequence of instaling the aswet

Subsequent costs ane inchided in the assets Carmyng Emount of recogaised as a separate asset, a5 appoanate, anly when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will Tiow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, The carrying amownt of the replaced part is devecognsed, Al ather repairs and mantenance are cherged 1o
the Income Slatement during the financial year in which they are incuimed,

Where items of property, plant and equipment are transfamed to the Goup from customers/developars, the fair value of the
anapts transferred is recognised as property, plant and equigirent in the Statemant of Financial Position. Whede the transder is
exchanged for conmection to the retwork and o furthier obligation B requied. the comesponding credit Bs reseme, Whee the
ransfer bs inked o the provsion ol ongoing senaces, the comespanding ety ts defensd income as disclosad In Note 31 and
releatied to the Income Statismisnt owver the exgpected uselul lves of e assets
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(g} Property, plant and equipment, and depieciation (continued)

Inlrastnectule ssets comptise eight components: impounding mserors 150 years, raw water mams 100 years, treabed water
mains 100 years, commamication pipes &0 years, sewers 200 years, sewage pumging stations G0 years, combined sewer
owerfiows D0 years and sea outfalls 60 years

Freehold land and freehold ol palm plantation are not depreciated as they have an infinite ife.

Lo assets (inciuding lexnehaold and) ane presentod a3 a separate cafegoery of assets in the Statement of Financial Posation,
See acoounting policy Mote 2{aajl] 1o the finandal statements on right-of-use assats,

Assets under conatruction are stated at cost and are not depreciated, Upan completion, assets under tanstruction ate
transferred 1o categories of property, plant and equspment depending on nature of assets and depreciation commences when
they are ready for thelr intendad wse,

Depredation on &l other property, plant and equipment s calouated on the straight line basis at rates required 10 waite off the
cost of the poperty, plant and equipment over their estimated useful Hfe. All other property, plant and equipment ane
depreciatied on a straight Bne basis 1o write ol the cost of each asset 1o ity resicus valee over it estimated uselul Fres,
stmmarised as follows-

L]

Buidings 1-10
Leasehold land 1=3
infrastncture & ste faribties 09 - m
Plant & machimery v - 334
Furniture, fisiums & equipiméant 100 - 50
Wiehicles 10 - 33%
Telecommunicatson equipmant Iy - 20

Resadual walue, usetul it and depreciaton method of assets are eviewed at each financlal year end to ensure that the
amount, method and poriod af GoprsiaTion Me Consistont with provious astimates and the capectod patborn of (onSumplicn
ol 1he futre etonomic tere’its embodied in the tems of propeny. plant and aguipment,
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]

{h} Investment properties

Imyerstment properties indude those portors of bulldngs that are held for lang tevm rentid yielts andfor for capital appredatian
and fresheld land andtor Eand unter leases that ts heald for long-term capital appredation of for & curently indeterminate use,
Iryestment peoperthes intude phoperties that ame beng constructed of developed fof future use 8% nvestment properties.

frvestment propertes arme measured inifially at cost and subsequently at falr value with any change themin recognised in
ncome Suatamant far the pedod in which thay anse. Whede thie Tair value of the investmant property under construction i nat
reliably determinablie, the investment property under construction s measured at cost until either its fair value becomes refiably
dietermenable o construction ts complete, whlthever & earien

Ryght-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment properly In acordance with MFRS 140 is presented in the
seatemnent ol Financial Prsition as an imasstment propemy. Sulsequent measamement of the sght-0f-use asse1s 5 consstont
with thora irmeestment progarty oaned by the Group.

Tratvifers are Mace 10 (or Tiom) isesiment propedty only whitn 1hend (5 a change in use, For @ tansted om invesiment
property 10 owner-ocoupied propartyfimentories. the deemed cost for subsaguent accounting (s the fair value at the date of
change in use, If owner-oorupied propesty Becomes an investment peoperty, the Group accounts for such propery in accorance
walth thie polcy stated under property, plant and equipment up 1o the date of change in e,

) Impalrment of non-financlal assets

True carryireg amounts ol avsets are reviewed St eoch reporting date 1o determine whether thee |s any indication of impsement,
W @y such Indication exists. an asser's recoverabie amount ts estimaied to determine the amount of impalment loss,

An imparment boss is recogrised for the amodnt By which the carrying amaunt of the asset estesds its recoverable amount,
Tne recoverable amount Is the higher of @n asset's Talr value bess cost of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpases of
assassng mpairmant, assets ime grouged a1 the lowest levels for which there are soparately dentifiable cash Hown (cash-
generating unets], Mon-finandal assets other than goodwill that suffered impaimment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impainment a1 each reparting date.

An impalrment bass 18 charged o the Income Statement immediately, unless the asset is camed at revalued amount. Any
impairmsent loss of o revalued aset i reated a5 a revahation deoease 10 The extent of prisjously recognised revatuatian
surplus for the sama asset,

Impairmant lasses on goodwdll are pot reversed, In fespect of other assers, any subsaquent intrease in 1he eooverable ameurnt
of an avset is treated as reversal of the presiows mparment loss and (s recognised to the extent of the camying amaunt of the
as3et that would have been determined (net of amortsation and depreciation) had no mpairment koss been recognisad. The
reversal is recognised in the Income Staternant immedately, uiées thi aaset is camed a1 revilued amount, A reversal of an
impaimment loss of a evalued 5set is credited dirac thy 1o revalustion surphes, However, 10 the exfent that an impaimient loss
on the same revalisd #set was previoisly recogrised as an expense in the inceme Statement a reversal of that impalrment
levs B pow pfrweed a4 ncamie i Ehe income Statoment.

ANNMUAL REFOAT 2024 127

389/615



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooood

FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 June 2024

2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(I} Basis of consolidation

Thia consalidated financial statements comprise the financkd statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at the reporting
date. The financa statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financlal statements ae pepaned
for the same neporting date as the Comgany, Cantrol iy achievid when the Group is exposed, of has rights, 1o varisble requrms
from ity irvahvement with the investee and has the albslity ta affect thase returms through (ts poser over the investes.

This Group eentrols an invistes if and only Il the Group has all the fallowing:-

+ Power over the imvestes (L& existing rights that ghée it the curent ability to direct the relevant acthities of the investee)
+  Exposure, or rights, 1o variable returrs from its irsestinent with the invester: and
+  The ablity to use its power over the investes to affect its renems,

Whitn the Group has less than & majorty of the voting rights of an imasties, the Croup corsiders the folloing in assessing
whather or not the Group's voting rghts in an investes are sulfficient to give it power owr the imestes:-

+  The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vole holders af the investee;
+  Fights arising from other contractual arrangements, and
= The Group's vobing rights and potental voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it confrob an investes i facts and drcemstances indcate that thare are changes to one
or mire ol fhe three elements of contral. Consokdation af a subsldiary Beging when the Group oblaing coniral o the
subtsidiony and ceases whin the Group loses control of the subsadiary. Assets, labilities, intome and expensas of & subsidary
acquired or disposed of dusing the year are included in the consoidated financial statements from the date the Group gaims
control wntil the date the Group ceases to cantnal the subsidiary.

Income Statement and each component of other comprehensive Income are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of
the Growp and to the nan-controlling (mterests: even if this results in the non-contraliing interests having a deficit balance.
When recessany. affustments ae made o the finarcial statements of sutsidures 1o being their accouning policies inta ine
with the Group's accounting policies. All imra-group assets and labilities, equity, Income, expenses and cash fiows relating to
trarsactions betwesn membess of e Growp are eliminated in ful on conmelidation,

A change In the ocwnership mierest of a subsdiary, without a loss of control, B accounted for as an eguity transaction.  the
Grosup loses contiod vt @ subsadiary, it

= derecogeises the assets (inchuding goodwil) and liablities of the subsidiany;

= derecognises the carrying amaunt of any nan-controling imberests;

+  derecognises the cumudative transtaton differences recarded in equity;

+  recognises the fai value of the consideration received:

*  retoguises the lar value of sy inestment ensned

*  recoghises amy sueplus or defcit in the income Statement; and

= reclassfies the parent's share of components previously recognisad in other compeshensive income 1o the Income
Statement of retained eamings, a5 appropriste, & woulkl be required i the Group had directly deposed of the related asets
ar ek

Aciguisitions of sulsitianes aie sccounted for by aplding the puchase methad. Idemifiable assets acquired and liabilties and
vordlingent lobilities assumed i a business combmation g measued initially of their Tair volues o the scguisition dete.

Adjirstments o those falr yahies relating to previously held interests ae realed & 3 revalsation and recognised in othar
compeehi iy infome,
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
[ii Basis of consolidation {continued)

The cost of a business mombination s meassed a5 the aggregate of the fair values, a1 the date of exchange, of the assets
ghwen. liabllities incurred or assumed, and equity Instruments fssued, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
cotrbnation, Ay excess of the cost of business combmnation over the Groug™s share in tha net Paic valee of the scouined
subsidisny's identifiable assots, liabfities and contingent liabilities i recorded as goodwill in the Statements of Financial Position,
The accountang pobcy for goodwill |s set out in Note 2[a) to the finandal statements. Any excess of the Group's share in the
nel Fair value af the acguired subsidiangs dentifiabl sssens, labilites and contingent lisbdtes over the cost of business
combination s recognised as income in the Income Statement on the date of acquisition. When the Croup acquires a business,
embedded derlvaiives separated from the host contract by the acquiree afe resssessed on acquisition unless the business
comrbination results in a change in e terms of The contrsct that siqrificantly madifies the cosh Flows that would othenwise e
required under the contract.

(k) Transactions with non-contrelling interests

The Croup treats transactions with non-controling interests as fransactions with eouty owness of the Crowp, For purchases
fram nar-contralling interests, the ditference betwesn any comndideration pad and the relevant shanes squiced ol 1he chrrying
value of net assets of the subsedary s recorded In equity. Gains or losses on disposals 1o non-controfling interests are also
recorded in equity.

il investment in subsidiaries
A sutmbdiony s an entity cver which the Group has ol the Tollowdg:-

Power aver the isesten (Le existing rights that give it the cument ability 1o direct the relevant activities of the investeel
= Experre, or rights, to varlable ratuns from its investmont with the investes: snd
«  The ability 1o e its power over the investee 1o affect its returms.

I the Company's separate financial statements, imvestments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less accumubated
impairment fosses, On disposal of investments in subsidiares, the difference between disposal proceeds and the camying
amaunts of the imesiments afg recoghised in the Intame Statement,

[m} Investment in associates

Aesociates are entities in which the Croup Is in a position o exertise significant influence tut which Is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to partidpate in the financial and cperating policy declssons, but
nat gortmal aver thelr policies. The exstence and effect of polentsl voting Sghts that are currently esertisabile or corvertible
arme camsidered when assessing whether the Group has significant influence over anather entity,

resimenis in associatos are accourited Tod in the comaobdmed fnancisl satements wing the squity method of atcourting
and ane initially recognised ot cost. The Group's mwestment in assoclafes includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
atcumalated impalrmant loss.

In agiplying the eguity method of accounting, the Croup’s share of its associates” post-acquisition profits or losses are recognised
In the Income Statement and |os share of post -acquisition movements in resenves s recognised In other comgrehensive incomse,
The cumulative post-acquisition mevements and datributions receved from the assocates are adiustod aganst the carmying
amoun of the investment. When the Group's sharme of [osses in an essociate equals of exceeds its interest in the assodates,
Including any other unsecured obiigations, the Group does nat recognise further basses, unlass it has obligations or has made
payments on behall af the associate,
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{m) Investment in associates (continued)

The mest recent available sudited finaencial statements of the associates are used by the Group in applying the equity method,
iwhere the dates of the audited financal statements used are not coterminous with thase of the Group, the share of results s
mrived at from the last audited fingncial statements available and management financial statements 1o the end of the
accounting period. Whare necessary, sdjustments are made to the financial statements of associates to ersure consistency of
aocounting polices with thaose of the Gooup,

Unrealsed gains on transactions betwesn the Group and its associates are eiminated to the extent of the Group’s mterest in the
assodates. Uinreabsag krsses are also eliminated uniess the transaction provides evidence af an impainment of the asset fransfered.

Gains ard losses arisng from partial dspasals or dilutions in investments in assoclates are recogaised In the Income Statement,

Irndestinaits i assoclkates ane deivoogiisad whien the Group kobes sgrdficant irkence, Aoy oetaned iemnst in e entty i
remeasured at i1s Tair value, The difference between the carying amount of the elained irvestment o1 the date when
shgnificant lifusnce s lost il b Talr vabue bs recogribsed inthe income Statemsat

In the Company™s separgte linanoal statements, investments in associates are stated #1 cost less accumulated impalrment
losses. On drsposal of Imvestments in ssociates. the difference between despusal proceeds amd the carmylng amounts of the
IS TS are Fecogrised i thie Income SLatemenl.

{n} joint arrangements

A jolnt arangement s an arrangement of which them s contractually agreed sharing of controd by the Group with one of moe
paities, where declsicns about (e relevant acthvities relating o the [mnt armangement reguire wnanimows corsent of the
[ty shvarineg Cunitrol Thie chissiloation of @ joint arrarmgesment o5 4 joint opetation o a oint ventui depencs upon T ights
and abfigations of the parties to the amangenent. A joint venture |s 4 pint arangement wherety the point venturers have
righits 1o the et assets of the aRngement A [dnt operdtion |s a joint anangement wherely the |ont operators hiae lghis
Bo e assets and abligaticens for the Balalities, melating To The arangement

Joint ventures
The Group's Intedests in jolint ventwes are acoounted for by the eguity method of accounting based oh the audited financial
statetmets of the jolt ventures made up o the end of the Neanclal year,

Equity atcownting Frvolves recognising in the lncome Statement the Group's share ol the results of joint ventures for the
Minancial year. The Goup's ivestments in goint venues e canled in the Statement of Finanche Position 4t @n amount that
ety its shae of thee net sy of the joint venlures ol e, goodeill on eogabdtion

Uinrisalied gains of transaCtions Detween the Group amd g5 pint veniunes &e esninated 0 e extent of e Groug's Intenes)
i Ehe ol wentures: prreslsed ooses are also eliminatied undiess e trarset on provides evidence on impaimen ol e ased
tramsferred. Where necessary. In applying the equity method, adjestments are made to the financial statements of joint
VETRUNES 10 ensire conssency of accounting polices with those of the Group

In the CompEny's saparate financial statements, iImsastmants 0 joint ventures ae stated 31 cost Bss impalmment lorses

On disposal of such myestments, the differente betwesn net disposal proceeds and thelr camying amounts & intluded In the

Ircome Statament.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
[0} Intangible assets
(i} Contract rights

Contract nghts comprise acquired contracts and rghts 1o comtracts from Business combination. These s amartisoed o
the contractual period on a straight lire basis. See acoounting policy Note 2(11 to the finongial stements on imgairmaent
af non-financal asses

(i) Goodwill

Gocdwill it initially maatuned 21 cost. Follewing the indtial meognition. goodwil i measuned at cost less atcumulated
mpaimment lossos,

For the purpure of impasment testing, goodwill atqueed 15 allocated, from the acquisition dalie, to each of the Group's
cash - generating units that are cxpected ta berefit from the synamies of the combination.

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has Been dlocated i tested for imparment annually ard whenemar there is
an indication that the cash-generating wnit may ba impaired. by comparing the camying amount of the cash-generating
unit, ncluding the allocated goodwiil with the recoverabie amount of the ash-generating unit Whene i reoverable
amaun! of the cash-gensrating unit is kess than the carying amount, an impament foss s ecognised in the income
Statement. Impalrment losses recognised for goodwll are not reversed In subsequent periods.

‘Whene goodwill Forms part of & cmh-generting unit and part of the operation within 1hat cash-generating writ s dispased
af, the goodwil associated with the operation disposed of is included In the carnying amownt of the operation when
detenrining the gan or koss on dsposal of the operation, Goodeill dsposed of in this croumstance B measured based on
T Fedathe fair values of the aperatians dispoted of and the portion of the tash-generating LRt relaned.

[iil) Software assets

Software assets (omprise in-house computer software development and specalsed computer software, Saftware assats
are amortised over 310 10 years. See accounting pelicy Note 24) to the linancial statements on imgairrnent af nen-
fanancial assets.

Sof tene- as-a-service ATAINQEMENDS ane Service cantracts providing the fght to access the doud providers application
software aver the contract period. Costs incumed ta configure or customise, and the ongoing fees to abtain atcess to the
cloud provider's application sofveare, are recognised as operating cxpenses when the sendces are recefved, Some of the
coats incuimed relate to the devrioprment of software code that enkances of modifies, or creates additional capability 10,
axisting on-premise systems and meets the definition of, and the recognition criteria for, an intangibie assel.

[lw) Service license

Bepresants cast of sendce Brense to teat raw water, supply and distributs the treated water ta the consumers. The
license is consdened to have ndefinte useful Be as thene s no foresecable it to the perod over which the lcense is
axpecied to generata new cash inflows to the Group, Accordingy, the senvdce licarse is not amortised but tested for
impabmment annually ar more frequently, when indcators of impaiment are identified,
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(o) Intangible assets [continued)
{v) Others
o)  Customer fists

Tustomes lists e amartisod over th contrachual period o0 3 straight ing basi Sen acoounting policy Mote 2[) 1
the Tinancial stiemonts on mpalrment al nen-finanoal J55ts.

8)  Quany rights

Quarry rights are amertised on the straight line basis over the kease term less impaement losses. The policy for the
recognition and reaswement of impakment lossas is in accordance with Mote 2(1) to the financlal statements.

{p} Financial assats
{i} nitial recognition and measurement

Financia assets ane recogmised in the Stazement of Financial Posion when, and ondy when, the Group and 1he Company
berame a party o tha cantractisal provisiors of the mstrisment,

Finarcial assets are classiliod, at ink recognition, snd subsequently measuned at amoiisgd cost, Tak vake theough ather
tomprehensive intoma (MO0, or fair value through profit o less,

Thie classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends an 1o Tinancial asset's contractudl cash Tiow
tharacteristics and the Group™ and the Company’s business model for managing them, With the exception of trade
recetvables that do not contain a significant financing compaonent or for which the Group and the Compary have appled
thir practical expedient, the Group and the Company inftialy measune a financial asset at its fair vahee plus, in e case of
a Financial assat not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
significant financing component ar for which the Group and the Company have applied the practical expedient are
measured 3 the trarsttion prico determined whdar MFRS 15,

Inorder for a financial asset 1o be dassified and measured a1 amartied cost o fair walue throogh OCL |8 needs to give rise
to cash Haws that are sololy payments of phincipal and mlarect ("SPAT) an the pincipal ameunt outstanding. This
asspssmmenl is refarred as the SPRI test and is parformed at an instrumant level.

Tha Greagy's and tha Campany's business mode| for managing Imancial 3ssets relers 1a haw it manages (s financlal sses
inarder 1o genarate cash flows. Tha business model detemines whathar cash Tlows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the finandal assets, or bath,

Purchases or siles of financlal assets that equire delvery of msets wathin a time frame establshed by requiation or

corvention In the market place (regular way trades) are recogpnised on the trade date, e the date that the Group and the
Camgany commit to purchaxse of soll the ssel
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [CONTINUED]
{p) Financial assets (continued)
(i} Subsequent measurement
For purperses of subsequent meawremnent, financial assets ore clssified in four coteganes:

«  Financad assefs at amoftised cost (dolt Instruments);

= Financial assets at lai value theough OC) with recycling of cumadative gains and losses [debit nstrmems ]

= Firancial assets designated at fair value through OC1 with no recyding of cumulative gains and ‘osses upon
derecogietion (equlty instrumants): and

= Financial astots at fair value through pralit or ks

{a) Finanoal assets of omortised cost (debE nstramonts)

This category is the mast relevant 1o the Group and the Company, The Group and the Company measse fimancial
asrts At amortised cost if both of the follewng conditians are mot-

- Tha financial asset s heid within a business madal with the objective to hold firanclal assets in order to coliect
camtractual Cash fhows: and

= Tha contractual tems of the finandal asset goee rise on spacified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the
principal amount autstanding,

Francal msets at amortised cost are subsequantsy measured udng the affective intarest rate (TEIRT) mathad and
@ subject to impairment, Gains and kosses are reoognised in the Intome Statement when the asset is demoognised,
modifind or impaired.

The Group's and the Compamy's financial ascets at amortised cost include cash and cash equivalents. recetvables and
amounts dus from asoclates and joint veniures included under other nen-cuarent finandal assets.

b Finanool essets designated ai for volue throogh O (equity nstruments)
Upan intal recognition, the Group amnd the Company can elect to dlassify mevocably (ts equity investmants as
equity instruments designated at fair value through 001 when they meet the definition of equity urder MFRS 132
Fnancial instruments: Presontation and are not bald for trackng. Th clessification s cotémmined an an instrumeant:
by -irstrumend basis,

Gans and |psses on these financial assets are rver recyelod 10 the Ingami Statement. Davidends are recognised as
othar income in the Income Statement when the right of payment has boen established, except when the Group
and the Company benefits from such proceeds 6 a recovery of part of the oost of the financlal sset, in which casa,
suth gaird e recanded in OCL Equlty instruments designated at Rl value theolugh 00 are nat subject 1o inpaliment
wSESMent,

The Group and the Campany dected 1o classity irpvocably its non ted cquty imesTmens under this caregony.
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{p) Financial assets {continued)
{li} Subsequent measurement (continued)
fe}  Fanancia! assets at fair value fhough profit or ks

Fimancial assets at fair value theough pofit or s indude financial assets held for trading, financial assols
desmgnated upen inlilal rocognition at fair value 1hrough profit or less. or financal assets mandatorny required to be
maasured at fair value. Financial assels are dassified as held for trading o they are acquived for the purpose of
salling o repurchasing In e near term. Dedvatives, including separated embodded denvatives, are also dassiied
a5 held fior trading unlcss thoy ane dasignoted o affedive hodging instruments. Financial assats with cash fows
that ano not 559 are dassied and measwed at fair value thowgh profit or loss, imespective of the husness model
Hanwithstanding the criteria for deobt instruments to be dassified at amortised cost ar at falr vakue through OCL as
described above, debl matruments may be designated o1 Tair value thraugh peafit or lass on initial recognition it
doing 30 eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch

Financial assets at far value teough profit o loss are caried in the Stalement of Financlal Pesitian at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the income Statement.

This categary includles derivativie instruments and Bsted equity imvestments which the Croup and the Company had
nat brevocably elected to dassity @t far value throwgh DL Deddends on equity imestments e ako recognised as
other imeome in the incone Statement whena the fght of payment has been estabished,

A derivative embeddad in a hybeid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separsted from the host
ard acoounted for &5 a separate derhatve il the economic charactenistics and isks are nal dosely related to the
hadl; & sepatale instiument with thie same tesms as the embedded dedivative woull mest the dofinitian of a
dervative; and the hybid contract |5 not measured at Fair value through profit or loss. Embedded dervatives are
measined a1 far value with changes in faer value recognised i the Income Statement. Reassessment only ooours il
there is either a change in the terms of B contract that significantly modifies the cash Nows that would otberwise
e required or a reclxssification of a finandal asset out of the fair value through profit o loss category,

A derivative embedded within  hybrid contract containing a finaicial asset hast is mof sccounted for separately. Thie
linanclal asset host tocgether with the embedded derivative & requined 1o be dassified n iis entiiety & a financal
assat at falr wadue Hrough profit o kss

{iii} Derecognition
A Financial asset [or, where applicablie, o part of 4 finandal asset or part of a group of smilar financial assets) s primany
derecognised {ie. removed from the Statements af Financial Pashion] when -
= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have axpired: or

The Growp amd The Company have transhemes s dghts 1o recewe cash Tiows from the 05581 of has assumed an
obligation to pay the ecelved cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass- through'’
amangement; and either (3] the Gloup and the Compary have transfered substantlally all the risks and rewards of the
assat, of (B the Croup and the Company have melther ransferred nor retained sulstantially all the rsks and rewards
of the msel, but has sransferred control of the asset,
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
{p) Financial assets [continued)
{iil} Derecognition [continued)

‘Whin the Group and the Company have trondered thes rghits 1o recedan cash flews from an asset o has entened info a
pass thrugh amangemaent, they ovaliates i, and to what extent, they have etained the risks and mewards of ownership,
‘when they have nefther mansfemes nor retained substantally o of the ks and rewards of the asset, nor transfermed
control of the gsset the Group and the Comparny continues to recogrsss the translerrod asset to the extent of (i3 continuing
imvolvement. In that case, the Group and the Company atso recognises an assoclated Rability. The framsfemed asset and the
assoclated Rabiity are measued on a basts that reflects the nghts and obigations that the Group anc the Company have
retainid,

Cartinuing imvolvement that takes the foom of a guarantes cvar the transfermed asset Is maaswed at the lower of the
ofginal cierying amount of the et and (he masmum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company could be
required 1o repay.

{a} Impalrment of financial assets

The Group and the Company recognise an allwance for espected credit sses [TEOLSY for &l cebt instruments not held at fair
walue through profie o loss. ECLS are based on the difference botwesn the contractual cash fiows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash fiows that the Group and the Company expect to recelve, descounted at an approoemation of the onginal
effectivieintenest rate, Tha expected cash Mows wall inlude cash Nows Trom the sale of collateral hedd ar other creckt snhandements
1hat are integral bo the contractual ferms.

ECLs are recogrised in Dwo siages For credl exposunes for whch thede has not been a significant increase in credi risk since
initial recognition,. ECLs ate prosded fof oredit lodsis that fésult from default events that ame passdls within the noext 12-manths
(" 12-mainth ECLT), For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in ored t nisk since inftizl recognition,
a loss allawance b required for credit losses. expected over the remaining Me of the exposure, srespactie of the tming of the
default ("a lifetime ECL")

For trade meoehvables and contract assets, the Group and the Company apply & Simplified approach in caicuiating ETLS. Theref one,
the Group and thie Company o not track changes m ooedit sk but imtead recognise & loss sllowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, The Group and the Company have sstablished a Mosvision matix that ks based on thesr hetovical credit loss
expetience, adjiusted fon Torwand-lookng Tactors specific o ihe delton and the ecominc sndonmesit

Thie Group and the Company tormsider 2 linendal asset in default when conractusl payments ae 90 deys past due. However, in
celain Cane, the Gooup ard U Compainy mady dlso comsider a Mnendal asset 1o be in defsill when nternal o extemal fiformation
Irmfcates thal Hue Group and the Gorpany is unlkety 1o eceive T oulstording controctud amosmis in Tull belom tekig nto
arcounl any credit enbancements held by de Goug and the Company, A financial ssset b written off wien there s mo ressoabie
RXPECIAG0N Of erovering Thit conire fual cash fows

Funther disclosures teating to inpamient of financial assets e ako proviced in the: Tollowing nobes:-

Hote
Trade arud plher recetvailes 22
Finar'cial iisk management £ li]
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{r} Contract cost assets

The Group capitalisas sales commissions as costs 10 obtain a contract with a ountomer when they ane incremantal and expachisg
to b recoverad over more than a wear, The Group expacts to recover thesa costs in the futwre through telecommunication
services revermas eamied from the customer. The Group alia coprtalises the expendiune on asaets sich o water malns'sesens of
niw conniections refating to contracts as they are incurred o fulfil the contract and ane expected to be received over more than
one year,

Sales commesslons are amortised on a straight kne basls over the term of the specific contract to which the cost relates to.
Amortisation of contract costs are included as part of direct cost within “Cost of sales” in the Income Statement. While, the
CApErT TG Of a5 ane Weatid a4 oot of sehes whan the contract is complofe.

Al IpETNEnt W8S is TeCognised 10 the hoome Stlement 10 the extent that the canying amount of the conta (ost assets
reognied excisls Bue remainng amou of consdenations et the Groug expects 10 oo Tor e spailic conbact that e
tost Fekates to less additional costs requied 10 complels the specilic comtract,

(s} Contract assets and llabilities

Contract asset i the rightt to consideration in exchange for goods and servces that the Croup has transfered to a customer. i
the Group transfers goods or services o a customer bofose the custome© pays cormidenation o bifono payment is due, a contrad
asset i recognised Tor the earmed comsideration that s corditional. Contract assets ane subject 1o impaimment assessment based
oy T ECL modkel

Corract kebiity |s the unsatisfed obligation by the Group to transfer goods or services to a customes for wikch the Group has
recetvir] conshdeiation (of an amount of cormsderation s dus) from e custoimer. f & cusionss pays comideration befors e
Gresap translors goods or seoioes o e customes, 8 contrect Labiily & mecogiisid wihisn U payiment is mode o Be payrmien s
due {whichever is earlier), Contract llabilites are recognsed @ revenue wihen the Group performs the servces under the contract.

(t} Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities

Dwstivcativeied, @re initiaBy recogrised at fair value on the date & derivative contract is entered into and are subreduently re-measuned
a1 their fair value. The method of recogniseng the mesulting gain or lass depends on whother the detivatime is designated as a
hedging mstrument, and il so, the nature of e tem belng hedged, The Goup designates cenain dervatives as enhen-

[} Hadges of the fair value of recognised assets or Babilities or a fin commitment (Fair valua hedge): or
[§) Headges of @ ret investment in a foresgn operation.

The Group dotumants at the inception of the transaction The relaticnship between hedging instruments and hedged items, o woll

a3 Its risk management objectves and strateqy for undertaking various hedgng transactions, The Group also documents its
assesament, bedh at hedge inception snd on an ongoing bags, of whether the deifaties that see e in hedgng trarsac tiom
are highly effective in offsetting chaoges in falr values or cah Piows of hedged tem,
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
{t} Derivatives finandcial instruments and hedging activities {continued)

Thie fair values of various dervative instruments used for hedging puposes are disclosed in Mote 23 Moverrents on the hedging
resanag in other comprehersive income are shown in Note 300 The full fair value of 2 hedging derfvative & classified a5 a non:
curnefid gsat of Rability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item & more fan 12 mohths, snd &0 cutrenl st of llability
when the remaining maturity of the hedgad item is less than 12 manths, The fair value of the desivatives i clssified a5 4 current
asset of hability,

(i} Fair value hedge

Changies in the fair value of derivatives that ame designated and qualify os Tair value hedgos are recordid in ths incoma
Staternent bogether with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liabilty that are attributable to the hedged
rlske The Grown only apples far value hedge accounting for hedgng fixed nterest risk on borrewings. Thi gain of loss relating
1o the effective portion of inberest rate ywiss. bidging Thad rate borrowings i mecoagnised in profil or loss within Tinance
coats”, The gain or loss relating to the ineffactive portion is recognised in the income Statemsant within ‘ather gaimJ(lasses)
- ner, Changes in the fair vaiue of the hedge Tixed rate Domowings attributable To interes? rate risc are recogrised In the
I ity SLAEGENERTL wilfin Tinafce o815

If the hedge no konger meets the critera for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the camdng amount of a hedged item lor
which the effective interast method is used B amanised 1o the rcame Statement aver the period 1 maturity,

(H) Hedges of net investment in forelgn operations

The Group apoles hedge accounting by designating a non-dertvative financial labllity as a hadge of a net imvestment in the
foreign operation, with the comespanding foresgn curency differences artsing on the trenslation being reclassified 1o the
Group's Toreign cummendy ranslaton reserve. To the extent that the hedge & ineffective, such diffenerces she nacognised in
the Income Statement, When the hedged net investmsant ks disposed of, the relevant amaunt in the foreign curmency
transiation reserve & transfemed to the Income Statement as part al the galn or loss on dspersal

Thie Group uses loans as hedge of its exposure 10 foreign exchange risk on its investments in foreign sutskdanies, The Group
documisnts 3t the nception of e trarsaction the relatonship between hedging instrumens and hedged tems s wel as
it risk manageteent olbjectives ared strategy Too undertaking vamous hedgig trameactions. The Group s documents, it
assessment. both at hedge inception and on an ongoing bass, whether the hedging relathonships are highly effective in
ol fsetting chenges in falr values of thes hedged tems,
[u] Inventories
Irmyentones ane statoed ot the lower of cost and net realisabie vabie,

Cont i dmtemined on the wighted svorage of TS in, Tirst out bass and ncludes the cost of purchase snd o1her costs inturred
irt bringing the imsentories to thelr present lacation and condition,

The cost af lintshed goods ard wark-in-progress comists of raw matedals, direct labour, other direct thasges and an apjroprlate
proportion of production overbeads (besad on nomal operating capacity).
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{u) Inventories (continued)

Fue! and diesed oil held for generation of electricty ame not written down below cost if the eledricty generated s expecied to
ohiain a grorss margin at or above cost. Cost for thes puipese includes the applicable costs required o enable the fusl and diesed
oil to b wsird fof the geperation of secincity,

Irwvertores for ol trading are acguined with the purpose of selling in the near future and generating a prafit from Huctuations
in prite. These ane at falf value less codts 1o sold, with chang e in fair value less costs 1o sell recogiiaed in the Intome
Statements in the period of change.

Thir cost of properties held for sale comprises costs associabed wath the scquisition of land, dmect casts and appropriate
praportions of common costs.

Nk realisalile value is e estimated sadling pice in the oidinary Course of Dusiness, ks the costs of compebon and applicaldis
virlabike sefing mpermes

(v) Property development costs

Property development casts compeise all costs that are directly attibutable to development activities or that can be allocated
o 4 feasonablie bisis 1o wich actvities. Property development costs ane recognised wien indurmed,

Whien this Tinancial colcome of the development activity can be refaliy estimated and the sake of the deselopment il is
atfectod, property doveloprent revenue shd eapenues am recogrised i the Income Statement by efeence to the stage of
conpetion of development activitles at the reporting date In accordence with MFRS 15 “Revenue from Cantracts with
Custoiness”, Thi stage of completion ts detemmned by the properion that property deyeopmertt costs ncumed for work
peerPoatrni) b0t bie the estimatind 1otal propeoty development costs.

where the linanclal eutcame of & development activity cannot be relably estimated, property developiment ievenue &
recognsed only 1o the extent of propety development costs inturmed that B probable will be recoverable, and property
development costs on properties soid ane recognised as an expense in the petiod in which they are incumed.

Anyy expectied loms on b deveopmaent poject, nchiding costs 1o be ncurmed awe the defecrs laliling perod, is recognised as an
expense immediately,

Proparty development Corsts mal recognised & an experse are recognised a5 an assel, which B maaswrad a1 the lower ol oot
and nizt redlisabie value

Whers risversm recognisad in the intome Statement exceed billings 1o purthaders, the balkice i Shown a5 Contract isses
[within cument assets). Whene bilings 1o purdhasers axceed revenus recognised in the income Statement. the balanca is shiwn
a5 contract labslities (withan cument abnines).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
[w] Treasury shares
‘where the Company purchases its own shares, the consideration paid, induding ary diectly attributadle incremental costs. net

aof tax, s deducted from equity attributable to the cemers of the Company as treasury shares uniil the shares are cancelled or
e,

Shiould such shanes be cancelled, the costs of the treasury shares ane applied in the reduction of the profits otherwse avallable
for distribution a3 diddends. Should such shares are subsequontly nefssusd, any consideration meceiad, net of any drectly
attributable acremental transaction costs and the related tax effects, Is induded in equity attributable to the owners of the
Company.

‘Where the treasuny shares are subsequently distributed as dvidends to shareholders, the costs of the treasury shares on the
onginal puechase are apglied in (he redu tion of the funds otheowise available for dstribation as dividends.

[x) Deferred income

Thie deformed ncome & |n telation 10 Assots transfoermed rom customers in respedt all services which a'e yot 1o be provideed.
Such amownts e recceded a3 labiities in the Statement of Finenclal Positon and are amorised to the income Statament over
the expectad useful econams: ives of the related assets.

ly) Bondsand borrowings

Bands and borrowangs are inftially recognised based on the proceeds received, net of framaction costs incumed. Subsequently,
bonds and borowings are stated at amonised cost using the effective vield method: any difference batween procesds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value (s ecognised in the hcome Statement aver the penod of the bands and
besrowdngs.

{z) Leases
(i} Accounting by lessee
Leases are rocogrised as right-of wse (ROWUY assots and a corresponding lability at tho date on which the leased assat is
avallable for use by the Group and the Company {1.e. the commencement data).

Contracts may contain both lease and ronease components, The Group and the Company allocates the consideration in
the cortiact to the kease and non-iesse components based an thelr relative stand-afone prices. However, for leases of
properties for which the Croup and the Compary ant 4 lessee, i has elected the practical expedient pravided in MFRS 16
not 1o separate lease and non-lease components. Both components ae actounted for a5 a single leaso tomponent and
payments for both components are inchuded n the messurement of lease liablity

{a  leose herm

In determingng thie lease tenm, the Group and the Company consider all facts and crcumstanoes that create an
BLONOTEC incamtve to exemise an axtension option, of not 10 exarcise a Temination aption. Extansion optors. (o
periods after termination options) are only Included in the lease torm if the lease |s reasonably certasn to be extended
foe nat 1o be terminated ).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{z) Leases (continued)
{i) Accounting by lessee [continued)
{a) Leoie torm (contnued)

The Graup and the Company reassess the lease Term upon the oocusrence af a sgnificant event or change in
cifcumitances that i< within the control of the Croug and the Company and alfects whether the Group and the
Comparry ane teasonably certain to exencse an opton not previously included in the determination of lease term, or
ot to exerclee an option prsdously incuded in the determination of |Ease terme A reshon in lease term esults i
remeanurement of the kease Eabilities. See Note 2(zH)d) on rexssessment of kease labilities,

{B)  AOLI asgors
ROU assets are initialy measured at cost comorsing the falowing:-

= The amount of the infilal measurement of lease dabilitg

o ATy laase payments race at of befoe e commencement date ie8ss any leass Nentive received;
= Any initial direct ¢osts and

+  Decommissioning or restoration costs.

ROU pssets that are nob iveestment propedtes are sulbsequanthy measurad a7 cost eds actumulated depreciation
and imparment kass (i any ) The ROU assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's usetul ife and
tne lease taim on a straight-ine bass, if the Group ard the Comgpany are reasonasbily certain to exercise 2 purchase
option. thie ROU assets ang deprociated avier the undidying assets wseiul ife. In addidion, The ROU assets ane
adusted for certain maasuramant of the lexe labilites

T Craup and the Campany prosent RO asssts within which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented iF they were owned, those assets are presented in the Statement of Financial Posttion as property. plant
ard equipment. ROU assets ae presented a5 a saparate line fem in the Statement of Finanoa Position escept for
Ak,

e}  Loose hobidies

Leaze fiabilties ara initially mesisunad at the present vakie of the paymeants that ara not paid at that date, The lase
payments include the following:-

+  Fixed payments (acheling in-sutmtance fiaed paymenis), kess any lease noentive receivaile

*  Waizble ledsi payinenis thal s based o an indes of & rate, inisly measured wsing the ndex of rate as at the
corimencerment date:

+  The exercise price of a purchase and extension option If the Group and the Company ame ressonably certain to
exereEis That optiens: and

+  Payments af penalties for tetminating he keace, I the kease term refiects the Group and the Compamy exefoling
that option.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
{z) Leases (continued)
(i} Accounting by lessee [continued)
{e)  Lease Nabilities (ronfinued)

Lease payments e dsoounted wsing the interest eare implcit in the lease. If that rate cannat be readily detormined,
which & generally the case for leases in the Greup and the Company, e lesses’s intremental barrowing i used. This
is the rate that the individual kessee woukd have 1o pay 1o Domow the funds necessary 1o obtain an asset of similar
vaiue 1o the ROU In a similar economic ewirnnment with similar term. security and conditons.

Leass payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Income
Statement aver the leate poriod so as 19 produce a constant pedadic rate af inonest an the remaining balance af
the lability for each pariod,

Vanable lease paymant that depond on sakes ae recognised in the ncome Statement in the period nowhich the
condtian that trgger 1hote payments oo

The Group and the Company present lease Kabilities as a separate |ine (tem in the Statement of Financial Position
Interest expense on the lease Eability is presonted within the finence cost in the Ingome Statemeant.

() Revssessmont of lease Gobiitios

The Group ard the Company afe also exposed to patential fubure increases in variable Base paements that depend
o an ireek or rate, which are oot nchedod in the kase lablity s they ke sffec. When adustments 1o lese
paymenits biked an an index of fafe take stfect, the leata lability i remaasured and adgusted againsg tha ROU
B55ETS

Laase Eabilities ae abo remeasured i thare is a change in the Group’s and the Company's assessment of whether it
will exerise an extension gption and there are modifications n the scope or the consideration of the lease that was
nol part of he ofiginad [erm,

{m)  Shovt-term ienses and feases of ow valie o5sers

Shart-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 manths or less. Low-valug assets comprise |1 equpment and
small items of office furnfure. Peyments associated with shor-tenm leases of equipment and Al leases of lw-valee
FSETS AN maogrised on a seraight-line Dases a5 an Bapense in the ncome Siatemant,
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(z) Leases {continued)
{ii} Accounting by lessor

As b bessod, the Group and the Company diterming at kease mception whether eoch lease & a linance loase or an operating
lease. To classify each lease, the Group and the Company make an overall assessmant of whether the lease transfors
substanitialy all of the risks and rewards incidental to 1he owrership of the underlying asset 1o the kesses. AL paet of thes
pasessment, the Group and the Lompany consider certaln indicators such od whether the kease is for the maps part of the
econamic fife of the asset.

&) Finance lodies

T Group clrvsifies 2 wago a5 3 financo loase [ the lease transfers substaniially all the sk and rewards noidental
to eamarship of an undadyng asset 1o the leasee.

The Growp cemeoognses thie undetying asset and recognises a rocehabie a1 an amount egqual to the nel Bvestment
B a finance ase. Not mwtmant in a fnance ase i meatared a1 an amaunt equal to the wm of tha pésent value
of lzase payments from lessee and the unguaranteed resdual value af the underlying asset. inltial direct costs are
also included in the indtlal measurement of the net investment. The ret vestments is subfect to MFRS 3 impadrment
{refer 1o Nate 2{g) on impairmant of Fnancial assats) kn addition, the Group reviewss reqularly the estsmated
umguaanteed residua valua,

Lowse income 15 recognked over the fonm of the kease wsing the net nwestment method o as to ofloct a corstant
pariodic rate of retum, The Group mevises the lease intome allocation if there is a reduction in the estmated
unigueanteed residusl value,

(B} Operating legses
The Group classifies a lease & an oparating leasa if the lease does not transter substantially all the risks and rewards
ncidental to cwnership of an underying asset to the essea

The Growp recogrines lease paymants recevad urder operating lease as lease income on a siraight-Ina basls ouer
tha lease teem.

Rental income on aperating leases & recognised ovar tha term of the lease on a straight-line basks. Rental income s
showwn niet of rebates and discounts. Rental income Includes base rent, percentage rent and other rent related
incame from tenants. Baso ront is recognised on a straéght-line basks ever this lease term. Parcentage sont &
recogrised based on sales reported by tenants. When the Group provides incentives o rebates 1o the tenants, the
cost of incenthes of rebates i capitalised 25 dedemad lease Incentve and is recognisad over the lease term, on a
straight-ling bass as @ reduction of ental icame. itial @neet cost mcurred by the Group i negatiating and
arranging an operating keas B ooognned as an asset (deferad lease incantive) snd amoitised over the lswe tem
on the same basks as the rental income.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(2} Lesses {eontinued)
(i} Accounting by lessor [continued)
fe)  Sublease cassificoion
Unil thie financial year ended 30 june 019, whin the Groep was an intemediate iessor, he sullleases were
classfied as finance or operating keases by reference 1o the underiyng assets.

Fram 1 july 20019, when the Group i an silermediate kessorn, it assesses the lease clossifcaton of o subleoe with
reference o the ROU susot arsing from the head feaso, not with reforence to the undarhdng as<et if 4 head loare
Is short-term lease to which the Group apples the exemption described above, then it classéies the sublease as an
aperating lease.
(i) Sewacifing kst (v ro- e se COMmponsYils
if an arrangement contairs lease and non-lease companants, the Group and the Company allecate the consideration
In the contract to the leae and pan-lesse components based on the stend-alone selling prices in accordance with
this principhas in MFRS 15 "Revenus fram Contracts with Customers™.
{aa) Grants and contributions
Caants and contributions am bonslits recovid 0 espoct of spedilic qualfying sxparditure, imscmant tax cradits and
Benedits i respect af qualfyng propey, plant and equipment. These are released 1o the Income Statement over thie expected
BCOnNomic Lsetul Ives of the related asssets.
{ab) Financial Rabilities
(i} Initial recognition and measurement
Fimancial (labliives are dassitied, at inital recognition, as financial Kabliities at falr value theough predit or loss ar at
amartised D0s% a5 apgroonate.

Thet Gralg's and tha Compsany's Tinancial liabilitles moude trade and other prabkes. smounts due to related parties, bonds
and boerowings, leare Babisties and defative Tinancial insiruments,

(i} Subseguent measurement
The measunement af Tnanclal liabaithes depends on thelr classdication, a5 desoribed belowe-

fa)  Fnancrl Frbafies of fow value through mofit o ioss

Finamcial llabilities. at fair value thiowsgh profit of foss include financial llabdities held for rading and financial §ahilities
desigrated upon nitlal recognition as a1 falr vake through profit or loss.

Financial llabites are dassified as held for trading If they are incurred for the punpose of repuichasing in the near
ferm. This categorny @so Includes dervative Financial mstruments entered into by the Group that are not designated
#5 hedging nstruments in hedge refationships as dafined by MFRS 9, Separated embeddad derivatives are ako
tlassfied a5 held for tading unless they are designated a5 elfective hedging instnements,

Gains or losses on atilties held for trading are recognised in the income Statement.

Finarcial liabdities dessgnated upan infial recognition a1 Fair valoe thioogh prodit of loss e designanaed at tha initial
date of recognitien, and only if the cetena i MERS 9 are satstied,
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2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(ab) Financisl labilities (eontinued)
{li} Subsequent measurement [continued)
B} Financi lobiines ot amortsed cost

This i5 the categary mast relevant to the Group and The Comgany, Atter initial recognition, all linancial Rabilities ane
subsequently measurad at amartised cost using the EIR method Cains and losses are recognisad in the income
Statement when the llabiities are derecognised as well as through the ER amonisation process.

Amortised cost s cilodated by taking into scoount any discount of premium on acguisition dnd Tees o costs (hat are
an integral part of e ER. Thie EIR amartiation is incuded as Tinaocie costs in e income Statement.

{iil} Derecognitian

A firunclal Hability B dercéognized whon tho obgation under tho kabiity i dischamied or candolled of oxpires. When an
eaditing Financial liatelity i roplacod by ancthor From the same lerder on substantially @iffeent tems, or the Geme of an
paisting Babiny ane substantially maditied. such an exchange or modific aton is treatod as the derecogniton of the algnal
labdry and thie recognition of 2 niw Bability. The ditference n the respoctive carmying amounits |s retognised in the
Incomis Statemant.

[ac) Foreign currency
{ij Group companies
Thie ressitts ared financial position of 40 1re Grou enfites (none of wiioh has he cumency of a8 hyperinfiationany eoonamy) tat
hava a functonal cumency different from the presentaton cumency e ransiatad nio presentaton OETency as foliows:-

= aspds and Hablities for pach staterment of Tinenclal position presented ane tranclated at the closing rate a1 the date
of that statement af financal position

= Income and expences for each income statament ame translated at average emchange rates; and

= almesufting exchange ditferences are recognised as separate components of ather comorehensive income.

On corlication, eachange differentes arising from the franslation of the net imestment in foeign opecations are taken tn
Shureholders aquily. IWNen @ Tonsgn operation is parmialy spoted of of soilc, exchangs dif oVencos Uhat word moordsd in
Bty are recognsed |0 Ehe noome Statement &% par ol e gan oF oss on disposal.

Goodwil and fa value adjustments aitsing on the acquisition of a foreign entity on ar after L july 2011 are treated a5 assets
ared Habilties of the fonsgn entity and transdated #t the dosing Tate. For acouisition of foreign entities completed prior o
1 puly #0011, goodwill and fak value afustments wontinued (o be recomed at the sschenge rate at the espective date of
aasitions This i in accondanoe to the adoption of MFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Malaysian Finoncial Reparting Stardards™.
(ad) Service concesslon contracts

The Group has enered Mo a number of concession contracts granted by several public sectof custosmens ("granton”). The

charsctersties ol thew contracts vary significantly depending on 1he country and acthity condemed

In order to fall within the scops of toncession contract, a contract must satisfy the follnwdng nao oitena:

= e Qrantod Conviols o Fgulatns what servites This Operaton ISt phovide with the infrastruciune, to wihim (1 must provide
Thim, and &t what pice; and
= the grantor controls the significant residual intenest in the infrastructure at the end of the tenm of the arrangemeant
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
[ad} Service concession contracts (continued)

Such infrastructura |s nat recognised in assets of the aperator as property, plant and equipmant but in financial assets
(“financial asset model”) and/for intangibls assets {Nintangible asser model”) depending on the remuneraton commitments
gven by the: grantor,

(I} intangible asset model

The Grown applies the intangile asset modal whene the oparator 5 gald by the users or where the contession grantor has

net provided a contraciual guarantee in respect of the amount recoverable, The intangible asset comespands to the right
granted by the concession graniar 10 the operato’ to change wiers of the pubic seedce,

Iritangibile a5sets realting fram the application of this pelicy 300 recanded In tha Statement of Financial Pesition undes the
hirading Service Concession Adsets and are amoctised, generally on 8 straight-Bne bas, over the contract teem,

Cash Thws relating to these intangible assets are incluced in net cash generated trom'|used in) operating acthdties in the
Stataimnt of Cash Pl

Hevenue assoclated with this intangible asset model indudes revenue from the corsiruction of the infrastructure on a
percentage of completion basis and opermting roverioe of The infrastictene,

(i) Financlal asset model
The financal asset madel applies when the Grous has an unconditional nght to recekve cash or another finandal asset

trom the granton,

In the case of concession senvices, the Group has such an unconditional night If the grantor contractually guarantees the
payment of amourts specified of determined In the cortracts; or the shartfall, If any, between amounts receved fram
users af the public servion and amounts specified or determined in the contract

Financial assets resutting from the application ol this pelicy ame recorded in the Statement of Financial Pasition under e
heading ‘oporating financial assets’ and recognised &1 amoitined cast.

Casli flonws redating to these operating (mandial assets s included In the st cash generated Tromfused in) opesating
atlivities in the Staement of Cosh Flows.

An lmpalrment koss i recognitsed IF the cairylng amouant ol these assels extesds the fair vali®, & estimated during
npabr lests Fai value Boestimotied besed on the mecoverable smount, colouloted by discowting fubue cash Toes
{walue in use method).

T prartian Tilireg chae wathin less. than one ye is presemtod e Stnemen of Financkd Pesition s Turment apesating
financial assets, while the portion falling duse within more than one year |s presented in the non-cunent heading.

Revenue and finance icome assaciated with this Tinancial asser model include revenus from the construction of the
aparating financial assets on a pecentage of completion bass, operation and malnbenanta revenue; and finance income
At 10 The capital irmaestmant nThe operating fnancial assets.
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FIMANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
{ae)} Financial guarantee
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group and the Company to make specified payments 1o reimbure

tha hoider for a loss it incurs bacawse a specified dedtor falls 10 make payments when due, in atcordance with the terms of a
deb imtrument.

Financial guarantes confracts are recognised as a financlal liability at the time the guarantee is isued. The iablity B inTaly
haisunid a1 Fait sl

The fair value of finandal quarantees ts determined as the present value of the cifference in net cash flows bebween the
contractual payments wnder the debt instrument and the payments that would be meoquired without the quarantee, o the
estimated amaimt that would be payable to a third party far assuming the cbiligations,

{af) Contingent llabilities and contingent assets

The Group and the Company do not recognise a contingent liability but dsclose Its extstence In the financlal statements.
eat gt in A busines combinatan.

A contingent llabdity is a possible obligation that anses from past events whose existence wil be confirmed by uncertatn future
events beyond the control of the Group and the Company of & present obligation that & not ecognived because it is nat
probable that an outfiow of rescurces will be required 2 settle the obligathon. When a change in the probabdity of an outfionw
of BConon; fesouces ofours and the autfio s prebable, 1T will then be recogrisad as 8 provigion

A pontingent asset s a possible asset that arses from past events whose existence will be confimed by uncertain fuiure
#vents beyone the control of the Crougs and the Company, The Group and the Company do nol recagiise contingent aasets
Bt disclosd theit existence where infllows of ecobomic beaelits ane probable, bug not sirteally certabn, When infles of
ELDAOMIC TESOWLES 5 virtually certain, the asset |s recognised

I the acguinition of subsidanes by the Gowp wder @ business combination, the cantingent RBabifties adsemed ame mesasund
Initially at ther fair valua at the acguisition date. inespective of the extent of any non-controlling inlerests

The Graup recognises separately the contingent BalsBties of the acquirees as part of allocating the cost ol & businiess
combinaticn where the fair valees can be measurned redably, Where the fair values cannot be measured relably, the resulting
effect wil be refiactad in the goodwil arising from the acqusitions.

{ag) Offserting finandial instruments

Firancial assety and Babilities se offset and e net amoun] pressnted in the Statement of Fienciel Position sdwn there s
lagally enforceable right 1o offset the recogised amounts and there is an intention to seithe on & et bashs, o realise the assel
and setthke e Babdity simultaneousty. The egaly enforceabie fght must not Le contingent on Tulure evens and musy b
enfotceable in thee nommal course of business and in e event af defaull, imakency or Bankrupicy,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgaments are continually evaluated and are based on histoncat esperience and other factors. including expectations
of Future évents that ane believed 1o be restorable undid the dircumstantes.

The Group and the Comgany make estimates and assumptions concerning the futwre, The resulting acoountng estimates wal, by
el fiom, rarely equal the nelated sctual iesults. Thie eitematis and dssumprions that have a significam sisk of causng & mateiial
adjustiment 10 the carying smounts of assets e labdities within the next finsncial year are discussed below:

{a)} Estimated assessment of goodwill

The Group tests goodwil for impaliment annually. in accordance with (s accounting policy. The recowerable amounts of cash
gererating units have beon determined based on salue-in-uwe and Fair value bess costs of disposal coleulations. Thase
cakculations require the use of significant judgements and estimates &5 set out in Mote 19 1o the financial statements,

(b) Caplialisation of Infrastruciure assets in property. plant and equipment

Due 10 the high value of capital expenditure on infrastructure assets, udgements made on the classification of eapenses as
aperating of capital, And within capital botwoen mamenante and enhancemant, ane ki to the prepatation ol the actaunts.
These juikgements are bazed on engineerng expenence of differentiating between treatment as a repair or a replacement of
an Infrasiructre asset

(e} Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment {"PPE")
The Group dssesses mpakment of thee aswots or cash-generating units [TOURT) whenever events of changes o Groumstanon
Indicate that the carmying amount of an asset or COU may not be recoverable Le. the camying amount of the asset i more than
the fecoverible amount. Recoverable amount 15 medsuned a1 the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal (FVLOD) far
that gssot ar 00U & it value-in-use (VIR Profectod Tuture cash ows used in imgairment testing of the assets or COUS are
basad on Groug's estimates cakulated wsing hestorical, sector and industry trends, general market and economic condithons,
changes in technalogy and other available information

The recoverable amounts of the asset or LU are determined based on ViUl or FYLED calcuiations. These calculations require
thie use of eslimates. The caiculations ars mberently judgemental and susceptible 1o change from peicd 10 period because thisy
resuine thie Groug 10 mate sssurmptions about meamue growth rabe, discount rate aod Beminal mistipke.

The gssuanptions wsed and (esuhs of the mpaime assessinent of PPE are dsciosed Mote 11 1o the financial siatements.
[d} Assessment on allowance for impairment of trade receivables of water and sewerage division in the

United Kingdam

The expected credit loss on outstanding receivables. s a ey estimate under MFRS 9, Tha Group estimate of recoverability by
Qrouping customees into smilar ecanamic profiles and appiying & percentig loss rete based on Torsand-looking judgements on
the fisture collection rates that ane lkely to be achieved, This has induded additionsl considerations af the posaible impact of
the ongoing ecoroma undcertainty an the expected cofliection rates of outstanding ecelvables. A 19 reduction in coliection
rates woukd Increds the expecied oredil s alowance by RMIAT millian.
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EIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTIMG ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS [CONTINUED)
(e) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Thi Group reviews the useful lives of ity FPE at eath reporting date and ary adustments ae made on 2 prospactive basis o
changes in accounting estimates. The useful lives of the PPE are assessed perodically based on the conditions of the
euipment, market conditions. and ather requlatony requinements

{f) Fair value estimates for investment properties

The Group camies nvestment proparties at fair vakee, whch reguires extersive use of accounting estimates and |Ldgemants.
\while ssgrifleant comporents of falr value measurement weare datemmined using verifiabie objgctive svdence, the amount of
changes in fair value would differ iF the Group wses different valuation methodalogies. Ay changes in Tair value of thise
imvestment properties swoud atfect Income Statement, The sensitivity analyss is discloses in Note 13(c] to the financial
STalEmentL

{g) Assumptions used In determining the post-employment benefit plans

The present value of the post-emplayment berelit plans dopends on a number of Taceors that &re determnid on an a2 tusrisl
bashs usng @ number of assumptions. The assumptions. used in determining the net costincome are desciosed in Note 37 o
rhe financial statements. Ary changes in these assumptions will mpact the carrying amownt af post-emgloyment benefit plans,

{h) Construction contracts

Thir Croup has significant ongaing constrnection comtracts. For thete construction contracts, revenue i recagnised over Bime by
reference to the Group's progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. The measure of progress is
determined based on the propoction of CONIRACT Costs ncuned 1o date to the estimated tofal contact costs (Mngut method).

Management has fo estimate the total contract costs o complete. which ane wied In the Input method to detemine the Group's
recegnitian of comstruction revende, When it ts probable that the total contract costs will saceed the total construction revemes,
 provision for cnemus contracts is recognised immediately,

Saqrilicant judgemient is used (o estimatie these 1ol coniracy (osts 1o complatia b making these estimates, manadgement has
refied on the expertie of the internal experts to determine the progress of the construition and also on past expetience of
compiated projects,

(i} Revenue recognition from accrued incoma

Thiz unbsled mcome sccmesl Brom metend water wenvices of (he water and sewerage division in the Lnited Kngdom redquires
an estimation of the ameunt of unbilied chamges at the period end, This 5 caloulated based on average customer valume usage
adjusted for seasonality and reguiatory price changes. A 2% movement in avaage consumption equstes to a AMG S million
mvemant in the unbilled inceme acerusl

([} Deferred tax assets

Deferred fax assets am eoognised to the extent that it s peobakde that futume taable profit will be awilable agsinst whidh
tempory differences can be utilised. This mvotves judgement regarding future financal perormance of espective entities
when thie delermed tay asstls ore reognised
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 30 une 2024
4. REVENUE
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMODO RMODO RMODO RM'000
Revenoe comprises the following-
Revenie from contracts with customers 20.647.045 280737 160 160
Favenue from othes souces B43.626 Sdz2ee 521,293 I\EIST
Tl reyeni e 30,490,671 FRIROBS 521.453 IBRANT
{a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and other sources:-
Group Company
E0Z4 2023 Z0Z4a 2023
RMTOD0 RMO00 RMOOO RM"O00

Lrtilities
Sale of electroay 14,646,968 15,842,006 - -
Supply of eloan water, traatmpnt and dispeisl
af wirsta waler 5.213.360 4 265,68 - .
Sale ol steam 288,743 244, 7HY - -
Telecommunications 734,325 S92678 - -
Others 298,909 129375 . .
21,183,306 21074516 =
Cemant and building materials industry
Sale af cement and related products 5,369,653 4797251 -
Ohers 16,560 23703 -
5.386.213 4,B20,954 -
Construction
Constrsction contracts 786,965 1,203 486 - -
Hatel oparations
Hotel romm and foxd and beveragas 1.572.470 1272897 - -
Othwirs 22,100 19,585 - -
1,594,570 1202488 -
Property
Progect reveni@ - 98,317 - -
Sale of development mopertes &b, 998 ELTL - -
S ol complotad properies 81,976 145,325 - -
Sale of Lnds 74,453 2500 .
athers 19.429 19,464 - -
262 856 I0L208 -
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

4. REVEMUE |CONTINUED)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and other sources (continued):-

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'O00 RM'D00 RM'000 RM'O00
Management services & others
Managemed, operation and maintenanoe
seTvices 152,693 200,159 -
Licencing fes 14,026 15,982 - -
Proparty maagor fios 78,929 7283 - .
Food and beverages operations 19,748 1rare - .
Others 127,739 74,204 160 160
433135 JEK1.050 160 160
Revernie fram confracts with omstomers 29,647,045 29,073,797 160 160
Rental income 118.714 11125 - .
IMberesy rcame 720.104 427,881 19,076 8,980
Dkl ncome 4,808 82 502,217 I
REwernie from oTher Sources B43.626 542,500 521.293 G157
Total revenue 30,490,671 29,616,085 521.453 3FEE.IT7

(B} Timing of revenue recognition for revenue from contracts with customers:-

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'OOO RM'OOO RM'D00 RM'DOO
At b poind in tima 6,216,081 576877 -
Over time 23,430,964 23,336,920 160 160
29,647,045 29,073,797 160 160
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 30 june 2024
COST OF SALES
included in cost of sales are the following:-
Group
2024 2023
RMDOD RMOO0
ot ol imeniodies 3,451,456 E Rt ]
Coustruction contract costs 789,789 1,125,646
ot of fuel, rew materials and cohsumable 12,392,716 14,310,715
Property development costs 125.636 142543
FINAMNLCE COS5TS
Group Company
Note 2024 2023 2024 2023
RMODO RMODO RMO0G RM OO0
Interest expenss
- Bamds 1,444,536 1,165,062 171,371 14E.237
- Bomamwings 1.208.947 1130180 47614 37.684
- Post-employment benafit ablgations {#.134) [10.634) - -
= Lioasis labilitios BG. 024 BZ.15G A38 230
2,736,373 2370, B0 219,423 184,151
Lizss: Amouints copitalned s
= Property, plant and etuipment 1 (115.883) (53.651) - -
Interest expense of financlal
Habilities camried at amortised cost Z/620,490 236,743 219,423 164,151
ANNUAL REPONT zO24 1ISL
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FIMANCIAL STATEHENTS

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 June 2024

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Group Company
Hote 2024 2023 2024 2023
RM‘DO0D RM'OO00 RM'000 RMO00
Profit before tax |s stated after
chargingf{crediting] {other than
those disclosed in Notes 4. 5 L6 o
the Financial Statements):-
AmDrTisation of comract costs | 1,966 1021 - -
Amortnation of intargible asets 18 68,322 64,577 - .
Amortisation ol servce concesshon assets 28 33,938 - - -
Audfitars remuncration
- statutory audit
- eurrent fnancal year 13,832 11464 256 256
= under provison in prof financial year 45 7 u :
- others GO0 1116 17 16
Ba disfizs wiitien aff 2,645 1530 - 4
Development expenditume writhan doan 14{a) 123 2413 - .
Depredation of property, plant and
ipuifmedt 11 1.615.120 LEAOES] 4,246 S0EE
Deprediation of right-ol-use assats 12 208,339 205,744 & 700 6ETY
DiweLtors’ remuneration
- emoluments 84,562 GI.794 2197 Le45
= ey 4,805 1910 ar7 -]
- benafies-in-kind 280 561 180 140
Falr vaue loss on derivatives 28 - - -
Impaiment loites on
- amount due from related partes 40{d) 391 150 - B
- CORract assets 2 5.284 2B22 - -
= Intancible assels 15 108,316 159 - E
- receivahles - net of reversal “ifd) 115,458 147574 - -
= Imweniones 16.091 141 - -
- imwestmant in sulskikides - B5,265 FE R
- Iivestent in assoriates 302 £ - -
- praperty, plant and equipment n 118,595 - - -
Infrastruciune manionance espenses 114,779 115.415 - -
IFvBnE IS WITIBN dawiy 20,211 11 - -
| agse pepinse mO8 acognised in lease
liahilties
= EIart-Tm pase 117.769 EETNTS 78 199
= low value assets 1224 Lia - -
Loss on forekgn exchange - net
= rirdlimed 15,526 B3I 7178 1504
uneaksed 21,559 40,567 -

152 YTLCORFORATION HERHMAD

414/615



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 30 june 2024
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUEDY
Group Company
Mate 2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'000 RM'O00 RM'OO0 AM D00
Profit before tax is stated after
charging/{crediting) (other than
thosa disclosad in Notes 4, 5 & & 1o
the Financial Statements)
{continwed):-
Property divelapment costs written dewn 25 73z 17424 = =
Property, plant and equipment written off 11 16,897 14,403 - ES
Provision for liabilities and charges 36 4.684 1467 - -
Rates 132167 142203 - -
Share ophon expenses 24 85,195 28./14 B.017 L
Adjustmant on Fair wabue of nvestiment
properties 13 [20,943) BA.559 -
Amartisation of defermed income |6.406) [5632) -
Amartieation of grants and confributions a5 (23.443) {17,951} -
Bad dobits recowersd {4.518) [2354) -
Cash Tow heoges, reciassilied Trom
Feiging FEserve [ Cost of wies (B1.707) [2.902) - .
Gain on 3 bargaén purchase {9.,930) - - -
Lo/ Gaing on cispessl of
= ansoriales - nat 4,320 La43 - .
- irm¢estmenis - net [4.513) [6.0ET) {4.513) [2.546)
- praperty, plant and equipment (9.027) ({E14) - -
- Hghi-af -use Fssets {8,827 i -
Gain oh Torelgh exchange
= realised (45.241) (40,515} (B8.707) (13.877)
- urrealtsed (43.,801) [1a7.268) - -
Galn on kease temmination (4.609) {LO26) -
Gain on loats medilication and messemmont - {501} -
Lross dnadend from quoted westmants,
within Malaysia {16,299) (504} - -
Hiring income from plant, machinery and
ARt (30,874) (25153) -
interast income from finencial assets
measured at amortised cost
- fixid g posifs. [198,590) (137,995} -
- athers [22.,0599) [B157) -
Interest Moome - net immstment i eawes {261) (433 -
Het farvalue gain on finandal assats, at
FVTPL (#7.096) (94,.728) - -
Nt Tair valuo {gainkioss o Fvesiments 18 [212,923) 4,341 (10,777) [4.08)
Dparating laase income (BR8] [371) - -
Rantal income
- other propemes {21,395) [15.366) (B27) (B42)
Write back af smpaimment los on
= amensng dug from wubeidiarien - . [sa) (11802}
= praparty, plant and equipment 11 - {23,727 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)
Directars’ remunerathon

Deotads af the total remuneration of cach Director of the Company received from YTL Corporation Berhad Group of Companies.
categorned into appropiate components for the finandal year ended 30 june 2024 and 30 hme 2023, are a5 follows: -

Estimated
Defined maney valug
contribution of benatits-
Fes Salaries Hemus plan Others’ in-himd Total
Group- 2024 RMOD0 RH0OD RHOO0 RHO00 ENDO0 AMO00 RMO00
Exacutive Directors
Tan 5t S} Frarcis Yaoh Sock Fing,

L Er 14,811 ] 1863 H m 13830
Dater’ Yeah Seok tian 235 1243 ERLLY L174 4 B4 11940
Derte” e 500 M . 5465 2512 3% 1 £ 9,051
Dt Sl Yeah Saok - - 5,968 2794 oot 1 26 9,790
Dart 5 Mchawd Yesh Sock Siong - E519 261 o7 2 43 10,224
Date’ Yeoh Soa Kerg . 5051 LE4E aun 2 45 BEEE
Dat’ Mark Yiear Seok Kah - 5,357 488 a9l E] 24 8,763
Syoe! Aoy Bin Sy Ated Kkt . G4E B0 29 1 1] BIE
Nen-Executive Directors
Dt Atwead Fuaar Bin Mot Dehaleny 98 - - 18 - 36
Far Bin khai 19z - 18 - Zi0
Figa Moorma bt Hag Dtheman 86 . 16 . 242
Crod Yoo Kvan g (hao Yee Ewan 230 - - - 7 - 247
Tang ¥in Gwong 166 10 - 176
Sharifaty Lala Sinti Syed Al n . . B 1 - T2

1768 5L062 22,901 .70 96 £24 B4.242
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)
Directars’ remuneration (continued)

Detalls of tre total remuneration of each Director of the Comgpany received from ¥TL Corporation Berhad Growp of Companies,
categorised Imto appropriate components for the financlal year ended 30 June 2024 and 30 June 2023, are as follows [continued):-

Estimated
Defined maney value
contribution ol benefits:
Fees Salaries Banus plan Dihers” In-kind Total
Company - 2024 RHF 00D RMTOOG RMD00 RMTO0D RMO0D OG0 R0
Executive Directors
Taf 54 [Sk) Frands reoh Sadk Pirg,

PEM, KBE - - . . - 147 ur
D’ Yook Seoklan - 1269 639 20 1 18 2156
D’ Yook S Mis * - - - - - -
Dabe’ il Marhiaal Vs Sock Seny) = 2 = - -
Date’ Yook S King - . . - - ’ .
flaty’ Mark Yech Sent Kah - - - - - 15 15
Syed Ahduilah B Syes Abd Lade - - - - - - -
Kan-Exesutive Directors
by’ Abwmad Fusad Ein Mohd Dahilan ag - 6 94
Faif B bshat 96 - - 9 105
Pl Niowsera Bl Riga Ortomiaty 6 = = 16 242
Chee Yoo Kean @ Chon Yee Kwan 230 - - 17 T
Tang Kin kheang 166 - - 10 176
Sharifatiy Laks Bt Syed A n - - 1 k-

amr 1,265 634 bra] EQ 180 32254
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)
Directors’ remuneration (cantinued)

Dotads of the total remuneration of each Director of the Company received from YTL Corparation Berbad Group of Comganies.
categorsed o spproprate components for the finandal year ended 30 jure 2024 and 30 june 2023, a0 as follows (continuod):-

Estimated
Dedined money walue
contribition of benetiti-
Fies Salaries Banus plam Others’ in-kind Total
Group - 2023 RMODO  RMOOD  RMOOD  EMDOO0  RMO00  RMOD0  RMODO
Exncutive Directors
T S 5 Frarchs Yieoh Sock Png,

PobL REE B0 14,352 L&5] 1387 2 174 17416
Dty Yieoh Seot Tian 2 £,041 a3 73 3 o 9058
Loty Yeoh So0 Mn . L3 a9 ) 1 44 [P
Dt 2n Yenh Sent kong . iy g 45 1 52 T
Dt 5 Michael Yol Sogk Siong = SETE Bag T 2 L] T35
Dati” Yeoh So0 Keng . 4540 (o] T 207 45 6537
Dty Mark Yeoh Sk kKah 513 1B 53 3 32 E5L0
Sy Absct it Bin Syod Al Kl . £48 B0 m 1 14 65
Mon-Exetutine Dinectors
Datr' Chory Keap Thai &

Cheang Knap Tal Fi11] . . . 13 m
Dot Al Funach B Ml Dubven 20 v . : b : T
Paiz Hin lbek 50 - : z 1 i &)
Raia Mexcma Binti Raa Oman =0 - . R 3 R 20
[roo Yoo Kwan @ (hoo Yee Ewan 28 . . - 3 E)

Lakn 48657 EA2Y 5Ta Fo ] 581 [k
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

7. FROFIT BEFORE TAX [CONTINUEDY
Directors’ remuneration (eantinued)

Detalls of the total remuneration of cach Director of the Company rocelved from ¥TL Corporation Berhad Growp of Companies,
categorised Imta appropriate companants for the financlal year endad 30 gme 2024 and 30 June 2023, ame as follows [continued]:-

Estimated
Defined maoney valug
rcontribatian of benefits-
Fees Salusies Banus flan Otery’ In-kind Tatal
Company - 2023 RM000 RMCO0 RMO00 RM 000 RM000 R 000 000
Execuiive Directors
Tan 54 [Si] Franck Yeoh Sock Fing

PSM KBE - - - - - a7 ar
Dazy Wech Seok Kian - L7a 203 n I H 1627
faeo’ Vach Soo Mis E - - . - - -
Dang’ 5o Fioh Sbok Hong . =
Dats’ S Michael Yeoh Sock Siong - -

[t Veoh So0 Keng - - - - - - -
Dass’ Mark 'foch Seok Kah ] . . . . 14 1
Man-Exscutive Direttors

flate’ Thong Keap Thal @

I'Nn'qﬁmTi 10 - - - 13 - 73
Dase’ Al Fiad Bin Mot Cahalan ] 1] ] 2l
Falr Bin bshak 23 - 16 - 245
Rajt hotrrg Binti Azjs Cthemar 20 * ] frs ]
(Chea Yoo Cwan @ Choo Yes Kway & 3 E |

=] LAa 23 m 3 L1} 283

nchales SACS0 MBEng ehowonoes, &I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits expenses
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'DO0 RM'000 RM'D00 RM'D00
Employees compensation
{exciuding Dircctors remuneratian)
Wages, salarios and bonus 1,548,182 1357982 21,687 20.241
Defined contripution pan lg2.273 150,369 2312 2225
Dwlined benafit plan a7.BEa 34,193 - E
Qiher banefits 163.068 14L2H9 554 ek
1.931,391 156683833 24,553 23,232
B. IMCOME TAX EXPENSE
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
Hote RM'DO0 RM'ODO00 RM'D00 RM'O00
Current income tax
- Malayslan intome tax 03,610 154,494 20,237 10,972
= Foregn incoma Lo 678,567 390,085 - '
Dafemed tax 36 (33,939) 62,180 - -
948 238 506,769 20,237 10,8972
Curren income tax
- Current financial year 96,821 500,162 i8.470 4,702
= {DwerUrdes provison (0 poor
financial years [14.644) [45.5683) 1767 L270
Datemred 13
- Redating 1o arigination and raversal of
temporary differences {33.839) 62,180 - -
948.238 06,769 20,237 10,872

The Growp ahd the Compary afe within the wcope of 1he Drganisation for Ecaname Co-operatian and Dealopment {"OECTT) Pillas
Twa modal nies whereby top-up tax on profits |s required In any jurisdictions in which it ocpevates. cakculated at the jurisd ctional
level, when the effectve tax rate is lower than the minimam effective 1ac rete of 15%

Malaysia will be iImplementing the Pilar Two model rules effective 1 january 2025, Some foresgn tax purisdictiors where the Group
aperates (Luch as the Unibed Kingdom, the Retherlands, France, Vietnam and [apan ) will implomment the Pitsr Two model rdes eafied
in 2024

Thi Group and the Company hava not recofded amy EMpact on tax xpense for the financal yoar and applicd the excepion 1

recoghise of dedose informanion about deferred 1as assets and labiltes elved to Pillar Twa intame taes, & provided In the
amendmants (o MFRS 112 kwued in june 2023,
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FINANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)Y

The Group and the Company have assumed the commitment o apply the Pilar Two model rules and ane working on the analysis of
e impact of 1he amendments 1o Bwe standand a5 waell as 10 establish o System of compliance which allows 10 adapt 10 negulations
A tmely manner.

A regonciliation of inoome Lo expere spplicable 1o profit Belone Gaaal the statutory Inconss Tan rale 10 incoi Lax e a1 e
affective meome wx rate of The Group ond thee Compamy is a Foliows:-

Graup Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM"O00 RM'O0D RMODO RM'OO0
Prafit before tax 4,832,969 Z7ea013 141,573 BG710
Taxation ar Malaysian statutony Tax race of 24%

{2023 24%) 1,159,913 654,587 33,978 20,810
Hor-deductible axparses 497,894 517,564 06,013 63,288
Weerin Pl subject ta thx {356,188) {205,909 [108,298) {71.385)
Diffesant tax rates in other countries (288,724) 1205.642) 2.223) (3.011)
Doubie deductible expenses {1.215) (822 - -
\Crwr i Ubricher - crvsbony i priod years (14.644) (45,583) L7E7 L&70
Tax effect on share of profits of associates and

paint vEnures {98,581} {100,E11) - -
Tax effect of unrecogrised dofermed tox assets 49,783 {7.015) -

Incoma tax expanso 948,238 B06.7649 20,237 oe7z

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE
[3) Basic earnings per share

B eamings per Shane of i Group iS5 cacLkaed Dy doviding Thie prafit for 1he year attrnabie 1o owrstrs of the pangnT Ly
the welghted average number of ordnary shares in lssue during the finandal year.

Group
2024 2023
Prafit far tne finandlal yoar atmrbutable o owners of Ths panent (RMO00) 2,140,539 1,095,693
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares i issue [(000) 10,972 527 10,964,086
Basc eamings par share {s2n) 19.51 858
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FIMANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

9. EARMINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
{b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share of the Croup s calculated by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to owners of the parent by
the weighted sverage number of ordinaty shares in issoe adjustied 1o asume carmersion of all dlutive potentia ordinary shanes.

Group
2024 2023
Profit for the fmandial year attributable to owners of the parent (RMOO0) 2.140,539 LO95659
Waghted seerage number of ofdinaty' shares in issue (D00 10,972,527 10,964,086
Adpstmants for ESQ5 {000) 208,871 B0.956
Weighted aserage number of ordinany shares for dited eamings per shares [000) 11.181.398 1025062
[iluted earmings per shane (sen) 19.14 9594
10, DIVIDENDS
Group/Company
2024 2023
Grosa Amount Gross Amount
dividend  of dividend, dividend  of dividend,
per share net of tax per share nat of tax
[senj RM'DOO {senj RMDOO
Dividend pald in respect of finandial year
ended 30 June 2023
Irterim dividend of 4.0 sen per ordinary share paid
on 29 Movember 2023 4.0 438,575 = -
Dividend pald in respect of finandal year
ended 30 June 2022:-
Interim dividend of 3.0 son por ordinany share paid
of 20 November 2022 - - 3.0 20,973
Dividend recognised as distribution te
ordinary equity holders of the Company 40 438 575 10 AzRGS

On 21 August 2024, the Board of Directors declaned an interim dividend of 45 fen per ordirary share for the financial yaor ended
30 pune 2024, The book closure and payment dates in respect of the sforesad dividend ae 13 November 2024 and 23 November
2024, respectively, The financial statements for the current financial year do net reflect this imenim deddend. nstead, this diddend
will be accoumted for in equity 45 an appropriation of retained prafits in the financial year ending 30 |june 2025

Thae Bowrd of Dinectors dowes not recosmmend & Tinal deadend nooespect of 1he linancial year ended 30 June 2024,
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FINANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 30 june 2024
11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furringe, Telsoas
Linds & Infrasinactuse Flamt Tirtures & mumcation  Awets under
1213 buiidisn® s lacilities machinery equipmen| Wiehidiey equpnenl  consiniction Total
RITO00 (] R0 RHDM0 00 RHDN0 RMI00 RiTD00
Croup - 3024
ot
AT LEM LS I E 235050 Lain 125 LEETT B0
Apsiton o ubsdais - FLF. 3] e 280 ¥ - L] fro R ]
Aaibors Tis08 1550 0s 2 45201 (FL1H 14BN i
Curorey amdaten
dffrarn LLES! LIS 176,401 s 4810 - T 302,638
Deprmas [EEE ] - {32.055) [EEE ] (4953 - [riz) {19159}
Feversdl of rpamet. T 18400 . . : . . . laa02
Teareie o (orsmegening Malm AETH S4T8 14303 105 880 941 [LBOLSSH) .
Eiminator of acumiand
segreristn m ewzien® [0 - : - : . ; osT)
Savahigti of Lnd ind
boicin” 4,024 . . . . . . 400
Tearele o ivesinent
o a THLE) . v v r T . B8, 534
Tewele etk et 19 3 3 s . z £ & i)
Tearste mright-of
wih g {4.228) : . : . . . )
Tewrsls [von dsgamerd
ogerdiee 14 ALY . . . : . . 10,182
wrten sl I [REAR6) (1.201} [18LL137) 13320} {1104 [46.283) 5] [43585)
AP AR 12309861  1.04098  FEIRI0E L585.13% Lidd 553 ERILI ] 1407568 TRl Ty
Aerumvilated
Beprelaton and
M
AT 1 E5E.500 LG 15538118 LanEH TaLN Lasa g - WMATE
Chargn ot il sl yoar E 504 6 porrdit] 125 67,35 125002 - LEDAE
Sfererer -1 1L4m L] i e - - 5039
Depesas LN - A BaE) 06 - - Qs
T el ol
o) i . . Ll [138) ! 1 B 136397
Evrwnaton of arumilzed
ST arEn o S’ [20.45T) . - . . . . (20457}
Tegrete oo mghi-al-ase
mwh Iz [a.2m : . s : * . (.27}
e ot 7 a,a7) B psame sy fLes]  pEeE) - Emo
nELNR 3,897,021 Lmiey  BRARLER Le4ain E0L290 L% BE A5ATEE
Met baak value
AN LNie40 1AMRING  ILEESH Luasm L LBdLME EEL T N 114::1]

*  [uring tie financial yedr, the Group framiferred centoin lond and builfings to invesimant propertis which one messwred ot fofr voloe, Accordingly,
e PREILEITION SUPIUS STHEg from B O anencas bowarn the COmwng amounts and foF vo'ue of tase fond ond Bullings hes beon recognied
W affver £ mphefentiae noome.
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED}

Fumiture.
Linti & Infasinacoue Pam & Titured mrtitios  haset ander
Nt buidings* & site faciities machnery  equipment Vebics  squipmemt  coastructen Totat
R0 RG0S EM000 EM 00 0o AMTO0 EME0D AMDMG

Grpp - 2223
Lo
Wit 128%50 SR 050568 Faiit ] F158 1e45 L0 563660
hddicrs ] A5 EALH xam s 150 bz 1) Al e
Luspeey Sarsietin

e BB eass UEI 1=m Hnus - HETR! b
(sl (24 067 fiiir.e] [LTITEES) g B4 14} 5L 24
Bpsesal of ngammet i Han - - - - - - pal
Tristfier o commisoreng 00 Seane EEEH BRSX ] o (L9i25ry .
Trimsfier i Trom Incangibie

HEY 13 =0k i] - % 1} (bl | - - a%n [ELE]
Wenen o i fill=x ] ik} [t il ] faliLsh] ] L2y &4 [FREEX
b 052053 L2ETATae Ik XTI ER pETc] L IR LExTer Lk
Aroemuiried

depratiation and

g
ML FLSRE A 15650500 Lias HLTE Lanes HME
Chixrga For i Miruncial yesr ST (L] E IA0TH B2 Md 17850 . 180T
Lumecy transianm

e s (% ] /T (1 M5 - . L0
[pesats [Sr24T) it {58208 [L2ET) (45540 [BE} * [L3eA14E|
[Reversd of mgmeT

e kst T [ L] H
Tramsfir 2a commissonig i o A EL]
Trinefir fipfrom il

1 BN * e HE3 - - + *
et ot 1 [iles ] n et Q01 ) ksl . = e k]
i N6 356,55 11664 155518 L4054 M4 143857 - HIATE
Wit ol vk
e 4] E5T5E 102515 sxs IR bk ] 13ise e EFORE

162 ¥YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

424/615



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

Oooooooa

FINANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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= 30 june 2024
11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
* Lard & tauildings of the Group ane as follows:-
Building on  Bullding on
Bulldingon  long-term  short-term Factory
Frashold fraahold leasahold leasehald & other
land land land Land buildings Total

RMOODD RMODDD RECOO0 RHDOO RE'DOO0 RMOOO
Giotp - 2024
Cost
At 1L.7.2023 L534.704 B.654.487 1570693 726,584 BE.326 12,614,704
Adclipuns 33,602 22,901 16,906 120 Z73 73,808
Curmency trandation differences (2.002) 4,929 {18,131) Bad 4,389 {9,935)
Disposals {116} (G14) (32.666) - [33.396)
Riversal of imgairmant - 18,402 - - 18,402
Transfers 10,677 331116 {71.367) [La34) (388) 268,604
written att - (£2.148) - - [26H) (22.416)
Al 3062024 1,636,BE65 9,009,073 1,465,435 726,150 72,338 12,909,861
Accumulated depreciation

and Impalrment
Ar 1.7.2023 - 2,523,122 759 468 a7 Be0 41,516 3,696,986
Charge for the finantial year . 207,994 37.335 18,555 2.020 265,904
Cumency translation differences - 6,704 [12,544) 408 5,637 206
Disposass {39} {31.075) - - {31.114)
Transtors (1G4) {20.293) - (4.277) [24.734)
written off - (10,215) - - [202) (10,317)
Ar J0EZ024 - &7E7502 TIg. 091 391,844 44,694 3,897,021
Het book value
Ar 3062024 L.B36.8B65 6281 481 T32,544 334,306 27,644 9.012,840
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINWUED)
* Land & bulldings of the Group are as follows [contnued)-

Buildingon Building on
Building on long-term  short-term Factory
Freehold freehold leasehold leasehaold & other
land land land land buildings Tatal
RM'OD0 RM'DOO RMODD RMrO0D RM'DOOD RMOOO

Group - 2023
Cost
AT 172082 1.550.5592 BATE0E 1570548 08,510 15864 12226,605
Additicns. 3408 7.940 4471 930 4199 20,949
Currency translation differencas 48119 576 309 36,600 20,313 48] BE4.ESE
Dispasals (3.276) [BE5,001) [706) - - {B:24,383)
Reversal of impairmeant . 23820 - - . £3.820
Transters B&D 286317 (002200 (1.169) 40782 285470
written off 3 (L5323 £ £ E [1.533)
Al 3052023 1504 704 BESA 487 1570693 726584 8326 12514704
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment
A 172022 40 2755.054 FeaS46 51125 B.620 1,047,305
Charge for the financial yoar - 193043 37477 18969 1,958 251,447
Currency translation differsnces - 179,353 22475 7290 3,874 212,592
Trsaly a EA7.735) (12 . . (EOT.247)
Reversal of Enpairment [0} - * * = u]
Trarsfers 3 = (29,018 {4.504) 27.464 (B,058)
written off - (LT - - - {1093
A 3062023 E 253,182 50,468 A72E80 41,506 3,696,986
Net book value
At I0DG.2023 1554704 G13LIGS BIL2ES 353704 26810 B.917.808
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {CONTINUED)
Furniture,
fittings &
equipmant Vahicles Total
Note RMAO0D RMODO RMO00
Company - 2024
Cost
A LT72023 43,230 10.264 53,494
Additions 204 3,583 3,787
Dirporsats {4} - H-;i_
At 3062024 43,430 13,847 57.277
Accumulated depreciation
At 172023 8,597 5.651 14,248
Charge for the finandial year 7 3,894 52 4,246
Dicposats #1] + (1}
At 3062024 12,490 6003 18,493
Net hook value
Al 06204 30,940 7.844 3\, 784
Company - 2023
Cost
Al L7087 795 9157 17137
Additeons 49,445 1114 L T
written off o000 {40009
At 3062023 43,230 10264 53,494
Accumulated depreciation
At 172022 7475 5,651 13126
Charge for the financal year 7 5,066 - 5,006
Wiritten off (3.966) [3.966)
At 3062023 B.5a7 5651 14248
Net book value
At 3062023 34,633 LY E 30245
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT ICONTINUED}
fa) Depredation charge for the financlal year is allocated as follows-

EDINETOOOO
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Group Company
2024 2023 2024 Z0z3
Note RM'O00 RM'DDO RM'O00 RM'O00
Recognised in Incoime Statements 7 1.615,120 L620,651 4.246 5068
Comsiruction comnract 2Me) 5,315 G.4GE - -
1,620,435 1827117 4246 S.0BE

() Assets under firancs lease

Thi meet boak salue of the peopeity, plant and equipiment bed under hive purchase as ot ieporting date aie as folknes-

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'O00 RM'DDO RM'D00 RMOOO
Plant and machinery 22,499 -
Wihicles B,005 7476 4 170
30,504 7476 34 170

(o} Seourity

The net book value of the Group's proporty, plant and equipment that has been pledged a5 secunty for the bank Taclties and

baonds by wizy of foed and floating charges are as follows:-

2024 2023

RM'O00 RM'O00

Land 413,730 408,240
Huidngs 1,870,113 L5604
2,283,843 2255004

() Bomewing osts

Beurerwdng costs of RM115883 milion {2023 RMS386]1 milkon] artsing on financing specfically entered into for the constractlon

of property, plant and equipment were caditalised durirg the financial year
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= 30 june 2024

11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {(CONTINUED)
Impairment assessment for property, plant and equipment (“PPE™) of subsidiaries
[a) Utilities
The recoverable amount of the PPE assessed as part of a cash generating wnit (007 5 determined based on the fair value
less costs of dispesal [FVLODT cabeulation.

The following ane the key assumptions apoled in the FYLCD caloulation for iImpairment assessment of PPE of a subsidary In
the tslecommurications buskness amision!-

2024 2023

Discount rate B.2% 9.9

Average revenue growih rate 45.1% ELTLY
Termiral yed earnings birffane intemst takes, depreciation ard amartisation (TEBITDAT)

mangin 18.0% 26.7%

The scount rEle applisd to the cash fiow pojections are derived from the cost of (apital at the date of the assessment,

The cash Now profections used in the FYLCD caitulation were based on apooved financial budpets and forecasts covering a
S-year peiod, adjirsed 1o reflect marken parmicipants assumpions. Cash Nows beyard the S-yea perod were exrapolated a
furtner L1 (2022 |2) years rephosenting 1he estimated vseful lives of tha PPE af tha subisidiary, useng thi estimated leng-tem
growth rate of 1% {2023 2.5%).

Fair walue is held within Level 3 in far yalue leerarchy dischosures.

The caimying amaunt of the C0U a5 a1 30 juni 2024 15 RME.3 lon (2023: AM2.3 hilkan), No mixement charge was recognised
an the recoverable amount of the COL wars in emcerss of ity carmying amount.

i the cdscount rate increased by 3% (2023 &%), the carmying value will be reduced by sppoximately RMUBS milien (2023
RMEH milkan], 1 1he averoge revenee grawih rate rduced by 1% (2023 2%), the camying value will bo reduced By
approximately kEM1A8 million (2023 BN mition). And, it the termingd year EBITDA margin reduced ty 3% (2025 Fi) the
camying value will ba reduced by appcimatedy RM1E million [2023: RM21 millian,

[b} Cemant

Dwing the financial year, the Growp recognsed an impairmant boss of AMIFTL milion on the machinary and equipment at a
et pRANT in Rawang. Thi impaimment was made following this Management's Secson i put on ko th im-ac ihation plan
o the plant, which s nitally plnred For the previous yesrs. Thes decision Tolowed a prebminany study ssessing the impact
of plant's marctivation on the Group's decarbonsation tamats and madmags
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Telecom-
muniations
natwork
e and Moter  Plamtand  Leasehold
Maote Llond  equipment Husidings vehicles  machinery | Others Total
RNOOD _ RHO00  RHOOO  RMOO0  RANOOD  RHODO  RMOO0  RMDOD
Group - 2024
Met Beck Valug:
AL172003 128,188 351582 47351 3,756 2853 B14,556 329 L5Z4.ET7
Additiom G344 75520 13,040 - 1442 3747 an 165,309
Acqpestion of subsidary 15 - - 0522 B340 - 13,249 FE 1] 40,350
Charge for the francial year peon  [uosiE  (sasse) @7z (479)  [24040) 72 (25656
Cutmoncy transleion
dteEe 75 (5 Loos i L] [L/065) 1 e}
Diposal : - : . - B .
Faperyi Tamisaion A 13,838 [0s) i 209 H = {14,333
Mo fiton [LEOS) [ 11453 * - 600,152 o &78.410
Aevaiaton of lands and
D - - . - - 755 - 735
Tiarsdar te imestiment
pioperia. 13 [82z] = = 1 = [45,065) = (45,091}
Tiarsder fram property, plant
el aquprent ] - - . . - u . n
At I0E2024 113,723 LG 430,330 T304 10118 L2oZoT ™ z1IsS5eS
At 3062024
1] 207463 L4267 F3L.516 17 8m8 173 L53resd 954 3,796,089
Amurmilated degardiation (53,740 [LOSSBAL)  (1G2ATE) [5.484) {1.E53)  (3IFREE4) [i78) [LEG0.564)
Hiet ook v 113,723 FLIE 430,330 T304 1018 L202070 W LI5S
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= 30 june 2024
12. RIGHT-0F-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Telecom:
Mations
rdwerk
site and Hetor  Plantand  Leasehald
Knte Land  pguipment Buildng wehiches  machinery Eand Dihers Totsl
RMO00 AMO20  RMO09 EH'D00 RM000 RMO00 RM000 RH000
Growp - 2023
Hat Book Vakue:-
L7208 s R 481596 (LE:] 1574 E17.169 20 13
At () 1005 24 i 1920 3669 120 may
Dnerge for the firencal year (5L [127 E6k] 42336 L6 il (ELAZ) 167 [E13476)
Turrendy tramibation
fiffaences Ll . [2290T) ] ] 1529 i 2650
Euginy Tarmination - {LE.17 (1355 145) - - {251
Moification SR H7 58 * = 15 [ i+l
A 306.2023 128168 i B = £3513 6 20853 al4.5% ¥9 152487
A 30E 2023
Toat, HHIS 1133500 553, M3 P HI55G EA5TS &35 1070
Rerumulated deprecation lrptieri] (L) (LT {2716} (7058 (MM 106 (LSEIIN
et book vios 126,186 15158 151 ire a5 6455 P L5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

1Z. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Building
2024 2023

Hate RM'000 RM'OO0O
Company
Het Book Value::
ALY july 2.2256 B.903
Additions 20,134 -
Chaegie Por thie Tinancial year 7 (6.700) (B.ETT)
At 30 June 15,660 2226
At 30 June
Cost 20,134 20031
Accumulated depreciatien {a.474) [17.805)
Mot book valua 15,660 2226

Thie Group and the Comparny have lease contracts for various [tems of land, telecammurieations network site and equipment, fiber
core, fefall sutlets, buildngs, motor vehicles, plant and machinery, leasehold land and others used in their aperations. Rental
contracts duration ik typecaly betwesn 2 1o 99 years (2023 2 1o 97 years) with extersion apions. Leases 1enms are negotisted oh
an ndividual base and caortain & wide range of ditferont terms and conditions,

The Group and the Company ako have certain leases with lease terms of 12 months of less and leases that have been determined
ta be low vale, The Group and the Company apply the Short-term lease’ and Jease of o wlue issets’ ecognition exemption for
these leasos.

The night-af-use assets relating to commarcial properties prosented under investment properties (Mate 13] ks ctated at fair vakee and
nas @ carmying amount at reporting date of FM502.916 mikon (2023: RMS46.284 milkon).

Doprecation chamge for the financal year is abocatod as Tollows:-

Group Company
2024 20231 2024 2023
Hote RM'D00 RM'DD0 RM'D00 RM'OD00
Recoghilsed in Income S1atements 7 208,339 205,744 5,700 G&T?
Cormstruction Coaviracl 7317 FvE o = -
215,656 213,476 G700 L.G77
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= 30 june 2024
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
At Fair Value At Cost
Long-tarm
Freehold leasehold Assets
land land & under
Nota & buildings buildings  construction Total
RM'D0OD RM'D00 RM D00 RMDO0
Group - 2024
At beginning af the financal year 1,453,959 512,707 - 1,966,666
Acguabition ol o sulbrsdary 15 1.547 . - L5547
AilciTioni E1.634 66,326 24, 887 142,847
Changes in fair value:-
= Per valuation 7 52179 {&1.456) - 3723
Unnealised leass income 7 184 £ - 220
Urireealised oo incarmo (1B4) (36) = (220}
Cumency transiation differences 6,303 [36) {1.685) 4,582
Transfer from property. plant and eguipment 1 4,780 64,214 - GR.804
Transfer to imentory [27.795) - - {27.735)
Translosr From rght-of -uke assets 12 . 45,891 - 45,891
AL e of th linancial yaar L542.607 GET.G46 23,202 2,233,455
Group - 2023
At beginning of the financal year 1427 450 545137 - La76595
Additions 3941 B55 - 45565
Changes in P walie:

- Per yaluation 7 {31183) {37.085) - {70.258)
= Unrealised leasa incoma 7 870 6] - LA
Uriroalised lmarse income H7} E¥3) - {1,70r3)
Curmency transhation diff erences 55H12 - - 55H1#
Modification of kease liabilities [&4h - - |&dy
At end of the linanclal year 1453959 512707 - L9E6,666

InuEstmEnt Enperies with Camying amount of RM499 million (2073 RMAEZ milion) am charged a5 secunty for O nowings gractid
tir thye Groiag a5 dsclosed n Notes 32 and Mote 33 10 1he financhs statements
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FIMANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ICONTINUED)

Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
RM'ODO R=F D00 RM'O00 RMO00
Greup - 2024
y —_ i
Irvestment properties
Commercial properties - . 513,961 513,961
- Hate! properties - - 763,496 Te3. 496
- Other properties - 126,448 BOG, 348 932.796
Tatal - 126448 2.083,805 2.210.253
Group - 2023
Bturring fan vilus o asureaments -
Imvestment properties
- Commestial properties - - 556,004 556,074
- Hated propertes - . EBB.S00 BEBS00
- (ther properties - 47620 RTad72 TeREe2
Total = 47620 19149046 1,966,566

Rantal income from investment proparties of the Group dusing the financial year amounted to RM102.662 million (2023
AMA7.214 milion),

Divect operating expenses from investment properties in respect of inceme and non-income generating properties of the Group
dusing the financial year amourted to RMT.297 milllen (2023 AME.S49 millian) and AMZEA%T milion (2023 AM22.408 millian),
Fispoc thely.

{a} Falr value informatien

Thir Croup’s investment properties are valved based on sale comoarisen approach and unobsensahle inputs and classified
Lol 2 and Lewal 3 respectively of the fair value hissarchy, The difforent kevals of the fair valee hietanckhy are defined in Rate
A1[b] 1o the financial statemants

The assets under constriation is mowsured at cost until the earlier of the date of completion of consthetien or the date
which the fair value becomes readily doterminable.

During the curment firancial year, there wis mo tramsfor between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measwremants.

(b) \aluation techniques used to derive Level 2 falr values

Lived 2 fade values of the Growg's prepetes have been genstally derhved using tho sakes comparisan aggiroach. Sakes prices of
comparable proparties in close proximity are adjusted for difforences in key attributes such e praperty size. Tha mast
significant input irto this vaksation approach is the peice por square meter,
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INVESTHMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

{c} Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs [Level 3}

- 30 june 2024

The following table shows the valuation technigues wsed In the determination of falr walues within Level 3, a5 well as the
significant urokrerdable irnputs used in e valuation meodiek,

U]

(i)

Commerclal properties
Inter-relationship between
Significant unobsenvable significant unobservable inputs
Valuation technigue inputs and fair value measurement

Drscommited cash fow appmach whith
involves the estimation and
pajEction af ncome STReAm aver &
perind and discounting the futeme
incame stream to arrive at the
pretent walue,

Discount rate at 7.00% (2023
1009 T B.50%)

The higher the discount rate, e iowear
e faw value,

Estimanod rental vialun piy squars
feat per manth

Thit Rilighatr Thie @STENEDE FenTal per squans
feet. the higher the far value,

Hotel properties
Inter-relationship between
Significant unobservable shgnificant unobservable inputs
Valuation technique Inputs and fair value measuremant

Inciimie apgicach which capitalise the
estiratend rental indome st el
projected operating costs, using &
A ounl rate derived Digan markel
ylitid,

Capltalisation rate of 4.25% to
13.50% (2023; 6.25% o 7.00%)

Thie higler the discount rate, e |ower
e fuir vahae,

Reversion capitalisation rate of
47550 1o 7.50% (202 G50 1o
7 50}

The higher the capitafisation rate, the
vt A Fisir wasline.

435/615

ANMUAL REFONT 2024 173



FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

174

{iii) Other preperties - UK
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{c) Falr value measurements using significant unobservable inputs [Level 3) {continued)

The follmeing table shows the valuation technigques used in the determination of fair valses within Level 3, as well as the
sigrificant unohservatie inputs used o the vaiuation medels. (continued)

Imer-relationship between key
unobservable inputs and fair
Valuation technigue Signiticant unobservable inputs value measurement
Merrkel cppvooch
Thit valuation considitis thie prisent Thint wrstitiastod Tair vadiss wold
walue of future cashllows to be Increase (decrease) il
generated should the Western - Residential land value per acre - fthe density pr atre was higher
Framewoafk of the site be sall in (20242 RMBEL millian, GBPLS miléon) (I
parcets. net of the inlrastructre cost - Commerdal land value per atra = lird values wede higher {lower)

of ensuring all parcels are fully
servicad. The sales valuas are
determined based on the market rile
voday for each wuse class. The
expid1ad cashilowes ane discountad
using a discount rate which considers
1@ cost of debt, the nsk freée rate,
e nature ane compasition of the
cashflows and 1heir associated
market condions

(2024 4.4 millior, GEPOA milion)
- DRscount rte (2024: B%)

= abisorption by the marke? wik
quicker [sSomwen)
- decount rate was oveer [Fsgher)

income apgroach

Thi valuation model consicess thi
prmnt wsiue of net cash Flows to
begenarated from the deselopment
of gach parcel in the Eastern
Framework. subdivided into asset
classes tabing account of attainable
FEvenues, canstruction and
development costs and devilopa
maiy s The expecied cashillows
are discounted using a discount
rabe which consigers the cost of
debit, the risk free rate, the nature
and comgosition af the cashiiows
and thelr associated macket
condiars.

- Residential Lt demsity per acre,
ramugng fresm 18-250 s
(2023: 18-28)

< Infrastruciue costs remainng and
delivery ol same

+ Rl Lo waluers Tor eah anels
within each plat

+ DRSCOLT rate (PO24: B%, 2023 &%)

< Assurnpthan that certain infrastioc tune
costs will be <hared between the
wilET geveapment and the Arena,
Thie SpET of which it not included in
a formal agreement betwaen the
antes

The estmated fair value woeld be
increase |docrmase) il
= the dersity per acre was higher
{lowes]

= infrastrnture costs remalning
wier howet (higlies)

= riesichaal Larel wakues were Digher
{lorwves)

= dhscount rane was hower (hagher)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
{c} Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs |Level 3} (continued)
(iii} Other properties - UK {continued)

In determining the fair vatue, the vabser have uwsed vahsstion techreques which imolve certaln estimates. in rehing on the
waluation ieports, the Group has osercised it judgement snd B satisfied that the valuation methods and sstimates e
reflactive of curent markat conditions. The estimatas underysng the valuation technigues in the next financial year may
differ from cuerent estimates, which may result o valoation that may be materialty different from the valuation as at
reparting date. A 1.0% (202 LO%) change in the discount rate would lead to 8 movemnent of AM2G.0 million (2023
AMILA milion] in the valuation,

Manggement |3 satified that the valuation reflected in these statements B reasonable. In maldng this assmament,
management has reviewed the estimated cash flows for the development and the futume rent roll which continue to
suppart the valavons presented within the finantid statements. Management constantly mardtors maret data which
shiowes conditans have been dlfong despite he ¢t of Bdng eriis, further justifpng the valuaticn includod in thise
sttements,

14, DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES
Thie movement in development exaendiures of thee Group duning e finandial year s as Tollows -

Fraehold Leaschold Development

land land Costs Total

Croup - 2024 Haoto RMH'000 RMOO00 RMOD0 RM0O0
{a) Land held for property development

At beginning af the financial year 348,020 174.464 260,034 783,518

Aditions - - 8,856 8,856

Written down 7 - - [123) {123)

At end of the financial year 346,020 174,464 268,767 792,251
(b] Project development expenditure

At beginning ol the linancid year - - 2,575 2,575

Additicn, - - 12,341 12341

Chame to Income Statement - - (551} {551)

Transfer to property, plant and

otuipment 1 . - {10,192} (10,192}

Curency translaton diferences - - {278} (279)

At erd of the financial year - - 3.894 3,894

Total development expenditures 349,020 174,464 272,661 796,145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

14. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
The movement in development expenditunes of the Group during the financal year s as follows {continued):-

Freehoid Leasehold  Development

land land costs Tatal
Group - 2023 Note RMOO0 RWMODD RM'ODD RM'O00
{a) Land held for propery development
At beginning of the financial year 020 196237 £38.556 B03,813
Aditions B2 10,621
Transfer to inventory - (12133 3.209) (15,342)
Traridor 1o proporty developmont fosts % = {7.227 [5.924) {12161}
\Written down ! . {414] - [2.419)
AL erud ol The Tinarcial yeas 5,020 174,464 260,034 Ta3.518
() Project development expenditure
AL Laginming of the Tinanci year - - 2540 2540
Audditions - . E iz
Currency transation difference 3 El
At end of the financial year - - 2575 2575
Total developmant expenditures FA9020 174,464 2b2 600 JHE093

Lanel held for progenty devefoimnt with carying ameurt af RM1E2290 madiisn [2023; AM2EA010 mdlon) are charged as wecurity
fat Bartoeing granted 1o the Group as discloued in Kote 33 1o thee Fnancial tatemonts.

15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2024 Z0E3
RM'OO00 RM'DO0
Duoted shares, at cost 3,470,028 F470,028
Unpeated shiris, i cost 4,871,484 4,531,851
Lessr Accumulatod impalrment losses {244,915) (159.650)
8,086,597 B2z

Mariood valise
- Quicted shafes 20,301,787 6,060,237

The Group's and the Company’s ownership interests in subsidiaries, thelr respactive principal activities and country of incofporation
are listed in Mote 46 1o the finanial statemems.

The country of incorporation of subsidiary & alse ther place of principal place of business ewcept certain subsidlaries are different
with thi country of incoporation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED}
{a) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(i} Mhu Anh Ventures Co., Ltd,

O 21 [uneg 2024, Nha Arh investmant joint S{otx Company ("Nhu Anh Imyestment”). an indrect whally owned subsidiary
af ¥TL Cemant Berhad (™Y TL Cement’) arquired the entire issued ard paid up share capital of Mhu Arh Ventunes Co. Lid,
(Nhu Anh Ventures™) for 3 cash conskderathian of YND 40 blion (RM7A4 mllion). As a result of the acguwsition, Nhu Anh
Ventues becaine & whally-oamed subisidiary of Nhu Anh Imsestment and an inditect subsidiany of the Compary.

{if) Pakatan Wiramas Sdn. Bhad.

On 4 Seprtember 2023, Batu Tiga Quarmy Sdn. Bhd. {"Batu Tiga Quamy™) a whalty-owned subsidiary of YTL Cement acquired
the entire issued and pald up share capital of Pakatan Wiramas Sdn 3hd. (Pakatan™) for & cash considoration of
RAMZE0 milion As a result of the acqusition, Pakatan betame a whally cwned subsidiry of Batu Tigs Quarry snd an
indrect subsidiary of the Company,

(i} Meuren Seolutions Sdn. Bhd.

On 7 junix 2024, ¥TL Communication Sdn. Bha, 3 60% - owned subsadiary of YTL Power intemathoral Berhad completed
the stquisition of S00.000 ordinary shares of RMLOO each ropresoming S0% of the ksued and paid up share capital of
Meuron Solutkons Sdm Bhd, (formedy known as Xchanging Malaysla Sdn. Bhd.) for an sggregate consideration of
AMIOS millan as adusted In accordance with the tomes of the Share Purchase Agreement dated 23 April 2024. Fallowing
The acquinition, Neuren Soluliors Sdn. Bhd, became o whally own subsidisry of YTL Communigations Sdn Bld The Tair
value of identifiable assets was determined to be AMZL0 milion giving rise 10 a gain on bargain purchase amgunting o
AMAS millicn The met Cash outTiny of the: acguisition is AMB.2 millian,

{iv) Ranhill Utilities Berhad (“Ranhill")

On 28 May 2024, SIPP Power Sdn. Bhd. ("9IPP Power™ or "Offerar™l an indirect 70% ownad subsidiary of YTL Power
Imtemationad Berhad [TYTL Power” or “Utbmate Offerne), entered inte an unconditional share sale and punchase agreemsent
with Tan S& Hamdan Mehamad ("Tan 56 Hamdan™), Hamdan Ine. [Labuda) Pre. Lid. ["Hamdan inc™) and Hamdan (L)
Foundation [Hamdan Foundation™] [colloctively, SYendars”) tor the atquisitian by the Offeror of 405178390 exsting
ondinary shares in Banhill (Ranhill Shares) from the Vendors, which represents approximately 314206 equity interest in
Fanhil, 1og0ther with 2,025,890 Ranhl's shanes 1o Be mBsutd pursuant 10 th shane fsddend, (o o i cash consideration
af RM405.2 million or offectively RM0,995 por Ranhill Share ("Aagquisition”)

Upan compketion of the Acquisition, the direct sharehalifing of the Offerar in Ranhill increased from 2 500 (e approsdmately
34.32%. Collectpvely with the Ultimate Offeror, our aqoregate dinect shareholding in Ranhill increased from 21.77% 1o
appraximately 53.17%%, Following in the Acguisition, Ranhll became & subsdiary of ¥TL Power,

The fair values of dentifiable assets acquered and Kabiities assumed have been detormined on & provisions basis and will
be finafrsed within one year after the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES I(CONTINUED]
{a) Acquisitien of subsidiaries {continued)
{iw] Ranhill Utilities Berhad (“Ranhill™) (continued)
Detaik of the coraderation transherred snd goodeill recognised ane o follaws

RM'O00
Purthase consideration
- Exlgting interest in Ranhdl Wilities Dertad 1ra.522
Acouisition an 28 May 2024 405178
Cash corskiaration 580,100
Remeasurmmint gan on exieting inferesis 709,467
Camying amourt of cost of irvestming THAS62
Propartionate share of the falr value of the non-controling interests 3rE.B09
Fasr value of net avsats acguired [aD2fen
Proviseonal goodwil 259,604
Detalls of cash Aow arising from the acquisition ané as Folows:
Purchase conslderation 5A0,100
Lessss cash and cash equivalents acguined (&3.208)
Rat cash outllow on acguisition 516,892
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
la) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)
[} Ranhill Utilities Berhad ("Ranhill") (cantinued)
Thi prewisionaly dotermined fair vabios of the assets and liohikies s at the date of acgusition are as folows:

Fair value
RM OO0
Property. plant and equipment 2412
rvestrment propedties LEa4y
Irtangible assets 0674
Hight-of-.ite assats AGLI50
Iyesiment & associates 247337
Dofered tix assets 26,554
Ciperating financial assets BFLIAI
Sefvicn COnCeyson 1S5 15832
Aegelvabies, depasits and prepayments 834,367
INVEN Tvles 137610
rvesiments 17.210
Cash ard cash equiviients 63,208
Restricied cash and cash equivalents 158,774
Defemed taxation [45.116]
Bariownigs (924.368)
Lease latilities [32.742)
Prowizicn for Babilities 2nd charges (1.948])
Prat-amploymant benefin ohigatinns [BF 1G]
Dertvalivie Nnancial astruments [£.4E84)
SEmvice concession obligations 1985,719)
Prayaliles and 0o s (SHE.078)
Mod-cummet payabies (271.530)
Icdertiliabde ret assets acuined 20767

[b) Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries

Dy thee year, Thie Group stquinsd additiona shanes in YTL Land & Development Berhad, ¥T1 Cement Berad and Kampung
Tiong Develapment Sdn. Bhd, for 3 total puchase consideration of AMDS46 milion, There s no mateda impact of changes In
the ownershep interest of thowe companies dusing the yea.

[c} Dilution of equity interest

Durng the year, the Group's @quity intedest in ¥TL Power Intemational Berhod (YTL Power™). decreaded from 55579 1o
54.54% following the sssuance of new ordinary shares under YTL Fower's E50%. The Group recogrised 3 loss on diition of
eduity inferest amouning to RM455 milion @ relaned sarmings duting the linancial year.

Dl the yearn, the Group's equity imterest in Malayan Cemeant Berhad (087, deosased from T7.04% 10 7086% follvwing
the issuance af new oodmay snares under MOF's ES05 and a dsposal of shaies via pivare placement 1o thind parties. The

Cooup recognited a gain on diution of equity mteiest amounting to RHMT0E mBion in retaned samings during the financa
year,

ANMUAL REPORT 2024 173

441/615



FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 30 june 2024

15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED]

[d) MNon-controlling interests in subsidiaries
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The Growp's subsidianes that have material non-controling int2rests (THOM) ane as foliows:

Oooooooa

Other
¥TL Power YL HMalayan individually
International Haespitality Cemant Immaterial
Barhad REIT Berhad subsidiaries Tatal
RM'OOO RMDOO RM'DOO RMTOO0 RM'OO0
Group - 2024
NC) i focPhon ety ndivost 4506 43.06% 29.14%
Camying amount af NOI 5.375.480 B89,130 L263.736 413,621 7.741,967
Toral compaghanmsivi incom
(s} allocated to MO 1,698,735 &0,023 116,457 {232} 1,874 984

Summarised financial infomation before nter-company elimenation are as follows:-

As at 30 |une 2024

Non-ourrent assats 50,475.669 5.174,296 8,580,637
Curront assets 16.281.099 2728z 2,109,435
Mar-current Rabilities {37,874 165} (1,122,407} (2,982,516}
Current babivtes (8.969,374) (1.347.423) (1,395.650)
T ALLOLS 19,913,229 £,976,648 5. 311.906
Year ended 30 june 2024
Rivirnie 22,284,344 554,908 4,446,430
Profit for the year 3,400,634 178,007 423,908
Total compaohensive inooms 3,757,071 210,132 429,001
i Tl Eroaits oparating

activities 4.539.170 306,256 809,578
Carin Thiw Lisped (01 imonsting

activities (2.997.978) (245.569) 146,363)
Lash Thow used |0 financing

activities (1.598.465) 10.275) (¥51.305)
el changes In cash and

cash equivalents [57.273) 50,412 (88,030}
Dividend pasd 10 NCI 250, 482 61,970 31,541
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- 30 June 2024
15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
{d)} Mon-controlling interests in subsidiaries (continued)
The Group's sutsidianies that bave material non-controling interests (0T are as folows-foontinued)
Othoer
¥TL Powar ¥TL Malayan individually
Internatienal Hospitality Cement immaterial
Barhad REIT Borhad subsidiaries Taotal
RMAOO0 RMOBD RMODD RMO0O RMOOH
Group - 2023
N affective eguity interest 44.43% 4304% 2206%
Carrying armaiit of N 2504197 RELOTT 961,303 FOHSES 5.5AT 540
Tatal comarehenshee ncome
abocatid 1o NCI L193,394 BLIG3 34,937 35,746 1325180

Summarised flinanckal information bedore imer-compary elimination e o lolows-

As at 30 June 2023

Mon-cunent assets 44 076406 4903 626 8,785 809
Cumrenst assaets 15.055.600 221652 2lBl429
Mon-current Labeites (33,703,139 {LBS2.963] [3.247.59)
Cument labiities |SL027.556) [326.912) {L.769.194)
Met assets 16,400LET1 2507403 5.954,515
Year onded 30 June 2023
Az=venue 21830459 85830 3,755,048
Profit for the year 032,587 141,221 158,200
Tatal comarehenshe noome 2555045 261518 166,529
Cash How from operating

acthdbon 3424062 289,000 AlE.348
Cash How used in investing

actilion {2.490.047) {14.513) [BE,004)
Cash fiow framifused inj

firaicung sctivitics 463201 [176.569) (BB, 318
Mol changes i caih and

cash equivalents LIgG qr.8ia 2o 16
Drvdénd paxd to NC 173979 Irin
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

182

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMODD RM'ODD RM'ODD RMTODD
Quated shares, af cost 2,187,902 2176530 358,700 358,760
Unguated andinary shares, ai cost 1,692,225 Lig2.772 205,241 205,241
Share of post-acquitition reseaves 456,258 589593 - -
Accumulated impaiement kosses {76.358) {™5.112) - -
4,260,027 863,791 564,021 564,021

Thie Group's and the Compamy™s cwnarship mierests @ associates, Ther respective prncipal s tvities. and country of meorparation
e listed in Motz 47 to the financial statemants.

{a} Acquisition of assoclate

Onl Dedember 2023, YTL Power enteded ints a Share Subscription Agreemant ("SSA") with the Minstes of Finance, hcorporated
[MaF ine™) and Digital Masonal Bethad ["DAE" fer the subsoriptisn af 100,000 mew ordinany shars in DNE and the sdvance
of @ sum of AM233.233.333. Tha 554 was completed on 28 june 2024, and with etfect from that date, the advance of
RMZ35.233.333 was regarded and treated &5 a sharehalder advance from YTL Power to DN The sharebalder advance camhes.
tha samae watirg rghts accorded to sach miwed ordinary share in ONEL Le. for each Ringgit of shareholder advance, YTL Powet
Is entitled to ane vele. YTL Power's cumalative percentage of Bsued shares and shareholder advance in DNE s 15.28% equity
T thi toral corsidoration of RMZ33.333,333

On 28 june 2024, YTL Powar, MoF Inc. DME, infranation Scn Bhd, Maxis Broadbard Sdn, Bhd and U Mobile Sdn, Bhd. entened
irte @ Shanshakless Agroement. Thie Shasehalders Agresment Se1s oul, ameng other things, the tenns foe the transithn from
¥ single whalotalo 5G metwork to a dual 56 netwstl, induding put ard call aptioms lof (i) MaF Ing to ol MoF Inc s ardnary
shares and sharehalder advance of RMA50,000,000.00 to the other sharehalders of OME, and (i) for the shareholders of DhE
whia wish to cxt from DNB andfor partic pate in the second 50 network 1o sall thelr oedinany share< in DN to the chareholdess
wha with To remain in DRE,

{b) Disposal of associate

Om 13 july 2023, ¥-Max Solutkons Holdings Sdn, Bhd., an indirect whoby -owned subsidiany of the Company disporsed off s 309
Interest in Endless Momentum Soin Bhd. for & cash considedatian of RM9.259 milan resulting in @ less o9 disposal of
RM4.330 mllicn.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The summarised finandal Information of materdal assoclates adyusted for any differences in accounting policies between the Group
anadf thee associates and meconeibiation 1o the carrying amaunt of the Group's interest in the sociates. ane as foows:-

() Summarised financial information:

Ranhill Water Starhill Global Real
P.T. Jawa Pawer {Hong Kang) Lid. Extate Investment Trust
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
RMO0DO RM'000 RM'000 RM 000 RMODD RM Q0O
Mog-cumant @ssets 4,149,403 43685332 958,708 - 9636002 AS622786
Cuniwdil assarls 1.277.485 1432204 179,593 - 225,052 250082
Mod-cument liabilites [693,791) ([E75242) ([247.516) - (3.043,569) (3594045
Cuament liabilities (281,668) (534970)  (313.406) - {B844,678) [141.355)
Mot assets 4,451,399 4606 616 B17.379 54972807 B.O57.454
Less:
Porpetual securities halders' funds - - - - {346,115)  (343854)
4,451,399 4605616 B17.379 - 5,626,692 S693600
Profit/fioss) for the fnantial year 929,778 47,344 {501) . 231,546 105431
Qther comgnehensime (Ioss)fncome - . [250) - {7.300) 324,223
Tatal camgrihenshae mcome 529,778 921,344 (751) 224,246 AZ0E54
Included in the total
comprohensive Incame is:
Bewnie 25252682 257044 14,941 - BED.610 [ Frrd
other information:
Divideruds received Trom awsodates 392,916 385,646 - - 111,702 106500
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16. INVESTHMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount:

Aanhi waer Staehill Global Real

PT. Jatwa Powier {Hong Kang) Lid. Estate Inuestment Trust Taotal
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 20e3 2024 2023
RED0G 21o il ] RMO0D EMO00 AM000 RAMO00 RMOD0 RMDO0
Dpening net asets, 1 july 4605615 4531309 - - GBSIED0  ASALS 10299216  LOOHBE
Aogpision® - . ERE,PED v . . ELB,250 "
Maraeme leed gayabiypaid in
unety - . . v -] 051 10,757 insz
[astrtleation seimsimadt plsh - - - - &906 Irm 5,006 17
Profitéfioss) for the fnandal yer frabrs] 07344 [500) 231546 0543 LIsSE3 LesTE
Drther comprohansive [oay
e - - 250) - (7300} i Frs] 5500 1M
Currency trarilation differontes 3523 TR 20} . . 554 38,453 712418
D! gt (LiZ2f18) [LIGLB4T) " - [a0ef2) (EeAT)  [LATLA3E) (LEEIE)
[ersing ret assets, 30 june 4450398 4BRALE EI7.3719 - GEIGEES SFEIEN0  10ERAET  1DMATE

Indenest in isoclates direclly hed
by the Cioup A HO00% 0.00% - 2P il

Carmying amourt 1557990  LGILSGE 246,552 = RO9BISE  ZNGEED 1803134 I7mBE

Thét & & AiRafen 1o I odquiiiteon af Ronhil UTaiTes Berted o distarsed o Note [5a)w)

Goodw amounting 1o AMZ2.133 milan (2023 RM17.082 milllon) was inciuded in the carmying amount of awesimoent in
assaciates

Thi indhidueally immatedal assoclates carrying amaunt s AM3ISE.893 milkan (2023 AM134.945 millian) and the Group's shane
ol tatal comprehensiw ket iv RM14.442 million (2023: total comprebenthe income of AMIL2.505 million).

The Group has Aot recoqgnised s share of pealit from 15 asceclate amounting te AM1Z3.227 millen (2023 ohare of leos of
AMS6.921 milkon} because the Group's cumulative share of losses oxceeds s intorost in that entity and the Group has no

ohligation in respect of those kosses, The osmulatve unrecognised losses amounted to RMSE 512 millon (2023 RM220809
millian] at the repoening date;
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17. INVESTMENT IN |DINT VENTURES
Group

2024 2023

RMODO RM 000

Unguoted aedinary shares, at oost 367,027 364,761
Share of past -acquisition reserves 109,923 22296
Accumulated imoaimment losses 19,559) {9554
467.391 377500

The Group's and the Company’s owneship Interests i joint ventures, ther respective princpal activities and country of Incomporation
are fstedd in Mate 40 o the linancial statements

The summarised financial information of matenial joint ventures adjusted for any differences in accounting policies between the
Cioup amd the jaint ventwes ad reconciliation 1o the carrying amoaunt of the Group's interest in Th point ventures ane a5 folkwic-

[a) Summarised financlal infermation:

Artarat Power Holding Attarat Mining
Company BV, Company B, AP Pre. Ltd,
2024 2023 2024 Z023 2024 2023
RM000 RM'DOQ RM'000 RMOOQ RM'000D RM0OO
Non-current assels 11582538 |l2039.697 11,333 B30 902,045 31,650
Clarent assets L617.674 By 550,842 467102 56,775 5LE50
Men-curent llabslites {11,649,385) (11202925 - - (603,853) (GEE444)
Current liabibities (1,651.341) (1430944} (254,609) (354176} {18.065) (18,C86)
Mot (kabiibes)accots [B0,514) IS 316,566 141246 336,006 22670
(LowsliProfi Fof the Financial yoar [328.632) (142,251} 172,983 1oL.2ma 12,134 20000
Qther comgrehenshe (lossifincome [44,179) 138472 - . . .
Tatal comprohensae (oss)income  (372.B11) A1 172,983 10T 12,134 ZRO00

Included in the total
comprehensive Inoome is:

Revenue 2,602,782 L247.632 864,952 335243 ‘83,681 f1a3a
Other information:
Cash and coth oquivalonts 404, 585 47554 2,632 5040 23,065 20001
Sharehoider's loan and related

intonists (5.938.224)  |5.374,304) - . [146,375) (137.175)
Hank barmmadngs [5,58L.103) (5735212 - - (457, 474) [455.265)
Derivative finandal imstruments 131665 174 517 - - - -
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17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
|t} ReconcHiation of net assets to carrying amount:

Attarat Power Holding Attarat Mining

Company BV, Company BV, APL Pre. Lid, Total
024 2023 2024 2023 2024 023 2024 2023
RMT00 R D00 RMO0D R 000 RMTO00 RMDO0 RHTO0G MO0
Do et Jsis,
1y 22,255 267,58 14245 EERLE Jzz.Em 253004 746,171 S0
(Lol Pt for the
finenchal year (3%8,632) [LelZa) reae3 10270 12,134 28,000 [143.,515) [ILEET)
[ether
omgretensie
(eriincoime [44,179) 138472 - - . . [44,179) 136472
{urency tramiation
diflernie 42 16535 2337 L2 2lo2 25.06E 4401 L0430
Ciering mot
30 jure |0.514) 282255 16,566 T4LME 736,906 ATZATC 562958 T451M
Imterest i joint
venianes diadty
Feid by the Group 45,0% 50 45,0% £5nk 50.0% el
lioug's inferest [40.731) 1=3ams 142,455 ba5al 168,453 161,335 aman LAl
Binnation ol
unveaksed polits - [L2ms - - - - . [127.00%)
rmecognnad sham
of ret dabilties 40,731 - - - - - 40,731
[amying Smournt - - 142,455 ek il 168,453 1BLIF: 310.908 e 1is o]

Thie individusly smmatenal joint veniures' caneng amount = AM156S mlon (2023 AMIS26 million), Group's share of prodits i<
RFGZ.0 million (2023 AMEAL milion) and the Croup's share of Yatal comprohanive incoma is RMIZ] milion (2023 BMILG.5 milion).
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18. INVESTMENTS
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
Nate RM'O0D RMOO0 RM'ODOD RAM 000
HNon-current assets
Fimancial assets at far value theough profit
o loss 18(s} 334,155 315284
Fimarcial assers at far valun through other
compehe s intome 18{b) 181,338 203703 5,308 9338
525,493 518,967 9,398 9,338
Cuprent assats
Fimareial assets at far walue through peolit
of s 18(x) 1,583,383 2000, 574 BE51.643 544,663
[a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Irvestments and in telation to the Tollowdrg:-
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMODO RMOODO RM'ODO0 RM OO0
Income funds’
- \within Malzysia 104 864 AIE B0 - -
- Dutside Malaysia B51.144 B17.539 -
RQuoted equity investmants
= Within Makaysia B.075 5467 B.075 5467
- Dutside Malaysia 9147 Brs 9133 B75
Urtjued eouny Irmsstimsents
- Dutside Malaysia B4,141 65,7544 -
Unuated deb instrument
= Within Makaysia 250,000 250,000 -
Wngquated wnt trusts'
- Within Mikyytis LO101ET 750,183 634,435 530.48]
2.317.538 2315.858 651.643 Ga4 563
Mot faw value galiviioss) on investments™ 212,923 (4,341} 10,777 4089

Fnanca! asseds of fow vahee Pfyvough profit or Bss consist off imepstment in ingome fund's ong ond trusts ploced with Boensed? finanoial
instiitions. The income funds ond unit tnrts ane highly liguid ond reodiy comvenlibde to cosh

btk for ke g enisig frodi e ocquision of shives i Ronhe AW Bedad duiing the frsnd iy,
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18. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
() Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Imvestments are in relation to the folowing:

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'DODO RMDD0 RMDO0 RM000
Quoted squdty invesiments
- Within Malaysia
B i 7700 7492 4 #
- Qutside Malaysia 6,067 Qh54 -
Equity funds
= Dutside Malaysia 157,554 154,358 B
Usnguoted] epity investmenits
- within Malmysia 11,637 20,865 9.394 9398
- Qutside Malaysia 8,340 10,734 - -
191.338 204,703 9,398 949
Nat fair vahie loss an imsstments {17.502) {E1.314) . (2000
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The details of intangble assets ae as folows:-
Contract  Goodwillan  Software Service
rights  consalidation assals Heense Others Total
Kote RMO00 RMDOD RMTOOO RMODO RM'O00 RM'000
Group - 2024
At cost
AL beginning of e Tanclal pear 177.226 9,182,828 734221 - 78,907 10,173,182
Additains 257 - 43,500 - 24,952 6E,709
Acguiksition of & subsidiary 15 - 250,604 15,0684 361606 50 656,344
Currenty translation differences L485 44,369 6712 - 118 52,684
Dipetals . [13.224)  (44,6E69) - - [57.893)
Diluithon af equity intovest in a
stibriddiary - (&8935} . - - (88.996)
Transfor from property, plant 2nd
eouipiment il . - 577 - . 77 ]
At end of the financlal year 178,968 9,384,581 755,425  3HLEDG 104,027 10,804 607
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
Al beginning of the financlal year {154.656) {118,855)  (421.441) - (45.818) (744,770}
Amortisation for e year 7 [2.463) - (59.090) - {6.763)  (GB.322)
Currency translation di fefences [1.354) (438} {4.125) - {56) {5.973)
Dispasal . 13.224 44,669 - = 57,893
Impairment loss 7 . [24,501) (24,815) - = (109,316)
&t erd of the financlal year {158,479) (190,570) [464,802) = (56.637) (870,468)
Met carrying amount
A 30 jure 2024 20,489 9,194,011 290,623 381,606 47,3590 9.834.119

ANMUAL REFPDRT 2024 189

451/615



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

FIMANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
The detalls of intanglble assets are as follows (contkoued) -

190

Contract  Goodwill on Software Service
rights  consalidation assots Othars license Tatal
Note REOOO R OO0 RH'DOD RMOD RECO0D RMO00
Group - 2023
AR Cost
At beginning af the finandal yea 1658E7 402634 B3E334 TL4G64 - 5278259
Additions 153 . 0532 6265 - E5.960
Currency trandation differences 11236 7EO194 34539 L178 BT 147
Transfer from property, plant and
eqUipment n - - BlE - HiE
AL end af the financal yeat 177,226 9, 1E2 628 734,221 7H907 - 10073182
Accumulated amartisation
and impairmant
At beginning of the finandal year (142,455} {1741} [359.296) {43.857) - (B57.34%)
Amartsation Tor the year 7 (2.432) - [5R.B19) [5.58) - (B 577
Impairmant loss 7 - 15 (144} - - {159
Curency translation differences (5,765} (7.054) (5.382) (435 = [22EA5)
At and of the financal yaar {154,656} {118.855) [421.441) {49,818 {7447
Het carrying amount
A 30 june 2023 22570 Q063573 312,780 29,069 - G4Edll

Coodwill only arses in business combinations. The ameunt of goodwil initlally recognised = dependent on the allocation of the
purchase price 1o the fair value of the identifiable assets acquimed and the liabilities avured. The determination of the fair valie of
the assets and lisbiftes is based, to a considerable extent, on management judgament.
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS ICONTINUED)
For the purposes of impalrment testing, gocdwll ts alocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (TG identified accarding to

e Tallowng busingeys dhisions:
Group

024 2023
RMDOD RM OO0
Pawer generatian, Sngapane (A7) 5,548,103 5492362
wiater nrdd soworane, United Kingtam (7 818,770 BT
Listed Uitifties business, Maaysla 259,604 -
Listed Cament business, Malaysia (%7 1.559,241 LE45.237
Crment uminass, Vietmam (T} 208,516 e T
Comnt busnres, Singapore (E7) 192,635 2raLz
Management senices. Singapore (F) 288082 336,637
thers 319,060 321558
9,194,001 063973

Gondtiaall ks tested for impainment on an annisal basks by compaing the camying amount with the recoverable amount of the COLUs,

The ecowerable amount of the Lsted Uilities businass in Malaysia s determined based on far value less costs of disposal (TFyUCEN
cabqulation. FYLED ts determned based on quoted market price and is hald within Lewel 1 i fair value Merachy discosues. Mo
impaimment charge was recognieed for the financlal yesr ended 30 june 2024 a5 the recowerable amount of the COU wis in eucess
of its camying amount.

The redcwifabilo amaunt of the other CEUS wak datedrmined bhaled o valus-in-ee cailtulitond Cash Naw projdtions usad in theds
calculations were based on financal budgets approved by management. Cash flows beyond the final forecasted year were

extrapolated using the estimated growth rate. The growth rate did not exceed the long-tésm average growth rate for the business
divissan in which the COUs operates.
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS [CONTINUED]
{a) Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
The follewing assumptions have been appled in the value-inune ce¥cuation:

2024
A B C o E F
o % L] k) L %
Pre-tan descounts 6.680 4,45 7.90 B8.30 a.30 7.70
Terminal growih rate 200 674 2.00 2.40 o.io -
Rewetrue growth rate 380 110 2.50 .00 (5.36) 178
2023
A 8 E o E F
L e L] B % L
Prp-tan dscounts B53 286 120 as0 F20 B.a0
Terminal growth rate 200 329 1490 250 100 565
Rowisris groswith rate 137 439 1360 320 W 138

The discount rates vsed ae pre-tax and refiect specfc risks relating to the COU, The dscount rates applied o the cash fiow
prafections ane derived from the cost of capital plus a reasonable risk premium at the date of the assesoment of the respective
juri}

Far C4U “A%, cash flow projections used in the value-in-use caloulaton were based on approved financal budgets and forecasts
powpring 4 Theo-yoor poriod. Cash Hlows boyond the Tve-yoar ponod were oxrapelyted using the ostimatod ghowth ratos statod
abiowo, The growth rite did not exceed the kang-term average growth rate in which the COU operites.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
[a) ey assumptlons used in the value-in-use calculations {continued)
The temninal growth rate indicates the expected grawth of cash flows aftor the focast poriod of five yoas

The rusiun growth rate s cakulated Liing the Compeand Aseial Growth Rate mathad and appled an tha cument yead's ks
thgures over the forecast pencd

For CGU 8, cash flows projections wsed in the value-in-use caloulation were based on approved finensl budgets ard forecasts
Covering an ome-year (£023 two-yeal) periad, to confarm the final determinations approved by OFWAT, the economic regudator
af the water sector in England and Walos,

Fod CGU T, cash How projections used i the vailud-in-use caloulation wens based on approved linancial budgets and farecasts
covering a fre-iear period,

Thie dmcount rateh used ane ple-tax and melled specific risks nelating to the COLL Thee coveit selbig price aod saliess volume in
pregaring the cash flow projections wee detesmined bazed on past business perfommance and management's expectations on
thee curnel market canditican

The teminal growth rate usad |s consistent with the average long-term anmia! growth rate for the mlevant industries,

For COGU TF, 7, and F, cash flow projections used in the vaile-in-use caculaticn were based on approved Tinancdal budgets
anel fideiasts covering 4 Tve-yea 10 tEn-yedr peiol Cash MNows Deyored (hie (e-yed o fei-yea perod wee exispolated
usirg the estimated growth rates stated above. Tha growth rte did nat exceed the lang-temm sderage growth rate in which
thie CGU operates.

[b) Sensitivity to change in koy assumptions

The crcumstances whare g change in ey atitumptions will result in the recryerable amounts of goodwill on the 00U 10 equal
thie corresponding carmying amoimnts #Ssumang no changa in the athar variables are a5 follows-

2024
] i] C 1] E F
o % £ L] B %
Pre-tax discounts 14.80 16.97 33.90 i7.80 844 7.70
Terminal grossth ratg (12.60) 674  [lo7.40)  (17.90) (0.17) .
Revisnue growith rate 0.50 (GE.44) [4.90) {3.70) {5.60) 178
2023
A ] c 1] E F
W W % % T ¥
Pre-Lax discounts 1260 1740 1654 ZLor 643 T4z
Termirial groswth rate {21 335 {16709 (3113 218 no4
Revenue geowth fate [ai 1] (4G50} 7H9 {3835) 174 118

During the Haancial yoas, an Imgaimont lois on qondwill amaunting 16 RMBEASO] milian (2023 RMO.OIS milion) was
recogrised in the Income Statement as the ramying amount of the COUs was in excess ol its recoveable amount,
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20. OPERATING FINANCIAL ASSETS

Operating fnanoal assets comprise financial assets in accordance with accounting palices for concession contracts as described in
Mote 28 to the finsncial statements

Group
2024 2023
RM'OOD0 RM'ODO
Presenied as:
MNon-current 404,484 -
Current 234,730
639,214 -
Movements of operating finandal assets 5 as follows:
- Group
2024 2023
Haote RM'O00 RM'ODO
AT pognning of he financlal yoor - -
Acguisition of subsidany 15 639,281 -
Additicns. 4,089 -
Finance income from cperating finandal assets 5.267 E
Rusparymanis (9.6570) -
Currency wransiation ditferencss 255
A1 end of the finastial yoa 639,214 -

Cperating financal assets amounting to RME56.3 milkon is charged for bomowings.
The Ganup enterad N0 variois SENACE concession amangements o design, bulid, cperats and maintain power generzton plants and

water treatment plants both in Malaysia and Thailand These sarvices are primarity rendered under Buld Operste Transfer ("BOT L
Buiiid Operate Cwin MBO0T) and Rehabinate Operate Transfer ("ROTT) contracts with teems ranging from 20 m 30 years.

21 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRALCT LIABILITIES

_!
2024 2023
RM'O00 RMO00
Hon-current
Contract assets 51,996 8263
Cantract cost aswels 2101 43
Contract ainies (47.304) [35,095)
Current
Cantract assets 714,644 3H5,266
Contract cost assets 35.425 IT 423
Contract liabiities {B62,521) (798,709)
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Z1. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Group
o4 2023
RMOOO RM000
Representing:-
Contract assets 766,640 F1559
Comtragt Mabilithes (209,825 [B33,804)
{143,185) (440,27 5)
Contract o5t assels 7,526 38,366
Group
024 2023
RMO00 RMO00
Contract assets and contract liabilities representing:-
nilites [B5,081) [3EL128)
Paopety cEnEk et 41,035 14,788
Constructian {55,886} [64,308)
Hated [53.482) |57.396)
Coment {9.4083) As3L]
Othess (282) IH
{143,185) [4:40.275)
Contract cost aseets representing:-
Lhilities 37,495 EEEN]
Pioperty cevelopment n E .1
37,526 30,366
[a) Utilities
Shgnificant changes. moonlract esets and Babiliie-
Group
2024 2023
Note RMTO0O RMO00
Contract assels
AL begenning of the financial year 243,864 156,472
Transfer to trade receivabies (B89,365) [4.325)
Acguisition of 4 submidiary 233,469 -
Additions prigng from raeiue ecognimed duiing the finadcial o 190,654 04 333
Alowance fof imoaiinrent ol contiact assets T [5.284) (2/622)
At end al the financsl yoear £73.338 243,864
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21 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
{a) Utilities (continued)
Signiticant changes in contract @ssets and labilties (contirsed);

Group
2024 2023
RM'OO00 RM'O00
Contract liabilities
At hegirming of the financial year 564,986 433,906
AnpuisTon of & subsidiany B.921 =
Revenue recognised that was inchded in the contract Rabiity balande at 1he beginning
of the finandal year {541.422) (A31196)
IrErmasos diat o caih feohisd, ichabing amounts meagnised as rsvinia duing thie
finandisd yes E00,732 515120
LCurrency translation differences 5,201 47,068
At end of the financlal yea G38.419 564,985

(i) Assets recognised from costs to obtaln or felfil a contract

The Growp capitalises costs to obitaln or fulfll a contract whith include sales commissians when they are incremental and
copeciod to b mosverad over mane than o year. The Croup aka capitalises expanditieg on assets such o wator mains/
SEWE of new (onnections relating o contracts as they are mourmed 1o fulfil the contracts. This fs presented within
CORLTACt Corst ASSs within “comtract assets” in the Statement of Financal Pesition

Group
2024 2023
Haote RM'OOD RMCOO
AL peginning of the Tinancial year FE.330 24676
Assets recognised from costs (o obtin or fulfil a contract during the
linaicia year 35,059 1,411
Amortisation recogresed during the financlal year Fl [1,966) {1.021)
Charged to cost of sales during the financial year {34.258) [3135)
Cumency irarslation dilferences EEL 403
Ab end of the financial year 37,495 38,330
Thea closing batance of contract cost asse1s consists of
Group
2024 2023
RM'O00 RMOO0
Cantract pcquisition cos 562 158
Cantract fulfiment cost 36,933 10,142
Ar ond of the financial yoar 37,495 1,330
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
[a) Utilities {continued)

(if) Unsatisfied performance obligations

- 300 june 2024

Axoat 30 June 2024, the aggredqate amaunt of Ehe transaction price socated o unsatishied pedarmance obligations
resulting from contracts with customers is HMLBOSLL milkan (2023 RM1,451.5 milon). This will be recognised as revenue
a5 the senices ane provided to customers, which Is expected to ool over thee nest 1 10 7 yoars (2023 1 o B years).

The Graup apples the practcal axpedient in MPRS 15 and dd not disciose infoamation about unsatisfeed performance

abligation far cortain contracts, whiore the tramsaction price cormesponds directhy with the Groug’s level

the futura,

(b} Property developmont

of perfarmance in

Movemant of onrT assens and conracy Kabilioes in neation 10 propery deveapmint is analysed as Tollows:-

Group
2024 2023
RM OO0 REOO0
At beginning af the fnancial year 14.788 {Bh.T6E)
Hevenue recogised dunng the Financial year 165,542 141102
Progress bilings during the firancial year (140,354) {32.905)
Cost incuired Tod project yet to be recognised as ievinue - (23]
Consideration payable to cntomer 1,053 E 1
Considoration receved from customer - (7A45)
At end of the financia year 41,035 14788
Reprasenting:-
Confract assets 45,220 24531
Conract Rabilitis {4,185) 2743
41,035 1a.768

Revenue from proparty development activities is recognised over time using the input method, which is based on the actual
rost incurred to date on the property development project as comgrared o the total budgeted cost for the respective

development projects.

Unsatisfied performance ebligotions

The aggregate smount of the transaction pice slfocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially
satisfied) hs &t the reporting date was appeaxinbtely RMS7.750 madion (2023: RM103.914 milan), al which the Gioup expoects

o recognise as revenue within one year (2023 one to two years] from the financial year end.
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FIMANCIAL STATEHENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

Z21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
{c] Construction
Mevement of contract assets and contract labstios in refation to construction is analysed as foliows:-

Group

2024 2023

RM'O00 RM'ODO

At beginning of the fnancial year {68,308) [327,394)
Reverue recognised during the financia year 78E,965 1203486
Cast incurred for profect yot 1o retognised revarme 41,022 13,437
Prograss billings during the finandal year [B15.565) (957.837)
At enc of the fimancial year {55.886) (68,308)

Comstructon pontracts represent the timing diferences in revenue recognition and the miestone bilings. The miestone ilings
e Struciured andion negatialid with cusiomers 1o milect physics completion of thie contracts,

Contract assets ane transfermed to recehvables when the rights to economic benedits become unonditonal. This usually ocours
whion the Croup issues bling ta the customer. Contract Babilitios are recognised as fevenue whon performante obligations ane
satisfied.

During the financial year, the Group capitalsed depreciation amaunting 10 FM5315 millon (2023 RME 466 milfion) in riation
[0 COMSENCTion conracts.

Inciuded in the contract katklitles & an amount of RME7.696 million (2023 RME7 696 millon] which represents the balance of
thi o7 purchase conslderation af not kss than RM105.616 million fer the acquisition af the Sentul Raya Development Prajoct
St fram Karetapi Tanah Melayu Berdad [KTHET). waich & to be settled by way of phased desslopment, comstruction and
completion af the Ballwiay Village by a subsidiary, Senhul Azya Sdn. Bhd, ("SRSET) for KTMA at its sole cost and expense n
accordant e with the provisicns of the Develapment Agreement dated 8 Decamber 15953 between SESE and KTHE a5 ampnded
pursuant £ the Supplementary Development Aqreement with KTHMB dated 21 December 2000

Unsatisfied performance obligations

Thie aggregate amount af the ransaction price allecated 1o the perfarmance obligations that ame unsatisfied o partially
satisfied as at the reporting date was approximately BM1OL biflon (2023 RM2.75 bilion), of which the Group expacts to be
recognised as revenus In the inancial statemens in the next one 10 two years (2023 one 1o two years)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 june 2024

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
[d} Hotel operations

The Group recogrises contract Bnbilities when a customer pays considoration, or is contractually mequined to pay considoration,
before the Group recognises th retated revenue, The contract Habslities ae expected 10 be recognised a6 revormae within a

yhar.
Group

2024 2023

RM 000 RMOO0O

Contract babilities 53482 51396

Significant changes to contract llablitles batances during the year are a5 follows:-

Contract iabilities 5 a1 tha beginning of the year recognised a5 revenus during the

year 57.396 5436

Avances recelved during the year 233,893 1e3672

Advanoes mesent advarce payment Dy customeds for futen badkengs of Rotel rooms. food and bivevzges and Danspor.

{e} Cement
Group
Z0z4 2023
RM000 RMODO
Amount receivid i athance of delivery o goods 9,489 LR

Ao i recognised whin th control of th goods is trarmdorrod 1o the customer, boing o1 the pain the goods ao delvorad
1 the customer. ‘Wnen the fustomer indially punthases the goods. tha fTarsaction price received at that point by the Group is
recogrised a5 Contract labsny wmil the goods have Been delvered 10 the cUSTImer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 June 2024

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group

2024 2023
Hote RM'D00 RM'O00

Hon-current
Trade racalvablas 398 IBG
Unrealriod kit incoms = [Th=FE]
Other recaivables” 286,526 EE N
L Algwiancs Fof IRErment (330) (331}
Dther recoivalbio (net) 286,596 Eranl
Recefvables from joint ventures® 2.740,152 2481828
Lo Aigwance fof impairmont {36,556} {33.915)
Recahvabled From jaint vantares [net) 2.703.596 24473909
Deposts 82,380 BE7E
Prapayments 24,999 20,455
Met impestmant In leates I4ia) 2,485 4537
Crihed rocehvallion, FYTPL 100,518 lag 924
3.200,952 3.011.400

*  her recenables include 3 receivabile of AMIBZ B milion (2023 BMIS5E.3 million) from a financial institution with an efective
intenest rabe of B.59% (2023 B.90%) per annum. The recevable ks repayable in ful on 1 june 2027,

B Receyables from joint ventures mainly compnisa a shaneholder Ioan with an interest rate at 15009 (2023 15.00%4) per annum.
Thix shangholder loan @nd aconed BEest ang repayabse on cemand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 30 june 2024
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ICONTINUED)
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
MNote RM'DDD RM'ODD0 RMDD0 RM'OD0
Cumrent
Trade recervahles 3,656,189 1,106,540 -
Sharehalder amaunts hold by solicifars 25,3091 10313 -
3,681,580 3117261 - -
Less: Allowance Tar Enpaiemant [B67,513] [GELZ94) - -
Totsl track eecehvabies () 3.014.067 2535967 -
rhar regeivabile q18.082 670,538 B.396 B.OE5
Lirsa: Adlorwanog Tor i pairment {31,944} (LET1TS) {1.765) ':1'?55].
Tatsl other receivalies (net) B2E,148 543,363 6,631 6320
Unbilled recenvables 1,658,290 L.961.246 - =
L Allowiarica: Tar inpairhant {10,155} {G,6E6] =
Tatal unbslled recehtabies (net) 1649135 1554 560 - -
P pay s 486, 487 353,861 396 566
Het Imeesiment in laases i) 2.460 33E1 = -
Depusits 148,595 1tE.61 1.037 1575
6,126,896 5.505,045 8,064 461

Ihe fair value of receivables approximate thedr camying amounts.

Expacted Credit Loss (ECLY) movement analysis & disclosed under Note 40{d) 1o the financial statements.
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s denvative financial instniments are analysed as follows-

Contractual Fair valise
notional s
amount Rssets Liabilities
RM'D00 RM'D00 RM'OO0
Group - 2024
Cash Now hedges
- Fuel swaps 2,911,984 1114491 17,116
= Currency forwands 2,291,586 Z7.1148 1.585
Fair valug through profit or loss
= Currency larwands 104,784 = 2513
138,609 £1.214
MNon-Curent porton 16,353 1.198
Current portian 122,256 20,016
138,600 21,34
Group - 2023
Cash Mow hadges
= Fuel Swaps 1561405 2920 95488
= Currency forwands 227.320 1763 24,5994
Fair valug through profit or loss
= Currency farwands &4} :
21708 120,482
Non- current partson 2879 0,654
Currgng postion lB.g24 110,828
2178 120402

*  Less than RMLO00
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 30 june 2024
23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Hediging instruments used in the Group's bedging strategy-
Changes in Fair wakie wsed
Tor caiulating hedge
Carrying amsunt medfectiveness
Welghted
Conractual Financial average
national Nasety!  statemant Hedgng Fedoged  hidged Maturity
amet  (Llabilities) e item Imstiament item  rate date
EMODD AH'000 RH'D0Q RMD00
Grawp - 2024
Cash low hedges
Fued prace sk
- Fud vy 1) DS hichly iphabla - = Dorivative 6650 [BES0) RMLS3A0  Jaly 2083 -
Varracnond (H5FD) financial et matric tan  April 2024
Instrumenis
= Fue s b0 fexdge highly probiable 56 D008 Deivative nar (3LELT) AM330.0 July 2024 «
varsactions (DATED BRENT) finaneisl pet hasrel My 2008
Instrumints
= Fusd vag b0 Bedge highly probable L0408 Tala2  Dervative 235,081 (235.081) RMIELD Juily 2024 -
Warnactions (KE BRENT) Tinancial e bamel March 20@8
Instrumenits
Foresgn exchange rek
= Forward montricts b hedge haily 2,291,506 25523 Dedvative 40,393 (40330} AMLE July 2024 -
peohabie tensactien Tinancial UsoLoe July 2028
dtfumea
Growp - 2083
Cash flow hadges
Fus! price rak
- Fued s b Bodge hichly probubl SAEER 175 Deduwg E e ] WG80  FMLEMITpN [y 063
ramsahons (HY ) fnarca metric 1n Fpal 204
ity
= Fud s £ esdge highly probable 454,081 [In0s8] Desvatve 1) S0 AMEE |y 2023 -
¥ amaxtiorns ([DATED BRENT) Fnarcdl par barrel Mowrniber 23
Esinments
= Fusd v &5 Bedge hichly probable JE M35 Desviwe A5.550 151550 RMMAT by 2023 -
Faractions (KE BRENT) Enancidl px hamel Mowermber 2025
Ipstnmenty,
Fongn achangs ritk
- Forwand nanitracts tn hedge by LAMam 321  Deivitie (5875 SATH RN iy 2023~
prehabls Ui fnarcid il [y 255
FEinumants
Elaciricity Lilures, i #el
- Blecticty futures o hedge highly - - [Devitwe 145 (Less) RMA5LL Juby 2022 -
piohatie ansatins Enancidl e MivH Derembed 222
iy
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 |une £024

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
{a) Fuel swaps

Fued swaps are enterad info to hedge highty probable forecast fuel purchasas that are expected to ocour at various dates within
1 to 47 monthes (2023 1 1o 29 months) from financal year end. The fuel swaps have matwity dates that match the especied
pitutrence of these transadtions. Gaing and losses resognised (0 the hedging resenye prier fo the ocourence of these
transactions am transferred to the nventory of fuel upon acquisitan ar cost of sabes upon comsumption of natural gas. The
gains and losses refating to fuel inventory are subsequently recognised in the Income Statement upon corsumption of the
ikl Tl

The falr value of fuel swaps is detesmined using a benchmark fuel price index at the reporting data.

(b) Currency forwards

Currency forwards ane entesod into to hedge highty probable forecast fransactions denominated n foreagn cunency expeted
o ocour at varioas dates within 1 to 49 months (2023 1 1 31 months) from firancial yea end. The currency forwards have
matusity dates that match the expecied ccowrence of these ransections.

Gains and losses relating to highly probable forecast fuel payments are recognised in the hedgng reserde prior to the
poowmence of these wansactions and are transferred to the inventory of fuels upon acquisition ar cost of sales upon
consumption of natural grs The gairs and losses relatiag to fuel il imentary ane wbsequently transferred 1o the ncome
Statement upon comsumyrion of the undertying fueds,

For those curmanty forsants used to hedge highly probatile Tomecast foreign cumency payments of peichase of property, plant
and equipment, the gans and kosses are inchuded in the cost of the assets and recognised in the Income Statement over thes
estlimated uwselul bres o pant of deprecation expemses,

Far those currency Torwands wsed 10 hedge highty probable forecast forelgn cumency tramsactions for maintenance contrac b
the gains and losses are Included i payments and recognised [n the iIncome Statsiment over the pesiod of the conbiacls.

The far values of forwand fofeign exchange coniracts is determined using quoted forsard exchange rates ot the reoorting
dare.

24. INVENTORIES

Group
2024 2023
RM'OOD ReM'000
Consumatie siones 54,892 51,665
Finished goods 235,036 242513
Fued 48,220 45884
Progerty held for <ales 66,108 02268
Raw matarialy 305,221 251,136
Sparo pars 462,566 408,359
wark-in-prograss 129,164 123,861
1.301.207 L£19,606
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25. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Freehold Leasehold Development
land land £osts Taotal
Huote RMO00 RM'OO0 RMO0D RMO00
Group - 2024
Cumulative proporty development costs-
At hixgiiviing al the linandial year B3.403 95,332 504,118 B2 A53
Corst mcurmed during the finanda’ year . 5 370,394 370,399
Reversal of completed projects - [EL0] (16, 733) {16,765}
written down - - (73g} (raz)
Cumency fransiation ditferences s - 6,571 1.366
At gl of the financial year B4,108 895,301 B863.618 1,043,117
Cumiilatha cost recoghised in incoma
Statement:
Ar peginning of the financizl year {239.298)
Recogiised durng thie Tinsncial yearn {125,636)
Cumency transiation differences [2.444)
Reversa of completed projects 16,769
At end of the financial year (350.609)
Proparty devalapmant costs al end of tha
finareial year 692,508
Group - 2023
Cumulative proporty developimait cosis:-
AL beginning af the Tmancial year To4TE BE,105 219530 E:ER
Corst Incurmed during the finands year - - 260.339° 260335
Tiansier from land held for property development  14(a) - 227 5,934 13161
‘wrilten down . - (17.424) (17.424)
Cwmorcy tramsiataon ditferences Ta27 - 35339 43266
At end of the financial year B3.403 95,332 504,118 bE2.A53
Cumiilatve Cost recognised in incoma
St ternent:
AL beghviing of the linancisl year (7585)
Recognisied dutng the fnaenclal year 142.547)
Cwrency transkation differences (17,000
At erd of the financial year {239.294)
Property devalapmant costs at end of tha
financial year 443555

b ITeT kel v devpinomend e of BMES 0 melion
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- 30 june 2024

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROMITO RELATED PARTIES

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMOOD RM‘O00 RM'OO0 RM‘O00
{a) Amounts Sue from related pates
Amounts due frome
- Hokding coimgarny 28 114 - -
- Sulmidiasies - - Lo012.582 1096010
« Rolated companies 13,435 5054 6,318 5,462
- Assoristes 35,133 30.923 A6 a7
= [T eI 34,968 EEAE"S - -
B3,564 73,223 LO018.946 L1o2319
(b Amounts oue o related parties
Amounts o o
- Holding company 3z E P! - -
= Subsifiagies - E 17049 571
- Belated comganies 2,699 4,300 74 il
Aezoriatos 9,705 B52 -
= lairTt ventures - 32478 - -
12,733 374970 7.783 5,846

(€} The amounts due TremAo related parties pertain mainly 1o tade reteivables/payables, advandes and payments on behall, The
mutstanding amourts are ursecured, imterest free and payable on demand except for advantes given 1o subsidianes amounting
RM45G million (2023 RM12.7 milkon) which bear weighted average interest rate of 4.806% per annum {20283 4.04% per
anmumy.

(dj The significant related parties’ transactions of the Group and of the Company are disclosed In Note 42 to the financial
statemants

206 ¥YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

468/615



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ey ey
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note RM0OO RMTODO RMODO RM OO0
Dirpirits with ligermed lanks 12,836,845 111953228 239,500 26,742
Cash and banik balarces 1,422,355 123331 3,196 1406
Cash and cash equivalants in the
staiements of financlal pocition 14.259 201 14,425,655 242,696 30,148
Less: Bank oyeedrafts 33 (29.e81) {10818 - -
Less Restricted cash and rash equivaents (203.811) (121.035) - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per
starements of cash fNows 13,965,509 14.293.802 242,696 0148

Cash and bank balances of tha Group included amounts totaling BM16.779 millipn {2023 RM1E.985 million) held pursuant ta Saction
7A of the Housing Developeds (Cortral and Licensing) Act 1966, Those amoums wide restrctad Tfram use nother operations.

The range of mtefest retes of deposits that were effective at the reporting date wene as follows:-

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
% L % &
Deposits with licemsad banks. 0.25-5.50 0.255.39 2.55-5.30 290-310

Deposits of the Croup and of the Company have maturities ranging from 1 day to 365 days (2023 1 day to 365 days). Bark balances
ane deposis hekd ot ol with banks

Restricted cash and cash equivaients relates 1o balances which are pledged a5 security Tor bommwings a5 dscised in Note 33
The Group and the Company seak to invest cash and cash equivatents safely and profitably with creditwortiy ool and offshone

krensed hanks. The local kcansed banies have & Credit rating of Pl 5 rated by RAM Rating Senicas Bhd., The offshare icensed banks
e a credit rating of Pl and Pd a6 rated Dy Moddhy's Imestons Senio, Inc.
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Group
2024 2023

Hate RM'OOD0 RM'000
Cast
A1 beginning of the firanclal year - -
Acquisition of a sutcidiany 15 915.832 -
At end of the financial year 915832 -
Accumulated amartisation
At beginmeng of the financial year - -
Amaortisation thange for the financial year I {33.938) -
At end of the fimancial year {33,938)
MNet carrying amount
A1 30 [une 2024 BBL.BO4 -

Pursuant to the enactment of the Water Sanvices industry Act 2006 (CWSIAT), Penguirsan Asel Air Berhad (PAAET) was
erstablishesd for the purposes of, nter alia, sogquinng the existing wates infrastuciae and’or budd new water asets which will
b loasod 10 water apetaloes.

& suibsidiary af the Group, Ranhill SA] S Bhd (*RanhiliSAT) operating under a keensing regime exetuted a master sgresiment
with el partios. Tor water supidy services i the State of Johor. RanlillSA] fed st exncuted the Taclity agrosmeit with
PARE mainly for the purpose of PAAS o receive the lease rental for the grant of & right 1o use, ocoupy and operate the watsd
refated assets to Ranhillsal

Under the licensing regime, RenhiliSA| shall be required to apply and omply with the wonditions of a service icemse o be
pramed by Ministry of Energy Trarsition and Water Trarsfonnation (PETRAT. Amongst the conditions are the submissian of a
Thiee yedd Dusiness plan, adhiehenie bo a et al key performance micotors and determinaton of the wated Larll by PETRA
upon recosmmendation of Sunihardaya Ferkhidmatan Alr Negara {SPANT)

RanfdlISATS appication for indheual sendce license under Section A{1)b) of WSLIA (AT B55) wes approved by PETRA, and wirk
further renewed in acoordance with the operating perods entered by the subisadiary, Curentty, RanhiliSA] is operating under
the sath operating period with a pesiod of theee years which covers from 1 [anuary 2024 to 31 Decembsr 2026

Apart from the standard conditians st out by SPAN on the individual sarvice fdente o e compsed with under the Sxth
Dperatng Period, RanhiiSA] & wisected 1o cemain specific condiians:-

= The individual ficense grants the right for the Ranhil3A] 10 teal raw water, distribute and supply the treated water to the
CorsuimeErs within the State of |char cily,

+  RanhilBA] ks superdsed by SPAN based on & el of key perfomance indicatars [0y
+  Ranhill5A] s required at al time 1o maintain at least 30% of it Bumipitera equity sharehaldings:

= Ay comparsation ard grant redeived by RanhillSA] Trom the Federal Governmen must be taken mio consideration i
computing the profit margin
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2B. SERVICE CONCESSION ASSETS/IOBLIGATIONS) (CONTINUED)
[a} Service concession assets [continued)

Apart from the standard conditions set out by SPAN on the individual service license 10 be complied with under the Sidh

Operating Period, Rardell5A) (s subjected to certain specific conditions: {cortinuad)

«  RanhillSA] i required o infonm and to provide information to SPAN any matter i relation fo curment, unsettled or threatened
ligation, legal proceeding, arbiral and disputes

«  HanhillSA] shall comaly with the provisions on procurement and supply works. Ay contract of restoration work, maintenance
ardd supply works, ouchuding emergency wiodks should be awarded based on competithe biddings ard the duration of the
contract shall not ewtoed the maximrum period of thoor years:

RanhiliSA] s responsible Tor the operation and maintenance of assets in rendering water supply service to rural or developad
areas in the State of johar,

« RanhiiSA] chall compdy with the Integrity and Anti-Corruption Framewerk for Liconce Holders and Cortifled Agencies which
wart approwed by SPAN on 10 july 2018 in preparing and implamanting appropriate ntegrity and ami-bribery ralated policies,
procedures and comml measures: and

o RanhillSa] munst romply with the teoms nstructed by SPAN from time to tima,

(b} Service concession obligations

Group
2024 2023

RMO00 RM 000
Prsented as
Hod-fumen 559,198 .
Cument 3a5172 -

944,370

HMinimum lease payments:
- within ore yaar Al4.794 -
- Bttt bwi 10 Pan e 575916 -
Tatal mirimum lease payments 990,710
Less: Futre finance charges (46,340)
Presem wvidue of minimum kease pryment 944,370 .
Present value of payments:
- wihin sho year 35172
- between twa 10 fve pears 559,198 -
Prrosisinl waduie o iodtniimum s aayimisniis 944,370
Less: ampunt due within 12 months (385.172)
Amount due after 12 months 559,198
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28. SERVICE CONCESSION ASSETSAOBLIGATIONS) ICONTINUED)
(b} Service concession obligations (continued)
The movement in the service concesskan obligations is a5 follows:

Graup

2024 2023

Hote RMO00 RM'DO0O

At beginning of the financial year - -
Acguisition of a sulsidiary 15 485,714 -
Rigayrend (45, 764) -
Initerist 4,415 -
Al end of the Tinancial year 944,370 :

Sarvice cantetian labilities are in respect of B Base rental payable in scomdines with the Faciity Agraembnt entarad into
with Pengurusan Aset Alr Berhad (PAAGT for the right 1o wse. occupy and operate the water related assets belonging to PAAR,

Thir wesghted awerage ef fective inteérest rates par anum for tha lease rental payable as at 30 jure 2024 is A04%,

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Group/Company
Humber of shares Amount
2024 2023 2024 2023
‘000 ‘000 RM'O00 RM'000
lszued and fully pald:
At baginning of the financial year 11,022,762 11,022,762 3,467,555 3467555
Exercima of ESDS options 40,315 - 24.238 -
At end of the financial year 11.063.077 1022 e 4500783 3461555

During the fnancal year, 39,614,600 ana 700,000 new ondinary shares were Issued pursuant to the exercse of employess’ share
options granted uides the Company's Employee Shate Option Scheme ot on exercioe price of RMOS0 and RMOST respectively, The
new ardinary shares Bsuwed rank parl passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shaces of the Company,

Oun of & tetal of 11,063,075.340 (2023 11,022.762,340) ordnary shares msued and fully paid-up erdinary shares, the Comgary
bolds S3LET5 950 (2003 SEETE.S50) ordinany share as treasury shams, As at 30 june 2002, the rumber of ardinary shares in ivue
and fully paid net of traasury shares ane 11.004,400,990 (2023 10,964,086, 350).

Thie hokers of cedinary shames (excep! tromury shares) ae ontithed 1o recodse dividends a5 and when doclared by the Company, AR
oirlinary shares camy one yote per share and rank equally with regard 1o the Company's residual assets.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL [CONTINUEDI
{a) Treasury shares
The shareholders of the Company granted a mandate 10 the Company to repurchase its own shares at the Anmsl General

Meeting held an 5 December 2023, The Directors of the Company are committed 1o erhance the value of the Company to ks
shareholders and believe that the repurchase plan can be applied in the best interest of the Company and its sharehakiers.

Thete was no repuichase of shares during the financal year ended 30 june 2024,

s at 30 |une 2024, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 50,675,950 (2023 56,675.950) of its 1.,063.076.540
(2023: 1L0E2 752,340) issued andnary shares. Such treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of RM54.451 866 (2023
AME4,45] BEG).

(b} Employees’ Share Dption Scheme 2021 ("ES05 20217)

On B anwary 2021, the {ompany implemented a share issuance scheme knowwn as the Employees’ Share Dation Scheme which
wias appioved by the shareholders of the Company at an Extraondinary Ceneral Meeting held on 1 December 2020, The ES05
2021 is valid o a porind of ten (10) years and & lor employecs and Directors of the Company and/o ils dubiidiaties who meat
the criteria af eligibllity for participation as se1 out in the by-kws of the ES05 2021 (By-Laws'). The sabient terms. of the ES05
2021 are as follows:

{1 The maximum number of shares to be allotted and issued pursuant to the exertse of the optioms which may be granted
under the ESDS 2021 shall mof exceed fifeen per cent (15%) of the total number of issued shares ol the Compary
(excluding treasury shares, @ any) or such other percentage af the tolal number of isssed shares of the Company
(e luling treasury shares, if any) that may be permitted by Bursa Secwrities or any other relevant autharities from time
e i hioughout the duration aof the ES05 2021

{ily  Bavy person wiho s a Director anddor an empioyes of @ conporation in the Group, who meets the folowing oritesa as a1 the
date of offer of an option ("Ofler Date”) shall be ebglie lar comaderation and sefecton by the Options Commiltee (as
dufined in e By:Lavs) To particpate in the ESO5 2021

a)  thi: person has artained the age of eightesn [18) years, B nat 8n undischanged Bankrupt and is not subject 1o any
bankrupicy proceodings

By the person save for @ non-exeoutiee Deector, must be on the payrell af & compary within the Group: and
= hersemployed an a ful-time bass, has not served & notice to resign of recelved @ notice of termination; ar

+  ha B serving in a specific designation under an employment contract for a fixed duration. exchiding thosa who
are employed on @ short-term contract of any other employees under cantract as may be determined by the
Dptions Commatien:

€] the person’s employment, save for 3 nan-exeautive Directon, is for a perod of &t keast one (1) year of continuous
sonicn prior 1o and up to The Do Date, ncluding sorvice during th prabation peod, and fs confirmad o worvica:
and

dy  thee person fulfils any ethor criteria andfor 1als withn such colegory a5 may b set by the Options Committes fiom
time to tims,
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
{b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme 2021 [“ES05 2021%) [continued)

(i) Subgect to the Bursa Securities Listing Requrements and any adustments in accordance with By-Law 13, the subscription
price for shases under the E505 2021 shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company upon recommeandation
of the Cptions Committes and shall be flxed based on the T-day volume weighted average market price of shares, o
guoted on Bursa Securities, immediately preceding the Ofer Date (a5 defined in the By-Laws} of the cotiors with &
dscount of nat mode than ten per cent [10%), i deemed appropriate. or such lower o higher bmit in accordance with any
prevailng guitelnes Haued by Dursa Securiies of sy other felewsht puthories as aménded Trom time to it durhg the
scheme period,

[} Submect to By-Low 13, the Options Committes may. at any time and from time to trme, Sefore or after an option is granhed,
lmit the exercise of the cition ta a maximim number of new ordnary shares of the Company andfor such percentage of
the total ordinary shares of the Company compeised in the options during such period{s) within the cption period.
Natwiihstanding the abose, ard subject o By-Lasys 10 and 11, the options canonly be exercised by e geaes no ealier
than three (3] years alter the Offer Date,

[w) Subpecl o By-Law 122, a grante shall be prohibited Tnom deposing of e shaes slotbed and ssued 1o him Baoogh ths
enerdse of the opticads) lor a pevicd of one (1) year from the date on which the option ks exencised or such other perod
a5 My be determined by te Options Committes at s sole and alscdute dscreton

During the financlal year, the terms and conditions of the BSOS 2021 was revieyed and the Tolowing changes wera introdued -

[} The vesting date shall be 2 january 2024 ["2022 Grant Vesting Date") and

W] The retention perod (2022 Grant Retention Penod) shall be a5 folows:

Percentage of Shares arising from Percentage
the exercised share options of Shares
subject to moratorism released
[calculated on the total number of from Date of release
Shares comprised in the Option)  Shares Retention Period  moratorium al moratorium
Bl Uil 3 Deceintns 2024 20 Wl subgecl to miseal i
B0 Uit 31 December 2025 0% 1 fmuary 2025
Al Urrtil 31 December 2025 20% 1 january 2025
2054 Uil 31 Decomber 2027 20 1 january 2027
] Mo moratanum 20 1 january 2028
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED}
(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme 2021 ("ES05 2021%) (continued)
Trwe mwement during the financial year in the number of share options. of the Company s 2 follows:
Number of share options over ordinary shames

Exercise At 1 July At 30 June
price 2023 Granted Ewercised  Forfeited 2024
Grant date Exphry date  RM/share ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
27012022 050012031 050 30,227 - [39.615) (3.470) 267,142
23.05 2022 05002031 053 6,280 - {700} {70} 5510
316,507 - 140.315) [3.540) 272652

The movemant during tha previous financial year in the nuember of share oplions of the Compary s @5 follows

Number of share options over ordinary shares

Exercise  AL1 July At 30 June

prico 2022 Granted Exercised  Forfoited 2023

Grant date Expiry date  RM/share ‘900 ‘000 ‘000 000 ‘000
2701 2022 0501203 0s0 315,757 - - [5.5'33[- 0227
23052022 D5.01.2031 053 /790 : : (2510} 6280
124,547 : : BO40)  INGS07

T fair vahse of optlans granted for which MFRS 2 “Share-lased Payment™ applies, wore datenmined using the Trnomsal

Waluation modil.

BSOS 2021
Waluation assumgitions:
Expacted wolatlity 26045
Expected dividend yieid A 9509
Expectid optian life 3 ymars
Hesk-free interest rate per annum (basad on Malasia securties: bonds) 1i%

Tre expected wolatility reflects the asswnption that the historical valatility s indicative of future trends. which may not
negessaily be the actual outcome,

Thie share options granted to emplayees were vested on 2 january 2024,
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29. SHARE CAPITAL ICONTINUED]
(b} Employees’ Share Option Scheme 2021 [(“ESOS 2021%) [continued)
Vakie of emgloyes services recetved for ssue of share options:

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'OO00 RM'000 RM'OOD0 RM'DO00
Shanp oplion Expenses
By the Comgiirry 16,775 166 16,775 10,691
[y the subsidlares GE. 420 18082 » -
ABaeation 1o sabsiEte B (8.754) (5597
Total share option aepanmes 85,185 28,713 8,017 5,004
30. OTHER RESERVES
Foreign
curency Shae Teital
Capilal tramslation  eptiens  Statwiery Hedging Revaluation other
resanie resamve msave  resenve! Fuadi FesEne MUsatVe  IERErVE
RMOOD  RMOD0  RMOOD  REMOOD RHOOD  RHDO0O RM'000  RMDOD
Group - 2024
AL beginning of the fmancial year 96,741 LETL IS 26,400 22344  [M40464] (17,063 - L76L203
Changes In far valie - - - - [f5e4d) 130042 4714 0,172
Esctange differences - B7.646 - - - - 67646
Tatzl comerehersive incomedioss) for
the year - ELE46 - - [I5644) 120,042 4774  166ELE
Changes In cormpirsition af the Canup - [L.214) [6,076] - [116) - - [7.406)
lszie of share capital pursiant to share
options evertised - - 16547 - - - - [B54T
Share opton expenses - - 65,947 - - - - &5,947
Currendy trarslatian differendes 143 155 - 195 (58] [24%) .
At end of 1he firancial year 96698 1937932 TLT24 22,439 [(26G2EI) 102730 4774 L970,015
Wotw-

This represenis o resevve Winch meeds o be sef oside porsuont to locol stotutory requirement of on ohocote
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30. OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Faraign
CUFTENCY Share Total
Capital transiation options  Statutory Hedging other
Esane raserve resenie resarve’ Fwacl TEIONVE eV
RM000 RHT00 REO00 RMOOD RAMODO RHDOO RH0O0
Greap - 2023
Al Basgnrerg of e Finandla year S7Di5 BOL5T5 S A4 (EBESST #5E UE 0O6 137
Changes in fair value = . (G470 286355 (MSEE)
Exchange di fesences - L0faS - S
Total comprehentive infome/Tious] for The year = LOTAST4 - . (F9470)  [EBGIGN) EEERLE]
Changes in composition of the Group - - - B4 - 1956 2580
Reciassdication upon desposal of investments
desaginated at FWOD - - - - GIR? - R187
‘Share opbon expenses E - Frdoitd - - E 22652
‘Shae option lipwed . . m - 5 . o
Currency ranslaton diff orences [24) a4 132 224 b ]
A1 end of the Fnancial year BET4]  LATLIAS BE.400 244 [B40454) [LEL = e
Note..

Thy reprosants o ressive which needs 1o e sed e pursuont (o kol stalisoy regunsmend af an Fusaciale
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30. OTHER RESERVES I(CONTINUED)

Share Fair Tatal

aptions walue other

TESEIVE rEsaVe (LTl

RMO00 RM'D00 RM'GO0

Company - 2024
At baginnng of the financial year 14,984 2.664 17.648
ssue of share capital pursuant to share options exencked {4.059) - {4,059)
Share optian xpomes 16,775 - 16,775
A end ol Tha Finandial yea 27,700 2664 30,364
Campany - 2023
At bagnnng ol the financial year 4,370 2864 7234
Chargos in tair value - (200 (200
Share option expenses 10,6491 - 10.691
Share aptian lapsed {7 - (e
At end of the financial yoar 14984 2,664 17,648
31. LONG-TERM PAYABLES
.lirn;;p =

2024 2023

RM'O00 RM'000

Defesmed income 1722531 1561960
Defesred Eabilities 69,638 58,/58
Dopasits 367,120 72738
Payatle to non-controlling intenests 118,372 120,854
(ither payabios 3,390 2168
2301051 LE174T2

The daferred income B in relatian 10 asiots Warkiered from costomers and tonmicet ol the water and deworage business dhvisian
in the UK which are y&t to be provided and shaceholder loan interest revenue. The fair value of payables approximates their caryng
v,
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32. BONDS
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note RM OO0 RMOD0 RM OO0 RM 000
Cumrent:-
Madiiom Trm Notet 32a) 1,193 407 1,050,993 - 240,000
1575 Retall Prce index Cuarentead Bonds  32(h) - 534,473 -
1,193,407 15594, 466 - 240,000
Non-current:-
Mardism Term Notes 32a) 13,493,189 10,155,105 3,825,000 AE00.000
5.75% Cuarant=ed Unseoured Bands 32[c) 2,070,334 204947 - ¥
5375% Cusranteed Unsecured Bonds 32d) 1,188,380 1176284 -
L75% Index Linked Cuaranteed Bonds 32ie) L651.246 1521643 -
13699 ard 1 I74%, Irdisd Linked
Guaranteed Bonds 2h 1,691.246 1521643 -
1ADTH:, 14055 and 1.400%, Wdex
Linked Guaranteed Bonds g} 1.611.945 LalT. 445 -
Z1BEY: Index Linked Gusianiesd Bands A2k} 533,972 o702 -
L5% Cusrantead Unsequred Bonds EF ] 1481356 LABS, Fal - -
1.25% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds 320} 1.763.346 L744.732 - -
5125% Guarantesd Unsacured Sustainable
Bands £ ] 1770813 L5a510 - -
6.5% fuarantesd Unseouired Bonds 32 L1811 - -
o8, 477,538 23,318,657 3,825,000 3200000
Tatal 29.670.945 f4913123 3,825,000 3,440,000
The bonds are repayabla:.
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMTODO RMG00 RMOOO RM000
Mat Latar i T ipedr 1,193 407 1504 465 - 240000
Lafer than 1 year but not ey than 5 years B.125.788 FITLI00 1.200,000 CE5.000
Lanar than 5 wears 20,351,750 1E.147.267 2,625,000 2215000
Tatal 29,670,945 24913123 3,825,000 3,440,000
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32. BONDS ICONTINUED}
The weighted average effective interest rates of the bonds of the Group and af the Company as at the reporting date are as

Fodkoneisc-
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
B L B L1
Madum Term Kotes [ MTNsT 479 475 4.650 445
Honds 545 5.H9 - -

The fair vadues of tha bonds of the Group and the Compary 85 at tha reparting date are a6 Tellows:-

Group Campany
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'D00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00
Leyet 1:
Maduim Term Notes 14,310,631 11.3968, 887 3,988,353 1474901
31.52% Retal Price index Guaranmesd Bonds * 295,966 = -
5.75% Cuaranteed Unsecured Bonds 2.092,955 2,026,964 - -
5,375% Guarantbesd Urneoured Bondy 11776939 1142522 - .
1.75% index Linked Guaraitoed Bards 1.354.524 LE70.211 - -
L3659 and 1.374% Index Linked Guaranteed Bornds 1,966,965 1,954,705 5 -
1489%, 1 495% and 1.495% Index Linked
Guaranteed Donds 1,966,965 L3G525 - -
2186% Index Linked Cudramsed Bonds 283,282 277970 -
1.5%h Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds 1.227.923 1183064 - -
1.25% Guatarmood Unieoured Bands 1.115.972 1,045,294 - -
5125% Cuarantesd Uinsecurad Sustainabde Bonds 1,732,074 LEF4ETI = -
5.5% Cuarantees Urcecurad Boods 1,257,108 - - -
Meduin Term hates 797308 - - -
29,287,496 24,823,201 3,988,353 A473,501

Thae tair wakies aee within Level | and Leval 2 08 the Lair swakie hieachy,

(a) Medium term notes [“MTHs")
{i)} The MTNs of the Company werne issued pursuant to:-

fal  The MThs of the Company were issued pursuant to Commercial papes (TP and MTHS Programme with 3 combined
mastar limit of AMS5,000 mdlon and a sub-Bmit on the CFs programme of AMS00 million pursuant to @ Frogramme
Ageement dated 17 hene 2015, MTHNs af RMZB25 milian [&023: AMES40 millior) remainid outstanding as al
30 June 2024, The MTNS baar coupans rangirg fom 3.65% 10 4.57% (2023 365% 1o 4.97%) per stnum and are
repayabile m full between 10 Apnl 2026 and 27 September 2045 (2023 4 September 2023 and 23 june 2034)
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32. BONDS (CONTINUED]
[a} Medium term notes ("MTHNs") (continued)
(i} The MTHs of the Company were issued pursuant to (continued):-

{& The MTHS of the Compamy were issued pursnant 10 o Medium Term Nates pregramme of wp 1o RMZ000 millian
cons titubed by a Trust Deed and Programme Agreement, bath dated 26 March 2003, MTNs of BMLODD million (2023
RMLOCD milkcn) remained outstanding a5 at 30 [une 2024, The MTHs baar coupons ranging from 4.63% 10 5.15%
(2023 4.53% o 5.15%) per anfum and ane répayalie in [Ul between 11 Navermber 2026 and 11 November 2036
(2023 11 November 2026 and 11 Movemoer 2036).

(i} The MTHs of ¥YTL Power International Berhad Group (“YTLPI™) were issued pursuant to:-

(@) The MTH4 of YTLPI were issued pursuant 1o o Mediuen Term Mates programme of up te RMS.000 mllian ¢onstituted
by @ Trust Deed and Pragramme Agroement. both doted 11 August 2011 MTRY of RM1L5E2S milkon (2023 AM2.025
millian} remained outstanding as at 30 |une 2024, The MTNs bear coupons ranging from 4 52% 1o 5050 (2023
4. 62% to 5.05%) per annum and are repayable in foll between 11 Dotober 2024 and 24 August 2028 (2023 24
August 2023 and 24 August 2028),

(b)) The Subuk Murabahah of YTLP was lsswad pursuant to an tslamic Medwm Term Notes facikty of wp 1o RM2.500
milian = nominal value under tha Sharish principle of Murabehah (via Tawarmeg Armangament) comstituted by a Trust
Dieed and Facility Agancy Agreament. bath cated 20 &pal 2007, Suduk Murabahah of RM2.4957 million {2023
RME, 2567 milian) remaned cutstanding a5 at 30 |une 2024, The Sukuk Murabahah boars & profit rate of S.05%
(2023 50504 per arvium ard s repayable in Tl on 3 May 2027,

{) The islamic Madium term nates [TMTHST) of YTUP were issund pursuant 1o 1slamic Commifeial Papers!islamic
Medum Term Notes programme of up o #5500 million constituted oy a Trost Deed and Programme Agreement,
both dated 13 Marth 2024 IMTNs of HM4.11S millon (2023 RML, 715 milkon) remaned outszandeng as at 30 une
2024, Tht IMTNS Daar profit rates ranging from 4.18% 10 4.9%% (S023: 445% 10 4.29%) per annum and ane
repayable in full between 24 March 2026 and 24 August 2038,

() On 26 January 2008, Sukuk Muralialudi of SA] Capital Sdit Bhd (S8C7) was. Ssued under Wae Sharlali princgpal of
Fhurabatials AMES0 wiillon nominal value Blamic Medam Tem Nobes (Sukuk Murabahah AMES5S0 mellion™, Sukuk
Murabahah ol RMA171 million femained outstanding as at 30 june 2024, The Swok Murabaial bears a profit rate
ol GPEY por antiuin anid repayalie i Tl Detween 24 knoary 2025 snd 25 oy 2030

The Sukuk Murabshah RMESD milion is secuned oser the Tolinsings:

[y first ranking fixed assignment and change over Ranhill Capital Sdn. Bhd, [(RCSETYS entine shasehobding in
Rl SA) S Bhidl. [RanhilfSAR

[y first ranking assignment of all incame and revenue indluding any divdends and distributions received or
recesvable by ROSE in respect ol RESENS sharehaldings in RanhilSA], whether income or capital in nature, and
the payment and repayment of sharehokler's loans and advances received o receivable by RCSD from RanhilSa|
and an sreyocable instructon from RCSE to RanhASALL 1o deposit all the proceeds of the nceme and redenie
Inchading amy dividencs and distributions. mceivable by ROSE from RanhilfSA] to the Rewenue Account

{iii} a first ranking debenture comprising a fieed and foating charge over all present and futuma assets, rights, and
Interests of S4C exchuding the Sukuk Trustee's Relmbursement Account;

(v} @ first ranking fiaed charge and assignment over the Designated Accounts and the credit halances thered and
[v) any owher security as may be atvised by the Solichars.
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32. BONDS (CONTINUED)
{a) Medium term notes (“MTHs") (continued)
{ii} The MTHs of YTL Power International Berhad Group ["YTLP1") were issued pursuant to (continued}:-

fe}  On @9 November 2022, Sulkuk Mursbahah of Ronkdll Solr Ventwes Sdn. Bhd, (RS win msued AMIAS milion
(tranche 1) of the BMIL0 milkan in nominal value of islamic Medium Term Notes under tha Shariah principlo of
HMurabahah (via Tawarmug arangement) ("Suluk Murabahah BM310 million™). Sulkuk Murabahahy of RM142.3 mlicn
ramained outstanding as at 30 june 2034, The Sukuek Murabahah bears a profit of E61% per annum and payahle in
full between 28 November 2025 and 28 November 2042,

Thae tranche | of Sukuk Murabshah RMI10 milkon faclity s secunad over the Foliowing:-

{1 afirst ranking legal acsignment and charge af Banhill Selar | Sdn. Bhd. ("RSEYs nghts, iIntorests, titles and
Benetits under the rfevant RS Project Doetuments indluding all performancs anddor mairterance bands isued
or I be issued to RS in relation 1o thie RS Project and of other guarantess, advance payment bonds and other
forms of payment of performance security (ssued in favouwr of RS pursuant o the relevant ASE Progect
Documents and the proceeds receied therefrom;

(i) a fast ranking legal assignment and change ovir the relevant desgnated accounts opened and maintaned by
tha lmswer and RS respectively and tha crodit balanoes thesein including the permitted Imestmants

{iily  a first ranking detenture comprising a fxed and floating charge over all present and future assets [other than
T ety which ane subject ko security under the other RS Security Documents) and the Generation Lxence
for the operation of the A5 Solar Plant, of the lssuer and RS respectively

(v} & First ranking legal assignment and chame of @ takatul contractafinsurance policies (wath preference whesayer
passible 1o takaful contracts) undertaken of to be undertaken by ASE and

(¥l & first ranking legal assignment and charge of the infertompany Finandng Agresmants by the Baser and RS
respectively,

{1 On 17 juna 2001, Rarhill Sabah Eneny || Sdn, Bhd, {RSEIC) issued B0 million nominal vals Madiom Tam Notes
{"mMTNST) under the Syariah principal of Musharakah, The mMTNs of RMZ500920 milon mmained cutstanding as at
30 June 2024, The mMTNG boar prafit rate ol 635 por snnum and ropayablo o full batwesn 30 june 2025 and
15 june 2023

RM3IE0 million nominal value of tranthi 1 comprise 10 senes af annual redemgtion, matwing annually from 2 to 11
years, The Yield-to-Matuiity ranges from 4.1% to 5.7% per annum, and is repayable sami-annually. The tranchie | has
been fully repaid.

M350 mlion naminal value of tranche 2 comyrise 7 sanes of annual redamplion, matuing antually from 12 to 18
yoars, The Yield-to-Maturiy ranges from 515% 10 5.70% per annwm, and is repayabde semi-annuslly,

The mMTH of tranche 1 k& secured ower the fokmedng

{1 a debontung 1o create a first moking lixed and foating charges over ¥ present and Tuture assots af RSEIL

(i) first assignment and charme af all Ihe Lisse AResment and tha lease on 1he Progct 1znd and boikling Excousng
snteiupard araa ared parts which are to be transferred ta Sahah Electricity Sin. Bho, ["SESET) purasnt o the
Leate Agreamsart;

{lily acharge and assignment of a2 the rights. enafit and imterest of RSEN in and ta the Desgnated Accourts and
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32. BONDS (CONTINUED)
{a)} Medium term notes ("MTNs") (continued)
(i) The MTHs of YTL Power International Berhad Group ("YTLPI™) were Issued pursuant to [continued):

i [iv) assignment (by way of seourity of] on o dAghts imenest and bongfin of RSEN for the Talkmng:

e Project Agreomonts (indudng the rght 1o all iguidared damages fayable thareundor and tho sfight T
reveriais under the Power Puthase Agieement and such step-in-rights under the feme)

applicabie Icenses and permits (10 the exten that 1he leenses and permits are assignabde and no lurther
convsEns ane required 1o be obigined for such asskgiment)

applicable insurance/takaful polices

perfomance bands and guaraivtess fssued in avour of FSEN

amy other security &5 may be advised by the solicitors to the JLAs (Legal Cowrsel”) and agreed with the
LA

The securities will he shared on parl pass: basks with thie Cuarantor in Tranche 1 via the saourity sharing amanpement
in rewpat of the payment abligation by RSEN of the nominal value of pach senies of the Tranche 2.

(Wi} The MTHNs of YTL Hospitality REIT Group ("YTL REIT™) were issued pursuant to:-

Tnie MTHS af ¥TL REIT wene issusd pursasant o a MTNS issuance programme of up 10 AML,ES0 millien constmmed by a
Trust Doed and Programme Agreement, bath dated 11 May 2016

s 01 ond of 1 foparting perod, RMLOSO million (023 AMELS millior) wor isuid 3¢ follows:

Nominal
walue
lssue date Maturity date RM'ODO  Utilisation
3 Nowiember 2017 1 November 2024 3IB5,000  Acqusition of The Majestic Hotel Kuala Lumpur,
23 May 2022 21 May 2027 BOODD  Renavation costs carried out at Ritz Cariton Hotel and
Suite Wing
23 Nowembed 2022 23 Navember 2027 205,000 Refinande pievious Boifownigs Tar The acguitition of
cartain Malaysia Properties.
2H june 2059 2H june 2028 HS,000  Henovstion costs caried out at [W Marmott Hotel Kuala
L
31 Octaber 2023 31 Dctaber 2028 140,000 Acquisition of Hote! Stripes Kuala Lumpie,
A Nowember 2023 3 Nowembier 2025 25,000  Renavation coss carmed our at AC Heels
4 December 2023 4 December 2028 25,000 Reraviation costs carrled out at AC Hotels and capltal
pxpenditure for certain Malaysian propartes.
B Apfil 3024 G April 2029 S5.000  Acquisition of ipol Hotel (Tormery ko o Syeun Hote),
LOE0,000

Thie MTHs upon maturity are redeemabbe 3t nominal valee and expected to be refinanced by the same MTN programme
at the same nominal vahs,

Thiz MTHs boar coupan rales rnging from 4. 78% 10 5.64% (3023 242% 10 S46%) por annum. payabiae semianaually
in amears and are secured by certain properties.
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= 30 |une 2024

32. BONDS (CONTINUED)
{a) Medium term notes |“MTHNs") (continued)
{iv) The MTHNs of YTL Cement Berhad Group ("YTL Cement”) were issued pursuant to:-

In 2016, Kedah Comen Sdn, Bhd, 'KCSET), a submidiory of YTL Coment, had estabished o Sukuk Wakalah Programma
[FSukuk Wakalah®) for the issuanoe of up to RSO0 million n nomingl value of Sulok Wakalah based on thiz Shariah
princiole of Wakalah and Murabahan, It prosicdes KOS the fessbikty (o ratse funds from time to tme which can be wilised
to finance anilfar 10 remburse the scqusition of property, plant and equipmentAinyestments, to fund working capital
requirements and to refinance existing bank borowings of KCSB, The Suluk Wakalah Programme has a tenure of 7 years
from the date of fist fssuance of the Suluk Wakalah which was on 13 januaty 2017 and the final [ssuanoe, ke the ning
isauance was made on @ july 2022

The slath ssuance of Sukuk Wakatah of RMIEO milion In noménal value which bear prefit rates at 4.60% par annum was
fully settled on 13 Janary 2023,

During the cumrent financial year, all the remaining Swadk Wakalah wene fully settled with the details as Tollows:
ial seventh msuance of RML20 milton in nominal value which bear profit rates at 4.55% was fuly settled on 7 Juy 2023

Bl elghth ssuance aof AMIOO milion in nominal seue whic bear profit rEtes an 4 A0% per annum was Tully settled on
11 Decemnber 2023;

fcf  ninth ssuance of RMLOG million in nomina! salue which bear profit rates at 4.25% per annum wat fully sattled on 10
Juiy 2023,

During the previous financial year, Malayan Cement Berhad (MCE%). a subsidiary of YTL Cement. had ectabfshed 3 Sukuk
Murabahah Programme {Sukuk Murabahah®) comprsing an llamic modium term notes CIMTNT) programmie and an Klamsc
commanial papars (9P mogramme with @ combined aggregate Bmit of up to RM5000 milkon in nominal value, bawed
on the Shariah principse of Murabahah (w3 Tawamug arrangament) pussuant to a trst deed and programme agreement
bath dated 18 Oetober 2032,

Tha tenure of the IMTH programme s thinty (30) years from the date of first Bsue under the IMTH programme, which was
on 31 Octebor 2022 The tanuio of the ICP programime s seven (7} yoars from the date of it oo unded the ICP
programme, wivich was on 31 October 2022 The procesds rased from tha Suluk Murabahah Programmes shall ba utilsed
to refinance any exdsting conventional bomrowings andfor existingffuture kslamic finandng facllides. 1o finance capital
expenciture anidar far genedal corporate purposes andfer warking capital regquinements of the Group.

On 31 October 2022 MCE made its fiest lssuance of €P of RMS milion in nominal value to fund the Compamy's working
caplol The ICP bote a ekl to matuity of 11506 per anfem and wis Tully wottied an 20 Mousmber 2022
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= 30 june 2024

32. BONDS (CONTINUED)
[a} Medium term notes ("MTNs") (continued)
(i) The MTHs of YTL Cement Berhad Group ("YTL Cement”) were issued pursuant to (continued):-
A ar e of the roporting pesicd, RMBSS million of IMTN (@023 RMA0S million] wene msued o Tollows

fa@)  IMTA of RMLOD millan im nominal value isswsd on 31 October 2022 and due on 31 Dcteber 2025, bearing 3 pralit rate
of 5.42% por annum, payabio semi-anmialy,

fb)  IMTM of RMBS milion in nominal value Bsuved on 13 january 2023 and due on 13 fanuary 2026, bearing a profit rate
al 5253 per animm, payelie seimi-annually,

fe)  IMTH of RM2Z20 milkan m nominal valua ssued on 26 June 2023 and due on 26 June 2028, bearing a prafit rate of
5,054 per annum, payable semi-annually.

fd)  IMTM o RME50 millon in pominal valse issssd on 1.2 Ooaber 2027 and due on 12 October 2028, beaning 4 pralit rate
of 4.5959% por anrum, payable semi-annually,

fe)  IMTM of RME0O million in nomnal vale ssued on 11 December 2023 and due o 11 December 2029, tearing a prolit
e of 50F% per anou, payalie seeni-onmely,

The above ssuances of MTNs were mainly for the relinancing of one of ity sutrstdiaries’ exisong financid debis escept (o
IPTT wrvther (nisim i) wihich wins Ui to setile part of tee term oan of MCB.

{b) 3.52% Retall Price Index Guaranteed Bonds ["RPIG Bonds™)

The RFIC Bonds of Wessex Waler Sendces Faance Pic, of GBPS0.0 million beat Interest sem-annusly at zn intarest rat= of
3.529% initially, Indexed up by the inflation rate every year, The ellective interest rate as at 30 june 2024 |s 727% (2023
T27%) pr s antd redeenied in Full oo 30 july 2023 ot their indexed vahee Togedier with o soued inlere

{g} 5.75% Guaranieed Unsecured Bonds ["5.75% GU Bonds™)

Under a Trust Desd dated 15 October 2009, Wessex Water Services Finance Plo [Mssusr”). (ssued GEPFS0 millian rominal valus
5,75% GU Bonds unconditionally and imewecably guarantesd by Wessex Water Services Limied. As at 30 june 2024, the 5.75%
GU Bonds of RM2.070.334 million [GEP347.342 million] (2023: RM2, 042479 million [CEP247.122 million]] remained
outstanding, net of amortied fees and discount,

The Boruls bear nterest a1 5.75% per annum, payable annially. The Bonds will be redeemed in full by the Issuer on 14 Oclober
2033 @t thelr nominal value together with &l scoued inferest,
[d) 5.375% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds (“5.375% GU Bonds")

reder i Trust Deed dated 10 March S003, Wessex Waler 3ervices Firance P (Tlssuer™), ssued CEPZO0 mallion rominal value
5.375% CA Bonds unconditionally and irmevocably guaranteed by Wessex Water Services Limited, As at 30 [une 2024, the
5.375% GU Bonds of RML1B8.380 milion [CBP199.376 millan] (2023 AMII76.284 milllon [CB199.228 millon) remained
autstanding, net of amorteed fees and dscount.

The Boruts bear inferest at 5.375% per annum, payablz anoually, The Bonds will be redesmed In full by the Bsuer on 10 Maich
2028 4t thes poming valusr togethes with & acoroe interesl
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32. BONDS (CONTINUED)
{2} 1.75% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds (“1.75% ILGU Bonds")

Under & Tnint Deed dated 31 july 2006, Wessax Water Services Finance P, (Tssec], lssued two [£) tranches of GBPFS milion
nminad value 1.75% LGU Bonds unconditicnally and inevocably guaranteed by Wessex Water Servdces Limited. As at 30 june
2024, the 1.75W LGU Bonds of AMLGE] 240 milion [CEPSDEM4E million] (2023 AMILSZ1.04T mikon [COFZ57.7E2 miBon])
remained outstandng. net of amostined fees and discount.

Thir L75%: ILGL Dands bear interest semi-annially 41 an interest rate of 17596 inltialhy, Bdeoed up by the inflaton rate every
year, The sHective Interest rate as at 30 june 2024 is 341% (2323 324%) per annum, The Bonds will be redeemed In full by
the lssuer on 31 |uly 2046 for one tranche, and 31 July 2051 for the other tranche at ther indexed value togethar with al
aoced inenst.

(f} 1.369% and 1.374% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds (“1.369% and 1.374% ILGU Bonds™)

Under a Trust Deed dated 31 Jaruary 2007, Wessex Water Sendces Finance Pic, (Tssuer®), isued CBPTS milion nominad value
1.369% ILGY Bonds and GBP?S millon nominal value 1.374% LGU Bonds, unconditionally and |rrevolably guaranteed by
Wiridex Wister Servioes Limited. As 3t 20 June 2024, the L.309% and 1.374%, ILCY Bands of RMLG91.246 millien [GEP2ATTAZ
milion| (2323 RML521 643 milion [GBPZ5T.T22 milkonf} remained outstandng net of amartised fees and discount,

The L.365% and 1.374% ILGU Bonds bear interest somi-anmualy at on interest rate of 1.369% and 1.374% initially, inceued
up by the Inflation rate every year, The effective interest rate as at 30 june 2024 iz 267% | 2023 254%) per annum. All Bonds
willl bex recissmed 0 Tull by thi s on 31 July 2057 at thein indexed vabuis togetle with all aocioed insess,

{g) 1.489%, 1.495% and 1.499% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds ("1.489%, 1.495% and 1.499% ILGU
Bonds")
Under a Trust Deed dated £8 Seprember 2007, Wessex Water Services Finance Pic. (Clssues) issued GEPSO milkon rominal
value LABIH: ILCL Bonds, GEPSO million nomiral value 1.495% ILGU Bonds and GBEPSO milkon nomenal vakis 1.499% ILCU
Bonds, unconditionally and irevocabily guaranteed by Wessax Water Senvices Limited, As at 30 june 2024, the 1L485%%, L490%
and 14554 ILGU Bonds of RMLELLS45 million [SBFZ70.438 milllon] (2023 AML417.445 milion [GBP240.075 milien])
remaned outstanding, met of amodtsed fees and disoount.

The L4859, 1495% and 1.499% LGU Bonds bear interest semi-annualy at an aderest rate of L4894, L495% and L499%,
Irethaty, mokiaisl up by the nflation rate every yes, Thie effec i interest rate as &t 30 [une 2024 15 2.80% (2023 2 E9%) per
anmum, All Borcs will be redeenesd in full by the Bsuer on 29 Novenbier 2058 at thes mdeaed value togatier will of| scornssd
Interest.

{h} 2.186% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds [“2.186% ILGU Bonds™)

Undier & Tiust Deed dated 7 Septembaer 2003, Wessex Water Senvces Finance Fic, (Saoer) isswed GEPS0 milion nominal walus
2186% ILGL Bonds unconditionally and imevocably quarantesd by Wesses Wale® Senies Limited As a1 30 june 2024, the
2186%: ILGU Bonds of RMS33.872 millian [CEFE9585 maben] (2023 RMSO7.021 milllon [GBPES.E7S million]) emained
outstanding et of amonised lees and discount,

The 2186% ILGU Bonds bear imterest semi-annually at an interest rete of 2186% nitlally, indexed up oy the inflation rate
wrvarty Bl v, Thg asITasd biwer inBisasssl tadie o of 30 Jure: 2024 b 292% (2023 3.76%) pir s This Botich will Lae e
iy Bull bry the tsswer on 1 jue 2039 ot their indesed value together with ol scconoed interest,
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32. BONDS (CONTINUED)
[} 1.5% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds (“1.5% GU Bonds™)

Under a Trust Deed dated 17 September 2019, Wessen Water Seraces Finance Pic, (Tssuer™) ssued CBP250 milkon nominal
wale 1.5% GU Bonds [retalring GBPSO millon) unconditionally and imevocably guarantesd by Wessex Water Services Limited.
0n 15 june 2020, the retained GOPSO million nominal wilue 1 5% QU Bonds was isued. As a1 30 jupe 2024, the 1.5% GU Bonds
af RMLAGLI56 milion [GBF248.529 milion] (2023 RMLAGS 731 mllon [GEP248.262 millian]) remained outstanding. net of
ameartised fees and dricount

The Boruls bear interest at 1.5% par annum, payable annually, The Bonds will ba redeemed in full by the Issuer on 17 September
2029 at ther nominal value together with all accrued interest

ljji 1.25% Guaranieed Unsecured Bonds {"1.25% GU Bonds™)

Undet Trust Deed dated 12 fanuary 2021, Wesses Waler Services Finanoe Pi (TRseer™) Bsoed GOPI00 milion nominal valse
1.25% GU Bonds unconditionally and imevocably gusranteed by Wessex Water Sandoes Limited, As at 30 june 2024, the 1.25%
CU Bonds of RMLTET 346 millon [GEP205.839 million] (2023 RML, 744,732 milkon [GBP295.507 millon]] remained outstanding,
niet af amartised lees snd discount.

The Bonids bear interest at 1.25% par annum, payable arnually. The Bonds will be redeemed in full by the lssuer an 12 January
2036 at ther nomanal value togother with ol accrued inferest,

(k) 5.125% Guaranteed Unsecured Sustalnable Bonds ("5.125% GUS Bonds™)

Under Trust Deed dated 24 March 2023, Wessex Water Sarvices Finance Pic. (Mlssuer”), Bsued CBP300 milen nominal vake
31E5% GUS Bonds wunfonditionally and inevedably guaranteed by Wessex Waler Services Limimed. As at 30 june 2024, the
51253 GUE Bonds of RMLTADALT milkon [CRP297.09] man] {2023 RM1L 759510 millien [GRP2SEL0MD millan() rerained
outstanding as at 30 june 2024, net of amortsed fees and discount.

The Barls boar interest at 5125%, peramum, payable annually, The Borb will be redeemed in full by the ssues on 31 October
2042 at their nominal vakue together with all accrued interest.

[I} ©.5% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds [“5.5% GU Bonds”)

The G.5% GU Bonds ane all ssued under a GIPS,000 milion Cure Medium Term Note programme lumched in September 2023
and associated supplements. On 15 Movembier 2027, Wessex Water Services Finance Pic, (Tsuer®), issued four bonds totaling
GEFE00 millkon nommal value 6.5% GU Bonds unconditsonally and imevocably quaranteed by Wessex Water Services Limited,
As at 30 june 2024, the 5.5% CU Bards of RML1ELTLL milion [CEPIS8.257 mlion] remained outstanding, net of amanised
fioes and dscount

Thes Bonds. bear internesl at 5.5% (e annum, payablie anreally, The Bonds will be redeemsd in Tull by the Bsyer 51 GEP3 5 million
on 15 November 2033, GEP2S milion an 15 November 2035, CEPES million on 16 November 2038 and GBPSS millan an 15
Hovember 2043 at thelr nominal value together with al accrued interest,
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33. BORROWINGS

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note RM'DOD RM‘ODO00 RM'DO00 RM'OO00
Current
Bank overdralts Ay 59,881 ioe18 - -
Hirg puichase wedidors 33 2.293 2,294 90 55
Revalving credil INc) 2,309,121 304,152 966,855 LUNGGESS
Term baars F3(d) 2370944 EREE K] -
Trade fachities 33(a) 27.614 2,485 3 s
4.799.853 68,204,377 966,945 1116810
Non-current
Hing purchasi: oridtars 33 3.354 4,053 167 -
Renvbyireg) credin INHe! 2.954.507 2678146 125,000 .
Tesm koans 330y 9,186,260 12,654,053 = -
Cormertible uratured kan Stk 31} 6977 - - -
12,151 098 15336292 125167
Taotal
Bank overdrafts F3a) 69,881 10818 - -
Hire purehase craddars EEN ] 5647 6387 257 55
Revolving cradin ) 5.263.628 R ] 1.091.855 LUGASS
Tesm loans EEIL] 11.557.204 15,799,041 - -
Trade lacites e 27,614 2465 - -
Carmertite unsacured kan s1ocks 33| 6,977 - - -
16,950,951 Z154L0E9 1092112 1116910
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33. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The bormowings of the Group and the Company ane repayable as follows:-
Later than
Mot later 1 year but not Later
than later than than
1 year 5 years 5 years Taotal
RMODD RMODD RMrOOO RMFOOO
Group
At 30 June 2024
Bank oo riral e B9.881 - - 89,881
Hirg purchase creditors 2,293 3,354 - 5.64T
Rmmibing credit 300,121 2,954,507 - 5263628
Term |oam, 2,370,944 7.826,689 1,359,571 11,557.204
Trahe Tacilities 27.514 . E 27614
Comwvertiie wmsecued lnan stocks (MOULST - 6977 - 6977
4,799,853 10,791,527 1,359,571 16,950,951
AL 30 June 2023
Bari overdralts 10818 . - 1oE18
Hrie purchase crisditon P 003 - G387
Revoking oredit 1044192 2678146 - GrE2338
Term loans 1144908 10559,775 2054278 15752041
Trade tatilitios 2485 2485
6.204,777 13282004 2054278 2151059
Company
At 30 june 2024
Hre purchaze creditors a0 167 - 257
Revatang credt D66, 855 125,000 - LO9LE5S
966,945 125167 - 1092112
At 30 June 2023
e purcihaso croditoes 55 - - 55
Revohang oredit 1,116,855 i = L116855%
LI1GS910 £ - LI1Ga91D

The Earrying amaounts of the bormowinigs af the Grolg and af the Company a5 3t he reponing date approxdmanes their falr values.
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33. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED}
Thie withghted average alfelive interest rates of the boffowings of the Group and the Compary a3 a1 the reparing date e as

follows:
Graup Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
% B W W
Bank averdrafts 674 213 - !
Revalving credit 5.46 472 4.25 4.29
T loans 512 478 - -
Trade Faciities 4,36 380 - .
CuLs 1250 - - -

(a) Bank overdrafts
Al the bank owerdratt Facliities are unsecured and repayabie on deamand.

{b} Hire purchase creditors

The Croup’s finance lease bears mtehest rates ranging from 1.70% to 4.38% (2023 LA%% to 4.36%) par annum and the
Company's finance lesse Dears Interest rates ranging from 215% to 2.26% {20231 2.15%) per annum.

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'DO0 RM'DOD RM'O00 RMOOO
Payable mat lytar than 1 year 2436 24652 o0 56
Payable later than 1 year and nat later than
5y 3,581 4,288 174 1

Later thsan § years - A - -
Total minimum lease payments 6,017 6818 273 56
Lews: Firaice chaiges {3ro} {431 16} {1
Present value of minimum lease pgyments 5,647 G367 257 55

{c} Revolving oredit

Save for KMBAT.6 million (2023; AMES4.5 milion] revalying credit faclity of the Group which secuned against propertes of the
subsidianes, all thie revobdng oed facilibes e unsecured and repayabls on demand.
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33. BORROWINGS [CONTINUED)
{d) Term loans
(I} Term loans denominated in Great British Pounds
Includied in the term loans arec-

o) The term loans of RM2939.0 million [GEFS0 milkon] (2023 AML1B0E miion [G8R 200 milion]) are unsecured loans of
Wessen Water Servces Limited and are quaranteed by Wessex Water Umited. The first loan of GBPSO million was
dranm deren £n 30 fanuary 2015 and fully repasd on 30 pruacy 2024, 1t bore an interest rate at 2.36% (202 2.06%)
per anmim. The second ioan of GEPSO million was drissn down on 9 March 2015 and fully repaid on 11 Maech 2024, it
bofe ML faies randging from B00% to G10% (2093 L0 to S 19H:) per annurm, the thiid loan of CEPSD indlion
wars drawen dovm on 3 Aprdl 2005 and Tully repaid on D Agel 2024, 1t bare an interest rate at Z190% [2023; 2199) per
anruen. The Tourth loan of GBPSD milion was drawn down on 25 May 2016 and beats intoredt rtes ranging from
GAL% 1o 6.50% (2023 2199 1o 5.62%%) per annum. The fourth laen i repanrablo in bl on 25 May 2025

b} The term loars of AMASED milion [GEP144 million] (2023 RMLIBOE millon [CBP200 milion]) was draan down by
WWiessex Watar Servces Limited of which RMB52.2 mifion [CBF143.0 milion] {202% RMS40.0 milion |CBPIS9.2 milion])
remained outstandng as at 30 june 2024, ret of amortised fees. The loans bear interest rates ranging from 621% 1o
B52% (202 2.20% 10 516%) per annum and are repayable with a E07% bullst repayment on 31 Bruany 2026 with the
rernaining 405h beng repaxd in equal semi-annual instalments commending 31 january 2021

{€)  The term loans of RM44T.0 million [GEF?S million] (2023 AMA428 millien [GBPTS million]) i an unsecurad kan
wiich wiars drawn cown by Wiessex Water Senaces Limined on 21 July 2022 of which RM&47.0 million [CBRTS million)
(2023 RMAFS.2 milian [GEPTS 4 milion]) remained oulstanding as an 30 june 2024, net of amorsed fees. The kans
Bear interest rates ranging from 5949 1o 6.42% (2023 2.20% to 5.16%) par anrum and are repayabie with a 60%
bullet repaymant an 31 amsary 2029 with the remaining $0% being fepadd in ecual Semé-anmaal instalmaents
commencing 31 january 2026,

() The term loan of AMESA] mdlinn [OEP1S0 millon] (A023 RMBES.G milion (G850 milion]) is unrsecured loan which
was drawn down by Wessex Water Services Limited on 14 Octebar 2022 of which BMESL.4 milion [RM150 milkon)
[F073: RMARZ. 7 milion [GEP149.5 millan]) semained oulstanding as at 30 june 2024, net of amontised feas. Thi an
bears interest rates ranging from 6.14% to 644% (2022 4.55% 1o 55496) per annum and is repayatie in full on 30
Novmdier 2032,

fe) The tem loan of RM745 midfiicn [GBRIZS millon] (2023 RMT3E milion [CEPIZS million]) is an urseoued loan of
Wetsax Wator Limited, The laan boars intores rates ranging from B27% to 6.36% (2023: 4.90% 1o 6.03%) par
annum and 5 repayabie in full on 29 Novamber 20204,

Sawe for the above. all the 1erm lnans are urseced.
(il} Term loans denominated in US Dollars

Included in the term loars ares

fa)  The temm ioan of AMFOT.S millon [USD150 milon) (2023 RMS35.8 million [US0200 milicn]) was drawn down by
¥TL Utilities Firance 4 Limited on 25 Movember 2020 of which RMPO2E million [USEH48.9 milkon) [2023: RM334.6
millicn [LSDES9.8 million]} remained outstanding as at 30 [une 2024, net of amortised fees. The term loan fs
gusranteed by ¥TILPL The borowing bears interest rates ranging from 6.93% to 6.97% [2023: 3.02% to 6.97%) per
annu and 5 repayabie on 21 Nowember 2026,

All thea torm loans are unsecuiod
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33. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
[d} Term loans (continued)
{iii} Term loans denominated in Ringgit Malaysia
Sarver o Th Term lean af RMZ007.7 million (2023: AM3,442.5 miien) of 1he Group which secwnod aganat quatcd shares
and propertios of the subsidiaries, all the term laans e unsecured
{iv} Term loans denominated In Singapare Dellar
Inclusdiesd Bn thee Terms Ioan ane-
fe) Thie o koan of RME, 25914 million [SG01.995.0 million]) (2023 RMEEBE] million [SODLISS0 milion)] wis i
down by ¥TL PowerSeraya Pie Limited on 14 September 2017 of wisch RM2,1561 milion [SC06206 milion] (2023:
RME,Z34.4 milicn [SCDL2668 millken]) iesiained oulstanding as at 30 juke 2024, rot ol aneiised lees. The botiowing
wos pelinanced oo 1 e 2022 and i egeyabie in Fulon 1 juoe 2027, The term bosn B secuned by chames over certain

assats of AM2BE6.2 million (2023 AMZ2928 milon) and shares of YTL PowerSarays Pie. Limited. The bomowing
s BRIEST @S ranging from 5.01% 10 548% (2023 3151% 10 S48%]) per anmum,

(B} Tha tarm loan of RM795.1 millicn |SG0E30.0 million] (2023 RMTS3.9 milllon [SC0230.0 millon]) was drawm downs
by Taser Power Pte, Ltd on 1 June 2022 of which RM250.8 milion [SGD751 milion] [2023: RM512.2 milion
[SCD14B.4 miBon]) remaned outstanding a5 at 30 june 2024, net of amarticed fees. Tha term loan s secured by
chamges ower tartain assets of RML207.1 millian (202 3: AMLZ556 mifion) and shares of Taser Powar Pte. Ltd. The
borrowing bears interast rates ranging from S11% o 5.48% (2023 351% to 548%) per anrum and is repayable
on 1 jurs 2027,

{v}] Term loans denaminated in Australian Dollar

Tesm loans of RMILSS13 million (2023 RMLSEZ6T million) of the Group are secured by first Tised charge over the
peoperties of the subsidanies.
{vi} Term loans denaminated in japanese Yoen
Torm iaan of RM30E milicn (2023 AMI36.2 malioh] af the Gaun e secutod by T B fhaign ower thi propertie
of the submsidianes.
(e) Trade facilities
All thie bankars’ acceoiances e useoured and repayabe on damand,

It} Convertible unsecured loan stocks ("CULS")

CULS of RMESTY milkan will be matured on 30 june 2025, TULS bears an interest rate a1 12.5%: por anmmem and & repayatile i
cashon each anriversany date of the CULS but |s subject to lenders requirement and at the drscretion of Ranhil Sabah Energy
| 5on. Bhd CULS comvened before apnyversany date wll not be entited to the annual interest. On maturity date, the CULS, it
nid ealier pormeerted, will be redeemed Tor its full principal smount togelher with al wnpaid accrued intesest
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES
The detalls of laase llabilities are as follows:-
Group Compary
2024 2023 2024 2023
RMTODOD RMOQO RMODO RM 000
Presanted s

Man-curment 1,233,511 Lo 322 9,205 -
Cument 739,506 260,388 6,632 2339
1.973.017 1.354,710 15,837 2353

The Germip's maturity profile ol s Rabelities are decleded i Nate 40{a) 10 the Bnandial statements

Extenslon and termination options ane included in a number of popety and equipment leases atoss the Group and the Company,
Thesa e wsed to maximse operational fledbility in terms of managing the assets usad in the Group and the Company's operations,
Thie magarity of extemsion and termination options held am exercsatie only by the Group and the Company and not by the respective
s,

{a) Met investment in leases

Group

2024 2023

RMODO RMO00

At haginning ol the financial year a.218 1h3z

AT - B&

Intiest ingome 261 433

Lesze payments recelved [3.316) |2.Fa1)

Foéasses st g a1ion (238) [

At ond af the finandial yoar 4,925 B8
Presamted &s!

Mo cutan 2,465 4.83r

Cuvenst 2460 1381

4,925 -Fal:]

True Geoup l2ases mixer trucks and cquipment 1o thed parties, Each of the leates contalns non-cancelisble pedod of 2 to 7
YR,

Thiesa leases transfer substantially all the rick and reswards Incidantal to ownership of the mixer trucks and egquipment. These
leasas do not include buy-back agreomants of esilual viks guaramess,
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
{a) Met investment in leases {continued)
The lease payments 10 be received ae a5 lollows-

Group
2024 2023
RM'DO0 RM'000
LESS than 1 year £.609 3,650
1 o 2 years 1434 el
210 3 years Boa 1504
ER-E XA 236 Tad
4 to 5 years i) 13
Mare than 5 years 15 -
Total undiseouniod ease paymants 5179 872
Lingarned iMorest income [254) [454)
Het investment in leases 4,925 8.218

35. GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Group
2024 Z0E3
Hote RM'OO0 RM'000
At bagnneng of the financial yeas 699,025 620,655
Currency manslation differences a,862 B5,270
Amortsation of grams and contrbutions 7 (23,443) [17.561)
Becetved during the financial year 37,430 31,051
At end of the financal yea TEZLAT4 B99,025

Grants and contributians manty comprise grants in Toreign subtdlaries in respect of specific qualifying expanditune on bl rastre une
assets and 3 cogensaration plant,
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36. DEFERRED TAMATION
The fobowing amounts. dstesmined after appropriate offsettng. are shown in the Statements of Financlal Position

Groiip Cafmpany
2024 2023 2024 2023
Mote RMOOD RM'DO0 RMODD RM'DDO
Dediamed T assets {338,369) {F53.008) + r
Dedarred 13 labdites 3,763,739 708 13 113
3,425,370 419,940 na 113
The gross mowsment o the deferred intome tax account is as Tallows:-
At beginning af the financal yoar 3,419,940 129MmM7 13 113
{Crediied) Thatged 10 Incomae Statemenis 8 {33,939) E2190 - -
= Property, plant and equpment 276,830 106,660 - -
= Property develaEen [3,506) [#.405) - -
- nveitmend propertes 1,798 4,250 - -
= Retiement benelits 217 {55,937 ~ r
- Prowision [7.542) {1116} = :
= Unutilised capetal alosancs 28,292 18,753 - =
= Unabsorhed fax rsses (339.762) (24, 818) - -
- Haght-of -use assets 12,276 )
= LibriEs (4.582) 3374 - -
- Others L340 15429 - -
Cunency transkatian differences 30,208 311,067 -
Acquisition of subridiany 15 18,564 - . .
Credited ta Othar Comprahansive inmmea” [9.403) [a3.234) - -
At e of the financial year 3.425.370 419540 13 13

T Thit & i reirian 1o b e or e of porT-0enainynent Denofit abligotion

Deefirrred tax assets and lisbifities are affset when thete i a egally enforceabls dght 1o %0 off intome tax assets against incofme
tax Babilities and when the deferred taxes relate 1o the same tax authority.
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The folowing amounts determéned after approgniate olfsetting are shown in the Statements of Financdial Positon (continued) -

Graup Campany
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM0O00 RM'000 RM'DOO0 RMO00
Dafeired tax assets provided ane in respect of;
Dafemed tax avsets before offsetting
Unutilised capital allowances (90.568) (118,690) - -
Retirarmont benedis [9.,779) (B.73E) - -
Linabsorbed fax losses {716,658) [F02.272) - -
Prowision (45.049) [35E7E) B -
LES 12,362) 15,091) . .
Others (61,005) (10,863) - -
(925.511) (HB2474) - -
Deferred tax iahilities prosided are in respect aff:-
Defetred tax labilities before offsetting
Property, plant and equipmen]
= capital allowances in excess of depeoriatan 4,193,528 38522173 113 13
Land] hodd for property dealopmient 40,719 J2E54 - :
Others 58,911 B7.587 - =
Righi-of-Le a5uris 48,931 = = =
Restirmment benedits 8,792 - - -
4,350,881 3962414 113 1n3
Tatal 3.425.370 3419940 113 13

Datemed tax assels have not been recognised in respect of the Tollowing tam:-

Group
2024 2023
RM‘DO00 RM'O00
Unabsorbed tax losses 2,012,764 1,760,458
Unuitilied capital allowances 1,690,043 LETaS7
Diaduic tible temporary dferences 599,427 £94,784
4,302,234 3630259
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION [CONTINUED)

Under the Malaysla Finance Act 2018 which was gazetted on 27 Decernbar 2018, the Group's unutlised tax bosses in Malayus fax
entities with o expiry perod wil bie imposed with a time fimit of utifsstion Any accumulated unatilised tax ks brought forward
Fram year of assessment 2018 can be canied forward for anather 7 tomecotive years of ssessment. The Malaysia Finance Act 2021
has subsequently extended the utilsation period 1o 10 years.

The Group bas undstributed esnings from subsidiories. inoorporated outside Malaysio, could be subject 1o tax I distributed, An

ESTLAY IS 1E’|II"}LI“}' chllerence exsty, Ul mo defermed 1ax H.Ill-'l.'.' P L lI!lI'.H_.rIIHH.'l o5 1he EIHI.I].'I |5 alile 1o costiol the 1HHH!:|
o distrilutions froin hese sadriciaries sl & ool expeded [0 detibote Meese poodils in e fomeseaedble Tutue.

37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT DBLIGATIONSSIASSETS)

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
Mot RM 000 RM0DO RM000 RM000
Defined contribution plans - Current
- Malaysia IMal 7,413 5,837 334 26
Delined benelit plans - Curient
= Malaysla Ik 13,8681 . -
Defined benefit plans - Non-cwrment
= Malaysia BRI 73,225 21169 - -
- United €ingdam 3] (31.124) (B2, 314) - -
= ndorasi IFid] 15392 17257 - -
- Thalznd 1.867 & = &
59,360 [25,B88) - -

[a) Defined contribution plans

LIoun comparnses intarporated in Malaysia commbute 1o the Employees Provident Fumnd, the national detined comtritiaion plan
Ninia the contrhutipns hive baen pad, the Group and the Compaiy Bave oo hethes paymant ohligations,
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/(ASSETS! (CONTINUED)
(b} Defined benefit plans - Malaysia

[} A subsidary of the Croup, Malayan Cement Berhad, is typscally exposed to actuarial riskes, such as longewity risk and salary
risk. Howewer, as the defined benefit pian for the pesmanent stafi was already determined, the achearkal ise s confined
to 4 srmall numbser aff 22 unionised sl who are entitled 1o approscmately AMLS milkon out of the RMZLT millian of the
total amaurt under dafined benefit plan,

i,  Lorgowily rick
The present value of the defined benefit pian llablty is cafculated by reference 1o the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants during thes employment. An incresse in the iife sxpectancy of the plan partidpants will inceass
tha plan' aksity,

fi) Sy rigk
The present value of the detined benefit pdan lability 5 caltulated by refevénce to the fubwe safaries ol plan
participants, As such, an nrease in the salay of the plan pertcipams will increass the plan's labilty.

Thet prasent value of the defined benalit obfigation, and thia retated DUFeRT servdice cost and past service cost, wire
mpasured uung 1he prosnstid unit onedT maethod,

The prineipal actuanial assumptanns ised for the <ad unlonised staft at the end of the reporting pennd are as follaws:-

Group
2024 2023
1] B
Distount rate EL:) 39
Fuluine salary indioase rate 5.0 S0

Sermdtivity analyses

Sagnidficant actuanial assumption for the determination of the defined bersfit obligation s the discount rate. The sensitivity
analysis below Mas besn determned hased on neasonabiy possiblis change of 1he redpective assumption stcufiing &t the
end of the reporiing perod. while holding all other assumptions constant

If the discount rale inoreaseddecrease] by 05%, the detined benefit obligation wolld decrease by RMUE0 mllion
Increase by RMOE4 millon (@023 decrease by RMOED milliondnorease Dy RMOELS million),
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS] [CONTINUED)
[b) Defined benefit plans - Malaysia (continued)

A subsidiary of the Group, RanhiliSy] Sdn. B, cperates a defined benefit retirement scheme for s eligible employess,
witich ts unfundad. The estimated chligations under the retirerment benefit scheme are based on actuarial vakuation repart
prepaned by o qualiled independent actary on D Aprl 2021 covering the perod from 31 December 2022 1o 31 December

H

2025

Thi: ratirement bensfits obligations are mads for ths non-Tunted benefits plan Thi Rabiliny 15 acerusd al the préssnt value
aof the defined benefit ohligations using the projected wnit method

Thir prirkipal asumptions used in hie actuarial caloulations waene a5 foliows:

Group
2024 2023
"% %
Dicount rale 5.0 -
Bate of Increasa in salanes - long tarm 6.0
Martality rate Malaysia
Assured Life
Tabla
2011-2015
Withdrawal 1.0 .
Sermitivity analysis:
The sensithity analysrs beksw has Been derived based on the changes to indnadunl assumptions, wah all other assumptions
neld constant:
Scheme liabilities Scheme labilities
Incroase/
{Decrease) Increase Increase Decrease Decrease
by fram o fram 1o
Key assumptions RMODD RMOO0 RMDO0 RMO00 RMO0O
A rechuction m the discow rate of
1i0A% (from 5.0% 1o 4.0%) 2491 65,444 67,935 - -
A reduction i the salary increment
rate of 1.0% {froin 5/0% 1o 5.0%) (3.580) - - 65,444 61,864
A increase In the dscount rate af
100 [frem 5.0% 1o B0 (2.210) - - 65444 63,234
hn increase In the salary ncrement
rate of 1.0%: {froim GoO% 1o 7000} 3,907 G5, 444 69,351 - -
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS] (CONTINUED)
{b) Defined benefit plans - Malaysia [continued)

(i) A sdmidiary of the Group, RanhBSA| Sdn Bhd. operates a cefined benefit retirement scheme for ity eligibie enmployees.
which s unfunded The estimated obiigations under the retirement benafit scheme are based on actuarial valuation repoet
prepared by a qualfie independent sciuary on 5 Apfil 2020 covering the period tiam 31 Decemiaer 2022 1o 31 Decembier
2025, (contnued)

The sensithily analysis presorted abave may not be reprewemative of the actual change in difined benefin abiigations s
It is unlikely that the change In assumptions would ooour in Isolation to one anather as some assumptions may be
correlated

The amounts recagnised in tha Statement of Financlal Position ae analysed as follows -

Group
2024 2023
RM'DOD RM'DO00
Privsent walue of unfunded clkaton B7. 106 £1,169
Reconcikiation af the predent value of unfundoed obligation are a5 Tollowns::
Group
2024 2023
RM'DOD RM'DO0
AL peginning of 1he Tinancial year 21169 [ L
ACquilsiton of subrsidianes 65,307 -
Benefits padf/payables (ea8) {L5lg)
Cumant service oot 250 FE|
Irterest cost 1.068 74
AL end of the financial year 87,106 21165
Thea amourits recognised in tha Incoms Stalement am 45 folows:
Graup
2024 2023
RM'DDD RM'ODQ
Cumtont semice oot 250 FE|
Interest cost 1.068 HBra
1L:a 947
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/ASSETS! (CONTINUED)
{e) Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom

A subrsichary of the Group oporates fingl salary defined benefit plans for its emplyoes in the United Kingdom, the assets of
which a2 beld in separate trustee-administenad funds. The latest actuarial vauation of the plan was undertaken by a qualified
actuary an al 30 Septembar 2022, This valuatian has bean adjisted to the reporting date os ot 30 jure 2024 tadng account
of experanca ower the pariod since 30 Septembar 2022, changes in market conditions, and ditferancas in the Tinancial and
demographic assumptions by the qualfed actuary.
(i} Profile of the scheme

Thi dhifinine banarit abligatians inciude banolits for cumont ompiayoes, Tocmar erpkayees and cumont persionors. Broadly,

about 24% of the labétes we attributsble to curem employess, 14% 1o defernd pensioners and B2% to current
PRAISKINETL.

The scheme duration 15 an indicatce of the weaighted-average time until berefit payments are made, For the scheme as a
whale, the duratan i around 13-14 years, reflecting the approcdmata spiit of the definad benafit abligation betwean
current employess (duration of clB:19 years), defemed members (duration of ¢17-18 years) and current pensioners
{uhiration of c10-11 yuars)

{il} Funding requirements

UK deglel atin ieguines that persken schemes ae Funded pridently, The Last furing saluation report, 30 Sepember 2022
showed a doficit ol GEP5.3 million [RMZI04 million)

The subsidary paid GEP1E.4 milkan [RM108.6 million) on 30 june 2023 which, aiong with investment refurns from retum-
seaking assets, has mada good the shortfall The next funding valuation is due no later than 30 September 2025, at which
progress towands full-furning will be reviewsd

Thie subrichary a0 pays comnbinons ofF 15.5% of pensionaike SEames in respect af Current ACCHU) 4 non-imaes trsent
refated Expeses

(i) Risks associated with the scheme
Asset volatilty - The labiiities ane caltulated wing 8 dscount rate set with refeence 1a corparate bond yields; If assets
underperform this yield, this will meate a deficit. The scheme holds 2 signifecant propartion of growth assets (eguities

Including & diversified growth fund and a global absolute return fund) which. though expected 1o outperfom corporate
bends in the long term oeate volatiity and risk in the shost-term. The aliccation to growth avsets s mondftored 10 ensure
it remairs approgriate géeen the schome’s long-term objoctives.

Changes in bond yiekls - A detrease in corparate bond yoeids will incroase the value placed on the schems’s Babifitses for
arcounting purpeses although this will be partiaily offset by an increase in the value of the scheme's band holdings

Intlation rsk - The magonty of the scheme's bensfit obiigations are inked 1o Inflation ard tegher inflation wall lead o
higher liabilties {afthough, in most cases, caps an the leval of infiationary Increases are in place to protect against extreme
inflation). The majomty of the assels ae either unaffected by or enly loosaly correlated with inflation, meaning that an
Increase in inflatian will also inchesss the defidt

Lilar imped Ly = Thae imiatjoriyy af e schierhie's eblgations ot to providhe benelits o e B ol e il s0 increases
in ife expectancy will resull i an increase in the labiities

Ak management - The treties insure certan benelits payabie on death before mtirement,
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS) (CONTINUEDY
[c} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom (continued)

The movements during the financial yaar in the amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Pesition are as follows:-

Graup
2024 2023
RM'DO0 RM'000
AT uly {64,314) [174,802)
Permsion oost 30,539 20117
Contributsores and benefits paid (34.842) [£33.955)
Currency trafslation differentes (302) {7728y
Re-measuremant loss 37,795 332050
At 3 une (F.124) (BA.314)
The amdunts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are analysed as Tollows:-
Graup
2024 2023
RM'OOD0 RM'OOO
Present walue of funded chiigation: 3,393,993 3.289,483
Fail value of plan assats {3,425,117) {3,353, 797)
Assat in the Statement of Firandal Postian {3L124) {64, 314)
Changes In prasent vale of difined bencdil obligatons ane a5 Tolliw-
Group
2024 2023
RM'OO00 FeM'O00
A1 july 3,289,483 3207024
Currency transiation differences 2042 5847
Irberest oot 167.126 122420
Current sendce cost 28,767 I.492
Pasl service credit (1181} |6300)
et benefits paid {169.488) [15L.570)
Re- measuemeant oss|ging:
« ACtuniial [gainifens arising from demographic assiemplions {15,355) 66627
« Artuarial losaf{gain) arising from finandal assumption 9.4449 (S16.221)
- Artuanal loss afising from experience adjusiments 53,150 £20.404
Present walme of detingd benelil obligations, a1 30 june 3,393,993 3,289,483
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS! ICONTINUED]
[c} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom (continued)
Changes in fair walue of plan assets are as follows:-
Group
2024 2023
RM OO0 RMDOO
AT T July 3,353,797 1,38 886
Cumeny tramsbetion dilferences 32,344 32157
Intedest income 171260 133254
Contributions by employer 34,842 231,055
MNet benefits paid (169,488) (151670
Admindstration espenses (7.087) 15,955
Re-mpuirement gaindkass)-

- Hetum on plan assets excluding interest incoms 9,448 [561.160)
Fair value of plan assets, at 30 june 3,425,117 13535497
The pemsion most recogiised (s anaiysed as follows-

' Group
2024 2023
RMO00 RM 000
Inlerest mcome {4.134) [10UE34)
Cumrent sendce tost 28,767 492
Parst worvice crodit (1.181) 6,500
Administration expenses 1.087 549549
Taotal charged to iIncome Statement 30,539 20117
Thee charge to Income Statemant was indluded In the following ine tems:-
Group
2024 2023
RMOOO RMO00
Cost of salos 27.586 245992
Admindstration espenses 7.087 5959
intedest income {4.134) (10834)
Tatnl charged to INCams S1atenent 30,539 20,117
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS] (CONTINUED)
{c}) Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom (continued)

Tha principal assemptions wsed in the achssrial cakulations were a5 follows-

Graup
2024 2023
L™ a
SOOIt rate 510 520
Rale ol moredse in permions 2.00-2.90 210-3.00
Rate af mcrease in salarles - long-temm 190 180
Irflatian - RPI 310 120
Infiation - (P 2.60 270
Mortality assumptions:-
Thie mortality assumgtions am bosed upon the recent actual mortality axperience of scheme beers and allow for exgecbod
futire improvements in martality rates.
2024 2024 2023 2023
Hale Female HMale Female
Years Years Years Years
Lifie expactancy - cument age 60 254 8.2 236 Ja3
Lifa axpactancy - cumant s 40 456 49,4 450 A0

Thir martality tablo adopted |s based upon 1054 of standard tables SIPMFA afusted 1 allow for indiidual yoars of birth,
FuLine impioyements ane assumed o be inine with the (M1 2022 core projection, with 2 long-tem improvement ate of L0%
i Toe all membspr

Senstivity analyste-

The key assumptions used for MFRS 119 “Employee Benefits® are discount rate, Intlation and martality, # different assumptions
are used, this ould hawve a material effect o the results distiosed. The sensitivity of the results fo these assumptions are set
ol briowen. For the purposes of these sermitivitios, it has been sssumad that the change in the decount rite snd inflation ha
nn impact on the value of scheme assots,

Schema liabilities Schama (surplus)/daficit

Increasa Increasa Incraasa Decreass Decroase

[-1'] from o fram ta

Ky assumptions RHOO00 RMOO0 RMOOO RMH'000 RMOD0

A oouction n i dscount rate of 01%

(from 519 to 5.0 43,512 3,363,993 3,437,505 [7.124) 12.388
An increase in the eflatan assemption of

018 [from 26% 1o 27% for £P and

3.1%6 to 3.2% for AR 41,127  3,393.993 3.435.120 {31,124) 10,003
An increase in life expectancy of 1 year 111461 3,353,993  3,505.454 [3.124) 80,337
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 30 june 2024
37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS! (CONTINUED)
{c} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom [continued)
The plan assets comprised the falloesng -
Group
2024 2023
RMO0D Y RMOOD L
Equity instrument 947,720 2T 434,044 FLf:)
Debit instrument Z.23L.611 B5.2 2073555 618
PropedTy 203,253 59 195429 7 |
(Ithers 42,533 L2 150,768 45
3425117 00,0 3353797 pon
Group
2024 2023
RMrODO RMTOOO
Aciual relum o plan ases 180,709 [A27.026)

{d

Defined benefit plans - Indonesia

Summary of chligations relating to employee benefits due under prevading liw and requlations as well as under the indonesia
sulsidRay's reguilations aie presented as below-

Group
2024 2023
RM OO0 RM 000
Obgation redating 1o pest-amploymeant benehits 12.987 14.346
Obligaticn relating to other lang-term employes benefits 2.405 2911
Tuatal 15,392 17.25T

A sutsidgiary of the Group has a defined contribution ponsion plan covaring its qualified permanent national empiayees in
Indanesia. This subeifinig contifaition & 6% af smploges hads <alary, whils the ampliyees cantrilution fnges from 3% in
1450

The contribwfions maide 10 the defined contribution plan are acoeptable for funding the post-emgpioyment banefits undar the
labour regulations,

The ohligations for post-employment and othar long-temm employes benefits ware recognisad with relerande 1o actuarial
reports prepared by an indepandent actuany. The latest actuarial report was dated 30 june 2024
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS) (CONTINUEDY
[d} Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (continued)
{i] Post-employment benefit obligations
Ther obligations relating to post-omployment benefits recognised i the Statement of Finangial Position ane a% follows:

Group
2024 2023
RM'QOD RM'000
Prosent wakee af abligations 12,987 14,346
Chanmes in prasent value of defined benefit obligations am as folows-
Group
2024 2023
RMOOD RM'OOO
Al july 14,346 12254
Currency translation diff etences {1,055} Ga9
Interest cost THG B5H
Current senvice cost @00 @32
Met benefits paid {1985} [1,406)
Rit-isasuremet [ganjioss:-
= Actuaial {gainpioss arlsing from financial assumptions [#26) 533
- Actusial loss atsing from experence adjustments 41 A7E
Present walue af defined benefit obligations, at 30 june 12,9087 14,346
Tha enson cost recogresed can e analysed as follows
Graup
2024 2023
RMOO0 RM'000
Curment sendce cost 200 [LERS
Imterest cost TaE H5H
Total charged 1o income Statement 1686 LEDO

£44 YTLCORPORATION BERHMAD
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS) (CONTINUED)

{d} Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (continued)
(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

- 30 june 2024

The abligatiors relating 10 other lang term employes benefits [Le. long kave service benelits) recogresed in the Statement

of Fimancial Positon ane a6 Tollows:

Group
2024 2023
RM OO0 RMOO0
Present value of obligation 2,405 2491
Changes in present value of defined benel it obigations are s follows:-
Group
2024 2023
RMO00 RM 000
At 1 july 2.911 2471
Curency translation differences {205) 145
Curron sorvicn cost 191 G05
Mat banefits paid [48z) 1]
At 30 puna 2.405 2911

The amounts rﬂmlng 1o ather long-term emgloyes benafits oligatn recegnised in the Income Statement are as

fallow-

Group

Cuntesil servioe cost

The charge above was inthuded in the cost of sales.

The |I|I'III£B| assumprions used in the actuanal calculations wene as folows:-

Discount rate
Fusburia Salary mdivs rale

2024 2023

RMO0O0 RM OO0

191 &05
Group

2024 2023

L L

7.0 60

as Bs

At 30 june 2024, the weighted-avarage duration of the defined benefit obligations was 4596 years (2023 552 years)
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37. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS/IASSETS) (CONTINUED)
{d) Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (continued)
(i} Other long-term employee benefit obligations [continued)

EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

Reaunnably pessible €Ranges te The key assumptiens, would have aflected the dofined banafit cbligatons at the reporting

dale by the Tollowing smounts:-

2024 2023
RM'000 AM'O00 RM'O00 RMTOO0
Increase Decreass Imcrease Decrease
Discoutt rate (1% movement) (GH4) 750 [E19) a0l
Future zalary inrease rate
(196 mowement) 1,026 {955) 1,260 (L1Ag)

Thas analyses depicts the approximate sensitivity of the benefits obligation to a reasonabile possible change in assumption.
bur does not t3e accownt of the wanabliity in the timing of distniution of benefn payments epected under the plan

38. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Affordable Rectification Damages
housing works Restructuring claims
Note 38(a) EL ] 3s(c) 3g(d) Total
RAMrO00 RMO00 RMDO00 RMTO00 RMOO00
Group - 2024
At meginning of the financial year 5,219 207 32,861 101782 140,069
Additions - - 1,852 - 1852
Accrenan of interests - - 1,305 - 13058
Acquisition af subsidiang 15 - - 1,948 - 1.948
Currency translation differencas - 2 a8 (1.336) {1,236)
Charged/(credited] 1o Incami
S1atement 7 2,622 (209) 2,116 155 4.684
Litifsed [73z) - - [317) [1.048)
Paymenss . - [2.425) - [2.425)
At end of the finandial year 7.108 - ar.res 100,284 145,148
Presented as follows:-
MNon-cufrent 7109 - 27.418 - 234,527
Current - - 10,337 100,284 110,621
Ti09 - 7,755 100,284 145,148
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38. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES ICONTINUED)
Affordable Rectification Damages
housing works Restructuring claims
Mata ELE] 38{b) 38(c) 38(d) Total
RM'OO0 RM‘O0D RM‘O00 RM'O00 RMOO0
Group - 2023
At higinning af e fnanolal year 2343 a0 40,504 59 480 IBARIT
Accretion of interests - - Ha4 - Hha
Curency transtation dfferences - 17 924 3415 4365
Chafged To Incema STt 7 300 B.704 463 7467
Utliisad [17.424) - - [17.424)
Payments . {16,230} (L.560) (17 BLH
AL end of the Inanca year 5219 207 22 BE1 101,782 140,069
Presented as follows:-
Hon- current 22483 2443
Cufron 5219 207 10378 101, 7es 117.586
5219 207 A2 Bl 10L7R2 140,06%
{a) Affordable housing

{b)

4]

1d)

This represents a provisicn for larcseeabile kosses ising from the present abbganson for constuction of w cost houses

Rectification works

This represents a pravision Tor estimated cost of rectification works for completed project

Restructuring

This represents & provision for emdmnmental costs and asset retitemant obligations.

Damages clalms

This foprisents a provision for projocts undertaken by subsidianies and am ecognised for expocted damages clasms based on

the term of the applicable agreements.
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39. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Graup Campany
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'O00 RM'OO0 RM'OO0 RM'OO0
Trade payablies 3,143,641 3,001.33] * -
Other payaties 934,186 554,821 504 1614
Secuily deposits 245,862 211227 - =
Arcrued expenses’ 2.054,431 LG 544 37,630 22275
6,378,120 5,631,023 38,134 EEEL ]

* Arrned Expies Oy CamoER AIBEST payrilles, fequialery oTls and sopitnl spendinee

The credt terms of trade payables grarted 10 the Graup vary from 30 days 15 180 days (2023 30 days to 160 days), Othee oredit
terms are assessad and approvad on a case-by-case basis

40. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT

The Croup’s and the Company's cperatons ane subject to foreign currency exchange risk, interest rate tisk, price risk, credit rige and
liguitity risk.

The Group and the Company sesk o ensune that adequate resources ane avalale 1o manage the above ks and 1o create valug
for its sharsholders. It i not the Group™s and the Compamy's polcy to engage in speculiive transactions.

The Board of Cirectors reviews and agrees pobcoies and procedures for managing each of these risks and they are summarsed
Bl

[a) Foreign currency exchange risk

Fareign cumency eschange risk s the sk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal nstrument will fluctuate becse
ol ehanges i foreign exchange e

The Grewp is exposed 1o risks arsing from various curmency exposunes. pramarily with respact to the Great Britksh Pounds [CEFT)
and Singapore Dollars ("SG07). The Groug has investments in forelgn opemtions whise net assets ane exposed 1o foreign
eurrancy translation fidk Such ispasises ang mitigated Brough boirowings denaminated in the repectve funchanal turenties.

Where necessary, the Croup enters into Tonward foreign cumency eachange contracts 1o lmit (1S exposure on forelgn curendy
recervabilies ard payables, and on cash flows generated from anticipated tansactions denominated i foresgn ourrencies.

There & no wgnificant expasise 1o Toregn (urrency exchange sk for the Group and e Company.,
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ICONTINUED)
{a} Foreign currency exchange risk {continued]
Hedges of net investment in Australio and Jopan

#s at the reporting date. the Group's investment in its Australian and jgpanese subskdiaries are hedged by the AUD term laan
with & 1ot carmyng amoung of RM1 02537 milkan [AUDAS2541 milion] (2073 RMBRZ.0EZZ millian [MIDZTA milian] a part
af the ALD teem loan) and the [PY term loan with & carrying ameunt aof AMIS9552 million [|PY5S842500 millon] (2023
RML74.563 million [IFY5,401 250 milion]], respectively with the purpose to mitigate the currency risk arising from the
sulrbdanys net aasets, The Toesgn ouency loans we desigiated as net imsstment hedges.

The Croup determines the exdistence of an economic relationship between the abowve hedging instruments and hedged items
based on the currences and amounts. The Group had estabished o hedge ratio of 1 : L10 (2022 1 & 1L.O1) Tor Acstralia and
11109 (2023 1:0.87) for japan as the underying risk af the hadging instruments ane dentical 1o the hodged sk components
and has e sighificant changes 1o the ratios. The Group has assessed the effectiveness of the above hedging relationships at
the repering date by comgaring changes in the camying amaant of tha laans thal ane attributable 1o changes in he exchang
rates with the thangas in the net imsestmant in the feraign operations die o mowemenis in the eochangs mEtes.

{b] Imterest rate risk

INIEEST fate nek 5 e rek than the Bar valis or futung cash fiows of e Group's and thit Compan’s Ninancial insamnaments will
fhictuate ecase of changes in mareet interest rates,

The Ginup's anel this Compaty's paposune 10 infere rte sk anoe pieadly liom el Hinaning rate bonds and bocrowdngs,
which is partially affset by the daposits and short-Esam imsestments badd ot variabia rfes. The Group and 1he Comgany marage
thesr cash Fiow interest rate risk by using a mix of foied and variable rate debts. Denvativa financial instruments are used. where
apprapate, 1o genarate thie dedeed mtenect mate peofile.

The interest rate prafile of the Group's and the Company's significart nterest-bearing financial irstruments. hased on their
CMTYING AMounits as at the reooting date, are as foboes:

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RHM'DOD RM0D0 RMDOD RM0DO
Fixed rate instruments
Financial atbilities (28,610,945) [24.183,12% (3,825,000) 13,440,000
Variable rate instruments
Financial as=ets 13,847,013 15175845 881,143 571405
Firuanelal hatilires (18, 000,951) {22.271.069) (1.092,112) (LIS
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED]
(b} Interest rate risk (continued)

At the reporting date. i the interest rates hid been 50 basis points lowerfhigher, with al aother vanables held constant, the
Group's and the Company's profit before tax and equity woult be higher/lower by appreximately AM30.0 million and
RMG.S milkon {2023 RM1114 mallion srd RMG.S millon], pespecthely, os.0 result of lowerheghes intenest expense oh barrowings.

The Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate instruments at falr valee through profit or loss. Therefare, a
cluange i interel rated At the repedting cate woidd nat atfect ther pralit Befare i

The excess funds of the Group and the Company are invested in bank deposits and other short-term instruments. The Group
anid the Company manage thidr liguidity faks by plocing such exoess funds on short-term matuiities to match its cash fow
needs, If interest deposit rates increaseddecraased by 10 basis points, interest income of the Group and the Company for the
fmancial year woulkl intrease/decrease by RMIAE milllon and BRM2.2 million (2023 RM15.2 milllon and AMOS million),
risspiC tively,

{c) Price risk
Investments

The Group and the Company are sxposed 10 oquity securities and income funds price risk arising from investments bald which
are chassified on the Statemsent of Financlal Position either as financlal assets at fair value through other comprehensive noome
[FWTOCT) and financlal asse1s at fair vaiue through profit oe loss (TVTRL)L

To manage thelr price risk arising from Imeestments in equity securitles, the Greup and the Company diversify their portfolo.
Far incame funids and unit trusts, the Group and the Company manly irmest in AAA rated bonds and Money Market Funds. This
i stmert i minan? 1o sthieve betted yield a5 comaared to lixed depasits At the mporting date, IF the prices of 1he income
funds and unit trusts at FYTRL inoeasedfdecreased by 156 (2023 19%) with all other variables incduding tax rate being hetd
constant, the Group's and the Company's profit after tax and equity will be lowes/higher by RMES.T millon (2027 RMIZ9
mulicn) and RG3 millian (2023 AM53 milion), respectively,

AL Thes 1eponing date, the Crougis and The Company’s expsune 10 quoted equily ImASIments a1 Tair value ane RMIBGE 997
million (2023 RML2G7.527 milion] and AMI7 208 milion (2022 RM14182 mSion), fespectivily.

Thee Following talde demonstrates the indicathe ellects on the Group's amd the Campany's sguity applying reasonatily
Forraeaalde market mowemin by in the guoled markel pices ol the repotting date, assuming o other valatdes remain consLanl,

Increased
Decreass
Carrying in guoted Effoct on
amounts  market prices equity
RMFO00 % RMODO
Group - 2024
Lotal edquitios 120,639 #1110 12,064
Fareign aquiths BEE, 358 =i- 10 B6,636
Group - 2023
Local equities AJLE1D +/-10 43162
Fareign equites BI5a08 110 L-ERL
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{c} Price risk [continued)
Investments (continued)
Increasel
Decrease
Carrying in quoted Etfect on
amounts  market prices equity
RM'OO0 W RMOOD
Company - 2024
Loval equitles 8,079 +i-10 808
Fonaign aquities 9,133 +/-10 213
Company - 2023
Local equities 5471 w10 547
Forakin aquities ans +-10 are
Fupl commodity

Thie Group hodges s fuel commodity price risk iy the use of derfvative instruments aganst fluctuations in fuel oll prices which
affect thie cost of fued

The Crongp has contracts for the sale of clectricity to the Singapone clectricity poed at prices that are fixed in advance every
thiee manths snd 1o rei customers 8 prices that are ether fiked in amount ar in peicing formula for periods up 1o a nember
of yadrs. The fixing of the prices under the contracts i based Llargely on the price of fuel ol required te generate the dectriity,
The Group enters into fuel il swaps 1o hedge agalnst adverse price movements of fusl oll prices. The Group typlcaly enters
It & swap to pay 2 Need pice and receive a vanzble price indexed to @ benchmark Tuel pree indes.

Exposwre to price fluctwations ansing from the purchase of fuel oil and natural gas are substantially managed via swaps where
the price ks indexed 1o a benchmark fuel prsce index, Tor axampls 100 CST fued ofl and Dated Brent. The CHoup's ExXposure to the
T tustion af forward price cun is immaterial

{d) Credit risk
Crodit risk is the potential financial loss resuiting from the falure of a counterpany to seitle their obligatiors 1o the Croup and
the Company.

The Group's exposures to oedt rek arlsas primasily from trade and other recelvablies. Mearwhile. the Company™s esposures o
credit risk adse from related parties and other recelvables. For other financial assets (indudng mvestment securities, cash and
cash equivalents and dervative financal instuments). 1he Group and thi Compary méirmise cred 't sk by cealing exuskely
welth Migh credit eathng Counmterpanies,
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40. FINANCIAL RI5K MANAGEMENT ICONTINUED]
(d) Credit risk {continued)
Concentration of credit risk

D to the natue of the Group’s bubness, customess s mainly segregoted accordng to buningss divisions, I the Grioup's
utilities busingss in Singapona, credit roviews ane performed on all customers with established credit limits and generally
supparted by collateral in the form of guaraniess. For the Croup's wiatsr and sewerage business, the oedt risk of receivables.
i mitagated thiowgh Strict collec tion praceduses. in the Group's teletammunstsions butnes, the credit sk 5 manitoed on an
oagoing basis through a oredit policy. The Directors are of the view that oredit rsk arsing from these busiressas s imited due
o the large customer base,

Trode receivabies, unbilled receivables and controct assets

The Group appbes the MFRS 3 wmpliced approach 1o measan: ECL which uses o Watimo expoedtod fows allowance far all trade
receivables, unbilled meceivables and contract assets. To messune the ECL, trade megivabiles, unbilled recehables and contract
255615 hawe been grouped based on shared credin risk chasacteristscs and the days past dus,

The expected loss mies are determined based on historical ageing profile and the corresponding héstorical credit losses
experkenced withen this period The historical loss rates are adusted 10 reflect forsard-locking information on macroeconomi
factars affecting tho abdlity of the oimtomers to sattle the recevables. Some af the factors which tho Group has identified
Inclida unemployment rate, econamic trends, and annual Gross Domestic Product ("GO growth and has adjusted the
historical koss rated based on expecied changes in such factars,

On that basks, the koss allowance was detarmined as foliows for rade receivables. unbdied recehvables and conftract assets:

| aean el - £ - [T e |
Currant 1-90days 91 - 120 days » 120 days Tatal
RM000 RMO00 RM'0D00 RMOD0 RMO00
Group - 2024
Gress Zamyng amount
= Trade recerablos 2,293,268 294,378 33,464 1,060,470 3,681,580
= Liribillod roeedasileg 1.6509.290 - - - 1,659,290
- Conmtract assets 14,835 - = - T4, 835
4,727,393 294,378 33,464 1,060,470 6,115,705
Allsance for mpsiment
= Tradhe rocehwibios (98,452) (15,295) i7.292) (546.434) (667.513)
- Unibilled recevabies [10,155) - - - [10,155)
- Loidract assets [B,194) - 1) - {8,195)
({L1E,241) {15.295) {7.293) [54E,434) (GA5,BE3)
Net carrying amaunt 4,610,552 270,083 26,171 514,036 5,429,842
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{d} Credit risk (continued)
Trode recelvables, unbilted recelvables ond controct assets (continuwed)
Jrwmmannanasnannnnnansns Past dus e mamemaan ]
Current 1-90days 91 -120 days » 120 days Total
R OO0 RM'OO0 RMO00 RMGO0 RMOO0
Group - 2023
Canss camying amount
- Trade recehables L984.357 215297 35 BET.245 ill7.eal
= Lintiled] receivabias 1961246 : . - LA61.246
- Corfracl aels F6gl2 19 7 202 06440
4,341 825 215,316 30,359 BarA47 LAT484T
Aberwance fof impairmant
- Trade recelvables [G3555) (12,050) [5.464) (#59.825) |5HLE4)
- Unbified] receivables [B/GEE) . - E [E.B86)
- Cantract asscls {2a11y - - - {2a11)
[73.552) (12,0500 [5.464) [499.825) {SO0ETL)
Met carrying amount 4268273 203,266 24,895 7622 4 BH4 0%

AL Uiy repodting datie the maximem exposune to oredit tsk af e Tnancia! assets of the Croup and the Company are
represented by the carmying amounts in the Statements of Financlal Pesition, except Tor the Group™s trade recelvables on
eleciricily and steam sales where the Groug wal assess ach oustomer individually and typically megquire collaleral in the Toem ol
Usarikers’ guaranlees of deposils frod selechel ousiomes,

Caosh and bank balonces

The Group and the Company place its cash and bark balances with a number of creditworthy financial institutions. The Group's
and the Compamy's polcy kmit the concentration of financial exposure 1o amy single financal Irstitation. While cash and bank
Balancirs ane alwo subject 1o the dmommment reguireiments of FERS 9, (e dintiled imparment loss was mamdgtenal,

Derivative financlal instruments

Transactions involdng derivative financsl instruments are allvwed only with counterparties that are of nigh oedit quality, As
sUCh, managemant does not expect any counterparties to fad to mest ther obkJations. The Croup and the Comparry consicer
the risk ol materal less on thie sent af non-performance by a financlal counter party 1o be unlikely,
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40. FINANCIAL RI5K MANAGEMEMNT ICONTINUED]
(d} Credit risk {continued)
Other receivables

The Group and the Cormpany usa the 3-stagos appioach for the ECL on the other receivables and amount due from refated
parties, The 3-stages approach reflects their recesvables” credit sk and how' the loss allowancos is determined for sich of those
Categoriesn.

A summary of the assumgtions underpinning the Group's and the Company's ECL model ks a5 follows:

Basls for
Category Group’'s and Company's definition of category recognising ECL
Performing Deitors have 2 bow nisk of dafault and a strong capadity (o meet 12 manth BECL

contractual cash flewes.

Uinderperforming Detitors for which there s a sqnificant inoease in credit risk is prasumed Lifetime ECL
It imarmst andfor prindpal ropaymants ane 90 diys past due

Nan-parforming Dehitors and repaymeants are more than 365 days past dus, Lifetime ECL

Write-afl Therm s evadenca indcating that There 5 no reasonabde expertation of Asuat i written off
reconery hased on unavailabiity of dablars sourres of Noeme of 35585
16 generate witficent fulume rash laws tn repay the amauns.
Based en the above, ks alowance i merssed on either 12 manth ECL or Betime ECL using a PD x LGD x EAD methodalogy
whinie:
+ PO (probabiity of default - the ikelihood that the debrtor would not be able to repay during the contractual perod:
+ LG (oss given defaulT] - the percentage of comtractual cash Nows will not be coliected if defawt happens and
+  EAD (axposure at default) - the aubstanding amound that is exposad 1o default riske
Ir deeiing his PO and LG, the Groip ard the Company consider histercal date by aach debitar by eategory and adksts for
Porwiard-looking macroeeconomic data, The Group and the Compary have identified the industry and geographical area which the
dabtor operates in ta be the most relevant factors. and accondingly adjusts the historical loss rates hased on espected changes
i these factors. Loss slowanoe & moasuned at o probability-weighied smount that reflecs the possibiity thar a credin kes

occurs and the possibility that ne crodif foss occurs Mo significant changes to estimation tochniques o asumptions were made
during the roporting period

The madmum credit risk cxposare of the financial assets of the Group and the Company ane approximately their carrying
amounts as at the end of the reporting period.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{d} Credit risk {continued)
Hovement on the Group's and the Company's loss alowances & a5 follows::
Trade Unbiiled Contract Related Other
receivables  receivables assels parties  receivables Tatal
RM'O0O RMODD RM'DO0 RM'O00 RM'ODD AM"O00
Group - 2024
AT 1 july 2023 5H1.294 6,686 2911 45 161,425 752361
Adowance for impaimment
of recehahles 154.833 3374 S.284 I91 - 163,882
Writa back af impaimen
of recehabies 11,449} - B - [3L,300) (42.749)
Witten off during the
finarclal year as
uncallectibie (61.471) . = - - (51.471)
Cumency trarssation
aflarenoes 4,305 a5 - - [L.295) 3,106
At 30 June 2024 667.513 10,155 B.195 436 128,830 B815.129
Group - 2023
Aty 2022 538,098 7,997 cha 963 1iree7 BE5.O14
Mlowance fof impairment
at receivables urnz 2622 150 IneTe 158,956
Wite hack al impaimrien
of recehvables [B156) {1.974) - = 183 8210
Wrirtan off duting the
financial year as
uneoliectibbe {F25TE) . - {LOGE) H {100.644)
Cumency transiation
dfferences. 31216 B&3 - - 53656 37245
At 30 June 2023 BALIGY GEEG 211 45 161,475 T52.361
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT [CONTINUEDI]
{d) Credit risk {continued)
Movernent on the Group's and the Compam's Ioss allowances i5 as follows [contnued)-

Related Other

partics receivables Tatal

RM'DO0 REM D00 RM'O00
Company - 2024
ATl july 2023 29,807 1765 31572
Wwrite back of impairment of eoaivablas (58] - (58)
Ar 30 June 2024 29,749 1765 31.514
Company - 2023
ALl july 2022 41609 1785 43,374
write back of impairment of recelvablas {11,B802) - {11,80E)
At 30 June 2023 29,807 L85 s

(&) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Groug and the Company wil encounter ditTiculty In meating linancisl obligations due o
shartoge of Tunds. The Group's and the Comparny's eaporune to bquidity risk arses primanly from mismatches of the maturities
ot finandal assets and labiktes

The Graup's and the Company's abjeciive ane to maintain a balancoe between continuity of funding and fledbiity threugh thie
use af stand-by credit facilities,
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(e} Liguidity risk {continued)

The table balow summarises the maturity profile of the Groug’s and the Company's financial Babilites at the reporting date
based on contractual undiscounted epayment obligations-

On demand
o within lto Dwer
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
RM'O00 RMO0O RAM000 AW OO0
Group - 2024
Hon-darivative:
Trade and other payables 6.378.120 508,882 - 6.887.002
Barels and borrowings 8,017,035 23,653,153 34,484,504 66,154,652
Serdita conoisson obligation 414,794 575,916 - 990.710
Lease liahiities 879,811 694 524 ‘916,397 2490732
Relatid parties 12,733 - - 12,733
15,702,433 25,432,475 35,400,901 76,535,869
Derivative:
Fual all swaps 15,992 1,124 - 17116
Curery [onsants 4,074 T4 - 4,098
20,016 1138 - 21,214
Company - 2024
Non-derivative:
Teade and other payables 38,134 - - 30,134
Borads and borrowings 1142725 1,930,282 3,172,448 6,245,455
Loase liabfities 7.074 9,432 - 16,506
Related partios 7783 - - 7,783
L185.716 L8349.714 3172.448 6.307.878
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED]

{e) Liquidity risk [continued)

The table below summarises the matunty profile of the Group's and the Compary's financial llabiities at the reporting date
biased on contractual ndscounted repayment ohligations {continued):

on demand
or within 1to Over
1 year 5 yoars 5 years Total
RHDOO RM'OO00 RHTOOO AM'OO00
Group - 2023
Non-derivative:
Trada and ather payables 5631023 195 760 - 5.826.M3
Brnds and hormmw ngs G.706,360 Zhlla50 .52, 771 B&ITAM53
Lease iabilities 2/5.231 933,402 Py L9867, 368
Ridated parties iram - - ar.gvo
15,152,604 ET.2AL2 AL761,458 T4 155,174
Derlvative:
Fued o swaps BE,643 6545 - 95,460
Currency forwards 22,165 2,809 - 24,5994
10828 QeSS4 - 120,482
Company - 2023
Non-derivative:
Trade and ather payahles 33,669 - - 33,8689
Bonds anit bormowings L508,141 1522399 L6E9474 5,720,014
Liane Rabilition 2,358 2358
Redated parties 5,846 - - 5846
L550.234 1522399 2689474 S7e2107
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
[a)} Categories of financial instruments
The tatle befow provides an anabysis of fimancal instruments categonsed as folows:
Financial Assets
Fair value Derivatives
Amortised through used for
cost  profit or loss hedging Fvodl Total
MNate RITOOO RM'OOD RMOOD RMOOO RMO00
Group - 2024
Hon-curment
Ime=cimenas i | - 334,155 - 191.338 525,493
Trade and olhi roceivaiios 22 3,075,435 100,518 - - 175,053
Derivatiae linancial iInstruments. 24 - - 16.353 - 16.353
Qparating Tinancial mssets 20 404,484 . . . 404,484
Current
Irmiestrments lig - 1,983,383 - - 1,983,383
Dertvative finanoal irtruments 23 - - 122,256 - 122,256
Trade and oiher recesankas &2 5,640,409 - - - 5.640,409
Ao due from ieldtsd partes 26 B3, 564 - - - B3,564
Fixet depasing 27 12 836, 046 - + - 12,836,846
Cash and bank halinces 27 1,422,355 - - - 1,422,355
DOpsarating financial assets a1 234,730 - - - 234,730
Tatal 23,697,823 2,418,056 138,609 191,338 26,445,826
FAnancial Liabilities
Fair value  Darivatives
through used for Amaortised
profit or loss hedging cost Total
Maota RE'O00 RM'00D RMODD RMOO0
Group - 2024
Kon-cument
Long-term payabies £l - - s08.882 500,882
Barsls 2 . = 28477538 28477538
Barrtiaings 13 - - 12,151,098 12.151.098
Leae fabties EL - - 1,233,511 1,233,511
Durivatives financial Fstroments 23 - 11598 . 1198
Current
Trade and other payables 39 - - 6.378.120 6.378,120
Derivatives finandial mstramenTs £3 2513 17,503 - 20,016
Amaint due 1o relited parmes b - - 12,733 12,723
Bardy 2 - - 1,193,407 1,193,407
Barrowings 33 . . 4,799,853 4,799,853
Loae ab@ties 34 - - 730,506 738,506
Tatal 2,513 18,701 55,494,648 55515862
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [CONTINUED!
{a) Categories of financial instruments (continued)
The table below provides an analysss of finandal instruments categorised as follows (tontinued

Finamcial Assets

Fair valug
Amortised through
cast  prafit or loss Fuoal Tatal
Note RMODO RMDO00 RETOO00 RMOO0
Company - 2024
Masi-cLifrent
Ireestments 18 - - 9,398 9,398
Current
Trada and ather recevables 22 7.668 - - 7.668
Amaunt dua from related parties &b 1,018,946 - - 1.018.946
IriisEmants 18 - E51,643 - ES1.E43
Foed derpisits. 27 239,500 - - 239,500
Cash and bank balances 27 3.196 - - 3.196
Total 1,269,310 651,643 9,398 1,530,351
Financial Liabilities
Amortised
cost Total
Mote RM'O00 RMODO
Company - 2024
Mon-current
Bonde 32 3,825,000 3,825,000
Botrorwinigs a3 125167 125167
Lease Habilities B 0,205 9,205
Current
Trada and athar payshies E ] 38134 38,134
Armount duse 10 melated parties 26 7783 7.783
Baotteralngs EE] 966,945 966,945
Leass Habilities 3k 632 6,632
Total 4,078, 866 4,970,866
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS I(CONTINUED)
{a)} Categories of financial instruments [continued)
The table befow provides an anabpsis of financial instruments cotegormed as follaws {continued):
Financial Assets
Fair value  Darivatives
Amaortised through used far
cost  profit of loss hedging Fvaci Total

Nate RMH'OO0 REO00 RMOOD RM'000 RMOO0
Group - 2023
Non-current
Irwesiments 18 - 415,284 - 203703 518987
Trade and other recevables i 2644151 146924 - - 2991075
Dervative finandal intruments 23 E - 281 - 287
Current
IvESTmnnas 18 - 2000574 - - 2.000.574
Derivative financia msiruments 23 = - 16,824 - 16824
Trade and other recelvables e 5155954 - - - 5,155,964
Amourit due from related partes. 26 71223 . - - 73283
Fixed depasits &7 11195322 = - - 11195322
Cash and bank balanoes. 27 323030 - 230331
Tatal 22408001 2462, 7HZ 21703 203,703 253, 187179

Dervatives
userd for Amortised
hedging cost Total
Hote RMFOOO RM'OODD RMOOO

Group - 2023
Hon-current
Long-tanm payaties E1] 195,760 185,750
Barals Er - <3 IB6ST 2LNBEST
Barmowangs =k} 15,336,292 15.336.2892
Dervative financal instrumants £3 9,654 E 9654
L Hobiithes. EL 1054322 L84 322
Current
Tuade ard other payables 19 - oE&31023 5631023
Derivative financkal instruments 23 110.828 - 110828
Amaonent due to related parties o6 3r.am 37970
Bardls 12 - 1,594, 465 1594 455
Barmowings. 33 - G204, 777 6,204,777
Laase llabiities 3 - 260,388 260370
Tatal 120482 53673655 53.794.137
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
{a) Categories of financial instruments (continued)
The table below provides an analysis of firanclal nstrements categorised s follows (continuedy-

Financial Assots
Fair valug
Amortised thraugh
cost  prafit or logs Fuol Total
HNaote RMODO RE000 RM'O00 RM'0O00
Company - 2023
Maii-current
InvEStmeEnts 18 = = 9,398 9,398
Current
Trade and ather receivablos 22 TGS - - 7,895
Amaurnt dud from related parties 25 Lo2ngs L - 1102318
I stments 18 - 544563 - 544,663
Flned deposts s 2hia? - - b2
Cashr and bank balances e 1.406 . - A.406
Total L140,562 544 663 9,398 1LE34.423

Finanelal Liabilities

Amortised
cost Total

Hote RMO00 RM'OO00
Company - 2023
Man-current
Bonds 32 3.200.000 3200000
Current
Trade and ather payables 14 33604 3809
Amourt die 10 related parties 26 5846 5845
Bunds 32 240,000 240,000
Bomawings 11 1,116,910 1116910
Lease kabiities 1z 2339 2338
Total 4,508,064 #500.984
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b} Fair value measuremeant
The table helow analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method, The different levels have been
defined a5 fodiows:-
Iy Level L Quoted prices (unaduisted) in active markets Tor identical msets of fabllines.

(i) Lewed & inputs other tham quoted prices icluded within Level 1 that are observabis Tor te assel or Rabilty, either directly
(1. pticen] or indirettly (L. dethoed From prices).

fiily  Levisd X lnpuls Tor Ui assel of Babillty 1had dnis i basexl on olservable maiket data (unolservalile inpuls],

At the reporting date, the Group and the Company held the following finarcial nstruments carried at falr value on the
Sratements of Financial Position-

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
RMO00 RMO00 RMO00 RM OGO

Group - 2024
Assots
Financial assets at fair value through

pralit o foss:-

- income/equity funds - 1.966,175 - 1.966,175

- Dieht imstrument - - 250,000 250,000

= Equity inesimants 17222 B4.141 - 101,363

= Qthiir neefvaliis - - 100,518 100,518
Defivatives used for hedging - 134,609 - 138,609
Flnancial assets ot fair value through

ollfies compelsisive intoire 13,767 a.340 169,231 191,338
Tatal 30,989 2,197,265 519,749 2,748,003
Liabsilithes
Financial kabiktes at fsr value through

prafit ar loss-

= CliTency Tonaands. confraits - 2,513 - £,513
Darivatives used for hedging - 168,701 - 18,701
Tatal - 21,214 - 21,214
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
{b) Fair value measurement [continued)

At the egorting date, the Group and the Company hield the follewing financial mstruments camied at fair vadue on the
Staterments of Financkal Position (continued) -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

RM'O00 RMOO0 RM'O00 RMOOO0

Group - 2023
Assets
Finanrial assets at far value through

prodit oF kss-

- Incomasequity furds - L386.39¢ - L38b.49

= Dbt instrumant - - 250,000 250,000

- EQuity Irmpstmints 14,182 65,284 = TR EE

- Onher receivabies - - 146924 1465924
Dervatives used for hedging - 21,703 - 2LT0E
Fnanclal assets 41 Tar value through

other comprehenshe income 17146 10.734 175823 203,708
Tatal 31.328 2084113 STET47 2588188
Liabilities
Derivatives wsed for hedging : 120,482 - 120,482
Total - 120,482 - 120,482
Company - 2024
Asiets
Financia aSsets at far vahes thiough prolit of oss 17,208 634,435 - B51L.643
Finandal assets at fair value through

other comprehensive noome 4 - 9,394 9,398
Tulal 17,212 634,435 9,394 GEL 0l
Company - 2023
Assets
Financial assets at fair value theough profit or s 14,182 5A0461 - 544,663
Financial assets at taf value through

athar comprehensive income 4 - G354 93598
Total 14186 530,461 9,394 554,061

During thie currend financlal year, there wene no transfers between Level 1 Level 2 and Lewel 3 falr value measurements
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4Z. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties ane consdered to be related 1o the Group If the Group or the Company has
thar alility, directhy or mdirectly, 1 comtrol thit party or exercise Significant inflosnce aver the party in making finarcial and aperating
decisions, or vice versa, or whera the Group or the Company and the party are subject to commen control or common significan
influence. Related parties may be individuals o pther enfities.

Koy management parsonssd are delinad as those pesons aing aithoity and respomitsity for planning, directing and contiolling
e @i tes ol the Group elther crectly of ndeectly. The key management gersonnel nclude all the Directons of the Group
{a) Significant related party tranmsactions

Iy ackfition 10 mlated party disclosunes mentioned elumwhens in the financinl Statements, W out beiow am other sgnificant
related party transactioms.

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM0OD RMODO RAM000 RMOOO
Dividend income:
- Subzidlaries - - 474,148 350,093
- Astaciites - . 27,383 454
Intarest income:
- joint veriures £63.993 2E2 0595 - -
Civil engineering and construction
works:
- ASSOCiales 21538 24,044 +
Sale of cement and concrete and related
sarvices:
- ot wentures 148,217 133,238 - -
Loase income and ralated services:
- Fallaw sutisdiaries 31.640 35110 -
= ASsoclanes 7.607 7.255 -
Loase oxpanse:
- Asseclates 94,599 5,055 -
Management, operation and
maintenance fees:
- Assoclaties TH.248 TLIFT - -
= JEnt enties 62,267 O3 144 - &
Management and other related service:
- AGS0Clates 73,251 56,5548 -
Rental of promises:
- Subsidlary - - 7,520 7496
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42. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
{a) Significant related party transactions {continued)

In addition to related party disciosures mentioned efsewhere in the financdal statements, sat out below are ather significant
reliatad party transac loms, (Continuad)

Group Company
024 2023 2024 2023
RM'OO0 RMO00 RMOOD RMO00
Purchase of goods and sesvices from
joint ventures:
- [Eling and debit collection sendces 87,000 o505 -
- Infarmatian technology consultancy and
elated sanvioos 5,847 10826 .
- IT corsultancy & related services expenses - 17,089 -

|b) Related party balances
Thi dgrdicant selated pary balante 72 1 finandal year ended cxcopt disclodod n other notes 1o the Tmancial staomonts

fiollonas:-
Graup
2024 2023
RMG00 RM'G00
Assaciates
Tenant cepasts 7.515 A.140
Company relited to key mansgemant pariannel
- Tiade redevables = 1175
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42. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(¢} Key management personnel compensation

Key managemant personnel are those persons having authority and responsiility for plannng, directing and controlling the
actwities of the Group and the Company, directly o Indirectly, including any Director [whether executive or othensdse) of the
Compary.

Key management personnel of the Gmup and the Company includes the Directors of the Company,

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RH00OD RM000 RMOOD RMOGO
Directors’ ard oy management pesorneds
remumeration
- shart-term empliyes benefits an, 258 71884 2,845 EE rrd
- chfinesd contriburion plans 7.832 5823 229 171
- banafits-in-kind 756 e 180 140
498,846 HaaT! 3,254 2583
43, COMMITHENTS
{a) Capital commitments
Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'DOD RMODO RMO00 AM D00
Contracted ut not provided foe 6,069,128 1733.3648 - 2,688

oz abxrve conumibrmts maindy comprise purchanse of spame parts amd progety, plant ard eguiprmemi.

Group
2024 2023
RMODO RM'000
Capatal commitina il in relition o diions et 20,918 B4R
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43. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
{b) Operating lease commitments
{i} The Group as lessor

Thar Group leases out its property, plant and equipment and investment propertes 1o thied parties. The Group classled
these leases as operating beases, becwse they do not fransfer substantialy all of the risks and nowards ncdental to the
ownetship of the assets. The following table sets out the maturity schedule of undscounted lease payments (o be
received after the reporting date.

Group

2024 2023

ARM'000 RM OO0

Less than 1 year 366,910 241259
Betwten 1 ta 2 yous 178181 134,278
Between 2 to 3 years 131,226 132838
Between 3 ta 4 yaars 80,225 105224
Botween 4 1o S years 76,002 B5477
Later than 5 years 5643 a932
Total undiscounted laase peyments (0 be recelved B38.187 706,008

Thoue leases diassified as finarce leases ane disclosed in Hate 34{a),

44, SECMENTAL INFORMATION
The Group has so reportable segments as descrbed belows-
(@) Comsruction
(b} Hotel operatians
{r} Cament and buildng materials industry
(] Management serices B oihers
(& Proparty swestment & development
(f1  Uiitles

Muanagemanl monitors 1ha operating resulls ol operating segmants separately for the purpese ol making decitions abaut resoies
to be allocated and of assessing parformance,

Thue Utilitiees Ssegment comprses Power generation, Water and Sewerage ard Telecommuncations. Thise sub-Segments have iy
econamic characteristics. Details of these sub-segments ara dsdosed in YTL Fower International Berhad's annual repart which is
aeailable to the public.
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44. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
The seqment Infoemation for the reportable segments is as follows:-

Cement snd
building Management  Property
Hatel materials services investment &
Construction  operations indurstry & others development Lrilithes Total
RMD0D RMOOD RM'O00 RiFODD AMO00 AMAODD RMOO0

Group - 2024

Revanua

Total revenue 1486374 1618646 5444726 1,378,661 03,283 ZL195.006 31726796
Ier-seqrent revenue (B59, 40%) {15.209) [57.713]  (238,395)  [206,30G) (18,990) (L236115)
External nésgnus 786965 1,603.347 5,387,013 1,140,266 06,974 21176106 30,490,671
Results

imerest income 17,085 3430 B7.614 T6.,04A 13.439 41.624 221250
Firunce roshy [7.594) (29.118) (226.763) (B37.563) (208.357) (1.309.095) (2.620.490)
Share of resufis af sociies

and joint venfures - 14,735 40,009 270.32% 89,251 [3.565) 410,756
Segment pral belere i 15,261 286,725 783, 463 352,718 83,065 3,311,737 4,832,969
Sagment assets

ImvesTment in associnng and

jomt verthures - ErAEl B6.144 2239542 2117.076 246,953 4727418
(N Sagment asvamn LO04.857 2.497.547 10381407 18555670 7.371,029 44,252,606 84,063,216
Sagment liabilitias

Bonds and bomamings 357,086 698,111 3,370,520 17.389.730 3,010,982 Z21.795527 46.6Z21.896
Other segment lizbilties BE7. 745 512151 1526628 2.0068.476 1199171 11.894.4681 18.008.652
Dthed segmant

Intormatien

Capital esperd ture 3,395 37.419 226,350 535,884 135511 2998714 3.937.273
Inpalrmmen L ineite batx) " LTy 191376 18,052 [16.813) TLOZS 365,437
Degritiaton and

amoribation 12,109 65,204 341,866 28,006 174,274 128250 1904413
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44, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The segment information for the resortable segments is s follows (continued)-

Cement and
building Management  Property
Hatel materials serwices investment &
Construction  operations Industry E others development Unilities Tatal
RM'0o0 RM'DD0 AMAO00 RMFO00 RM'O00 RM'OG0 LRl
Group - 2023
Ravenue
Total revenie LA18.247 1326254 4,882 39 L10L73E B4 BT  ZLOBE3R9 30397424
Inser-segment revenus [EL5PEL) (12434 [BLIGE) [298705) (177.366) [15.513) {7E1,338)
atemal revenue La0a4Be L313820 4821407 BO305% 407120 £1067 416 £9016085
Results
nieest income Bafl LT SoAad 4RG4E B5l6 25619 139,585
Finance ¢osts - [#5.506) (232670} (TEB.ATH) (84,757 (LI0S337M)  (23W6743)
Shate of regults of associates
ared Joir woniunes - 12,057 .39 EEC i 34,553 &18 A4S
Segment profitiloes)
before lax 9564 160.1ET 3275 11485 (TLB43) 13269 FErERIE]
Segment assets
ImyesEment in A0l es ang
oint ventures - L5052 123 Les7.758 213287 LLREE 42418491
(Other seqrer xisetls 8345m8 251335  I0B9LES:  1STESG3E TCI0BET  4007R252 77219008
Segment Habilities
Bands and biTenngs E= i CE H1%. 205 4497692 10wz 2907434 SLIENHTS AbA54 192
Osher segment Ratdities [ty 478176 L%l 1le L3196 L245,000 9,456/582 14592944
Other segment
infermation
Capitsl expenditure 25618 11431 150872 519,044 56,704 L5387 215535
I TN e Bck) - 1= 7887 B.7E7 {22.492) 133272 127589
Depreciaton and
AT ERAtE 21449 B5.538 356,790 24,001 150658 L2865 736 Lo0s070
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44. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION [CONTINUED}
{a)} Geographical information
Thie Group's she bisiness segments operate bn thiee main geographical areas-
{iy  Malaysia - Carsiuctian
- Haotel operatkons
= Coment and bulding materiaks indastry
- Management warvites & ofhers
- Poperty wvesiment & development
Utilitiers
(i) Urited Kingdom - Litifigiess
- Hotel operatsons
. Praperty inastmant & dowslopment
filiy  Sngapore - Unilities
Coment and building matorials industry
- Property investment & development
Ravanua Han-current assets
2024 2023 2024 2023
RM'DOO RAMDDO RMDOO RM D00
Malaysia 6.891.325 B205.H01 13.891.902 116004913
United Kingdatm 5,441,113 4,623,496 25,548,482 23.354.534
Singapore 15,857,001 16,925,544 10,772,052 10,354 262
Other ceamtries 2,301,032 LOGL244 3,585,583 1726934

30,490,671 29,616,085 53,798,019 AS, 036703

Hon-cument assets information presented above comlst of the folowing Itens a3 presented In the Statements of Finandal

Prasition.
Mon-currant assots
2024 2023
RM 00D RMDOD
Propedty, plant and equiprment 37.,816.881 35,330,655
Righit-of-use assets 2,135,525 L5284 877
Irrvestment progicetios 2,233,455 1566655
SENViCE CONCession assets BELA04 -
Devedopmant eapendingres 796,145 786,093
Intangble aszels 9,934,119 428412

53,796,019 49036703
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44. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(b} Major customers
The following ks the major customer wath revenue equal or mare than 10 per cent of the Group’s revenua:-

2024 2023
RMDO0 RM'OO0 Segment
Energy Market Campany 7,064,703 9242263 Powet qeneration

45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group and the Company when managing capital are to-safequand the ability of the Group ard the Company to
EONTinEe &5 3 gaing Concorm n anser 1o provide returms 1o sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and 18 maintain an
optimal capital strutture bo reduco the cost of capital

There are external debit covenands, sudh as garing and debit service coverage ratio applicable 1o the Group and gearing ratio 1o the
Company, which ane not onarous and these obigations can be Tulfiled, As part of its capital management, the Group rigorously
monitors tompilance with these covenants. in additon, consistent with othars in the Industry, the Group and the Company monitor
capital on the basis af the gearirg ratio. This ratio is cakoulated as net dabt divicled by tatal capital Net debt is calculated s totl
borrewings (including ‘turrent and noo-curent barmowings” a% shown in the Statement of Financial Position) less cash and bank
balarces. Total capital is caloulated as ‘equity’ as shown in the Statement of Financial Position plus net debt,

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

Mote RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'O00 RMO00

Bk 32 20,670,945 24, 513083 3,825,000 A A40,000
Bommaings 33 16,950,951 FLE4L0EG 1,002,112 1116910
L Cash and cash equnatonts & {14,259,201) (14,425557) {242.695) [A014E)
et det 32,362,695 2 0EH53Y 4,674,416 4,526, /6
Total ety 24,160,086 20113233 5,665,778 5.850,063
Total capital 56522781 SlaL TR 10,344,194 104 662G
Caating radia 7% B9 455, EELT

To stengthin the capilal structune of the Comgarny, all barowings of subsidaies an unceTiken on @ nooerecourse baks o the
Commpany save and except fod thise bomowings guasaiteed by the Company as set ot in Notes 32 and 33 to the financial
sialsrents.
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
Detaits of the subsidiaries am as follows-
Effective Equity
Intenest
Country of 2024 2023
Nama of Company incorporation  Principal Activities T B
Held by the Company:
Arah Asas Sdn. Bho Malaysia Property deseoprment 100,00 10000
Bumiress & Budget Hotels Sdn. Bhd, Malaywa Management anid imvestment holding 100,00  100.00
Cane Creathons Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Inepstment holding 100.00  100.00
Comerstona Crest Son Bhd, Mualmysea Ineestment holding 100,00 10000
Divine View Sdin Bhd, Malaysad Commarclal tracing, poparty dealing and  100.00  100.00
Irvisstmint hokding
Inteliartinal Mission Sdn, Bhd, Malzymis Educatinn and training using advanced 100,00 10000
technology
Prisma Tuln Sdn. Bl Malnysia Hotel aperator 100,00 10000
Syarkat Pembenaan Yeah Tiong Lay Malayiia Ciwll #ngineering warks, construction,  100.00  |0C.00
Sdn Bhd. property deveopment and feal estate
Inwestment, investment holding and
redated senices
Taiwangsa Development Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Imsastmant halding 100,00 10000
WTL Cayirian Liminid Cayman Klands tiwist it holding, ownership aid 100,00 [OC00
chartering of yachts and vessels
¥TL Comanit Frhad Maiayraa Investment holding. management 9803 S04
commpary and hiing of yehicks
¥TL Charters Sdn Bhd. Mailaysea Chartering of alrcrafts, halicopters, ships 100,00 10000
aned vehichps
¥TL Corporation (LK) Fic England & Wales  Inacthe 100.00 100.00
¥TL Conp Finance (Cayman] Limited Cayman klands  Inacthe 100.00 10000
¥TL Corp Finance (Labuan) Liméted® Malaysia Spedal purpose vehide for issuance of 100.00 10000
securitivs and irvestment helding
¥TL e-Solutons Berhad Malay=a3 Imeestment haodding, proviskon and 100,00 10000
maintenance of efarmatan techraogy
hardwane and software Systems,
netwnrk ard intemet connectivity
Intrastruciune, wed nosteng sendces,
Corlen] diitlopment, provision af
B-fommaite systems, hatwane sades
and other redated Senvioes
¥TL Energy Sdn. Bhd, Mualaysaa Ineestment holding 100,00 10000
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46. LIST OF S5UBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows [continued)-

Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L] L]
Held by the Company: (continued)
Y7L {Guermsey) Limited® Gusrmsey Investment and property holding 100,00 10000
Y7L Hospitality REIT Halaysia e tment in real eslate 5694 56.96
V7L Hotel Management Saint Troper France Hotel operator and management senices 100,00 10000
CARL®
Y7L Hotels B Proportios Sdn. Bhd Malwysia Inrstmant halding and managemon 100.00 100.00
VDS
Y7L industries Barhad Malaysla Investmant holdng, propesty 10000 10000
devlogment & propermy vesuTsei
Y7L Lo Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property Fvesiment, properly and projsct 100,00 100,00
managema]
Y7L Land & Development Berhad Malaysia Evestmant holding and provsion of 93.20 9318
managemet, financial, treasury and
socratatial worvicod
Y7L Power Irterrotionsd Berbud® HMalipsia verstment haldng and provesion ol 54.94 557
administrative and technical suppart
SEIVICES
Y7L Singapere Pre. Lid” Srpapore inwrsTment halding and Imanagemen 10000 10000
CeMmpany
YTL-5W Carbon Sdn, Bha, Malaysia Frovisan of conultancy senices B0.00 90,00
Held through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn. Bhd.:
Buisness fr Buckget Hotels Malwsia Hatel npetator 51,00 SE00
{Penang) Sin. Bhd
Busness & Budget Hotels Halaysia nactive - 5100
(Seberang jaya) Son. Bha”
Held through Cane Creations
Sdn. Bhd.:
Cane Creations (Marketing) Sdn. Bhe Malaysla Trading in cane furriture, local 10000 10000
handicratis, accessorias and related
sarvies
Miche Retaling Sdn. Bhd. HMalaysla Rataling of fashion apparets and related 10000 10000
BOCESLONRS
PP Refined Verqune Sdm Bhd Malwesla Retaling of Tashion spparets and rodated 51.00 3100
ACCELRONH

274 YTL CORFORATION BERHAD

536/615



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

537/615

= 30 june 2024
46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detads of the subsidlanes ae as follows (continued-
Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Namae of Company incorporation  Principal Activities W L]
Held through Cane Creations
Sdn. Bhd.: (continued)
Prestige Lifestyles & Living Son. Bhd Malaysa Trading of furniture, accessaries and 100,00 10000
redstad senvioes
Star Wl Living Com Sdn Bhd Malaysia Project management serices, rading of 100000 10000
palnting. fumitune, accessories, o,
confectoneries. gifts and refated
SEMCES
Starples Rewand Sdn. Bhd, Mualaysa Provision of kyalty program and rewards 10:0.00 {{wwlas]
MANJDEMEnt Sysiism
Trerdy Retailing Sdn. Bhd TMalimysa Innctive 100,00 10000
Held through Divine Wiew
Sdn. Bhd.:
S0 YTL Hatels Saint Tropes® Framce Acruisition, management, renting and 100.00  [0QO0
administration andfor resale of real
estace
Held through Syarikat Pembanaan
Yeoh Tiong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
Autatia Metal Sdn, Bhd” Malaysia Inactive 100,00 10000
Auritacla Timbers Malaysla Sdn. @hd. Malaysa IN@CTive 100.00 [0Q00
Builders Briclworks Sdn, Bha Malay=a Inactive 93,80 531.80
Construction Leass (M) Sdn. Bad, Malaysa Leasing, hire purthase and credt 100,00 10000
Dayani Bay Development Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Progerty investimeant and deyiopment 100,00 0G0
Dayang Bunting Resarts Sdn. Bhd, Malnysia Praacrsy Investmant and dev opment 100,00 10000
Dynamic Marketing Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Trading of bullding and corstruction 10000 10000
matediats
First Commeamisl Cevalopmeant Sdn. Bhd, Malaysa Property investmant 100,00 10000
Hoted 25 Sdn Bhd. Malayea Mool operator 10000 10000
kampung Tiong Development Son. Bl Malaysa Praperty development 100.00 70,00
Ly Seng O Palm Plantations Sdn, Bhd. Malaya Culthvation of el palms 100,00 10QD0
Northwwestern Water Sdn Bhd Malwysia Property investment and development 100,00 L0000
Paimran Property Management Sdn. Bhd Malxyea Inactive 100,00 0000
Suri Travel & Towrs Sdn, Bhi Malaysa Rental of motor vehicles, ar ticketing and =~ 100000 100100
other mdated senaces
ANNUAL REFORT zO24 275
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46. LIST OF S5UBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows [continued)-
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Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L] L]
Held thraugh Syarikat Pembenaan
‘Yeoh Tiong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
{continued)
Transportable Camgs Sdn. Bhd. HMalxysia Trading and fental of transportable cabins.  100.00 10000
and wood based products
Yap Yew Hup Britkwarks [Perak) Maliwysla naciive 93.80 9380
Sdn. Bl
feoh Tiong Lay Realty Sdn. Ehd Malmia Realty, immestmant and managomsant 100000 10000
waVIEs
Y7L Constrction Intemational Cayman |slamds nwestment haldng in construction 10000 10000
[Caryman] Limited” related activities
Y7L Construction (5) Pre. Lud” Snpapore Construchon related activites and real 100,00 10000
edtile develapar
Y7L Civil Engineserineg Sdn. Bhd. Halayla Chl enginsering works and construction 100,00 10000
Y7L Damarsara 3 San, Bhd, Malayia Property Fvestment ard develogmsant 100,00 10000
Y7L Development Scn. Bhd. Malaysla Froperty development To.00 L0
Y7L High Speed Rail Sdn, Bhd. Malayia Inactive lo000 10000
Y7L Propect Management Sendioes Malaysia Provision of management sendces for 10000 10000
Sdn, B COMSIUCTON projects
Y7L Technologies Sdn. Bhd, Halaysia Senvicing and hinng of egupment 99.21 gaz2s
Held through YTL Cayman Limited:
Just Heritage Sdn Bhd” Malwysia Managament sanices 10000 100,00
Starhill Giobad REIT irvestmesas Limited®  Cayman islands Investment haldng 100.00 100000
Startdl Globall REIT Maragement Limited®  Cayman |sands krvverstment haldng 100,00 10000
Y7L Construction (Thaland) Lmited” Thailand Constructan actvibies 74.89 F4.89
YTL Power Services St Bl Mal aysla Operation and mainienance of powear 10000 10000
Stabion
Y7L Property imesiments Limited® Cayman |sands rverstment halding 10000 10000
YL Starhill Clobal Property Singapore Property Management senees 10000 10000
Managemant Pte. Lod”
¥TL Stavhill Ghobal REIT Management Sinpapore Investment halding 100.00 100.00
Hodings Pre, Lid”
Y7L Stamill Global BEIT Management Sngapore Investmeant advisor, property fund 10000 10000
Limited® management sendoes and 10 act as the

276  ¥YTL CORPORATION BERHAD
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the subsidiares ame as follows (continued)-
Effective Equity
Intenest
Country of 2024 2023
Nama of Company incorporation  Principal Activities T B
Held through ¥YTL Cement Berhad:
Assoriated Pan Malaysia Cement Malaysed Manifacture and sale of cement and 70.86 04
Sdn. Bhd. clinke:
Batu Tiga Quarry Sdn. Bhd. Malaysis Cuenty business and trading of granite 98.03 SE04
agEesales
Batu Tiga Quarry {50, Buloh) Sdn. Bhd Malaysaa Queary business. and ralated services 88.03 S804
Beijing Dama Sinasaune Trading Thee People's Trading of mecharscsl, electncal 98.03 SE.04
Ca. Ld® Repubic of China equipment and parts
Bentara Lemilang Roustries 500, Bhi Malaysaa Crsaary DUSIness ard relatid senvies 49.02 4902
Binh Duwong Fico Cement Single Mamber Vatnam Manufacturng and sale of cemen BB.E2 BEG3
Limied Liabibry Compaimy®
Bhuakoone Gt Connebie St Bl MLy Pl i «iel sl of iyl 70.86 704
conoreds and refated services
Bulkkcon Concrete Enterprise Sdn. Bhd Malayria Imstmant hokding a8.03 a4
Budldicon Concrete Schi Brul Malaysia Manufaciuie ard s of leady-mbed 70,86 P )
cononte and refaled services
L1 Quarrying & Masketing Sdn. Bt Malayeid Cusry husiness and mlated serviees 98.03 S04
CL Readymix Sidn. Bhd Muatmynaa Farufaciune and sale of ready- maed 70.86 704
conorete and transportation services
COL Sadn, Bhd. Mamysin Comducts reseanth and dewsopmean 98,03 S 0
activitles. prowdes (omuitangy services
anid Technical tralrngs 1o Improve th
QuaakTy, producthdty and effectiveness
al eanstrclion matedas
CMCH Pamiagaan Son. Bhd. Mataysia Destribution of coment and budidng 70.86 04
matenals
Competent Teanvwork Sdn Shid Mallaysaa Irvestment holding g98.03 9604
Cone rete Industries Pe iLid” Singapare Darmant a8.03 SH04
Conerode SEar Liritoed® Cayman Elnds Iresiment halkding 08.03 56 04
Equity Corporation Sdn. Biwl Fualaywa Crmary business and ralated services 98.03 SEL04
Fico Tay Nird Cembnt jant Siock Wartnam Manufactuny and s of (orromnt BB.G2 BHE3
Comgparny’
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES [CONTIMUED)
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Detalls of the subsidiaries are as Tollows [continued-
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Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incorporation Principal Activities % L]
Held thraugh YTL Cement Berhad:
{continuad)
Feo-YTL Cement Sates and Marketing Wigtnam Sale and marketng of cementitious BR.EZ BR.G3
Company Limited" roducts
Gemilang Pimar Sdn. Bhd Malaysla Quarry busingss and trading of granite GA.6Z BEET
ARgredRies
Ceo Alam Environmental Sdn Shd Halaysia Waste management in supplying TO.86 7704
disisoring of Altornative Tuelt and riw
materials fof use in tament
manuf acturing activities
G Alam S, Biad, Halaysia Trading aof amy type of comentitions To.86 .04
materialy usabde in the production aof
cement of oonciets Tor use in the
cormstruction industry
Gresn Enahle Tachniobagies Sdn. Bhd Malaysia DOperation and madntenance of power a8.03 SR04
plant arel prowsion af project
mansgement and momsultancy sendces
i hsding <ode] waaste and schodifed
warite dispesal in cement plant
H Cament {Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malay=la Manufacture and sale of cement 7086  TT04
Hopofiekd Entorpeises Limitod Harg Kong Iwestmant halding 98.03 GH34
Indfuistiial Procuremant Limited" Cayman klands Inyvestmant halding 98.03 ‘o804
Jaksa Quarry Son Bhd Halaysia Quarry business and related services 98,03 9804
LTty Shipgeng San, B Malaysia Shipping of bk cerment and virssels 70.86 72,04
thartating
Jurang Cement Limiod” Singapore westment halding and that al importess 0803 TEO
and dealers aof ready - mic concrete Jnd
dry-mix mortar products and business
o owiners ol storage tenménal facithes
and selers of cement
Kedah Cement Holdings San. Bhd, Malaysia westment haldng 70.86 7704
Kedah Cemoent Sdn. Bhd Halaysia Mardacture and sale of cerment, dlirdker T0.B6 Tr4
and malated products
Kirlah Comant jetty Sdn. Bhd, Halaysia Licermad jetty operaton TO0.BE .04

YTL CORFORATION BERHMAD
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Details of the subsidates ae as folows (continued]-
Efective Equity
Interost
Country of 2024 2023
Mame of Cempany Incorporation  Principal Activities e LT
Hald through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
{continued)
Kenneson Comtruction Materlals Malaywa nacthe 98.03 5604
Sdn. Bhd.
Kannekan Northern Quasty Sdn. Bhd, Malnysia Manufacturing. selling and distritantion of 98.03 Sa.04
premix procucts, construction and
Bl iy TP T ad
LA Stones (Kota Tinggl) Sdn. Bhd Malayeia Quarrying and trading of granite and 70.86 Troa
ey proits
LA Stomes (Partal Remis) Sdn. Bhad, Malaysa Trendiong and oqariying of aggregates and 70,86 Tr04
redabed poducts and lessing of
guastmying rights ol agoregates and
refited materiss
LA S1omes Sdn. Bl Malaysa wvestmant hoiding, wading and quanrysng 70.86 Fr04
ol aggregatas and related products
LLS Cemant Marketng Pre. Lid" Singapare Imvestment holding 70.86 7104
L% e, Lid” Singapore Bulk import and sale of cement and 70.86 o4
trading af ather buillding materats
L5 Shipping Pte. Lid" Singapore Shipping of bulk cement and thartering JoBe 77.04
of vessals
LMCE Holdmg Pre. Lid” Singapune rvestiment hodding 70.86 704
Madah Seloka Sdn. Bhl. Malayaa Cuiarmy husness aned related servees 98.03 OELO4
Malryan Coment Bethad Malaysia Irmeestment helding 70.8B6 F7.04
M-Cement Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Imeestment hodding 70.86 i
Mini:Mix Sdn. Bhi Malaysia Manufactune and taka af roady -mived 70.BE 7704
concrete and hiring of vehicles
Mohijack Sea Sdn. Bhd, Malarysia Business of granite cuarrying and nelated 58.03 GELna
SBNYiCeES
Mutual Frospect San. B Markinysia Gy Dusaness andd related seniges 98.03 S04
Manyang Aggregates Pte. Lod” Singapore Sale and marketing of cemant, 98.03 a0
cornenditions products and othee
relted construction proclucts
eanyrang Cesmeent Pre. Lid” Singapore Cement tenming operations, bulk residng = 98.03 a0
o it dind tranding inocomant
Hhir Anh Investment [oint Stock Vietnam Imeestment holding 98.03 G0
Compary”
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows [cortinued-

Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % T
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
(continued)
MNhu Anh Vertures Co., Ltd," Wietnam Prowision of management consuftancy 98.03 -
Lirvice
Dati Vision Sdn, B, Makrsa Productian. selling and distibution of 3500 3500
consiruction and buslding matesials
Pakatan wiramas Sdn. Bhl, Malaysia Quarry busdrass and related sendoes 98.03
Pahdng Cement Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Manufachere and sale of ordinary portland ~ 70.86 Tro4
wetreril, cluie ond nekrled Eoducts
drul armp tation services
Preak. Hangoang Siaoen Soa. Bl Ml Mariaches and silo of ecdinay portiand 70,86 TrO4
tament, clnker and relted moducts
Permodalan MHites Sdmn BEnd. Malaysia Quarry burilress and related Senaces 90.03 aE.04
PHE Trading Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Maragement af plant F0.86 T4
PMOWS Entedpraes Pro Ld® Sngapcde Inwestmant haldng 70.86 Tr04
ELT. ¥TL Semen indonesia’ Indonasia Inactive 98.03 R0
Quickmix Solutsons Sdn. Bnd, Malayua Manutacnee and sale of cément and 7086 Fin
drymix products
AC Aggregates Sdn. Bhd. Malaysi Handing of constructlon waste materials 98.03 gE.04
arl sales of the recycled concrotn
aggregates
Shiren Ltarha Markiting Sdn, Bhd, Makiysia MarkiEting. trading and manilsuring af T0.BE 704
pement and rebated products
Sina Mobike and sy Eguipmint Malaysia Tradireg and manienance of trucks and Q8,03 904
Sdn. Bl s and hedvy oquipmant
Slag Cement Son. Dhd Malayui Manufachwe and sale of cedinary portland  70.86 TI04
cement and blended cement and
trarsporiEban services
Slagy Comaen! (Southem) Sdn, Bhi Malaysia Manufachee and sale of ordinary partland 70,86 fI0e
camsnt and Blanded cemant
SMC Mite Sdn. Bhdd. Blalpyrein Manufachee and sale of roadymixed TO.BG Fro4
concrete
Sokanis Convepl Sdn. Brul Malanysia Proiu thoi, selliig and distnibubion ol 49.99 SO0
Lonrstruc Lo g building imatieias
Stralts Cement Sdn. Bhid Halaysia Productson and sale of cement 70.86 Tro4
Supermix Concrate Pre, Led” Singapore e tment heiding 70.86 704
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Details of the subsidates ae as folows (continued]-
Efective Equity
Interost
Country of 2024 2023
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %
Hald through ¥YTL Cement Berhad:
(continued)
Supemix indusiries Sdn. Bhd Malaywa Manufactune and safie of ready-m 66,09 .85
coficrele
Supanmix (Matiysia) Sdn, Bhd. Malmysia Manufacture ard safa af raady-mos 6609 71085
concrete
¥TL Camant |Cambodia) Holdngs Singapore Duasrrraant 98.03 Sa.04
e, Lt
¥TL Cewrmnil Enberpeise San. B [Fakiny=ia Irneestmient huolding 98.03 Sa.04
¥TL Coment {Hnng Kong) Limited® Hrng Knng Imerstment hodding 89803 LT
¥TL Cemant Marketing Scin. Bhd, Malaysia Sale and marioeting of cementitous 70.B6 104
products
¥TL Cemaent Myanimar Company Limned Myanimar IRACTE 98.03 e
¥TL Cement {Myznmad] Holdings Singapore Inwestment hoiding 98.03 G504
P Lel?
¥TL Cement {Philippinas) Holdings Singapore Dormant 98.03 SEL04
Ple, Lid®
¥TL Cemant Rewands Sdn. Bl Malaysa Management of loyalty programmes g8.03 SE.04
¥TL Cement {Sabah) Sdn. Brid Malayeia Imspstment hodding 98.03 =21
¥TL Ceamenit Shared Services Sdn, Bhid Malayia Aecounting shaed services, and 10.86 F1.04
managerment consulling snces
¥TL Cenmant Singapore Pre. Lid” Singapore Imvestment holding and rent collection 98.03 a4
from its immsiment properties
Y¥TL Comant Temming Serdce P, L Singapore Dperation of port terminabs and handing 98.03 a4
of cesmentitious products
¥TL Comant (Virtnam] e Lid” Singaparne ImaesIment nodding 98.03 Os 04
¥TL Concrete (5) Pte. Lid” Singapore Manufactune of ready-mixed concrete, 88.03 S04

wholpsale of structural clay and
conciate products and miced
constrisction acthvities

¥TL Promix Sdn, Bhil Maalrysda Tradng ol Endding matesisls and relatid 8803 oa04
SEIVICES
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as Tollows [continued-

Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
MName of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
(continued)
YTL Technical Services Sdn. Bhd Halaysia Proviston of technka support, preventive 98.03 98,04
imaFenance, part awdit, iramning,
progct manggamint. and due diligence
for cement plant. plarning, design and
deveioament of sUateges for
corstruction, modification, and
upgradirg of cement plant and
peovaskon of recommendation and
saluton on senvice mprovement and
process optimesation
Fhajiang ¥TL Cement Marketing The Penpie's, Margement wence 9E.03  9AD4
Cow, Lt Rapubic of China
Held through ¥TL Charters
Sdn. Bha.:
Isiard Air Sdn. Bhd, Halaysia Chartering of airorafts @000 ‘OO0
Nuraritaed Sakti Sdr. B, Halaysin Larringe af passengers and e cariers 80,00 o0
Haeld thraugh ¥YTL e-Solutions
Berhad:
Areed Senaces Sdn Bhd, Malysia It 56.00 5,00
Alrzed Broadband Sdn. Bhd Malanysla Froviding wired line and wirgless 70.00 7000
benadDand NUNTOT A00ES SeniDs and
devaioaing, producing, masketing,
sgling and maintaining software
applications. reseanch and develapment,
consultancy and releted services
Biruur MSC Sdi Bhd. Malaiis I Ay GO0.00 BO0.CD
Infoscreen Networks Lid. England & 'Wass  investment holdng 10000 10000
PropermyetAse (Malaysia) Son, Bl Maliysia I i 10000 10000
YTL info Soreen Sdn Bhd. Halaysia Creating, providng advertising content, 10000 10000
i, Wil ifecha and up to date
Information wia electrarss media
Wiax Sdn. Bhd Malaysla Inaciive 100,00 100.00
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detaks of the subsidlanes ae as follows (continued-
Effective Equity
Interast
Country of 2024 2023
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L Yo
Hald through ¥TL e-Solutions
Berhad: (continued)
¥-Max Networks Sdn. Bhad, Malay=a Providing computer netwarking and 60,00 =000
redated inlormation technology series
¥ Max Salutiang Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malmysa Imvestment holding 100,00 10000
Held through ¥YTL Hospitality REIT:
Srarhill Hosprtaliny (Ausieala) Py, Lid” Mistroba Trustee company 56.94 S6.96
Stahill Hospitality REIT [Austraia) Aurstralia Redl estate Ivestment 56.94 56.96
Trust”
Saarhill Hospitabity REIT (Brisbana) Trust® Aapstralia Real estate investmant 56.94 5686
Starhill Hospitality REIT [(Mebournae) Australin Rial estate imdestment 56.94 S6.90
Trust®
Sranill Hospitakity REIT [Sydray) Trust” Australia Riral estalie indestment 56.94 56,96
Saarhill Hospitality REIT (Australia) Malaysa Imepstment hodding 56.94 56.96
Sdn. Bhd,
Starhill Hotel (Australa) Sdo B, Malaywa Investment fiolding 56.94 56.96
srahill Hotel [Rrshane) Pry, Lod* Adtralia Mot operanne 56.94 HR.96
Starhiill Hotel {Melbourne) Py, Lid." Marstralia Huotel operator 56.94 56.06
Sl Hotel [Sydny) Py, Led” Australin Mot operator 56,94 56.96
Starhill REIT [Merstralia) Py, Ltd” Austraka Trustes company 56.94 56.96
Stachill REIT Mibeko QK lapany Puchase, potseision, diposal, lase angd 56,94 20.90
managamant of real properties
¥TL REIT MITN Sdn. Bh. Milayna To ek the isasnce of medum 56.94 5696
Term neres
Held through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.:
Autodame Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Dperator of food and beverage outlets 100,00 10000
and sub-letting of pramises
Bath Colonnade Properties Limited England & Wales  Letting of promises 100,00 0000
{THEY
Barh Homel & SPA BV Nemenands IrvesEment noiding 100,00 JOCU0D
Bath Hotel and 5PA Limited" England & Wales  Hotel developer and oparator 100,00 10000
Borneo Cosmeceutical Sdn, Bhd, My Development of holiday resorts 90.00 S0.00
Bameo kland Vilas Sdn. Shd Malaysa Darmiani a0.00 BNLOG
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46, LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED]

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows [cortmued):-

Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities L W
Hild through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.: {continued)
Cameenon Highlands Resort San, Bhd. Malaysla Hatet and s operator 100.00 100,00
Diamand Recipe Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Operator of food and beverage oulet 100,00 100,00
Gairvsbocn oagh Herted (Bath) Limited” Englarg B Waline  Hatiel oparations 10000 10000
Glasshouse Hotal (Cayman] Limited® Cayman Istands Fvvestment halrding 10000 10000
Classhouse Hotel Limited” Ergland F wales  Invesstment halding 10000 100,00
Magna Bourdary Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Hatel and resort aperator 20.00 90,00
Marbie Valley Sdn. Bhd, Malwriin Managoment and imvestment Takding 8000 H0.00
Marble Vadey Two Sdn Bhd Halaysa Hatel operator G4.00 G400
Mankey tiand Properties Limted England & Wales  mvesiment and peaperty hading 10000 0000
Mew Architactune (Bray) Lmled® Englan & Wales  Hatel operstor 10000 10000
Misesko Village B |acan Dhming, managing, maantaining and 100.00 10000
develoging the Nseko Village Resot
Mk Village (5) Pre, L1l” Sngapcen e mant halring 10000 10000
M. Land Ca” |aoan Construction. developmaent, sale and i00.00 10000
purchase of real properties
P.T. lepun Ba#® indonesia Manageng and operating a holel 100,00 10000
Rerstoran Kisap Sdr. Bhd. Malwwia nacive 100,00 100,00
AW Gower Street Limited® Englant & Wales Hatet operator 100.00 10000
R Groensidie Flace Limited England b Waled  Hatel eporaion 10000 10000
AW Threadneedle Streat Limited” England k Wales  Hotel operator 100.00 100,00
Sarma Hated 2 Co, Lid! Thaikared Hatel cperaton 100,00 100.00
Starhil Hotel (Peeth] Py, Lt Austraka Trustes company 100,00 10000
Searhil Hotel [Pesth] Sdn. Bhd. Makwysa vestment halding 10000 10000
Starhil Borel (Pesth) Trust’ Austraka Real gstate mvesimen 100,00 10000
Srarhill Hotel Oparatar (Perth) Py, Lid® Aistrabia Hatel pperastar 100,00 10000
Starkidl CHice (Perth) Py, Lid" Aurstiaka Trustee compary 100,00 10000
Starhdl Retall (Perth) Py, Lid! fuistraka Trustes company 100,00 10000
Srar Hiil Hobel Sdn, Bral Malaysia Hatel cperator 100.00 10000
Thermae Development Comparry Englart & Wales  Licence to operate the Thenmae Bath Spa 100000 100,00
Limnitesd" ol
Threadmeedies Hotal Lmited” Englanc & Wales  investment haldng 100,00 10000

¥TLCORPORATION BERHAD

546/615



46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidanas ae as folows (tontinued) -

EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

Oooooooa

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Name of Company

Hald through YTL Hotals &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.: (continued)

¥ Proparty (Rawal] Company Limited”
 Proparty {Sarmus) Cormpary Limited"

¥TL Heritage Hatiss Sdin Bhd,
¥TL Hotals BV
¥TL Hovtols [Cayman) Limited!

¥TL Hotels Tenral Sendoes Sdn. Bl
¥1L ICHM Sdm, Bhd,

¥TL Hotals [Singapore} Pre. Lid."
YTL Majestic Hotel Sdn. Bhd.

Held through YTL Industries
Berhad:

Yooh Tong Lay Bckworks Sdn, B,
eoh Tiong Lay Management Sdn Bha.

Held through YTL Land Sdn. Bhd.:
Katagreen Development Sdn. Bhd.

Haritaga journey Sdn, Bhd,
Pintar frojek Sdn. Bhd

Puncak Semanding Sdn. Bhwl
Santul Fark Koi Centre Sdm Bhd,

¥TL Design Servioes Sdn, Bhid

Country of
Incerporation

Thaiand

i

Cayman klands

i

i

S

Principal Activities

Froperty development and proparty
Imeestment

Praparty develapment and proparty
imvestment

Dearrmaani

Imeestment holding

Hodal aporator and hatel managenent
SETVICES

Dt

Prowiding professional and commenial
education and training in hospitaliny

Travel and hospitality related busness

Hodel aperator

I Dt
Management and other senaces

Property leasing and management

DOperator ol Tood and beverage

Management of real estate investment
frust fundd, liensing of trademarks and
Brand management

Danma

Breedars. wholesalers, retailers ang
dsitamors of kod fich

Dormant

ANBMLUAL
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Effective Equity
Interast
2024 2023
k] B

73.99 -

7389 -

100.00 10000
100,00  LOOUKD
10:0.0:0 LCOO00
100,00 0000
70.00 0,00
100,00 (0000
100.00  [0Q.00
10000 0000
100,00 (0000
10000 (0000
lo0,00 0000
70.00 0,00
10000 10000
100.00 0000
10000 10000
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subskdianes are as follows [continuedy-

Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities ¥ LA
Held through ¥TL Land &
Development Berhad:
Amanresorts Sdn. Bhd, Malaysla Dormant 93,20 83,19
Bayurtaju Dewislopminy Son. Bhd Malaysia Fropety divelopimed 53,20 5339
Budaya Bersatu Sdn. Shd, Malaysia Property desslopment 93.20 6319
Emirald Hottares Sdn. Bhd, Malapsia Derrnant 65.24 6523
Lakafront Pte, Ll™ Singapora Real estale ceveloEment 93.20 9319
Lat Ten Securily Sdn. Bhd” Malaysia Inaive - LEER L
Mayang Sai Sdn. Bhd. (in lgusdaticn) Halaysla Inactive 93.20 9319
Norwasa Sdin, Bhd Malaynia Dexrmant 93,20 4319
Pakatan Porakbing Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Property devalapment 93.20 §3.19
Pinrtacle Trend Sdn. Bhd. Malarsia Froperty devalapmem and property 93.20 53.15
It
PP Senditan Berhad Malayia Proparty desalopmént 5320 9319
Sandy luand Pre Led” Sngapode Real estate development 93.20 9319
Sanria Sewirs Sdn. Bhd, (in Bquidation) Malaysia Dexrmant 93,20 53.19
Sentul Raya Sdn. Bhd HMalaysia Froperty devalopment and propaey 93.20 9319
inver et
Sentul Raya Golf Oub Berhad Halaysia Inactive 93.20 9319
Sentul Raya City Sdn. Bhd Malayriia Property devalapmant 93,20 8318
Sontul Park Management Sdn. Bhd Halaysla Park managomont 93.20 9319
Spectacular Comer Sdn. Bhd, Malaysla Dorrmant 93,20 9315
SR Propeny Management Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Prenvisan of propory managemisnt 93,20 ERL
anac
Syarikar Kemajusn Perumahan Negaea Halaysia FroperTy development 93.20 93119
Sdh. Bhd
Trend Acras Sdn Bhd Malasla Froperty devalopment 93.20 93149
Lidagakat Bina Sdn, Bhd. Malaytia Proporty divalopmeont 93,20 9315
YTL Land & Development [MM2H) HMalaysia Dommant 93.20 9315
Sdh. Bhdl
YL Land & Development Snpapora Provision of financial and 65,26 53.19
Managemaent Pre. Lol ManagPmenT ronsltancy senioes

286  YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

548/615



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANMUAL REFORT ZDEZ4

549/615

= 30 june 2024
46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detaks of the subsidlanes ae as follows (continued-
Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L Yo
Hald through ¥TL Power
International Berhad:
AnuRi Wister Trestment Thattand To underfake potable water, 23.51 -
Fatilitees Co. Lrd” wastiwaler and reclalimed water
tratment senices for damestic
and industrial usa
Bel Aar D Hadg Beheor BV, MNihisrands IrrepstmenE fosding 4552 A 04
Brabagon Estates Limited! England & Wales  Dormant 54.94 5557
By, Hutid Bed Al Den Haag' B Huilie| b 45,52 a6.04
Ceduiar Stnctures Sdn. Bril” Malaysa Inactie 32.96 3134
Dinls A1 Brabaron Management England & Wales  Daormam 54.94 G557
Compary Limited*
Entrace Limited Encland & wales  Darmant 54.94 557
Equiriox Salar Farm Sin. Bhi Matayea Durvilapment, awnership, oporation S4.94 5557
and maintenance al solar
phatovoltalc power plants and
refated eNgneoring, procuremant
constrisction and commissioning
SEIVICES
Extiva Commuscatom Sin, Bhe.” Maliywia nactive - 3334
Frex)Asia Sen Bl Malmya Lir el rosplled Freatimnd o 5494 5557
pnewring virtel leaming
education platfom
Frog Education Limited England & Wales  Sales into the education market 4252 #4252
anid turther development of the
web emdronment product
Frog Education Group Limilad” England & Wales  investment hosding 42,52 a252
Frog Educaticn Sdn. Bhd. Malayiaa Licenso msellor foused on AZ52 4252
prowiding virtual leaming
educational platform
Geneco EV [5] Pie. Lid)! Singapore Electric yehicke changing station 54.94 2537
Caneon Limited England & Wales  Food waste freatment 54.94 5557
Goneco [South Waest) Limited® England & Wales  Food wasto treatment L5494 GL57
Giobal Infiastuciue Assets Sdn Bl Malayta Irvestmenit hitding IA.46 38.90

287

Oooooooa



FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 30 |une £024

46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows [cortinued-
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Effective Equity
Imtorest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities L' LA
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad: [continued)
Granite Imestmants (Cayman klands) Cayman |stands Dcemant 54.94 5557
Lirnitesd®
ITS Mabiity Sdn, Bhd.” Malaysa westmant holdng 32.96 3334
ITS Symangy Sdn Bhd.” Malaysia vestmont halding 16.81 17.00
K5 Adunan Sdn Bhd. Halaysa Iwestment holdng 23.07 2334
Konsortium [aingan Sekanmgar Sdn. Bha Malayua Planning, implementatian and 3296 3334
maintenance of
telecommunication fowers and
tied nimdmimae ation rlatsd
wrvies
KWl {Guangzhau) Ervirenmental Chira Desmarnt 11.99 -
Engjinearing Technology Co. Lidd
MLFF Te<hnologies S0n Bhi” Malaysia Consiruction. instalation. 16.81 17,00
megralion, comirission, operaion,
management and mainterance of
all digital infrastructures,
nchading electronic 108 systom,
telecammuncation netwark
towers and infrastraciure.
Tibersatan network, ntamet-of -
things, digtal smart sppications
and related services
Navigator At Brabaren Managomant Englang i Wales  Dormant 54,94 555
Company Limited!
Neuron Splutions Sta, Bhd Maliyrsia Fravide mobie intemel and 32.96 -
{formesty known as Kcharging choud- based technology solition
Maiaysia Sen. Bhaf
PetoSeraya Ple. Ll Singapa Tani leasing and +abs of fusl o 5484 5557
Perunding Ranhill Woeley Son B Malaysia Provision of engineering and design 3,00 -
sorvices ol oil and gas Pacilities
FLT. Kanhill Bumrs Persads” Indonesiz Doemant 16.45 -
BT, ¥TL Harta Indonesia® Indangsia ndustrial estate 54,91 5554
P.T. ¥TL |awa Timue® Indanesia Construction management. 54.38 5501

¥TLCORPORATION BERHAD
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)Y
Detalls of the subsidiares ae as follows (continued)-
Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities s B
Hald throwgh YTL Power
International Berhad: (continued)
P.T, WTL Poweer Services indapesia’ Indonesa Dxwmant 52.18 |
PT, Tanjung |t Powiet Compay” Indofesa Duriign 3nd constraction of powes 4395 4446
generating Tacility
Rarhill Borsekutu Sdn. Bnd” Maaysia Frovision ol @nginkeing 2351 -
procurement and construction
management sendces [EPCM)
Engineering, procurement,
constnsction and commissioning
senvces (EPCC) and projoct
MARAGEmEnt serdces [PMC)
Rarhill Capita Sdn Bhd' Malaysda Irneestment holding and provision of 23,51 -
MANAgement Serdices 1o s
sutrsidlaries
Ranhll International Pie, Lid.* Singapore Imeestment hoiding 23.51 -
Rarkell Management Services 5dn, Bhd” Malmywa Provision of management services 23.51 -
o its related comgpanies
Rarhill Power Sanaces Sn, B, Malifsiy Provision ol suppoet sendon bo its 2351 -
febow subsdiaries m the power
diision
Rarhill Renewatles Sdn, Bhd " Malxysia Imeestment holding and the 2351 -
provision of installaticn, testing,
commissioning, opecation and
miintenanme sorvices of
rencwatle onergy projects
Rardll Sabah Energy | Sdn. Bhd Mutinysia Intependent power protucer in 14.10 -
{lormmerly known as Ranhill Powertron Eota Einabat, Sabah
Sdn. Bhd.}’
Rardll Sabah Energy 11 Sadn. Bha, Malmraa Independent power producer in la.m -
{lormerly known as Ranail Kota Kinabaly, Sabah
Pawartron B Sdn Bhd)
Rarhll Saban Energy I8 Sdn. @hd.” Malaysea Independent power producer in 14.10 -
Kota Kinabahi, Sabah
Rarhill Sabah Energy O | Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Provision of aparation and 14.10 -

{farmerly kmown as Rannll Power
OauM Seli, Bl )

malrtenance senaces for power

pilaits.
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subskdianes are as follows [continuedy-
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Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities ¥ LA
Held through ¥TL Power
Intermational Berhad: (continwed)
Ranhil Sasah Energy C&M Il Sdn. Bhd, Halaysia Frowsion of operation and 1a.81 -
(formeddy known as Ranhill Power || MaEnance Services for power
DEM Sen Bhd)' pants
Hanhil 58] sdn. Bhd.’ Malaysia integrated water supplier and Is 18.81 -
principally irmaaheed in e
dbrtraction of raw water,
trestment of water. dsinbution
ared sale of traated water 10
tomsumers in he State of johor
pursuant tn the Company’s
magraticn Hmm sendes
nncessian arfangemeant 1o
npErating services arAangement
Ranhil Solar | Sdn. Bhd” Malaysia Solar power generation 23,51 -
Ranhil Solar Veruwes Sdn. Bhd.* Malaysla A spacial pepose company 23151 -
Incorporaed o issue slami
Medium Tarm Motes andfar to
#stabish klamic Magium Term
Notes programme
Ranhil Technologles Sdn. Bhd. Malasia Prewiding and camydng on aroject 2351 -
[fermeny known as Ranhil Waler Mmaragement consultancy
Services Sdn Bhd)" sandces refating o both domestic
and overseas water-nelated
projects
Ranhil Utlities Berbad® Halaysla Inwestmant holdng 23.51 -
Ranhil Watir Terhrodoqies (Caymman) Cayrean ldands  invectmant hairing acthvities and 2351 -

Ld”

290 YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

prendsion of corsultanry senarces,

praject managament,
BRGNIBEHNG, [FOureTent,
ronstruction, supply of
equepment. operation and
Al BAaneE serdtis 1o bath
maricipal and industial water,
LEMEragE and wasrewater
traatmen phants
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Detals of the subsidiares ame as follows (continued)-
Effective Equity
Interest
Country of Z0e4 2023
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L %
Hald throwgh YTL Powsr
International Berhad: (continued)
Rarhill Water Technologes (Thal) Lid." Thailand To underiake consuttancy services, 11.52 -
project makagement,
EMgifeering, Supply construction
andl opeaton for potable and
wastEWATEr [reatment plant
Rarhill Water Technplogees Sdn Bhd” Mallaysa To undertaie imvesiment hokling 23.51 -
activities and prowssion of
CONSUNARCY Wrid o, ot
management, Bngirsering,
PR FETE, CONSCTion, suppy
al eauipment, aperation and
maintenance sendces o bath
muntripall ardd noustrial water,
SR AN WaSTRWaTDT
treatment plants
Rariill Worley Sdn. Bnd” Mualaysia Engineering, procunement, and 1199 -
comsinEtion management,
superdsion and ancillary serices
10 A% customes
4] Capital Son Bhd” MMalaysia A spedal purpose vehcle fo ssue 23.51 -
slamik. Medivm Term Mates of
RIS 000,000 in nominal valus
based on the Shariah Principle of
Murabanah (via Tawarrug
Arrangament) uluk Murabahay
Seraya Energy and investment Pe, Lid,* Singapore Imvestmient holding S4.94 5557
Sedaya Energy Pre. Lid" Singapore Sale of elatricity 54.94 G557
SC Technalogy Deutschland GmbH" Cirmay Waste taatment 54.94 5567
5C Technodogy Gmb" Geatzeriond Wikt Teatment 54,54 5557
S0 Technology Mederland By Wethenands Wese Teatment TR L] 5357
SIPP Power Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Development, construction, 38,46 3880
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46. LIST OF S5UBSIDIARIES [CONTINUED)
Detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows [continued)-

Effective Equity
Imtorest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % T
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad: [continued)
515 Green Pawer Sdn, Bhd, Malaysin Inwestment haldng 54,94 -
515 Groen Energy S Bhil, Malaysia WastE 1o energy that difnirs 54,04 -
amtinabia soltion 1o wasle
management by recycling and
TATIG WASTE b produts
ranewable enemy
SM Hydro Encrgy Sdn Bha b Halaysia Deermant Z3a51 -
Simia Salar Farm Sadn. Biel Malmyrsia Developrrenl, mwmership, openation 38,46 3850
ard marnenace of sula
photoltai powe plants and
nmalled engingaing Focrement.
CONETFLICTAN @ CoMmimpssioning
SNV
Taser Power Pz Lid” Sangapoie Ganeration and sake of electricity 54.94 5557
Tumball infrastruciure & Utilities England & Wales  Engineening services 54.94 5557
Limited"
water 2 Busingss Limited” Englond & Wales  Non-househok] water retabier 38.46 EEL]
wessay Conoerge Limited'” England & Wales  Investmant haiding B 5557
Wi Water Enginiering Servioes Englirwd B Wales  Doxmant - 5557
Lamited*
Wt Wated Enfedpuiue Limitad Englenid B WAt  Powar gonpraton and wikio 5494 5557
tredatment
Wessex Water Imemational Limised! Cayman ldands  Desrmant 54.94 5557
WWassax Water Limited” England & Waes  Invastment holding 494 5557
Wessay Water Penchon Scheme Trustee  England & Wales  Doermant 54.04 5557
Limited®
Wessax Water Sendces Finance Pic’ England & Wales  lwsue of bands 54.94 55.57
5494 5557
Wessax Water Sonecos Limiled’ England & Waltt  Water supply and wrtio wator 54.94 85,57
VS
iWestes Water Tiustes Company Engand & Wales  Dosrnant 54.94 5557
Lifiipl®
Wessey Utility Solutions Limited® England & Wales.  Engineering seqvices 54.94 5557

292 ¥YTL CORPORATION BERHAD
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Details of the subsidanas ae as folows (tontinued) -
Effective Equity
Interost
Country of 2024 2023
Name of Company Incerporation  Principal Activities L B
Hald through YTL Power
International Berhad: (continued)
Yakin Telesel Sin. Bhd.’ Malaysia Plannirg, development, implementation 16.15 16.34
arel management af tEecommurection
infrastructure and nfomation
communication technofogies senvices
¥TL Al Cloud S Bhed? Makayiia Dervirpmiant of Cioisd technakagy 3296 -
infrastructure and provision of
cloud computing resounces.
sl twie, SEorage. and offer
Intoemation technalogy senices
e the infErmetT
¥TL Arena Holdngs Limstod' Englond B Wales  Imestment hokding 54,04 5557
¥TL Arena Limited” England & Wales Arena deveiopmeni 54,94 5357
¥TL Broadband Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Provision of wired line and wirsless 32,96 33.24
broadband access and othar
it services
¥TL Communicatans Infamational Cayman blands  Imeestment holding 32.96 33134
Limited*
¥TL Commianicatans Sdn. Bhd, Malaysa Frovision of wired line and wineless 32.96 33134
broadband access and othar
FEaTed Senaces, ard constracison
af lalpcofimunications
infrastruciune
¥TL Commimicatans [5) Pte Lid” Singapone Computer systems integration 32.96 3334
activities and systom intogration
SETCES
¥TL Comstruction (L) Limited® England & Wales  Donmar 54,94 5557
¥TL Dwta Centor Hokfngd P, Liel" Singaparo Irnetment halding n comparsss that £4.94 5557
own ared operate data cenars
¥TL DC Heddings Sidn, Ohid. Malaysia Irnestmint holding 54.94 5557
¥TL DC Mol Pra, L Singapore Irmeestmient holding in comparies. that 54.94 5557
own and operate fata centers
¥TL DC South Sdn, Bhd [Malaysia Dervellopmant, operation and marketng 54.94 5557
of data center proects and refated

infrastuciune, senioes and acthities

ANMUAL REFDET Z024 293
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTIMUED)
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Detalls of the subskdianes are as follows [continuedy-
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EMective Equity
Intorest
Country of 2024 2023
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities %o %
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad: {continued)
YTL Developments (LK) Limited' England & Waes  Howsing develogment 54.94 5557
Y7L Digreal Cagital Son. Bhd. Malaysis I tment holdng 54.94 AT
¥TL Digital Payments Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Processing ol digital payments wia 54.94 5557
#-maney platfarm
YTL Digmal Sdn. Bhd. Halaysla naciive 32.96 3334
YTL Eclucatian (UK} Limited! Engjlanid & Wales Dexrnant 54.94 557
¥TL Energy Holdings Sdn. Sh. Malaysia Investment haldng S4.94 55,57
¥TL Engineeting Limieed* Ergland f Wales  Dedmant - 5557
YTL Events Limited! England & Wales  Domant 54.94 55.57
YTL Finarce (Cyprues) Lid Cypns Finncial servioes 54.94 55,57
YTL Glabal Metwarks Limited Cayman lsdands  Dormant 32.96 3334
¥TL Hormes Lid! England & Wales  Houwsing devalopment 54.94 5557
YTL infrastuciure Holdngs Sdn. 8hd, Malayua estment holdng 5494 5557
YTL Infrastructuee Limited Cayman [slapds Investmant haldng 54.94 5557
YTL Jawsa Encrgy BY. Matherlands Investment holding, financing and 54.94 55,57
MEIGEMENT Services
YTL jawa O & M Hoidings B Naiherlands Evestment ho'dng and managemant 54.94 5557
LENALES
YL jawa O & M Holdings Limited” Cypnus Investment haldng 54.94 5557
YTL jawa Power BYS Natherlands Investment holdng and management 3139 s
arvices
YL Jawa Power Finance Limited” Cayman [sands Financial serviies 54.94 5557
YTL fawa Power Holdings BY." Matherlards Investmeant holdng 3Lze 75
YTL jawma Power Hakdings Limited Cypius Investment baldng and financing 54.94 557
activities
YT jorcian Power Holdings Limined” Cypnrs Inwestment holdng and financing 54.94 5557
T
¥TL jordan Sardces Holdngs Limted” Cypns Investmant holdng 54.04 5557
YTL Land and Property (L) Lrd.! Ergland £ Waes  Investmant holdng 54.94 5557
YTL Places Limited England ke Wales  Doernant 54.94 55.57
YTL Power Australia Limited® Cayman |slands westment holdng 54.94 9557
YIL Power Finance (Cayman) Limited? LCaymian Idands Dexrnant 54.94 5557

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Details of the subsidates ae as folows (continued]-
Effective Equity
Interost
Country of 2024 2023
Mame of Cempany Incorporation  Principal Activities Y LT
Hald through YTL Power
Internatienal Berhad: (continued)
¥TL Power Generation Sdn, Bhd.’ Malaywa Developing, comstructng. compéeting, 54.94 5557
mairtairng and operating power
planits, and Eweitment holiing
1L Power Holdings. Sdn. Bhc. Malaysa Darmant 54.94 Sasf
¥TL Poswer inverstments Limited! Cayman klands  Investment holding 54.94 G557
¥TL Powier Iiernational Holdings Cayman Blands  nvestment holding 54.94 5557
Limed
¥TL Power Resourres Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Imerstment hodding 54,94 5L.57
¥TL PowerSerivga Pe. Limited.” Singapore Thae full value chain imoked in the 5494 SLEF
paneration and s¥e of eectricty, Ths
Imchughes the trading af fuel related
dervativeg irsdruments, tank leaing
activities and sale of by-products from
thit electrizity generation process
¥TL Power (Thailand) Limited" Cayman klands  Dormant 54.94 5557
¥TL Propery Haldings (LK) Limited” Emgand & Wales  Housing dovelopment 54.94 5557
¥TL RE Holdings Sdr. Bhd Malaysa Inwestment holding 54.94 5557
Y7L Renewatilis Pre. L1 Singaporg Tranumissian, deirilition and s3e of 5494 5557
et bricity, engneering design and
CONSUETANCY SEIVICRS N enengy
management and el eongy
siutem
¥TLSA 1 Limited* Engiand & Wales  Student accommodation developmant 54,04 -
¥TL Seraya Limited Cayman Elands Ineestment holding 54.94 5557
¥TL Servicas Limited* Engand & Walss Darmiam 54.94 5557
¥TL SIFP Power Holdings Sdn. Bhd, alaysa Imvestment hoiding 38.46 38.90
¥TL Southrm Salr San. Bhd. Malnysa vestment hoiding, develapment, 54,94 LTS

awnershag, aperation and
mairtenande af salar phatovalzac
power plant and related generation
of electritity from reen enangy
SOUIFTES, IOCLIEMert, Constnction
il COMMSSIoN Senvioes, and

bisild ng. operation and mainenance
of fransmission infrastructure
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46. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTIMUED)

Detalls of the subskdianes are as follows [continuedy-
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Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023

Hame of Company Incarporation  Principal Activities ¥ LA
Held through ¥TL Power

International Berhad: {continued)
YTL Usilities Limited Cayman Isands Investment haldng 54,94 5557
YL Unilities Finange Limited Caytman [sands I tment holdng 5494 AT
WL Lhilitles Finance 2 Limited Cayman ldands vestmant holding 54.94 55,57
YTL Unilities, Finsnde 3 Limited" Cayrman Flaids Financial servioes 54.94 55.57
YTL Litilities Finsnce 4 Limitad? Cayman ldands Fimancial services 54.94 B5.57
YL Unilities Finsnoe 5 Limited Cayman [dands Investment holdng 54.94 5557
YL Utilitles Finence 6 Limited® Cayman |dands Financlal services 54.94 5557
¥TL Lilities Finance 7 Limited! Cayman lslarcls Inactive £4.94 5557
YTL Lhtilities Holddings Limited® Cayman |sands Investmant holdng 54.94 58557
YL Utilities Holdings (5) Pra. Limited" Singapora Investmant baldng 54,94 5557
¥TL Linilitiees {5) Poee Lmited™ Singapors Inserctmmnt hotdng 54.94 55.57
YTL Uhilities (L&) Limited™ Ergland & Wales  Investment holdng 54,94 5557
Held through YTL Power Services

Sdn. Bha.:
YTL Power Senvices (Cayman] Lid! Cayman ldands Inactive 100.00 10000
YTL Perwiter Services (Lel) SARL” Letsanan Cperation and mantmance of 100.00 10000

pawver station
YTL Porwer Sendoes (5) Pre. L Sngapars Cperation and mantensnce of 10:0.00 10000
owar station

Held threugh YTL Singapore Pre.

Lid.:
Coiaifehani Autodoine Food & Beverdge The Peogis’s ac i 100.00 10000

Management Co. Lid” Repubic of Chena
Shanghai Autodome Food & Beverage The Peapis's Inactive 100.00 100,00

Con, Lod® Repubic of Chena

Dissodvod duwing Eho financi yeor

Har madined.

- - ow = w b

296 YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Sutmckories ot audlited by L8 Ler Lim Chew PLT

Ennties ore SEhar examalisd of ROE SEORUORY Regined 1o e ouciTed
Frivviogsty was @ fond vendure and beoome @ sufrsichary dunng dhe fiaoansd year

Faxt oot of 2he mnditend finoncial sfatempnby shall be mace e of e finoncinl perind ended 30 fune 5005
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47. LIST OF ASSOCIATES
Detaits of the assocites are as follows-
Effective Equity
Interest
Country of Z0e4 2023
MName of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L T
Hald by the Company:
Expraris Rl Link Scin. B, Malirysia Dpevation & maiitenance of the 45.00 4500
Ewpress Rail Link rallway system
Biotwsee Kusls Limspur
Interrations Airport and Kuals
Luampar international Alport 2 in
Sepandg with Kuala Limpur
Sentral Statian
Trans-Facific Hesorts Sdn. Bhd. Malaysa Inactive 50,00 SEL00
Held through Business & Budget
Hotals Sdn. Bhd.:
Duminess B Dudget Fotels [Kuantan) Madayiia Flote] operator 50.00 50,00
Sdn. Bhdl,
Held through Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tieng Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
Enra Labwan Sén Bhd Maliysaa Fraperty investment 34.40 -
Morth South Development Sdn. Bhd Maiayse Realty, investmen?t & managoment 49.00 4900
SofViCeS
Held through YTL Cayman Limited:
¥TL (Thadand) Limited Thakand Imepstment hokding 49.90 4990
Starhill Globall Real Estata imeestmont Singapono Imeestment in prime real estate 3r.za 3718
Trusk
Held threugh YTL Cement Berhad:
Cemanitious Products Pte Lid Singapore Imeestment holding 49.01 4902
Supet Aggregates Sdn Bhd. Malaysa Trading of constrction & bulldang 49.01 qa.02
matitiak
Tan Son Company Liretad Vietnam Inacthe 20.59 2059
Held through YTL e-Solutions
Barhadt:
Endiess Momentum Sin, Bhdt Malaysea Irmeestment hoiding - 30,00

237
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47. LIST OF ASSOCIATES (CONTIMUED)

Detalls of the assoclates are as follows (continued)-
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Effective Equity
Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities ¥ LA
Held through ¥TL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bh:
Sumin Bay Company Ld. Thalland totel operatar 49,00 45,00
Trars-Patific Hobels Sdn. Bhd. Malaysla Inacnive 50.00 0,00
¥ Property Holdings (Thal) Company Thailand vestmant holding 49,00 -
Lismizid
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad:
Erafit jordan BY. Matherlands Investment holding and financing 16.48 1667
acthvitios
Digital Masional Berhad Halaysia To buld, own and oparate a 50 a.94 -
netwark and infrastreciune and
to provide access of its network
I lcersed telecmmunscations
setite prosichers in Malasia
P.T. javwa Power: Incinnesia Operating 4 coal-fired thesmal 10.59 nn
power station
Sea Capital Services Berhad® Malarsin Financial services o tivities, except 21.99 2224
Insurance/takaful and perrsion
funding, inciuding but Aot limited
to online digital financial senvices
and ather relevant services
Strides ¥TL Pre. Lid Singapoans Frensian of electic vehick: 27.41 LA
thaging senices
Taweau Gresery Ersargy Sdn. Bhd, Halaytia Derrant 628 "
Ranhil Water (Hong Kong) Ld. Haong Karg To undertake imestment holding 2.40 -
aetivithes and provision al
canltancy, Eoject
inanagement, operaton and
mainteience sendes reating 1o
wirslewdaler realment plants
Ranhil Consuttng Sdn. Bhd, Malagsla Enpnesring consultancy and 7.08 -
srgneering R procuement
andre

YTL CORPORATION BERMAD
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47. LIST OF ASSOCIATES i(CONTINUED)

Detaks of the associates are as follows |continued]:-

Effective Equity

Interest
Country of 2024 2023
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L Ta
Hald through ¥YTL Power
International Berhad: (continued)

Ranhill Consulting {Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd, Malaysa Project managament and 7.05

enginesr|ng consultant

Thee Gronge's finerd meenesl an P T, foi Py 18 35000

" On28Apel! 2023 TIL Dspial Dopdol San Shat subscribed for J0L020 000 oodnary whanes, represeafing £00029% of the issced ond peid-ug shone
coptel af oo (apena! Servced Dechad for o fofe! rontideration of RMAOON000 Seo Caprnl Servees Berhod wat intenperared e G Ooinbes
2022 and hos on issued ond poid-we shore copin! of RMEO0000,000 comprishg 100000000 ordingry tfharps

¥ Deposed dunimg ihe finongiy year

ANMUAL REFONT ZoE4 299
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48. LIST OF JOINT VENTURES
Detalls of the jcint ventures are as folows.-

300
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Effective Equity
Imtorest
Country of 2024 2023
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities L' LA
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
Alllante Concrete Sehgapohe Pre. Lid Singapcie Production and sale of readymix 3543 Ja52
anrete
Held thraugh YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.:
EFte Dining Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Oporation of 3 restaurant S0.00 50,00
Held through YTL Land &
Dewelopmeant Berhad:
Sharefront Development Sdn. Bhd. HMalaysa Property development 46,60 AGED
Held through YTL Power
Intermational Berhad:
AP1 Pie. Lid Singapore Iwestment holdng and cperations 2747 Ly
of datid Centars
Attarat Mining Comparny BV, Netherlands Mining and supply of ol shale 24.72 2501
ATtarat Operation and Mainmenanoe hatherands Opseration and mangenance o 24.72 2301
Company B, pawer plant
Attarat Power Holdng Company By Matherlards Inwestmant holdng and financing 24.72 250
activiteas
Bristol Wessex Biling Services Limlted  Englar B Wales  Billing services ZTA4T 2
Broadspsctrom Waordeyparsans [V (M} Malawda Provision of advisary and 4.02 -
Sdn. Bl consultancy sendces and
IMAVIBANCE, POCUTemant,
pro@ct operations and
management services
Meuron Solutions S, B, Malaysa Mohile intemet and choud: based - 1657
[formerly known as Xchanging techinology solutions
Maaysia Sdn. Bnd
Harhil Barsakutu Saudi Limitsd The Eingdarn of Dormant 175 -
Sal Arabia

¥ Previsdtly mus @ foine veelure ond berams o aelsaliory dunimg the fimoncial year.
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49. SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER REFORTING PERIOD

On 23 |uly 2024, YTL Cement Bashad [*YTL Cement™), a subsidlary of the Company, entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agrstmunt with 98 Holdings Pre Ltd for the acquisition of 3035 million ordinary shares in WSL L ("N5SL7) for o toesl cash
corsideration of 5002276 millon (equivalent to AMFI2.3 million, based on the prevaling exchange rate at thal time), NSL (s listed
on the Mainboard of the S0X-5T. the Singapore stock exchange.

Upon complation of the propoied soqusition, YTL Cemenit's sharehokfing in NSL will be approximately 81.24%. Accordingly, YTL
eyt il Do reguitied o undertaie o mandsiony wonditonal tash offer Tor all remaining NSL shares Tor o cash ofler price af
SCOOTS (eruvalent Ly MG} per MEL shate, pursnl (e The Singapore Code on Take-overs and Meogers and e Seounites and
Futures Act 2001 of Sngapone

50. AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE OF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Ihe finarkizl statements have been authodsed Tor S5 in acoordande with a resolion of the Board of Direciors on b September
a2,

ANMUAL HESDAET 2024 L1 Y
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Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2023 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 103 to 292.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2023, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to communicate in our report of the financial statements of the Company. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

1. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(q)(ii), 3(a) and 19 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

As at 30 June 2023, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM9,064 million which represents 11.1%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,
water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom (“UK”) and cement manufacturing business in Malaysia
as disclosed in Note 19 to the Financial Statements. The goodwill for these businesses comprises 83.7% of
total goodwiill.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation. The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Notes 19(a) and 19(b) to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

agreed the VIU cash flows of each CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;

discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUSs;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries;

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows; and

compared historical forecasting for the current financial year to actual results achieved to ascertain the
reasonableness of management’s estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

2.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) of the mobile broadband network business
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(h), 3(c) and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 5.6% (RM1,993.8
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2023.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the segment which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD") cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions especially its growth targets.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
calculation of the FVLCD.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

discussed with management the assumptions underlying the cash flow projections;

assessed key assumptions including the discount rate, average service revenue growth rate, earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) margin, long-term growth rate and
useful life of the assets by comparing these assumptions against publicly available macroeconomic and
industry data, as well as historical data and market expectations from industry reports, where available;
assisted by our valuation expert in assessing the assumptions used and the appropriateness of the
methodology adopted by management for impairment assessment in accordance with MFRS 136
“Impairment of Assets”;

assessed the reliability of the approved budget by comparing the previous years’ approved budget
against past trends of actual results; and

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management by stress testing the discount rate, average
service revenue growth rate and terminal year EBITDA margin.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

3. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(h), 3(b) and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The water and sewerage business’s net book value of infrastructure assets (RM10,209.2 million) comprises
28.9% of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. Due to the high value of capital expenditure on
infrastructure assets, judgements made on the classification of expenses as operating or capital, and within
capital between maintenance and enhancement, are key to the preparation of the accounts.

There is a significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant and
Equipment (“MFRS 116").

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

sampled capital expenditure costs in the year and agreed the costs to underlying support, including
timesheets and invoices;

challenged management’s assumptions used in allocating certain costs between capital and operating
expenditure. Specifically, this has included assessing the appropriate capitalisation of the various types
of costs such as overheads, interest, and infrastructure maintenance; and

understood the nature of costs incurred in relation to employee and overhead costs through discussion
with management and corroborated with supporting information provided and checked whether the costs
incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with MFRS 116.

587/615



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

4. Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(r), 3(d) and 20 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

Trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment (RM524.9 million net of expected credit losses of
RM307.4 million) accounts for 20.7% of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2023.

As this segment operates in the UK, there is a statutory requirement to continue to provide water to all
customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the expected credit losses of
trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends and economic
trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of expected credit losses for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the key information technology systems used for generating billings
and cash collection data used for the expected credit losses assessment and the controls over
assessment of expected credit losses of trade receivables;

obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and
payment methods and compared against the percentage of expected credit losses used by management
against each ageing bracket and payment methods;

checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, which included management’s scenario analysis of the impact of economic
uncertainty due to inflation;

compared the level of expected credit losses charged against similar companies within the industry in the
UK;

performed substantive testing to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the reports used to populate
the expected credit loss provision calculation; and

developed expectations to generate a range for the estimated value and compared against the estimates
and assumptions set forth by management to ensure no management bias over the expected credit
losses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

5.

Metered income accrual
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(d)(i)(b), 3(i), 4 and 20 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The Group has recorded a metered income accrual of RM640.4 million as at 30 June 2023 relating to
revenue from the provision of water services to customers on water meters that had not been read at the
year-end date.

Revenue recognition in respect of the accrued income is particularly judgemental. It arises in relation to the
unbilled income accrual from metered water services. This income accrual requires an estimation of the
amount of unbilled charges at the period end. It is calculated using system generated information based on
previous customer volume usage.

Given the range of factors underlying the estimate, there is a risk that the metered income accrual and
revenue could be misstated.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

obtained an understanding of the process for the supply of measured services, meter reading and
related billing;

tested the key controls linked to system generated information and around the estimation process for
measured revenue;

compared the accrued income to bills raised post year end and compared management's history of
estimating the accrued income balance to bills raised in the subsequent year to assess the accuracy of
accrual income balance;

recomputed the accrued income based on customers' historical usage data for selected samples;
performed analytical procedures by comparing revenue balances for the year against expectation and
obtaining support for significant variances;

corroborated the key assumptions and estimates made by management in recognising revenue, by
obtaining internal and external data on factors that influence demand from customers;

tested contract terms and conditions were met and revenue recognised at the correct period;
performed journal testing over targeted manual entries related to revenue, particularly those recorded
close to the year-end; and

obtained an understanding of manual adjustments made to accrued income and reviewed the underlying
assumptions for those adjustments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

6.

Revenue recognition from construction contracts

The risk

Revenue and cost of sales recognised from construction contracts during the financial year as disclosed in
Notes 2(d)(i)(e), 3(h), 4 and 5 to the Financial Statements is RM1,203 million and RM1,126 million,
respectively.

The Group has significant long term construction contracts. The recognition of revenue and profit on these
contracts is based on input method (on the basis of the entity’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation).

Revenue and profit recognition on long term construction contract is a key audit matter because of the
judgement and estimates exercised by the management based on the assessment of performance
obligation, revenue recognition arising from variations to the original contracts, assessment of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation and contract costs and appropriate provision for
foreseeable losses and liquidated damages.

Our response:

Our audit procedures included the following:

reviewed and assessed the forecast budget and appropriateness of assumptions used based on
historical performance in the Group and industry knowledge, including obtained and assessed
information provided by management to determine whether the forecast assumptions are consistent with
the terms of the relevant contracts;

evaluated the management’s updated budgeted costs and forecast of costs to complete by assessing
the basis of their calculation;

recomputed the revenue using approved contract sum, actual costs incurred to date that reflect the
progress towards completion of the agreed works to customer and latest revised budgets; and
inspected the actual costs incurred to the corresponding supporting documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 44 to the Financial Statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT
201906002362 & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
03160/09/2024 J
Dated : 27 September 2023 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
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Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial
position as at 30 June 2024 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information, as set out on pages 107 to 301.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2024, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to communicate in our report of the financial statements of the Company. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

1.

Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(i), 2(0)(ii), 3(a) and 19 to the financial statements.

As at 30 June 2024, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM9,194 million. The goodwill is primarily
allocated to the power generation business in Singapore, water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom
(“UK™) and listed cement business in Malaysia as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU").
The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Notes 19(a) and 19(b) to the financial statements
respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Our and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

agreed the cash flow projections of each CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;
compared historical forecasting for the current financial year to actual results achieved to ascertain the
reasonableness of management’s estimates;

discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective cash flow projections and
compared the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUs;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation experts by benchmarking to the respective industries; and

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates, and
revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective cash flow projections.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
2. Acquisition of Ranhill Utilities Berhad
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(j) and 15(a)(iv) to the financial statements.

On 28 May 2024, the Group entered into an unconditional share sale agreement with Tan Sri Hamdan
Mohamad, Hamdan Inc. (Labuan) Pte Ltd and Hamdan (L) Foundation for the acquisition of ordinary shares in
Ranhill Utilities Berhad (“Ranhill”), representing a 31.42% equity interest, for a cash consideration of RM405.2
million. This acquisition increases the Group’s aggregate direct shareholding to 53.19%, together with
previously held interest in Ranhill of 21.77%.

Accordingly, the Group accounts Ranhill as a subsidiary of the Group in accordance with MFRS 3 “Business
Combinations”. The fair value of net identifiable assets acquired on the date of acquisition was assessed via a
preliminary purchase price allocation (“PPA”") exercise.

We focused on the above as the assumptions used in determining the fair values of net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are inherently uncertain and requires significant judgement.

Our response:

Our and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

assessed management assessment on whether the Group has obtained control over Ranhill;

assessed the basis for determining the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities assumed at the date
of acquisition;

checked the calculation of provisional goodwill arising from the acquisition of Ranhill, being the difference
between the total purchase consideration and fair value of previously held equity interest, and the fair
values of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and

checked the appropriateness of disclosures in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

3. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”") of the telecommunications business
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(g), 3(c) and 11 to the financial statements.

The Group has PPE related to its telecommunications business division with aggregate carrying values of
RM1,889.4 million as at 30 June 2024.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to the losses recorded
by the business division which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD")
cash flows which require significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is dependent on
the achievement of the forecast financial budgets which are dependent on the use of key assumptions
comprising its growth targets, and sourcing contract renewals.

Our response:

Our and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

discussed with management the assumptions underlying the cash flow projections;

assessed key assumptions including the discount rate, average service revenue growth rate, earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) margin, long-term growth rate and useful
life of the assets by comparing these assumptions against publicly available macroeconomic and industry
data, as well as historical data and market expectations from industry reports, where available;

assisted by a valuation expert in assessing the assumptions used and the appropriateness of the
methodology adopted by management for impairment assessment;

assessed the reliability of the approved budget by comparing the previous years' approved budget against
past trends of actual results; and

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management by stress testing the discount rate, average
service revenue growth rate and terminal year EBITDA margin.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

4. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(g), 3(b) and 11 to the financial statements.

As at 30 June 2024, the net book value of infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business division in
the United Kingdom amounted to RM10,691.8 million and cost capitalised during the financial year was
RM2,529.2 million. This cost comprised capital expenditure incurred by the business division to meet the
development and regulatory requirements of the business, employee and overhead costs that are directly
attributable to the construction of the assets.

There is significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, “Property, Plant and
Equipment”.

Our response:

Our and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

reviewed the nature of costs incurred in relation to employee and overhead costs through discussion with
management and corroborated with supporting information provided and checked whether the costs
incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with MFRS 116;

sampled capital expenditure costs in the year and agreed the costs to underlying support, including
timesheets and invoices; and

challenged management’s assumptions used in allocating certain costs between capital and operating
expenditure. Specifically, this has included assessing the appropriate capitalisation of the various types of
costs such as overheads, interest, and infrastructure maintenance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

5.

Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(q), 3(d), 22 and 40(d) to the financial statements.

As at 30 June 2024, trade receivables of the water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom amounted to
RM613.9 million, net of expected credit losses charges of RM390.4 million.

The Group has estimated the expected credit losses of trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based
on the historical cash collection trends and economic trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of expected credit losses for trade receivables.

Our response:

Our and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the key information technology systems used for generating billings
and cash collection data used for the expected credit losses assessment and the controls over
assessment;

performed substantive testing to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the reports used to populate
the expected credit loss provision calculation;

obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and
compared against the percentage of expected credit losses used by management against each ageing
bracket;

checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions which may affect the
collectability of trade receivables used to determine the expected credit losses;

compared the level of expected credit losses charged against similar companies within the industry in the
UK; and

developed expectations to generate a range for the estimated value and compared against the estimates
and assumptions set forth by management to ensure no management bias over the expected credit
losses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

6.

Metered income accrual for the water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom
The risk
We refer to Notes 2(d)(i)(b), 3(i) and 4 to the financial statements.

The Group has recorded a metered income accrual of RM755.4 million as at 30 June 2024 relating to revenue
from the provision of water services to customers on water meters that had not been read at the year-end date.

Revenue recognition in respect of the accrued income is particularly judgemental. It arises in relation to the
unbilled income accrual from metered water services. This income accrual requires an estimation of the amount
of unbilled charges at the period end. It is calculated using system generated information based on previous
customer volume usage.

Given the range of factors underlying the estimate, there is a risk that the metered income accrual and revenue
could be misstated.

Our response:

Our and component auditors’ audit procedures included the following:

obtained an understanding of the process for the supply of measured services, meter reading and related
billing;

tested the key controls linked to system generated information and around the estimation process for
measured revenue;

compared the accrued income to bills raised post year end and compared management's history of
estimating the accrued income balance to bills raised in the subsequent year to assess the accuracy of
accrual income balance;

recomputed the accrued income based on customers' historical usage data for selected samples;
performed analytical procedures by comparing revenue balances for the year against expectation and
obtaining support for significant variances;

corroborated the key assumptions and estimates made by management in recognising revenue, by
obtaining internal and external data on factors that influence demand from customers;

performed journal testing over targeted manual entries related to revenue, particularly those recorded
close to the year-end; and

obtained an understanding of manual adjustments made to accrued income and reviewed the underlying
assumptions for those adjustments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

7.

Revenue recognition from construction contracts

The risk

We refer to Notes 2(d)(i)(e), 3(h) and 4 to the financial statements.

The Group recorded revenue from its construction activities amounting RM787.0 million.

We focused on this area because the accounting for construction contracts activities is inherently complex as it
involves the use of significant estimates and judgements made by the management which includes the

following:

a) Estimation of the total budgeted project costs;

b) Determination of the progress towards satisfaction of the performance obligations and overall progress of
the Group’s projects;

¢) Consideration of variation orders and claims with the Group’s customers; and

d) Estimation of damages in transaction price arising from liquidated and ascertained damages.

Our response:

Our audit procedures included the following:

obtained an understanding over construction project budget approvals and revenue recognition process;
evaluated the management’s key judgements used in the estimation of budgeted construction contract
costs by examining documentation with subcontractors, historical evidence or results and retrospective
review of these estimates;

verified the budgeted revenue by examining the construction projects’ approved letters of award;
discussed with the project team to understand the nature of the variation orders and claims included in the
budgeted revenue and inspected the correspondences from the customers;

inspected the costs incurred to date and compared against sub-contractor claim certificates and suppliers’
invoices to corroborate the projects’ progress towards satisfaction of the performance obligations and
reasonableness of the estimated project budget;

performed re-computations on the calculation of the stage of completion to ascertain there is no
mathematical error in the profit recognition; and

reviewed the stage of completion of all on-going construction projects and reviewed the extension of time
approved by the customers to determine if any adjustment to the transaction price is required arising from
the estimation for liquidated and ascertained damages.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and of the Company'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements.

614/615



EDINETCI I
OooooooooooooooooooOonooOn(enss21)
OooooOodd
Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD (CONTINUED)

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT
201906002362 & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

CHEW LOONG JIN
03279/03/2025 J
Chartered Accountant

Dated : 26 September 2024
Kuala Lumpur
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